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CORPORATE PROFILE
i 5 i@ 5t

Sansheng Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as the “Company” or “Sansheng Holdings”,
together with its subsidiaries, collectively referred to as the “Group”) is principally engaged in property
development and sale, and property investment. Mr. Lin Rongbin, the de facto controller of Sansheng Group
Company Limited (collectively with its subsidiaries, the “Sansheng Group”), successfully acquired the equity
interests in the Company in April 2017. Following the completion of the acquisition, the Group continued to
explore potential business opportunities and seek sustainable development, and adopted the company name of
“Sansheng Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd.".

As of 2020, the Group has established its presence in the “Yangtze River Delta Region”, “West Coast Region”,
“Beijing-ring Region”, “Shandong Region”, “Sichuan-Chongging Region”, “Greater Bay Area Region” and
other core strategic regions.

The Group is committed to providing customers with high-quality residential products in a pleasant living
environment. While it is the Group's intention to enhance its income from existing investment properties,
it also intends to actively seek new opportunities in property development and carry out more mergers and
acquisitions, especially in the area of residential property development in the Mainland China market. In the
future, the Group will adhere to its development strategy of “high caliber team”, “superior product” and
“precise investment” to actively identify land in prime locations and suitable for property development and
investment in order to increase its land reserve and promote further development of the Group.
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Corporate Information
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Head Office and Principal Place of Business in
Hong Kong

Room 3207

The Gateway Tower 6
Tsim Sha Tsui
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Principal Bankers

Hong Kong

Industrial Bank Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch
Hang Seng Bank Limited
Bank of China Limited

Mainland China

China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd
China Construction Bank Corporation
China Guangfa Bank

Industrial Bank Co., Ltd

Industry and Commercial Bank of China

Auditor

KPMG
Public Interest Entity Auditor registered in accordance with the Financial
Reporting Council Ordinance

Hong Kong Share Registrar and Transfer Office

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Cayman Islands Share Registrar and Transfer
Office

Suntera (Cayman) Limited
Suite 3204, Unit 2A

Block 3, Building D

P. O. Box 1586

Gardenia Court, Camana Bay
Grand Cayman, KY1-1110
Cayman Islands

Share Information

Place of listing: The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Main Board
Stock code: 2183
Board lot: 2,000 shares
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Website
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Project Distribution
HES

Sansheng Holdings
Coverage in China
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Major Project Profiles
FEREENR

Zhanggiu Jinan Shandong/The Puyue Bay
LRBEE R BN E

Zhanggiu Jinan Shandong/The Puyue Bay

Zhanggiu Jinan Shandong/The Puyue Bay (LI 7% = T /BEIH ) is
located at Mingshui subdistrict, Zhangqiu district, Jinan City, bordering
Shiji East Road to the east, floodway to the west and reach to Tiedao
North Road to the south and Shanquan East Road to the north.
The total site area is approximately 60,032 sq.m. and the total GFA
is approximately 201,054 sgq.m.. The land use of the project is for
residential use. After the master layout plan for the project has been
approved in March 2018, the initial pre-sale started in December 2018.
The project is under development and expected to be completed in
2022.
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Major Project Profiles
FEREENR

Pingtan Fujian/Sansheng International Coast (Phase 1)

BEYE =ZBREESF (—H)

Pingtan Fujian/Sansheng International Coast (Phase 1)

Pingtan Fujian/Sansheng International Coast (1832 /8/= BB &%)
(Phase 1) is located at Jinjing Wan Area, Pingtan Comprehensive Pilot
Zone, situated at the north of the junction of Tianda North Road and
Ruyi Road. The total site area is approximately 122,122 sq.m. and the
total GFA is approximately 443,498 sg.m.. The land use of the project
is mainly for residential and commercial uses. The master layout plan
for the project was approved in July 2018 and the first batch of pre-sale
commenced in October 2018. The project is under development and
expected to be completed in 2022.
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Major Project Profiles
FEREENR

Pingtan Fujian/Sansheng International Coast (Phase 2)

BEVE =RERER (=

Pingtan Fujian/Sansheng International Coast (Phase 2)

Pingtan Fujian/Sansheng International Coast (f@E 38/ = s BIFF & =)
(Phase 2) is located at Jinjing Wan Area, Pingtan Comprehensive Pilot
Zone, situated at the east of Ruyi Lake and west of the Huanhu Road.
The total site area is approximately 75,500 sg.m. and the total GFA is
approximately 196,900 sg.m.. The land use of the project is mainly for
residential and commercial uses. The master layout plan for the project
was approved in August 2019. The project is under development
and expected to have the first batch of pre-sale in early 2021 and be
completed in 2023.

)

BEYE =ZREEER(ZH)
ﬁ%iﬁ/‘@l%ﬁ%tﬁmﬁaﬁ#
TEReRBESHERE  LERUOEMN
%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%@ﬁoﬁﬁ%mmﬁﬁ%%
75,500 F 5K - AAEEEE L) 5196,900F 75
K -BHERWUHE B AFTELREERL -
HEMREARN_ZE—NFN\AEBES -
ZEEMERES  BitR_ZE_—FVRE
HE—IEE  WR_ZE-_=FK8T-




Sansheng Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. 8 ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Major Project Profiles
FEREENR

Mawei Fuzhou Fujian/Future City

BEBMNER KRR

Mawei Fuzhou Fujian/Future City

Mawei Fuzhou Fujian/Future City (f&&4& N5 RB/AR2KIK) is located
at the western part of Langgqi Island, Mawei District, south of the
island-entering section of Langgi Minjiang River Bridge, west of the
Duting River, north of the planned green space, west of the Area A of
Xianghai Xincheng (&F/8%7%), and the northern side of the Yanhang
River. The total site area is approximately 75,805 sg.m. and the total
GFA is approximately 173,077 sq.m.. The land use of the project is
mainly for residential and commercial uses. The relevant master layout
plan was approved in September 2018 and the first batch of pre-sale
launched in January 2019. The project is under development and
expected to be completed in 2021.
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Major Project Profiles
FEREENR

Rudong Nantong Jiangsu/Puyue Mansion

SLER B R BT

Rudong Nantong Jiangsu/Puyue Mansion

Rudong Nantong Jiangsu/Puyue Mansion (/T & B U0 /EERAT) is
located at the core area of Rudong Xincheng (JAERETH), bordering
Jiefang Road Primary School (82 #&/]N82%) to the east, Yangzhou
River Banks Scenic Area (ZJAI/N =& [Z) to the west and reach to
Longteng Road (Wenti Zhongxin North Side Road X EZrF /UMb RAIEE) to
the south and north to Hengshigi Road (south side of the Commercial
Zone of Ruyi Bay (J0E &G E(R)). The total site area is approximately
77,481 sgq.m. and the total GFA is approximately 187,980 sg.m.. The
land use of the project is mainly for residential and commercial uses.
After the master layout plan for the project has been approved in
August 2018, the initial pre-sale launched in December 2018. The
project is under development and expected to be completed in 2021.
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Major Project Profiles
FEREENR

Longhai Zhangzhou Fujian/Sansheng ¢ Puyue Sea

BIEZBMEER =B « BB

Longhai Zhangzhou Fujian/Sansheng ¢ Puyue Sea

Longhai Zhangzhou Fujian/Sansheng e Puyue Sea ({f@Z2 M EE/&/=
B% o E13)8) is located at Binhai New Town Area, Gangwei Town,
Longhai City, northwest to the intersection of Yingbin Avenue and
Binhuwei 6th Road and to the west of Sansheng International Coast.
The total site area is approximately 23,457 sq.m. and the total GFA
is approximately 49,046 sq.m.. The land use of the project is mainly
for residential and commercial uses. The initial pre-sale of the project
launched in September 2019. The project is under development and
expected to be completed in 2021.
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Major Project Profiles
FEREENR

Xishan Wuxi Jiangsu/Sansheng ¢ Galaxy City
TEEZHIL, =5 « 25

Xishan Wuxi Jiangsu/Sansheng ¢ Galaxy City

Xishan Wuxi Jiangsu/Sansheng e Galaxy City (T#k &85 1/=
B% o 2i3k) is located at Xishan District, Wuxi City, situated in the
junction of Taihu Avenue and Huaxia South Road. The total site area
is approximately 33,191 sq.m. and the total GFA is approximately
127,698 sg.m.. The land use of the project is mainly for commercial
and office uses. After the master layout plan for the project has been
approved in February 2019, the initial pre-sale launched in September
2019. The project is under development and expected to be completed
in 2022.
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Major Project Profiles
FEREENR

Xiapu Ningde Fujian/Puyue Mountains And Rivers

BEEEER BT

Xiapu Ningde Fujian/Puyue Mountains And Rivers

Xiapu Ningde Fujian/Puyue Mountains And Rivers ({221 81/
BEYIILAT) is located at Yemao Ridge, Wanxian Village, Songcheng
Road, Xiapu County, Ningde City, Fujian Province. The total site area
is approximately 65,358 sq.m. and the total GFA is approximately
219,947 sq.m.. The land use of the project is mainly for residential
and commercial uses. After the master layout plan for the project has
been approved in December 2018, the first batch of pre-sale launched
in June 2019. The project is under development and expected to be
completed in 2022.
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Major Project Profiles
FEREENR
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Longhai Zhangzhou Fujian/International Coast

BEREMNEE BEEEF

Longhai Zhangzhou Fujian/International Coast

Longhai Zhangzhou Fujian/International Coast ({8 &= M EE/8/
B8 =) is located at Binhai New Town Area, Gangwei Town,
Longhai City, northwest to the intersection of Yingbin Avenue and
Binhuwei 6th Road. The total site area is approximately 237,697 sq.m.
and the total GFA is approximately 409,363 sg.m.. The land use of
the project is mainly for residential and commercial uses. The project
launched its initial pre-sale in April 2016, and was completed in April
2020.
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Major Project Profiles
FEREENR

Minhou Fuzhou Fujian/The Puyue Bay

BEBMER B E

Minhou Fuzhou Fujian/The Puyue Bay

Minhou Fuzhou Fujian/The Puyue Bay (183 4& M B /240 /) is located
at the southeast intersection of Nantong Avenue and Beihuan Road,
Minhou County. The total site area is approximately 77,983 sq.m.
and the total GFA is approximately 257,292 sq.m.. The land use of
the project is mainly for residential and commercial uses. After the
master layout plan for the project has been approved in June 2017,
the first batch of pre-sale launched in May 2018. The project is under
development and expected to be completed in 2021.
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Major Project Profiles
FEREENR

Cangshan Fuzhou Fujian/Binjiang International

BEBMAEL B

Cangshan Fuzhou Fujian/Binjiang International

Cangshan Fuzhou Fujian/Binjiang International (f8 &M &1L/
YB/LBIFR) is located at Cangshan District, with South Binjiang Avenue
on the south, South Binjiang Avenue on the north, Gangtouwai Road
on the southwest and Aofeng Bridge on the east. The total site area
is approximately 33,968 sq.m. and the total GFA is approximately
320,777 sq.m.. The land use of the project is mainly for residential,
commercial and office uses. After the master layout plan for the
project has been approved in February 2014, the first batch of pre-sale
launched in October 2014. The project is under development and
expected to be completed in 2021.
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Major Project Profiles
FEREENR

Wujin Changzhou Jiangsu/Sansheng ¢ Xinzhu Mansion
SIEREMEE =5 e LERE

Wujin Changzhou Jiangsu/Sansheng ¢ Xinzhu Mansion

Wujin Changzhou Jiangsu/Sansheng ¢ Xinzhu Mansion (T % &M
EHE/= 5% o [EETERE]) is located at the area of South Xiashu Town,
Wauijin District, Changzhou, bordering Guihua Road to the east, Xinzhi
Road to the west, Nanwan River to the south and Longfan Road to the
north. The total site area is approximately 39,787 sq.m. and the total
GFA is approximately 104,098 sq.m.. The land use of the project is
mainly for residential and commercial uses. The master layout plan for
the project has been approved in October 2019. The project is under
development and expected to be completed in 2021.
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Major Project Profiles
FEREENR

Haimen Jiangsu/Sansheng Puyue Mansion

L&A, = RRBEBT

Haimen Jiangsu/Sansheng Puyue Mansion

Haimen Jiangsu/Sansheng Puyue Mansion (T & &S/ =B EEIEIT)
is located at Sanchang Town, Haimen City. The total site area of the
project is approximately 84,802 sq.m. and the total GFA is approximately
202,123 sq.m.. The land use of the project is for residential use. After
the master layout plan for the project has been approved in April 2020,
the project launched its initial pre-sale in July 2020. The project is under
development and expected to be completed in 2022.
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Major Project Profiles
FEREENR

Zhifu Yantai Shandong/Sansheng ¢ Ruyue Mansion
IWREESR =R o JulidgE

Zhifu Yantai Shandong/Sansheng ¢ Ruyue Mansion

Zhifu Yantai Shandong/Sansheng ® Ruyue Mansion (IUERE&Z
RIZ B o mIH883) is located at No. 188, Xingfu Middle Road,
Zhifu District, Yantai City, Shandong Province. The total site area
of the project is approximately 82,340 sq.m. and the total GFA is
approximately 303,365 sg.m.. The land use of the project is mainly
for residential use. After the master layout plan for the project has
been approved in May 2020, the project launched its initial pre-sale in
August 2020. The project is under development and expected to be
completed in 2023.
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Major Project Profiles
FEREENR
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Rui‘an Wenzhou Zhejiang/Ruyue Xiangrui

HODBRMER RO i

Rui'an Wenzhou Zhejiang/Ruyue Xiangrui

Rui'an Wenzhou Zhejiang/Ruyue Xiangrui G718 M i 22/& 1% 7 B)
is located at Anyang Street, Ruixiang New District, Rui’an City. The
total site area of the project is approximately 18,383 sq.m. and the
total GFA is approximately 70,726 sg.m.. The land use of the project is
for residential use. The project is under development and expected to
launch its initial pre-sale in May 2021 and to be completed in 2022.
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Major Project Profiles
FEREENR

Chenghai Shantou Guangdong/Puyue Mansion

e WIEED:- 9= Y= vy

Chenghai Shantou Guangdong/Puyue Mansion

Chenghai Shantou Guangdong/Puyue Mansion (& B 5115 & /8/EE 1K )
is located at the south side of Yuting Road, Chenghai District, Shantou
City. The total site area of the project is approximately 27,722 sq.m.
and the total GFA is approximately 128,815 sg.m.. The land use of
the project is mainly for residential and commercial uses. The project is
under development and is expected to launch its initial pre-sale in April
2021. It is expected to be completed in 2022.

BERIWERE " BHF

BRNEEE S BN TIE B AL EE T B S
BE=EEA BB R hEELN /27,722
FHAK BEEMELA128,815F F K - 18
EAMMEETEAE=REERM - ERD
ERER  BAR_E-—FNABEXHAE
BE TR ZTE__FKET -
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Major Project Profiles

FRRA &R

Chengdu Sichuan/Sansheng

Chengdu Sichuan/Sansheng ¢ Luhu Zuoan

Chengdu Sichuan/Sansheng e Luhu Zuoan (701X &Y/ = 5% o BE#A %)
is located at Zhengxing Street, Tianfu New District, Sichuan. The total
site area of the project is approximately 26,163 sg.m. and the total GFA
is approximately 70,417 sg.m.. The land use of the project is mainly for
residential and commercial uses. The project is under development and
expected to launch its initial pre-sale in July 2021 and to be completed
in 2023.

e Luhu Zuoan

P9I R ER, =B8R » B F

WK E, =B BHAER

PONIFCER, =B e B ie F I B ALl K
FiEEEREEAGE - BE @ hmELY
26,163 F K AEEMIEL A70,417F
FAR -EERMMEEFELAFEREmERM -
ZEBNERZES  BitR-_ZTE-—F+A
BRBERBE UN_T-=F%T-
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Major Project Profiles
FEREENR

Hantai Hanzhong Shaanxi/Sansheng Tianyue

BREEFES, ZBRB

Hantai Hanzhong Shaanxi/Sansheng Tianyue

Hantai Hanzhong Shaanxi/Sansheng Tianyue (PRFEEAHE &/= K
%) is located at the northeast corner of the intersection of Bowang
Road and Yizhou Road, Hanzhong City, Shaanxi Province. The total site
area is approximately 44,031 sg.m. and the total GFA is approximately
160,698 sq.m.. The land use of the project is for residential and
commercial uses. The project is under development and expected to
launch its initial pre-sale in May 2021 and to be completed in 2022.

BRAEFESR =ZBXH

BRPERER, / ZRAIGEERB LR EE
PIEERKESMNETFRILA - BH B
WETEL AA4,031E K BEEEmBEN A
160,698 F 5 K- JHB B EAEENRE
¥R - BENERZS BN T =—
FRABXARREE  WW_E__FBIT -
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Major Project Profiles
FEREENR

Changle Fuzhou Fuj |an/Sansheng Puyue Binjiang

?aai_%‘aa')‘l‘lﬁw/_

Changle Fuzhou Fujian/Sansheng Puyue Binjiang

Changle Fuzhou Fujian/Puyue Binjiang (f@i2 @M FL4/BE15785T) is
located at No. 288, Hexie Road, Yinggian Street, Changle District,
Fuzhou City, bordered by Yingbin Road to the west, Hexie Road
(Dongjiang Lake Park) to the south, Shizheng Road to the north and
Xiagang Road to the east. The total site area is approximately 51,955
sg.m. and the total GFA is approximately 164,908 sq.m.. The land use
of the project is mainly for residential and commercial uses. The project
was completed in August 2020.

& T

EEBMNRES =RBHET
?EE%EJHE % /= BBV ETIE B 1 RN @M
Y% AT AT 8 AN AR 382885 TR &R
Eﬂ F‘ﬂﬁu% CRITHRE) » b BITERE -
RIZEPER - THE &5 b fE 4 A51,955F
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Major Project Profiles
FEREENR
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Licheng Quanzhou Fujian/Sansheng Puyueli

BERMER, = REHE

Licheng Quanzhou Fujian/Sansheng Puyueli

Licheng Quanzhou Fujian/Sansheng Puyueli (1872 5 M #8235/ = X EE 17 B)
is located at Jiangnan Street, Jiangnan New District, Licheng District.
The total site area is approximately 16,960 sg.m. and the total GFA is
approximately 40,716 sq.m.. The land use of the project is mainly for
residential and commercial uses. After the master layout plan for the
project has been approved in November 2019, the pre-sale launched

in June 2020. The project is under development and expected to be
completed in 2021.

EERMNEN —HRBEHEE
BERIMNEER = BB BIE A AR 2
BTRFE TEEaE - BEAGERENA
16,960 75 K - BB EEE L A£40,716F H
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Major Project Profiles
FEREENR

Longquanyi Chengdu Sichuan/Sansheng Metropolis
POl A RE REE = RRE S

Longquanyi Chengdu Sichuan/Sansheng Metropolis

Longquanyi Chengdu Sichuan/Sansheng Metropolis (P4)11 5k BB
REE/= B ERE ) is located at the east side of Longhua Road in
Longquangyi District. The total site area is approximately 133,333
sg.m. and the total GFA is approximately 442,827 sg.m.. The land use
of the project is mainly for residential and commercial uses. The project
is being developed in five phases. Phase 1 and Phase 3 were pre-sold
in 2013 and 2014 respectively and completed in 2016; Phase 4 was
pre-sold in December 2017 and completed in 2020.

o)l RAERBE R EE, =R

I p#BEREE =Bl N EE
SEBEEERRA -BELGHERNE
133,333 F K - BZEHIEYL) B442,827F
FARK-HERMWEETEAEEAM MEE
B - BE KD ARH - F—HLE=H
EoME—SE—=k_TE—NUFBEE B
RIZE—ARFRT: FNPER T —tF
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Major Project Profiles
FEREENR

Jiaozuo Henan/Jiaozuo Tianyue Mansion

Jiaozuo Henan/Jiaozuo Tianyue Mansion (] & & E/EVERIRIT) is
located at the west of Yingbin Road, north of Zhongwei Road, east of
Likang Mold, south of used-car market, Jiaozuo City, Henan Province,
the PRC. The total site area is approximately 22,117 sg.m. and the total
GFA is approximately 59,428 sq.m.. The land use of the project is for
residential use. The project is under development and expected to be
pre-sold in May 2021 and completed in 2022.

Shenhe Shenyang Liaoning/Yifu Project

The Yifu Land located in Shenyang is currently the Group’s commercial
property project under development. Based on the master layout plan
submitted to the relevant planning bureau in 2013, the Group plans to
develop a commercial complex with a three-level basement consisting
of retail shops, service apartments and car parking spaces with an
aggregate GFA of approximately 186,065 sq.m. on the Yifu Land.

As of the date of this annual report, the final approval for the master
layout plan has not yet been obtained, mainly due to a number of
issues which the Group and the local government are still working
together for a resolution. The Group has started to communicate with
the local government authorities, striving to obtain a solution that is
the most favorable to the Company as soon as practicable.

STEEE/ BERBRE

R EE,/ EEXIENER AR P AR
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Profile of Sansheng Group

=EKREGE N

As a strong supporter of the Group, Sansheng Group, founded in 1988
and headquartered in Shanghai, is a comprehensive operating platform
with its main business in real estate and a strong presence in the real
estate and household industries.

Real estate segment under Sansheng Group is mainly engaged in
property development. With over 20 years of experience in real
estate development, it is ranked among the 2020 top 45 real estate
enterprises in China by Yihan Think Tank and the 2020 top 10
real estate enterprises in China in terms of operating performance
jointly by China Real Estate Industry Association (F Bl EHE ),
Shanghai E-House Real Estate Research Institute ()85 E B EN
72B) and China Real Estate Appraisal Centre (Ff BIEEBIFE L)),
Strategically located in the core strategic regions of China, such as the
Yangtze River Delta Region, West Coast Region, Beijing-ring Region,
Shandong Region, Sichuan-Chongging Region and Greater Bay
Area Region, Sansheng Real Estate provides innovative products and
services for Chinese household customers in two major systems: the
“Full Life Cycle” and the “Full Product Cycle”, and has developed six
representative product series, such as the Dufu Series, the Puyue Series,
the Garden Series, the Ruyue Series, the Coast Series, and the Binjiang
Series, insisting on the product strategy of “leading the market by high
quality marketing” and have gained the reputation of “Asian Quality
Exemplary Real Estate”.

In addition, Sansheng Group focuses on education and technology
industries to build a better life. Sansheng Education focuses on the
synergistic development of smart education, academic education and
education training, and holds a controlling stake in the listed company
Sansheng Education (Shenzhen Stock Exchange stock code: 300282),
which joins hands with prestigious schools and enterprises to launch
a quality education service platform, and aid the future of smart
education for Chinese families. Sansheng Technology has invested
in Changelight (Shenzhen Stock Exchange stock code: 300102), to
provide customized solutions for Chinese families’ personalized needs.

Sansheng Group will always adhere to the core competitive strategy
of "high caliber team, superior product and precise investment”,
thoroughly implement the corporate mission of “focusing on the top
priority of Chinese families”, continue to build “a big platform for
business and a common body of wealth”, and strive to become a
trustworthy, sensible and quality Chinese century enterprise.
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CHAIRMAN’S
STATEMENT

ERHE

The year 2020 was a year when Sansheng Holdings embarked on the path of scale development, not
only achieving better performance but also optimizing its asset structure. The Company’s business
layout was further improved, and all key indicators such as operating scale, earnings performance
and land bank were the best in its history. Despite being affected by the unexpected pandemic
and policy changes, the Company is still confident in its future potential for sustainable
development.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFRBE

Looking back to 2020, the unforeseeable COVID-19 pandemic brought
a short-term impact on the economy, which affected the production
and operations in the first quarter, but through effective government
control, social production and operation started to fully recover in the
second quarter. As an important component of China’s economy,
the real estate industry has demonstrated its good resilience against
unexpected and unpredictable risks. It is evident that although the
real estate industry will face intensified competition in the future, the
long-term trend of overall stable operation is still in place.

In the face of the unanticipated pandemic in 2020, the Company
has not only reduced the negative impact since February 2020
through prompt adjustments and positive response, but also sought
opportunities amidst the crisis by seizing the window of opportunity
for phased public land auctions as well as mergers and acquisitions,
and achieved further layout optimization, with its land bank reaching
a record high. In addition to continued expansion in the established
markets of Fujian, Jiangsu, Zhejiang and Shandong, we also entered
the markets of Hebei, Guangdong, Sichuan, Shaanxi and Henan to
continue to cultivate new growth areas. The second round of asset
injection was completed on 24 November 2020 after the resolution
was unanimously passed by the independent shareholders at the
extraordinary general meeting of Sansheng Holdings on 19 October
2020. It is worth mentioning that this asset injection enhances the
land bank and properties for sale resources, as well as high quality
investment properties, which will provide the Company with stable
cash flow in the future. The successful completion of asset injection
for two consecutive years will provide a guarantee for the long-term
development of Sansheng Holdings.

With the introduction of numerous real estate industry-related policies
in 2020, such as “houses are for living in, not for speculation”, “three
red lines” and the regulation of real estate loan concentration by
financial institutions in the banking sector, “stability” will become
the general trend, which will also place higher demands on the
comprehensive strength, operational capability, product capability,
service capability and integration capability of real estate enterprises.
Sansheng Holdings will respond to the more competitive environment
by improving its management level, enhancing its product creation
capability and increasing its operational efficiency. We will also adhere
to the development strategy of “precise investment, competent team
and exquisite products” in the long run and maintain our pursuit of
excellent performance.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to convey my sincere gratitude
to all the shareholders, business partners and customers for their care
and support for the development of Sansheng Holdings. | would also
like to express my heartfelt thanks to the Directors, management and
employees for their diligence.

Lin Rongbin
Chairman

19 March 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEBMWE7Hh

FINANCIAL REVIEW B4 %5 O] B8
Contracted sales BHHE
As of 31 December 2020, the contracted but unrecognized sales of Eﬂii —E-_EFE+_RA=1+—H AEH

the Group amounted to approximately RMB24,128.0 million and EHEARRHEEN BN BARE
the estimated contracted gross floor area (“GFA") of the Group was 24 128. Oﬁ%ﬁ&$% BEENEEAME
approximately 1,953,387 square meter (“sg.m.”), which arise from  ([#ZE£EmEE ) G5+ 47/51,953,387F 5K ([ F
the contracted sales of the projects below, forming a solid basis forthe 52K ]) » T35k 8 FHIEBHNZLNHEE - AKX

Group's future growth in recognized revenue. B R RMERIA GG RIZHARE B -
Details of contracted sales as at 31 December 2020 TECEFETZAST-BHNBENHEFHE
Total Estimated
contracted contracted
sales GFA
BH  AEEOHEE
Location/Project 2% 1EH HERHE EEEE
(RMB’000) (sg.m.)
(AE#Fir) (FHXK)
1. Pingtan Fujian/Sansheng International Coast (Phase 1) BETE /= mEE/GE (—H) 2,604,252 232,982
2. Changle Fuzhou Fujian/Puyue Mansion (Phase 1) RERMRE BV (—H) 2,213,023 108,963
3. Minhou Fuzhou Fujian/The Puyue Bay BREEMEE BN 1,947,348 126,538
4. Xiaoshan Hangzhou Zhejiang/ Ruyue Meijing TR, 2R 1,803,090 56,624
5. limo Qingdao Shandong/Sansheng International Coast IR & B2 /=X EEE &= 1,523,528 134,983
6. Changle Fuzhou Fujian/Sansheng Puyue Binjiang BREMELS ZERENET 1,509,048 118,215
7. Tongshan Xuzhou Jiangsu/SanshengeMidtown TERMNIL, = 8% o 3L 1,417,426 98,402
8. Haimen Jiangsu/Sansheng Puyue Mansion TERERY =BT 1,392,945 114,971
9. Rudong Nantong Jiangsu/Puyue Mansion TERBME BN 1,260,790 152,221
10.  Changle Fuzhou Fujian/Puyue Mansion (Phase 2) BEBMNRE T (ZH) 1,213,731 98,787
11, Xiuyu Putian Fujian/Datang Shijia BEERSE/KEHR 983,062 125,520
12. Wuijin Changzhou Jiangsu/Sansheng ® Xinzhu Mansion ST & & MEE =5 ¢ LA E 856,130 65,266
13. Mawei Fuzhou Fujian/Future City BERM %E/*Xi& 823,038 72,103
14, Xiapu Ningde Fujian/Puyue Mountains And Rivers BREEER BN 762,253 102,040
15.  Zhifu Yantai Shandong/SanshengeRuyue Mansion WREAZR /T8 e i thE 624,709 44,867
16.  Xishan Wuxi Jiangsu/Sansheng e Galaxy City TERESHBIL, =8 e EUHH 578,990 52,735
17. Mawei Fuzhou Fujian/The Puyue Bay City BRENER BB R 446,827 42,946
18.  Wenling Taizhou Zhejiang/Sansheng Puyue Mansion — H1ST &R % /= BB T 326,769 17,837
19.  Licheng Quanzhou Fujian/Sansheng Puyueli BRRMNES, ZREHE 299,391 27,017
20.  Zhanggjiu Jinan Shandong/The Puyue Bay WRERERL B 259,940 31,087
21, Wujin Changzhou Jiangsu/Ruyue Chungiu STEBMBE S EMR 212,570 11,533
22, Hanjiang Putian Fujian/Sansheng Puyuegongguan BEGSHRI, ZBRENDE 200,394 24,600
23.  Taicang Jiangsu/Hujing Tianzhu TIEAR/HEXRE 193,640 11,900
24.  Longhai Zhangzhou Fujian/Sansheng e Puyue Sea BEZENEE, =5k o B8 160,040 11,365
25.  Zhangpu Zhangzhou Fujian/Sansheng Puyue Mansion — f&5E &8,/ = AL EE 1 1T 159,173 24,749
26.  Cangshan Fuzhou Fujian/Binjiang International BEEBMAEL,BEIEER 122,948 5,168
27.  Chengxiang Putian Fujian/Puyue Fenghua REEEMAR B E 105,667 7,555
28.  Longhai Zhangzhou Fujian/International Coast REEMESBRER 52,687 4,558
29.  Longquanyi Chengdu Sichuan/Sansheng Metropolis  79)|| 5k #F2E R B8 /= X &P & 31 50,556 22,590
30.  Xiapu Ningde Fujian/Binjiang International BEEEER BT 23,990 5,265

Total st 24,127,955 1,953,387
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BTEBMWE7Hh

Revenue WA

The Group's revenue mainly derived from sales of properties, with REBHKAFEREYEHE - BB /NE
a small proportion from investment properties rental income, hotel S X EAKREWER S WA BEAR IR
and construction and design services. Total revenue of the Group WL KR RBE B2 T _ZTF+ A
for the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to approximately =+—HIFFE KXEBHNKALTEDOAEA
RMB8,778.6 million (for the year ended 31 December 2019 (restated): R #8778 6E & T (BE_ZT—hE+ =8

approximately RMB2,337.6 million). = T—HIEFE(KEE]) : HARE2,337.6
BET) °
The following table sets forth certain details of the revenue: TEHIEBRAHNEFEL -

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=1T-HLFE

2020 2019
—E-EF —E—-NF

RMB’000 % RMB’'000 %
ARET T % ARETIT %

(restated)

(&G
Revenue from sales of properties MEEE Z WA 8,646,232 98.5% 2,237,353 95.7%
Investment properties rental income WEYE B WA 89,378 1.0% 91,571 3.9%
Hotel revenue TS WA 22,899 0.3% 8,717 0.4%

Revenue from construction and design T2 T MiRsT RIS Z

services WA 20,091 0.2% - -
Total @t 8,778,600 100.0% 2,337,641 100.0%

The revenue from sales of properties recorded approximately RBEZT_TFF_[F=+—HILFE
RMB8,646.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 (for the I IHEWABRBHI ARG, 64628 E T (B
year ended 31 December 2019 (restated): approximately RMB2,237.4 Z-ZF—AF+ A=+ —HILFE (KE

million), mainly contributed by 7 delivered properties located in  5ll) * ®] AR#2,237.4A &70) @ Iy F 2K
Chengdu, Fuzhou, Jinan, Ningde, Qingdao and Zhangzhou. BURKE @M FEE EE -SSRE

INEEIRYE AT -

Significant increase in revenue from sales of properties was mainly due ¥R SHE WA KIE IR I F B NAAE =T
to more properties completed and delivered when compared to 2019. —NLF - EZWMER T W R AT

The Group’s investment properties rental income recorded #HE_ZT_TF+_A=+—HIEFE &K
approximately RMB89.4 million for the year ended 31 December H®EHIREMEH SR AL R ARKSI4H
2020 (for the year ended 31 December 2019 (restated): approximately &L (BE - NF+_A=+—HILF
RMB91.6 million), it was mainly derived from commercial investment & (& &%) : /AR 6BET) - IIE
properties in Harbin, Fuzhou, Qingdao and Yangzhou. The decrease ZXBMEZE BN - FERBMNHOBE XK
was mainly due to less rental income being received from the leased E¥ % AT EZHRER T — L F -
properties in Harbin and Fuzhou in 2020 when compared to 2019. NZE_TERRAEARBINNEEMER:
W AR D P B o
The hotel revenue recorded approximately RMB22.9 million for the #E_ZT_TF+_HA=+—HIEFE &
year ended 31 December 2020 (for the year ended 31 December 2019  JEWABHGSH AR K298 8 T (BE - F
(restated): approximately RMB8.7 million). The increase was mainly — A F+ A=+ —HILFE (LFJ|) :
due to the hotel operation was commenced in October 2019, and the AIARMB7TE&ET) - BEE NI EEH RN
revenue was only generated for three months in 2019. BIEXEBR_ZE—NFT+ARE R ZZ
—NFEEE=BAHKRAFRE -
The revenue from construction and design services recorded #HE-ZT_-_TF+-_H=+—-—HIFFE T
approximately total of RMB20.1 million for the year ended 31 R IKEARBEXBEETSRAHARE
December 2020 (for the year ended 31 December 2019: RMB Nil). 20.1B& T (BE_T—hhF+_A=+—
The increase was mainly due to the provision of such serviceswasonly H IEFE : AR Z L) - BEE MDD EE
commenced in 2020. BHR_ZBE_EFTHBEHRZERBAE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEBMWE7Hh

Cost of sales

Cost of sales mainly represents the cost directly related to the
development of the Group's properties. It comprises mainly cost of land
use rights, acquisition premium, construction costs, decoration costs
and capitalized interest expenses. For the year ended 31 December
2020, cost of sales amounted to approximately RMB6,280.7 million
(for the year ended 31 December 2019 (restated): approximately
RMB1,454.2 million). The increase in cost of sales was mainly due to
substantial increase in the number of properties delivered in 2020
when compared to 2019.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The gross profit of the Group amounted to approximately RMB2,497.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 (for the year ended 31
December 2019 (restated): approximately RMB883.4 million). The
increase in gross profit was mainly due to the increase in properties
delivered in 2020, when compared to 2019. The gross profit margin
amounted to 28.5% for the year ended 31 December 2020 (for the
year ended 31 December 2019 (restated): approximately 37.8%) and
the decrease was mainly due to the average selling price per sq.m.
delivered in 2020 was comparatively low, when compared to 2019.

Valuation gain on investment properties

During the year, the Group recorded unrealized net fair value gain on
investment properties in Chengdu, Fuzhou, Harbin, Hangzhou, Yantai
and Yangzhou of approximately RMB48.8 million (for the year ended
31 December 2019 (restated): approximately RMB47.6 million).

Other income

Other income mainly comprised net exchange gain, forfeited
deposit from customers, interest income on bank deposits, project
management fee and fair value changes on derivative financial
instruments. For the year ended 31 December 2020, other income
amounted to approximately RMB74.9 million (for the year ended
31 December 2019 (restated): approximately RMB50.4 million). The
increase in other income was mainly due to the change from net
exchange loss of approximately RMB6.2 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 to net exchange gain of approximately RMB44.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2020. The exchange gain
recognized in 2020 was mainly arising from its bonds and loan
which are denominated in US dollars, and the RMB against USD has
continually appreciated in 2020 when compared to 2019.

Selling and marketing expenses

Selling and marketing expenses of the Group mainly comprised of
agency fees, staff costs and advertisement and marketing costs. For
the year ended 31 December 2020, selling and marketing expenses
amounted to approximately RMB495.6 million (for the year ended
31 December 2019 (restated): approximately RMB407.3 million).
The increase in selling and marketing expenses was mainly due to
substantial increase in the number of properties sold in 2020, when
compared to 2019.
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Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses of the Group mainly comprised of staff costs,
tax and other levies and professional fees. For the year ended 31
December 2020, administrative expenses amounted to approximately
RMB362.7 million (for the year ended 31 December 2019 (restated):
approximately RMB225.4 million). The increase in administrative
expenses was mainly due to substantial increase in the number of
properties sold in 2020, when compared to 2019.

Income tax

Income tax of the Group mainly comprised Land Appreciation Tax
(“LAT"), PRC Corporate Income Tax (“CIT") and deferred tax. For
the year ended 31 December 2020, income tax was approximately
RMB839.1 million (for the year ended 31 December 2019 (restated):
approximately RMB312.8 million), and the increase in income tax
was mainly due to the increase in LAT and CIT. The LAT increased by
RMB289.0 million, which was mainly due to the increase in properties
delivered in 2020, when compared to 2019. The CIT increased by
RMB419.3 million, which was mainly due to the increase in the
estimated taxable income in 2020, when compared to 2019.

Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of approximately
RMB809.2 million (for the year ended 31 December 2019 (restated):
approximately RMB39.9 million).

For the year ended 31 December 2020, basic earnings per share was
RMB1.65 (for the year ended 31 December 2019 (restated): RMB0.08).

The increase was mainly due to the increase in properties delivered
during 2020, when compared to 2019.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

Cash status

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to approximately RMB7,385.9 million (31 December
2019 (restated): approximately RMB1,689.3 million). The Group has
unutilised credit facilities amounted to approximately RMB4,338.2
million as at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019 (restated):
approximately RMB5,321.8 million), in which the unutilised credit
facilities from banks and financial institutions of the Group was
approximated to RMB2,258.4 million (31 December 2019 (restated):
approximately RMB821.8 million), and the undrawn revolving facilities
granted by Fuzhou Sansheng Property Co., Ltd.* (B =B BEERE A
B]) (“Fuzhou Sansheng”) was RMB2,079.8 million (31 December 2019:
approximately RMB4,500 million).

The Group has sufficient financial resources and flexible financial
management policies in place to meet the needs of its business
development in the coming years.

Borrowings

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s bank loans and other
borrowings was approximately RMB16,534.4 million (31 December
2019 (restated): approximately RMB9,287.7 million) and bonds
payable was approximately RMB1,391.4 million (31 December 2019:
approximately RMB1,000.2 million).

Out of the total Group’s bank loans and other borrowings, and bonds
payable, approximately RMB4,187.1 million was repayable within
one year (31 December 2019 (restated): approximately RMB4,392.4
million), while approximately RMB13,738.7 million was repayable after
one year (31 December 2019 (restated): approximately RMB5,895.5
million).

Finance costs

The Group's finance costs mainly comprised interest arising from bank
loans and other borrowings, private corporate bonds and amounts
due to Fuzhou Sansheng. Certain finance costs were being capitalised
as part of the cost qualifying assets. For the year ended 31 December
2020, the finance cost recorded in profit or loss was approximately
RMB59.7 million (for the year ended 31 December 2019 (restated):
RMB32.4 million).

The Group's weighted average interest rate was 8.69% for the year
ended 31 December 2020 (for the year ended 31 December 2019
(restated): 9.18%).

* The English translation of the Chinese name is for illustration purpose only.
Should there be any inconsistency, the Chinese name prevails.
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Gearing ratio

The Group's gearing ratio (total indebtedness divided by total
assets) was approximately 89.1% (31 December 2019 (restated):
approximately 93.5%) and the gearing ratio excluding receipts
in advance and contract liabilities was approximately 53.4% (31
December 2019 (restated): approximately 51.9%). The Group’s current
ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) was approximately
1.5 times as at 31 December 2020, as compared to approximately 1.2
times as at 31 December 2019 (restated).

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's inventories with a carrying
amount of approximately RMB16,933.1 million (31 December 2019
(restated): approximately RMB12,409.2 million) and investment
properties with a carrying amount of approximately RMB719.3 million
(31 December 2019 (restated): approximately RMB650.2 million) were
pledged to secure the bank loans and other borrowings of the Group.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s investment properties with a
carrying amount of approximately RMB702.1 million (31 December
2019 (restated): approximately RMB702.9 million) and the properties
and respective interests in leasehold land for own use with a carrying
amount of approximately RMB274.8 million (31 December 2019
(restated): approximately RMB300.1 million) were pledged for bank
loans and other borrowings borrowed by related parties.

Material acquisition and disposal

On 24 August 2020, Total Prestige Holdings Limited (a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into a sale and
purchase agreement, to conditionally acquire the entire interest in
Rosy Path Group from Mega Regal Limited, the controlling shareholder
of the Company, for the consideration of HK$347.3 million. The
consideration was settled by way of the issue and allotment of
49,480,000 new shares of the Company.

Rosy Path Group is principally engaged in construction and
development of certain residential and commercial projects in the PRC.

The above transaction has been completed on 24 November 2020.

In 2020, the Group has acquired interests in a total of 30 property
projects and land parcels including those included in Rosy Path Group.
For details, please refer to the paragraph headed “Property projects
and land acquisition in 2020" in this annual report.
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Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has issued guarantees to banks to
secure the mortgage arrangement of property buyers. The outstanding
guarantees to the banks amounted to approximately RMB6,582.9
million (2019 (restated): approximately RMB3,641.6 million), which will
be terminated upon the completion of the transfer procedures with the
buyers in respect of the legal title of the properties.

The Directors do not consider it probable that the Group will sustain
a loss under these guarantees as the bank has the rights to sell the
property and recovers the outstanding loan balance from the sale
proceeds if the property buyers default payment. The Group has not
recognised any deferred income in respect of these guarantees as its
fair value is considered to be minimal by the Directors.

As at 31 December 2020, certain properties and share of a subsidiary
of the Group are pledged as security for related parties to obtain loan
facilities from banks and financial institutions.

Foreign exchange risk

The functional currency of the Company and its major subsidiaries is
RMB, in which most of their transactions and assets are denominated.
The Group has exposure to foreign exchange risk arising from its
bonds, loans and cash at bank which are denominated in US dollars or
Hong Kong dollars. The Group has not taken any measures to hedge
the foreign currency exposure currently but will monitor closely the
situation and review such a need from time to time.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The Group is principally engaged in property development and sale,
property investment, hotel management and construction and design
Services.

The Board is of the view that the overall operation of the Group was
satisfactory and its financial position continued to be stable and healthy
in 2020, while substantial revenue from sales of properties and gross
profit were achieved during the year. As at 31 December 2020, the
contracted sales amounted to approximately RMB24,128.0 million and
the estimated contracted GFA was approximately 1,953,387 sg.m,
forming a solid basis for the Group’s future growth in recognised
revenue.

With the support from Sansheng Group, the Group has smoothly
implemented its strategic plan during the year under review, it has
proactively selected property development projects from those cities
with a robust economy and avoided the projects from areas where
stringent real estate policies such as restrictions on purchases and prices
were in effect. The Group has actively participated in various land bids,
which have contributed to its land bank and has laid a cornerstone for
its property development business in the future.

RREE

RZZ_TFE+_A=1+—0 A£EEHEMW
RITBEHER AVEERZEBLTHER
e mIBTTIEHZABEEREBOABAR
#6582 9B E L (ZE—NF (EEH) + 4
ARM36416BEL) BEERBNTK
MEFEEEEYELITERZBFBEL -

§$w% HREZEMEEFRENNR

ERT  RIOTAEHEZMELREERS
AE¢W@$E@§ XERER - RSB KA
AREEZERRMRZBRL - AR EL E5L
HFERIER Eﬂ ERA - HEERAHE
Qﬁ@%ﬁ?i

R-ZF-_ZEE+-_A=1+—H AKBET
MER—HEHNEABORNSRER ES
MBI RARTRERMEBERNSEARENE
R o

SME mLBR

ARAIRETEMBRAARAZINEEE S
AR TEXHGMEEHUARKEHE-
AEBHREHENAXTHAETHENES &
RRRITAESELENINERR - AEERE
I 488 R B AL fo] 5 5188 B B 45 B - PR T S
PVERBE W MR %E%W&hm0

R¥ O
AEEIBRENEAERLE  MERE -
S E 20 R TI2 36 T RaRE AR -

EEeRE KEER T -THEE/
#ﬂﬁﬂ R RIEEREE TRTF

BB MEHERARERN R = f:%
¢+ A=Z+—H ROHEEEHAEARE
241280E BT FHHEEEREMBEMGBY
51,953,387 F F K AAREERKEERUK

AREREHTERER

}@
B Sk

BREENOIHT AEBEELEFANE
BEEmBME EABRBKEL HHOW
IR EYEERIAR MRS
E%@FETWEW 1B 1R 2 R IR L R
B EETAKEN MR % (L EYES
EREFOFARIT T TRENER

Zcs
y?

m]MDYHM




Sansheng Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd.

38 ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Management Discussion and Analysis
BTEBMWE7Hh

In early 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic had a significant short term
impact on the operations and financial condition of various sectors
in Mainland China, including the real estate industry. To cope with
this, the Group has actively deployed its plans and adopted a series of
countermeasures, including proactively adjusting the business plans to
secure the safety of cashflows; adopting contactless online innovative
marketing model to achieve sales completion; keep an eye on the
government’s assistance policies implemented against the pandemic;
and explore opportunities for acquisition and merger of small and
medium-sized, project-based real estate enterprises.

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

The Group's portfolio of investment properties comprises 9 investment
properties in Hong Kong and Mainland China. The investment
properties in Harbin, Qingdao and Chengdu have been fully leased out,
while only part of the investment properties in Fuzhou and Yangzhou
have been leased out. The Group will from time to time review its
investment properties portfolio and make every endeavour to increase
its rental income.

Property development projects and land bank

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of 52 property
projects that are held for sale, under development and held for future
development. Total site area of its land bank was approximately
3,349,955 sq.m. and the planned total GFA was approximately
9,566,846 sq.m., of which 6,669,905 sg.m. were attributable to the
Group based on its equity interests. The table below sets forth the
breakdown of property projects:
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Location/Project

Attributable
interest
held by the
Group

AEBHE
Jei ks
(%)

Primary intended
use of the project

Total
site area

AEBER

Planned
total GFA

Attributable
planned

RS

1 Zhanggiu Jinan Shandong/The Puyue Bay Residential 80.00 60,032 201,054 160,843
WRERER /ElE %

2 Pingtan Fujian/Sansheng International Coast (Phase 1) Residential/Commercial 90.00 122,122 443,498 399,148
BRTE/ZBERER(—H) ftz/m%

3 Pingtan Fujian/Sansheng International Coast (Phase 2) Residential/Commercial 90.00 75,500 196,900 177,210
BRYE/ZRERER(ZH) ftx/Hm¥

4 Xiapu Ningde Fujian/Binjiang International Residential/Commercial 55.00 23,861 66,082 36,345
BEEEER/BIEK e/ H%

5 Mawei Fuzhou Fujian/Future City Residential/Commercial 100.00 75,805 173,077 173,077
BREMSE /AR ftz/m%

6 Mawei Fuzhou Fujian/The Puyue Bay City Residential/Commercial 28.05 70,618 258,757 72,581
BREBMER/EHER fFz/ %%

7 Rudong Nantong Jiangsu/Puyue Mansion Residential/Commercial 92.00 77,481 187,980 172,942
IHEBRNE/EHR e/ m%

8 Longhai Zhangzhou Fujian/Sansheng e Puyue Sea Residential/Commercial 95.00 23457 49,046 46,594
BRENEE /=% BHE ftz/m%

9 Changle Fuzhou Fujian/Puyue Mansion (Phase 1) Residential/Commercial 30.00 48,140 136,783 41,035
BRBMRE/EHE (-5 fiz/ %%

10 Changle Fuzhou Fujian/Puyue Mansion (Phase 2) Residential/Commercial 30.00 44,462 136,841 41,052
BREMRE/BUR(ZH) fix/m%

11 Pingyang Wenzhou Zhejiang/Yuefu Garden Residential 8.25 52,181 156,359 12,900
MLRNTS,/HRE %

12 Pingyang Wenzhou Zhejiang/Jiangcheng Town Residential 8.25 50,746 151,955 12,536
MDRMTE,/THE fix

13 Gulou Fuzhou Fujian/Sheng Mansion Residential 10.50 13,882 43,502 4,568
BERMER/BAR fix

14 Shenhe Shenyang Liaoning/Yifu Project Residential/Commercial 100.00 31376 186,065 186,065
EZEBE,/ hEEA ftx/m%

15 Xishan Wuxi Jiangsu/Sansheng e Galaxy City Commercial/Office 100.00 33,191 127,698 127,698
THESHIL/ =% 40 B%/BRE

16 Xiapu Ningde Fujian/Puyue Mountains And Rivers Residential/Commercial 85.50 65,358 219,947 188,055
BEEEEH /LT e/ m%

17 Longhai Zhangzhou Fujian/international Coast Residential/Commercial 95.00 237,697 409,363 388,895
REENES/ERER /Mm%

18 Minhou Fuzhou Fujian/The Puyue Bay Residential/Commercial 95.00 77,983 257,292 244,427
BEERNBE 2 fFz/H%

19 Cangshan Fuzhou Fujian/Binjiang International Residential/Commercial/Office 95.00 33968 320,777 304,738
BEBMEIL/BIER (EVEEVS UN-

20 Xiuyu Putian Fujian/Datang Shijia Residential/Commercial 35.00 95,070 254,507 89,077
BEBEAE/ AEHR ftz/m%

21 Wujin Changzhou Jiangsu/Sansheng e Xinzhu Mansion Residential/Commercial 959 39,787 104,098 99,851
TEEMRE/ =& DERR ftz/Hm¥

22 Zhangpu Zhangzhou Fujian/Sansheng Puyue Mansion Residential/Commercial 71.25 73,082 226,570 161,431
BREMER,/ ZBBUR ftz/m%

23 Haimen Jiangsu/Sansheng Puyue Mansion Residential 80.00 84,802 202,123 161,698
TESM /= RBH A %

24 Zhifu Yantai Shandong/SanshengeRuyue Mansion Residential 96.80 82,340 303,365 293,657
WREAZR/ =8 ufiHhE %

25 Wujin Changzhou Jiangsu/Ruyue Chungiu Residential/Commercial 51.00 38,307 91,263 46,544
THEMRE LA ftz/m%

26 Chengxiang Putian Fujian/Puyue Fenghua Residential/Commercial 51.00 46,207 118,474 60,422
BEBBARE/ EREE frx/m%
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Attributable

interest

Primary intended held by the
use of the project Group

REWHE
Jel ks
(%)

Total
site area

RIELER

Planned
total GFA

Attributable
planned

RS

27 Taicang Jiangsu/Hujing Tianzhu Residential 34.00 69,993 139,986 47,595
THAR/ MERE %
28 Changle Fuzhou Fujian/Puyue Longmen Residential 2040 22,549 66,971 13,662
BEBMRE 28N %
29 Danyang Jiangsu/Puyue Guandi Residential/Commercial 51.00 78,820 207,756 105,956
L&A/ EHER Fz/B%
30 RUI an Wenzhou Zhejiang/Ruyue Xiangrui Residential 95.00 18,383 70,726 67,190
MLRMAR R0 %
31 Xiaoshan Hangzhou Zhejiang/Ruyue Meijing Residential/Commercial 28.05 39,489 141,003 39,551
MIRMEL ZHER ftx/m%
32 Yuecheng Shaoxing Zhejiang/Ruyue Garden Residential 75.86 21,240 95,729 72,620
MIARRS, 2 HEE %
33 Chenghai Shantou Guangdong/Puyue Mansion Residential/Commercial 95.00 27,722 128,815 122,374
BRISERSE /B fz/H%
34 Chengdu Sichuan/SanshengeLuhu Zuoan Residential/Commercial 100.00 26,163 70,417 70,417
IRE/ =% o Bl fix/m%
35 RUI an Wenzhou Zhejiang/Mingyuexuan Residential/Commercial 23.75 32,856 88,685 21,063
MDRMRE /it fix/H%
36 Binhu Wuxi Jiangsu/SanshengeDufu Tiancheng Residential/Commercial 60.00 52,638 130,598 78,359
THEHES/ =% ERR& ftz/H%
37 Rudong Nantong Jiangsu/SanshengePuyue Guandi Residential/Commercial 50.00 59,621 169,659 84,830
THBRINR /=%« BHBLT Fz/H%
38 Zhangjiagang Suzhou Jiangsu/SanshengePuyue Xindi Residential 33.96 41,533 126,983 43123
THHNRRE/ =% o BT ik
39 Xuzhou Jlangsu/SanshengORuyue Weiyang Residential 4845 47129 104,072 50,423
TEFRM /=8 o SRR iz
40 Shijiazhuang HebeVSanshengoPuyue Changan Residential 76.00 31,976 129,051 98,079
AR/ =R #iRE %
41 Fengrun Tangshan Hebei/SanshengePuyue Fenghua Residential 63.65 64,208 226,340 144,065
AAELERE/ =& BEE ik
42 Hantai Hanzhong Shaanxi/Sansheng Tianyue Residential/Commercial 95.00 44,031 160,698 152,663
REEPER/ZERH ftz/m%
43 Nanchong Sichuan/Yuejiang Mansion Residential 38.00 25,093 88,516 33,636
m)liE%,/ L %
44 Nanchong Sichuan/Qishan House Residential 38.00 37,099 93,678 35,598
m)IEx/ BLR ik
45 Changle Fuzhou Fujian/Sansheng Puyue Binjiang Residential/Commercial 95.00 51,955 164,908 156,663
BREMRE/Z2BHET ftx/m%
46 Licheng Quanzhou Fujian/Sansheng Puyueli Residential/Commercial 95.00 16,960 40,716 38,680
BERMES,/ B2 ftz/m%
47 Longquany| Chengdu Sichuan/Sansheng Metropolis Residential/Commercial 95.00 133,333 442,827 420,686
m)likBeRE/ =EHen ftz/m¥
48 Tongshan Xuzhou Jiangsu/SanshengeMidtown Residential/Commercial 4845 118,546 529,916 256,744
THBMEAL/ =5 o 35 ftx/m%
49 Wenling Taizhou Zhenang/Sansheng Puyue Mansion Residential/Commercial 76.00 35,631 117,361 89,194
MIAMAZ/ ZBBUR ftz/m%
50  Jimo Qingdao Shandong/Sansheng International Coast Residential/Commercial 70.30 532,518 879,620 618,373
WRERHE/=HERER ffz/H%
51 Hanjiang Putian Fujian/Sansheng Puyuegongguan Residential 70.30 20,897 69,011 48,515
BEBBRL/ ZRBHAE iz
52 Jiaozuo Henan/Jiaozuo Tianyue Mansion Residential 95.00 22,117 59,428 56,457
EEE/ EIERB =

3,349,955

9,566,346

6,669,905




Management Discussion and Analysis

Property projects and land acquisition in 2020

In 2020, the Group acquired or planned to acquire interests in a total
of 30 property projects and land parcels. The total planned GFA of the
property projects and land acquisitions amounted to approximately
5,258,695 sq.m., of which 3,528,837 sq.m. were attributable to the
Group based on its equity interests. Total contract consideration for
its property projects and land acquisition amounted to approximately
RMB19,621.7 million, of which RMB11,424.9 million was payable by
the Group according to its equity interests in relevant projects. Based
on the Group'’s attributable planned GFA acquired and the attributable
acquisition considerations, the Group’s average land acquisition cost in

2020 was approximately RMB3,237

Location/Project

1 Haimen Jiangsu/Sansheng Puyue Mansion
TR /=R
2 Zhifu Yantai Shandong/
Sansheng  Ruyue Mansion
WRERZR/ =Gl
3 Wujin Changzhou JiangswRuyue Chungiu
TNEHRE/ HEE
4 Chengrang Putian Fujian/Puyue Fenghua
BREMIR/ 2iEE
5 Taicang JiangsuHujng Tianzhu
THAR/WiRE
6 Changle Fuzhou Fujian/Puyue Longmen
BRENRS/ 280
7 Danyang Jiangsu/Puyue Guandi
TEAG/2HEE
8 Rui'an Wenzhou Zhejiang/Ruyue Xiangrui
MIBNRE /St
9 Xiaoshan Hangzhou Zhejiang/
Ruyue Meijin
FLIARLY it
10 Yuecheng Shaoxing Zhejiang/
Ruyue Garden
MRS/ AHER
11 Chenghai Shantou Guangdong/
Puyue Mansion
ERERR/ 2R
12 Chengdu Sichuan/Sansheng ¢ Luhu Zuoan
I8/ =% BilfirE
13 Rui'an Wenzhou Zhejiang/Mingyuexuan
MDENER/4hE
14 Binhu Wuxi Jiangsu/Sansheng ¢ Dufu Tiancheng
THEREN/ -0 EfRE
15 Rudong Nantong Jiangsu/Sansheng ¢ Puyue Guandi
TEERNE/ =% 2HEE

16 Zhangjia(ﬂang Suzhou Jiangsu/Sansheng ¢ Puyue Xind

THENERE/ = 2HRE

17" Xuzhou Jiangsu/Sansheng ¢ Ruyue Weiyang
TERM/ =B ShiAR

18 Shijiazhuang Hebei/Sansheng ¢ Puyue Changan
TRFE/ =R BlRE

=RER(RE)BRAR ZECTEFR
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Location/Project

2
23
%
5
2%
2

8
29
30

Fengrun Tangshan HebeVSansheng + Puyue Fenghua

THENEE/ =5 2iRE
Hantai Hanzhong Shaanvaansheng Tianyue
WEEEEA/ XN
Nanchong Sichuan/Yuejiang Mansion
Hﬁﬁ/ﬁlf
Nanchong Sichuan/Qishan House
mIg%/ &0
Changle Fuzhou Fuji ﬁLan/Sansheng Puyue Binjiang
BRENRS /oSl
L|cheng Quanzhou Fuji &an/Sansheng Puyueli

BRSO/ =0

Longquané\ Chengdu S|chuan/5ansheng Metropolis

l#ERE/ =
Tongshan Xuzhou J |angsu/5ansheng * Midtown
TEANRIL/ =5 o
Wenling Taizhou Zhejiang/Sansheng

Puyue Mansion

MJQHM%/_Wﬁiw

Jimo ngdao Shandon Sansheng International Coast

UFEENE/ZHARE

Hanjiang Putian Fuuan/Sansheng Puyuegongguan

mﬁﬁﬁ&i/ BRHAR
Jiaozuo Henan/Jiaozuo Tianyue Mansion

ARE/ BERIR

TEEM®R S

Attributable
interest
held by

the Group

Primary intended
use of the project

BRIERERS
Residential 63.65
[z
Residential/Commercial 95.00
fz/k%
Residential 33,00
iz
Residential 38.00
iz
Residential/Commercial 95.00
/B
Residential/Commercial 95.00
ftz/m%
Residential/Commercial 95.00
fz/m%
Residential/Commercial 4845
fz/k%
Residential/Commercial

76.00
fz/m%
Residential/Commercial 7030
fz/m%
Residential 7030
[z
Residential 95.00
iz

Total
land price

HELE
(RMB'000)

(ARBFT

258,690
164,150

221,650
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104,000
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156,663
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89,194
618,373
48515
56,457

3,528,837
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEBMWE7Hh

Outlook and Plan

Capitalizing on Sansheng Group's brand, professional experience
and its professional workforce, the Group has been actively acquiring
quality land for its land bank resources through both acquisitions
and cooperation as well as participation in public land auctions.
Meanwhile, in order to meet the development need in the future, the
Group will pursue industrial and real estate integration and promote
development models to cooperate with third-party industries in order
to further increase the amount and quality of the lands that we gain
in accordance with market changes in different regions and the
development of local businesses.

In 2020, the Group has already acquired a number of land parcels
to commence residential and commercial property development in
regions with strong economic vitality in China, such as the “Yangtze
River Delta Region”, “West Coast Region”, “Beijing-ring Region”,
“Shandong Region”, “Sichuan-Chongging Region” and “Greater Bay
Area Region”, and will maintain regional expansion in the deployed
regions to further increase the contribution of those regions.

Through the major acquisitions completed in 2020, the Group has
added two investment properties, namely office building in the
central business district of Fuzhou, Fujian and a commercial complex
in the main city of Yangzhou, Jiangsu. A more substantial investment
property assets with a more optimized property portfolio will continue
to improve the return on investment properties held by the Group and
provide a longer-term guarantee to the asset values.

In the past year, the sudden outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic had a
short-term impact on economic development. With the aid of proactive
management by the government, the pandemic was effectively
controlled in Mainland China and a U-shaped economic recovery was
achieved during the year, with the resilience of the real estate sector
once again demonstrated. Driven by the “pursuit of better living” and
“investment in real estate”, the real estate market in Mainland China
witnessed an upsurge after a decline throughout the year, with the
total transaction volume reaching a record high again.

In the first quarter of 2020, the Group minimized the impact on its
operations through quick response and proactive adjustments in the
early stage of the pandemic, and took advantage of the low sentiment
in the land market in the first half of the year to achieve a rapid
expansion of its land bank. From the second to fourth quarters after
the pandemic was under control, we strengthened our marketing and
promotional efforts and successfully achieved our annual operating
targets.
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Numerous real estate industry-related policies were introduced in 2020,
including the “three red lines” and the regulation of real estate loan
concentration by financial institutions in the banking sector, which
had a certain degree of impact on the real estate industry. The Group
is actively formulating measures to minimize the negative impact
of the relevant policy. In terms of liquidity management, the Group
will continue to improve the sophistication of capital management,
broaden sources of income and cut down expenditure, ensure a safe
capital position and make new investments in an orderly manner to
cope with industry and market risks. With the increasing scale of the
Company and the significant increase in sales collection, the Company
will repay its higher cost and shorter-term liabilities to control the scale
of its debt and reduce the exposure to short-term debt in a timely
manner. After the two asset injections in 2019 and 2020 respectively,
both the Group's performance and the debt ratio are expected to be
significantly improved.

Through the above measures, the Group will expand the net assets
of listed companies, increase the cash on hand, effectively control
the scale of debts and extend the maturity of debts, so that the
three regulatory financial indicators can meet the regulatory red line
requirements and reduce the negative impact of financing regulation.

Looking ahead to the new year, we believe that the medium to
long-term fundamentals supporting the stable development of the
property market in Mainland China will continue to be sustained
despite the volatility of the social and economic environment. The
overall market environment is in line with the Group’s focus on China’s
prosperous regions and our development philosophy of presenting
high quality products.

Accordingly, in the face of the uncertain social environment and
changes in economic policies, and while continuing to expand our
business scale, the Group also have devoted efforts in maintaining
coordinated development of operational efficiency and profitability. On
business level, we will closely monitor the changes in market conditions
and governmental policies, allocate resources for deeper research
and business development, and look for appropriate opportunities
through careful selection of investment choices. On strategy level, on
the back of our strategic geographical layout, cultivating a professional
and highly efficient workforce, and developing of sophisticated
products and quality services. In this way the Group can maintain its
competitiveness and promising prospects as it continuously strives to
become the benchmark in real estate industry.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEBMWE7Hh

Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital

Assets

Save for the business plan as disclosed in the section headed “Outlook
and Plan” in this annual report, there was no other plan for material
investments or acquisition of capital assets as at 31 December 2020.

Employees

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed a total of 1,299
employees, 1,295 of them were based in the Mainland China.
Staff costs (excluding directors’ emoluments) for the year ended 31
December 2020 amounted to approximately RMB205.6 million (2019
(restated): approximately RMB164.5 million). The Group ensures that
the pay levels of its employees are competitive and in line with the
market trend and its employees are rewarded on a performance related
basis within the general framework of its own salary and bonus system.

Purchase, Sale Or Redemption Of The Company’s

Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any listed securities of the Company during the year ended
31 December 2020.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This is the fifth Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the
“Report”) issued by Sansheng Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd. (the
“Company” or the “Sansheng Holdings”) and together with its
subsidiaries (the “Group” or “we"). This Report aims to outline
the principles the Group upheld to satisfy the corporate social
responsibilities and the sustainable development philosophy,
as well as the challenges face by it in 2020, and makes
commitments and vision for its social responsibilities.

Reporting Standards

This Report is prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting
Guide (the “Guide") as set out in Appendix 27 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The contents of
this Report are also in line with the principles of “Materiality”,
“Quantitative ”, “Balance” and “Consistency” in the Guide.
In order to give readers a better understanding of the Group's
environmental and social performance, we also disclose the
environmental key performance indicators (KPIs) of projects in
Fujian Pingtan, Jinan Zhangqgiu and Haimen Jiangsu regions.

Reporting Scope

This Report focuses on the overall performance in practicing
sustainable development and fulfilling corporate social
responsibility of the Group’s core businesses from 1 January
2020 to 31 December 2020 (the “Year” or “Reporting Period”).
Unless otherwise stated, the collection of environmental KPIs
include projects in Pingtan Fujian, Zhangqiu Jinan and Haimen
Jiangsu. Since the project in Xiapu Ningde was near completion
in 2020, it was no longer included in the collection scope.

Preparation of the Report

In preparing this Report, we have received support from all
stakeholders of the Company and gained a better understanding
of the Company’s current situation of environmental and social
aspects. This Report summarizes our efforts on environmental
and social aspects and helps the Company in developing the
short- and long-term sustainability strategies.

Report Feedback

For detailed information on corporate governance of the
Company, please refer to the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” in this annual report and the official website
of Sansheng Holdings (www.sansheng.hk/). We value your
opinion on this Report. If you have any enquiries or suggestions,
please feel free to e-mail us at (ir@sansheng.hk).
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
MANAGEMENT

2.1.

2.2,

Sustainable Development Governance

Sansheng Holdings believes that sustainable development
governance is not only about complying regulatory
requirements, but should also be integrated into our
daily operations. Our corporate governance framework
establishes the interrelationship of participants and key
monitors to meet the expectations of other stakeholders.
We have established an ESG Working Group with the aim
of managing risks related to ESG issues more effectively
and promoting the implementation of ESG policies by
all departments. The directors of the Company are fully
responsible for the ESG strategies, reporting and bear
all the responsibilities, assessing and identifying related
risk management and internal control system to improve
overall environmental and social performance of the
Company. The management of the Company is responsible
for implementing relevant policies and measures to ensure
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
corresponding internal control systems in ESG and to
promote the sustainable development of the Group.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Company sees stakeholder engagement as the basis
for strategy development and decision making which
helps us identifying existing and potential risks and
opportunities. Stakeholder engagement is also an integral
part of our sustainable development strategy. We strive to
maintain communication with our stakeholders, including
shareholders/investors, customers, employees, suppliers,
regulatory authorities, business partners, media and the
community through various channels and incorporate their
views into our management policies and strategic planning
to continuously improve our products, services and
operating model. In reviewing the communication efforts
during the Reporting Period, the Company has defined
the following categories of stakeholders and their main
concerns:
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Major stakeholder

Main concerns

Main participation methods

FENBMEES REEH FE2HEGN
Shareholders/investors Information transparency General meetings, annual reports, regular
R REE =B EH announcements
Investment return REAE  FERE  THRE
K& B #H
Benefit protection
R RIE
Risk management
[\ B E 45
Customers Product and service quality Website and emails of the Group, daily operation/
®P EmMkREmE communication
Healthy living SEAERBE BEEE /R
R AR
Feedback and complaint
handling
BRERFEE
Employees Equal opportunity Performance appraisal, performance review meetings,
BT TEge business briefings, seminars/workshops/talks, staff
Welfare protection communication conferences
BRIREE THERRTZ - TIERREH - EBER - Hag/
Health and safety Ttesh B  BLAERKE
[EER N
Career development
BEER
Suppliers Honesty and compliance Supplier management procedure, meetings, supplier
HiEn EARNEES) assessment system

Mutual benefit and win-win
BF 5

HEREERRF &%  HEENEHE

Regulatory authorities

EERE

Legal compliance
STEER

Information transparency
BisSilis

Meetings, written responses to public consultation,
compliance reports

NS AL, oo 24 e

2F HAREANEEARE SRmE

Business partners

In-depth cooperation

Reports, meetings, talks

EBRBH RMEEE WE - gE B

Joint development

H[F B R
Media Information transparency Press conferences, press release, result announcements,
EFLS EREH media events

mEEmE  ER XELN  EREE

Community Pre{cise poverty alleviation Volunteer works, community activities, seminars/talks/
ttlE BEKE workshops

Employment opportunities

MERE

Affordable housing

ARERE

Community collaborative
development

IR R 3R

ETED #HREY WIS HETHES
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2.3. Result of Materiality Assessment

Material issues influence our strategic focus, our approach to
sustainable development and reporting, and create values for our
stakeholders and our business. Given that our business direction
has not changed significantly from the previous financial year, we
will continue to use the materiality assessment results from the
2019 financial year. The Group has identified and focused on the
following areas:

23. EEMFTEER
EZFEATERMORBER
AFEERTSMBEIE I
RABERE S MEGEEEE-
ERRMOEBTME LB 4
M2 ERERZL  RAKES
RAR-_ZT-NFHFNERNK
AHEER - NEE BRI A
A T ERESE -

Item Material issue Focus area of sustainable development
1HE EEMERE ARERRENER
1 Labour relationships
pues
HAMIE Establishment of a competent team
gt
2 Labour rights B A 4 B
RS
3 Comply with laws and regulations
BFERER
4 Health and safety Production of exquisite products
EERZE WIETSEE @
5 Privacy protection
FLEBARME
6 Occupational health and safety Establishment of a competent team
BEREREZD HiERRE K
7 Customer satisfaction
B EE Production of exquisite products
=7 S Wt ]
8 Anti-fraud and anti-corruption 5 S AR o
REBFMRES
9 Talent attraction/talent retention Establishment of a competent team
WS/ ANA BIE s E X
10 Quality control
[ =
H & Production of exquisite products
gt o
11 Complaint and response mechanisms 5 18 R L E
A B 4% 5 D E T 0 1 )
12 Prevention of child and forced labour
B 1 & TR 85 T
Establishment of a competent team
13 Staff diversification, anti-discrimination and equal | %53 ¥5 & B Bk
opportunities
BTl PESELTFERS
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Material issue Focus area of sustainable development

EEMRE IREARRERER

14 Protection of intelligence property

OREE A

15 Promotional and product service labels Production of exquisite products

EEMRERRBRER RIS RE M

16 Whistleblowing mechanism

SRR

17 Staff training and development
B TIE3IE R

Establishment of a competent team

o _ gy

18 Qualifications and professional conduct HE B AR B
BERBFREST

19 Environmentally friendly construction
RREE

20 Materials/resources used
PR BRI Creating a green ecology

. Gr k4 A

21 Environmental awareness among staff MR B I R
BTHIRREM

22 Environmental education
REHE

23 Market competitiveness Production of exquisite products
T35 5 5 R XS E M

24 Wastewater discharge and treatment Creating a green ecology

JE IR TR DR M BE 32 MEm B
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All member countries of the United Nations have unanimously BAEBEMEEERN —BCBRERAFE
endorsed the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs), which call EREIRSDG) MEEH R HERKR
on the world to take action to eradicate poverty, protect the T8 HBREBR REMWIK  NEZE
planet and improve the lives and futures of all people. During the ABJEIER KR c REE » ZBRIFER B
Year, Sansheng Holdings has also committed to the SDGs and BAOBTAHERREE  REENK
aims to create value in four major areas: production of exquisite SEASEEE PHEGERAER &
products, creating a green ecology, establishment of a competent R ARE  GIERRER LG IERE
team and building a warm community. To achieve our goals, we @ e BPIRERBEmM M HET
are committed to fulfilling our corporate social responsibility to TEHESHET UK =ZHIZRRERN
promote the sustainable development of the Sansheng Holdings Al E R o

brand.

Creating a

green ecology

SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT
MANAGEMENT
AERRREE

Establishment of | Building a warm
a competent team community
fiEmnER | mERRtE
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Scope of
sustainable

development Strategic goals SDGs Addressed

ARFERREERE HKBEES FrEERSDGE &

Production Our development strategy is to create Goal 3: Good health and well-

of exquisite “exquisite products”, and we are being

products committed to providing our customers 5123 : RF @Rt o v v

HERBER with high quality residential products Goal 12: Responsible _/\/\/
and living services in a people-oriented consumption and production %
environment to create maximum value | B1Z12 : AETHBMAE —
return for our shareholders 1 SRS
[ BRER HEREE BN QO
REFPIRESRBEAERENETE
o BRAEE IRTS - RIRRAESRAK(E
BEEH

Creating a Constructing green buildings and Goal 7: Affordable and clean 13 o 137#6D

green ecology green communities, leading the green energy

WERELR development of the construction BR7 - BEERNBEREIR @

industry
IMERERENGZELR - 5| FBREE
TENGZEER

Goal 13: Climate action

BiR13 : RIRTTH

Establishment
of a competent
team

Adhering to the concept of “talent
is the cornerstone of enterprise
development”, we continuously

Goal 8: Decent work and
economic growth
BiZ8 : EBHE LIEMLEE K

DECENT WORK AND
ECONOMIC GROWTH

o

8 BE TR
TEEER

HERBREX optimize the enterprise management Goal 10: Reduced inequalities
mode and build an excellent BiZ10 BT FEH 10 o
management team a
REIASREEERERIOATS =)
B TEHEECEEERS  TEE
75 1) B 12 E B
Building In the critical period of fighting the Goal 3: Good health and well- o0 HeATH
awarm pandemic, we are actively protecting being e
community the safety and interests of tenants and B1E3: RiFf@F gt
FERRHE residents, giving back to the community | Goal 11: Sustainable cities and

and joining hands with all parties to
achieve win-win growth

FEHUR B BR§2 B ERTE B AR AR E 7 5 A
EENZ2MNG  BEtR - EF
BERHERREHAR

communities

BiZ11 : AJ B ER T AR
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2.4. Sustainable Development Awards

Awarded Company/Person

BERE AW

Awards

#®1g

24 TEBBEREKE
Presenting Organization

BEEE

Sansheng Holdings
=B

2020 ESG Excellence Enterprise
2020F EESGE 1> %

New Real Estate caijing.com,
CAIJING.COM.CN
AR~ BHAR A8

Sansheng Group
—REE

2020 Social Responsible Enterprise Awards
2020 Bt G R EERBE

International Finance News of the People’s
Daily
AR B ¥t (BR 2 5w

Sansheng Group

2020 China Real Estate Industry Leading

China Real Estate Business

—RREHE Model Enterprise in Combating Pandemic, | B /E i1 & ¥k

Respectable Real Estate Enterprises

2020 B ETT R MB RIS R K8

X - BEREMEE
Cheng Xuan Leading figures in anti-pandemic and China Association Of Women
123 prevention Entrepreneurs

DR TE T EAD TELEERDE

3. PRODUCTION OF EXQUISITE PRODUCTS

3.1.

Adherence to Quality Craftsmanship

In order to standardize the quality inspection and
evaluation of construction projects, improve the
engineering management level, and reduce the quality
and safety risks, we hereby formulated the”Construction
Inspection and Evaluation Management Measures”. The
Project Management Department shall complete the
Project Management Plan 21 days prior to the initiation
of the project and submit it to the Regional Engineering
Department for review and approval before the
commencement of the project. In addition, the Operation
Management Department of the Group is required to
supervise the preparation of annual engineering evaluation
forms by third parties, and to conduct on-site evaluations
of projects under construction and delivery, prepare
evaluation briefings, and propose corrective actions.

The Operation Management Department of the Company
will visit the site to check the aforesaid assessment. It will
check the problems found and adopt timely corrections for
the sake of increasing the quality of the constructions. We
will also urge the Project Department, supervising company
and construction unit to conduct daily measurements,
quality defect inspections and safe and civilized
construction inspections, effective prevention measures
may be taken promptly. Below are the assessment
procedures:

Assessment
preparation meeting

MRS

Conrm the scope
for inspection

EEMEE

On-site inspection

Verify information

BR

WERBER

31 BFmEED
ARBETEEEMNEEREMT
HFoIREIREBKYE  HIEKE
EMZ2RAE - FHHIE(IER
EFEEERE)  cHEEENE
EEBRIMIRTK(IRER
KEE) W ERES TEILFE
BREBEREB BB AERT
G EEEZEERBEETFE =
FHIEFEIRTFERETYHE
ERXNEREERRS TG R
BEEER  IREBERER -

BREERNSIRGRENMG
BEMBENEBENMKGESERE
FERAIREEE - ABEEE -
EBNA mIBEMETHEE
RAEE BEnBERE T2X
At TieEE LKA XA
2 o A T RFAEEF

Release assessment
summary report

BRI

Brief summary
of the assessment

BN
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The assessment covers four areas, including actual
measurements, safety and civilization, quality risk and
management measures. After the completion of the
evaluation, the person in charge of the evaluation of
the third party will summarize the problems found in
the inspection and the closed-loop rectification status
of the problems in the previous inspection. The Project
Department will formulate corrective measures and
improvement proposals in conjunction with the post-project
evaluation to avoid the recurrence of similar issues. At the
same time, we recommend good engineering practices
within the Group and form a database of engineering
cases to continuously improve engineering quality.

Customer Service System

While satisfying customers’ needs for high-quality
residential projects and lifestyle services, the Group is
also committed to creating a better living atmosphere for
customers and provide a comfortable living experience.
We have formulated the “Management Measures of
Delivery Evaluation” to improve the quality and service
of each project during the centralized delivery period
and the cumulative delivery period, and to ensure the
steady improvement of the product and service quality
of the projects. Owners can fill out a delivery satisfaction
evaluation form after inspection to evaluate the overall
delivery, housing quality, and delivery services, which
will help the Group make continuous improvements and
progress. It is important that we leave a good impression
on our customers before and after we provide our services.

We provide consultation, complaint, maintenance and
property service monitoring services through various
customer service channels including customer service
platform, customer service email, online message,
exhibitions and large-scale reception events. We handle
enquiries and complaints in according to “Reception
and Handling Process for Major Customer Events”
and “Complaint Reception Process for the Group's
Headquarters”. We also promise to make timely and
appropriate responses to feedbacks and complaints in
order to improve customer satisfaction and implement the
service tenet of “Exquisite living for happy life”.

3.2

X
f

HAEAREBRENEE %

HoEERAR EETRE
IS AT R AFE =T
HREEARERSERMNE L
HresRBNERMASIER 1A
BEMeEa IREFIENREREA
B 81 3 1 T B 2R AN BOE 2
MR URBEEELER [
B ERENERSN TRML
WK TRERE HERETT
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|
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EFRBEAR

EmREPYSREEEEAM
EERE B LM R - AEE IR
TEREPEREHERRE
REFELEEER RABET
(REFEEERIEL)  UEFS
HHERRXMNHPERGFINHE
BERYE REBEEEREEHR
MERERFRET -XTERSE
BAEBIMHEEFER 3
FEXNEE FEEE RF
REEFELFEENEE AN
HERET - RPIRERBATL
WBARGBETETXHNENR -

BMEBTREPRIGEERRE
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3.3. Safeguarding Information Security 33 REERELX2

The privacy of customers is closely related to the
personal interests of customers. The Group highly values
information security and protection of customer privacy,
strictly complies with relevant national and local laws and
regulations, uses customer information appropriately and
protects customer privacy from disclosure in accordance
with the law. The Group has formulated the “Management
on the Confidentiality of Customer Data”, which aims to
clarify the interface of user security and the scope of user
privacy information as well as to protect user privacy from
the management level and technical level. Employees must
comply with all internal guidelines regarding the collection,
processing, transfer, retention and disposal of customers’
personal information in order to safeguard information
security.

The Group also regulates the collection and saving of
customer information. For software that may involve
customer information, the private information of customers
will be encrypted and records of customer information
operations will be kept. Customer information is centrally
managed by the Marketing Department. If employees who
need to use customer information for work are required
to make an application in the office automation system
(hereafter referred to as the "OA system”) with specified
information, such as purposes and related projects. The
export of related customer information is subject to the
approval by project assistant, marketing department of the
project, project general manager, marketing back-office,
business director, and general manager of marketing
department.

To avoid the impact of former employees on the customer
source, the Group specially formulated a management
measure named the “Management and Handling of
Customer Data Transfer by the Marketing Department”.
Before handling the transfer procedures, property
consultants must sign confidential “Commitment Letter”
( (EFEEK) ) and assign the customers (whether they are
customers to be followed, issues pending to solve and
trade completed) they served to other property consultants
in accordance with the “Customer Information Transfer List
for Former and Designated Employees of Project Marketing
Department” to ensure the fully confidentiality of customer
information.

In addition, we have established the “Risk Control
Management Guidelines for the Full Cycle of Customer
Service” to explain the work functions and operation
management mechanism of customer service, and to
conduct risk checks on sales advertisements and labels for
corporate image protection and risk pre-control. In the
future, we plan to strengthen the information security
system of the Company, and enhance the management
of employees’ application system access, increase the
operation log to better avoid the risk of customer
information leakage.

EFPRBALBEFY) S M B
B-AREREEREELZER
BEFPBMRE  BRETERM
WHRMEEARER  BE®EHR
EFEE HKERBEFPEBLD
WRE - AEEHET(EPEHR
RENEE)  BNEEHERP
ZENREMNBERLERNE
B K A B 12 FE m A 0 2 A
PRAETRE BT LAET
AR E - RE - ER  RENE
ERPEANERBAAABIES
IREBEESRZE -
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ARFRIEFEENTMF &
TEEPRBALE SRR NEEE -
HEPERRFEFAMEBRLE -
EPMEEHREHLR—EE
METHRIEREERELES
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ML EE - JRAERR M
FAERFEM THBERE -
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‘e XHAE ZHPELE
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3.4. Win-win Partnership 34 SEBHHR

The suppliers involved in the Group’s business mainly
provide services in the categories of materials and
equipment, electrical ancillary works, pile foundation works,
engineering services and external wall coating works. The
Group places greater emphasis on the management of
sustainable suppliers. In order to reduce the impact of the
upstream supply chain on the environment and to promote
the fulfillment of environmental protection responsibilities
by suppliers, we have imposed specific requirements on
our supply chain partners in respect of environmental
protection, including compliance with the Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on Environmental Impact
Assessment ( (PEARKMBEIRFZETEE) ) and
other relevant laws and regulations. During the Reporting
Period, the Group did not have any violations of laws and
regulations related to environmental emissions and did not
receive any notice of non-compliance from environmental
protection departments of the government.

We follow the tender process of the “Management
Measures for Tendering and Procurement”, which
stipulates that only on the approved list are eligible for
participating in the tender activities, with an aim to
build an “Open, fair and impartial” procurement tender
platform. During the year, the Group had a total of 776
suppliers, all of which were in the PRC. In addition, we also
follow the “Management Measures for the Inclusion of
Suppliers into the Approved List” and take the following
steps to regulate the inclusion:

Supplier Supplier Initial

Inventory Check Information Collection Qualication Review

BREHRER WA A=

Supplier Inventory Check

Through the annual evaluation of suppliers, we assess
whether the listed suppliers can meet the requirements
for projects under construction in the coming year and
ensures that there are sufficient qualified suppliers in
each category. In addition, we will remove suppliers
with poor performance from the new annual supplier
list. The Group’s Supplier Management Department (the
“Management Department”) prepares a report based on
the check situation to set basis for the annual inspection
plan.

AEEXBHEEOEEREE
REMHRBE ENRETIR
BOBEIRR IERBEAR
SIEZR T REAERE - AKE
THOERAKBEREFNEE
RAED L HERERENTE
HEBHEEBEITRERBE - M
HEERSERHERRIERE
BT eREF(hEARLMER
BRE LX) (PEARKAMBEIR
BRETERSHBEREIRN
HBE R -|EHRA - AEER
AL E RERIBBERAARE AR
BERWITR - RB BT RRF
HFIMELRSE °

BARGEERBEREIE) W
BRE RERALES AENH
EE2ERREY  EEBEIRQ
M2 F REINBAREREF
BeAFE AEENHERL
B776% > B R/TEHEER - 1t
Sh o IR ERR(E T ABEE R
WE) REBATER RBAE
BT

Supplier Inclusion
Inspection Evaluation Meeting

HIER AERTES

BEHES

BASEFERY RMAFEEE
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Supplier Information Collection

The Management Department publishes the tender
information on the Company’s website and the
official WeChat platform, with specifying corporation
qualifications and experience requirements. Suppliers on
the approved list are required to submit the corporate
profile, qualifications, performance of the previous projects
and those under construction and certification materials,
management information, financial conditions information
and honor information, for further qualification review.

Initial Qualification Review

Further inspection steps are subject to the Management
Department’s preliminary inspection on whether the
supplier meets the requirements of the Group by
telephone, online inquiry, third-party consultation and
interview. The Department completes the “Supplier
Information Collection and Initial Qualification Review
Form” with signature, which is subject to the review and
signature confirmation by the competent personnel of
the responsible department to ensure the accuracy of
information.

Supplier Inspection

In the supplier selection process, in addition to assessing
factors such as the quality of products and services
provided by potential suppliers, goodwill, cost, etc., we
conduct on-site or interview investigation for the suppliers
who have passed the initial qualification, and complete the
“Supplier Survey Report for Inclusion”. The information
needs to be completely preserved to ensure traceability in
the later stage. The content of the reports of inspection
include suppliers’ corporate management system, project
quality management, project progress management,
project safety and civilization management, project
document management, corporation of project on-site
contracting/subcontracting and performances in different
aspects, such as contract performance ability. In addition,
we place greater emphasis on green and responsible
procurement to reduce the impact on the environment;
and even include the standards such as corporate
governance, labour conditions, ethics and environmental
standards as part of the assessment. In order to promote
the social responsibilities and awareness of suppliers and
archive a sustainable supply chain in hands with them,
we will select external suppliers base on their operational
guidelines and social responsibility assessments.

Inclusion Evaluation Meeting

The Management Department convenes the working group
members and the inspectors to participate in the inclusion
evaluation meeting to discuss whether the suppliers meet
the conditions of inclusion according to their performance
in the “Supplier Survey Report for Inclusion” and “Supplier
Evaluation Score Sheet”.

MELY 1of )
L SO PN E
EFABmBELE WAL
EEERRBERS OB
BRI AR A -
BERARERLEARBREN
ERABEN BBERRNEH
SEARE UET—SHER
= -

BROE

ERAFERBER  BEEH -
FE=TBARNKRETANTE
LHERAEENAEEEMNERM
BT ETERNSR - &M
SHARRIHARER(HRITE
R ERERIBR)MEF A
RERBFIREABZME FHE
R EIRERHER -

HEER

EHEBTERES K TG
BEREBRHNERERBE
B BE KAFERIN - HHE
LHRBERVENHEEET
B ORER  WMHTA
EERBE)  EREHNT R
REAERAETEY - BENX
REREERHERAEARERE
BX HEEEEE HBEEE
BE -HBEREXHERE -HAB
XiEER BERBE HEE
EBERARERBEHNRENEFHIEDN
KB WO RPIEERZEM
BECHRE BOHRENY
& FRIEREDRE - BEION
BREMRREESZEEMAEZ
2 WRSNEI M E B R 2 E T
AEHEE - AR S E(ERE
BRAFREAHEHNLEERMT
LRE# BHERAFRERAF
Bt -

AEFES
ERBPIEAETIEIEKER
ZRANB2EABEFBEGH &
it AR ABEREE)
(ERERFOR)SEKAREHE
(SR=WNERESEaY




3.5.

Sansheng Holdings (Group) Co.Ltd. 58  ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BiR HEREIHRS

3.5 P& mIBRE

Prevention of Financial Crimes

The Group strictly complies with the relevant laws and
regulations of the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates, including the laws and regulations of the”Law
of the People’s Republic of China against Corruption and
Bribery” ({ff#E AR E MBI & E)58 %)) and the
Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China ((FF & A
R EFMBI %)), and adopts a zero-tolerance attitude
towards all forms of corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering. In order to strengthen our internal
control mechanism and eliminate financial crimes, we
have formulated the Audit and Supervision System (&
STEEE4IZ)), the Conflict of Interest Reporting System
((F = EEEBAFRHE)) and the “Integrity Management
Commitment” ({BER4E & & E)), and have made the
relevant systems public in the OA System.

For commencing construction projects, suppliers are
required to sign an Integrity Management Commitment,
in which they undertake not to commit any form of
commercial bribery to the Company’s employees or
their relatives, friends and other personnel with specific
relationships. In addition, the Audit Department, which is
in charge of internal risk control, conducts regular training
on rules and regulations to remind employees to comply
with the code of conduct.

At the same time, we have established reporting
procedures and monitoring measures and disclosed the
contact details of the Audit and Supervision Committee on
the Company’s website to facilitate reporting by partners,
internal staff or the public of Sansheng Holdings and its
holding subsidiaries of any breach of professional ethics
or other disciplinary offences such as bribery, fraud and
falsification. During the year, the Group was not involved
in any material cases of corruption, bribery, fraud and
money laundering.
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4, ESTABLISHMENT OF A COMPETENT TEAM 4., I ERBRERE
4.1. Employment Practices 41 ETREEER

The Group strictly complies with the Labour Law, the
Labour Contract Law, the Law on the Protection of Minors,
the Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour and
other labour laws and regulations of the People’s Republic
of China to protect the legitimate rights and interests
of our employees. We have formulated an Employee
Handbook (¢ & TF1ft)) to clarify the Company’s relevant
system and regulations as well as the know-how for the
employees. In addition to prohibition on employment
discrimination and forced labour exploitation and
elimination of child labour, we do not tolerate any form of
discrimination or harassment. During the Reporting Period,
we did not have any cases of child labour or forced labour
violations.
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During the year, we have updated the Internal Competitive
Recruitment Management System in addition to our
existing Recruitment Management System, with the aim of
providing fair and open career development opportunities
for our employees. During the recruitment process, we will
evaluate the candidates based on the recruitment cycle,
suitability rate, talent pool building and the basic quality,
work experience and job requirements of the candidates,
and ensure that gender, age, nationality and race will
not be considered as factors and we are determined to
provide equal job opportunities. During the Reporting
Period, the Group did not commit any violations of laws
and regulations relating to remuneration and termination,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, holidays, equal
opportunity, diversity and anti-discrimination.

Staff Benefit Packages

This year, we issued the “Promotion Management System”
to improve the staff promotion and development channels,
standardize the criteria and processes of promotion
management, and clarify the relevant responsibilities of
promotion and development work. During the year, there
were a total of 54 management officers participated in the
training and a total of 26 were promoted, representing a
promotion rate of 48.15%.

We have established the “Employee Performance Appraisal
Program” to semi-annually and annually carry out
performance appraisals and approve year-end performance
bonuses based on employee performance and appraisal
results to reward their past contributions and efforts. In
order to attract and retain talents, we regularly review the
salary levels of our employees at all levels, collect data on
the salary situation in the industrial labour market, and
adjust the salary and benefit levels by taking into account
the employees’ working ability, performance, skill level and
group efficiency.
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In order to carry out our corporate mission of “focusing
on the top priority of Chinese households”, we have
established the “2020 Employee Care Program” and
“Benefits Management System” to increase employees’
sense of identity, belonging and loyalty to the Company
and to grow and develop together with the Company. In
addition to statutory benefits, we also provide employees
with general benefits and duty benefits. For example, we
provide basic benefits such as holiday allowances and gifts
during traditional festivals, birthday parties, employment
anniversary blessings, and employee health programs to
balance the work pressure and build teamwork spirit.

Employee Training and Development

Employee development and training is not only a
guarantee for the Group to achieve its business objectives,
but also a way for employees to improve themselves
and develop their potential. During the year, we have
updated our Training and Management System to build
a career ladder for employee growth, a cornerstone
for organizational development and an efficient talent
supply chain. Leveraging on three major support systems,
including Training and Management System, internal
trainers and online learning platform, we strive to create
a modern learning and knowledge-based corporate team
with five modules: “General Competencies”, “Professional
Empowerment”, “Team Building”, “Organizational
Integration” and “Strategic Culture”. Specific training
plans are as follows:
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General Competencies Module

During the year, we organized the “Top Seeds Internal
Lecturer” training course, aiming to promote a good
atmosphere of learning for all employees by establishing
a team of internal lecturers and continuously improve the
comprehensive quality of employees. At the same time,
in order to help the lecturers to achieve better teaching
results and improve their own training capabilities, we also
cultivate internal training lecturers of Sansheng Group for
excellent lecturer resources.

Professional Empowerment Module

We require each business department to hold two to four
internal sharing training sessions per month, with the
aim of enhancing internal professional knowledge and
skills and thus improving overall quality and capability. In
addition, we also hold two monthly “Sansheng Lecture”
programs, in which a team of lecturers consisting of senior
management from the Group and each region conduct
relevant training courses and promote the concept of
“everyone is a lecturer” to all employees of the Group,
creating an atmosphere where learning leads to progress
and sharing leads to growth.

Team Building Module

We set up training camps for the cultivation of key
talents. By organizing general training courses for
business department leaders, we aim to enhance the
overall strategic vision, systematic business knowledge
and comprehensive management skills of business
department leaders, and create a group of comprehensive
management talents with “high recognition, high
potential, high performance and high standards”. In
addition, we have also launched an orientation camp
for our Shengchuang (8%£ll) management trainees of to
implement our management policy and create a team of
management trainees with a high level of recognition of
Sansheng'’s culture, professionalism, expertise, outstanding
management ability and sustained high performance, so
as to establish the influence of Sansheng Group as campus
employer brand.
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Organizational Integration Module

In order to speed up the integration of new employees, we
periodically provide training for new employees, in which
each business department will assign special personnel
to explain the Company’s system and culture, and teach
new employees on a one-to-one basis and to answer their
specific questions.

Strategic Culture Module

By holding the “Executive Council”, we enhance the
strategic, market and business thinking, awareness
to change and business capability of our senior and
middle management. At the same time, we learn from
the excellent experience of benchmark companies to
continuously improve our business operation system and
promote the strategic development of the Company.

Staff Health and Safety

The Group insists on the concept of people-oriented and
life first, and attaches great importance to the health
and safety of our staff. We comply with the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control
of Occupational Diseases, the Provisions on the Supervision
and Administration of Occupational Health at Work Sites,
the Regulation on Work-Related Injury Insurances and
other relevant laws and regulations, striving to create a
healthy and safe working environment for our staff. In
order to standardize the quality inspection and evaluation
of the projects under construction at the group level, we
have compiled”Construction Inspection and Evaluation
Management Measures” in order to spot out the issues
and eliminate the risks in quality and safety timely.
During the development process of the projects under
construction, we clarify the specific responsibilities of each
project management personnel, and inspect, supervise and
guide them to achieve the management objectives of safe
production and civilized construction. During the Reporting
Period, there were no work-related injuries or work-related
fatalities in the Company. The following are the health and
safety measures established by the Group:

o Provide occupational risk training and assessment for
new employees;

o Project managers are responsible for auditing the
safety management system of construction units;

o Set up specialized solutions for safe production and
civilized construction, and review the implementation
of safe and civilized construction on site to avoid
safety accidents;

o Organize monthly on-site safety and civilized
construction inspections to check the quality and
safety of works and take corrective and preventive
measures when necessary;
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o Identify the job types of on-site employees and
providing them with work-related injury insurance,
accident insurance and annual body checks;

o Consider valuable comments from employees in
satisfaction surveys regarding site environmental
safety and make improvement measures;

o Establish visible signage and well-developed escape
routes and hold regular emergency drills;

o Document health and safety incidents and their
causes with formal monitoring and reporting
procedures; and

° Provide routine body checks for office staff, and
invite experts to conduct thematic health talks and
teach health care exercises, etc.

5. CREATING A GREEN ECOLOGY

5.1.

Green Buildings

We are committed to continuously improving our
green building construction techniques to bring more
environmentally friendly buildings to the community,
thereby reducing the environmental impact of the
Group's operations. Meanwhile, we have incorporated
the industry’s best practices into our construction work
in accordance with various environmental policies and
standards, such as the “Green Building Design Standards
of Fujian Province” ( (REAFEEERIZE) ),
“Building Lighting Design Standards” ( GEEEE Y REHE
#E) ), “General Principles of Civil Building Design” ( { A
BELEHMAN) ), “Green Building Evaluation Standards”
( (B BEEFEIZE) ) and “Energy Saving Design
Standards for Public Buildings” ( { /A ZEERRERFHTHE
).

In the early stage of the green construction projects, we
conduct an environmental impact assessment of the
construction site and the surrounding area in accordance
with the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Environmental Impact Assessment, anticipating the
ecological changes, biodiversity and pollutants that may be
produced by the construction, and predicting, analyzing
and evaluating the possible negative impacts. In order to
make effective use of materials and resources during the
development of projects, we save construction materials
and achieve the goal of reducing resource consumption
through the selection of construction materials, structural
layout, structural calculation and internal force analysis,
and strict detailed reinforcement design and construction.
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Furthermore, we actively make use of new environmentally
friendly materials, such as lightweight gypsum, passive
house, exterior wall insulation and system windows.
We also take the initiative to promote and drive the
development of the “energy-saving and low-carbon
green building industry chain” by proactively integrating
construction planning and showcase units, construction
materials suppliers, engineering and construction units,
property management companies, interior design units,
decoration companies, etc., in order to realize the new real
estate development model of “low energy consumption,
low pollution and low carbon emission”.

In the future, we will further optimize the management
system related to green buildings, continuously improve
the environment and energy management system, and
make full use of the Company’s technology, resources
and external collaboration to help the country’s green and
low-carbon transformation development.

Emissions Management

Climate change has become a major global challenge.
In recent years, the Chinese government has actively
participated in global climate governance and earnestly
implemented a national strategy to address climate change.
In line with the national climate change strategy proposed
by China’s Policies and Actions for Addressing Climate
Change 2020, we are determined to tackle the climate
changes together. We have conducted the carbon audit for
the Company’s headquarter office, and its projects located
in Pingtan Fujian, Zhangzhou Jinan and Haimen Jiangsu
pursuant to “Greenhouse Gas Protocol” developed by the
World Resources Institute and the World Business Council
for Sustainable Development and the 1SO14064-1 set by
the International Standards Organization. GHG emissions
during the Reporting Period are as follows:

According to the results of the carbon audit, the
Company’s GHG emissions include direct emissions and
removals (Scope 1) and indirect emissions (Scopes 2 &
3). The GHG emissions were associated with the fuel
consumption of vehicles under the name of the Company
(Scope 1), energy consumption (Scope 2) and waste landfill
and paper consumption (Scope 3) during operation, etc.
During the year, the total GHG emissions was 3,098.33
tonnes of CO2e while the GHG emissions intensity is 0.003
tonnes of CO2e per square meter.

The emissions generated from the Group’s production
operations include nitrogen oxides, fine dust, sulphur
dioxide and organic emissions. We strictly comply with
national and local environmental regulations. The following
are measures to reduce dust and air pollution, for example:

o Vehicles transporting shredded materials should be
covered with tarpaulins to keep the construction sites
clean and hygienic and free from mud and sand;
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o Transport vehicles should drive at medium speed to
prevent dust scattering and dust emission along the
way,

o The entrance and exit of the sites will be sprayed with
water to reduce dust emission. In high-temperature
weather, spraying happens no less than 3 times a
day to prevent dust emissions; and

. In case of weather with wind of level 4 or above,
earthworks, transshipment and other construction
works that may generate dust pollution will cease.

Energy Management

During the year, the total amount of energy consumption
during our operations was 3,603.62 MWh, while the
energy consumption intensity per square meter was 0.004
MWh, a significant reduction from 0.02 in 2019. This
was the result from following the concept of resource
conservation and improving energy efficiency throughout
the planning, design, construction and operational
management of our projects, thereby reducing energy
consumption. The Group's initiatives to improve the
efficiency of energy use include:

o Strict enforcement of building energy conservation
standards;

o Use of energy-efficient lighting and energy-saving
equipment;

o Considering the spacing and orientation of housing
blocks in the design to make full use of natural
lighting and reduce energy consumption for lighting;

o Use of natural ventilation to reduce the buildings’
demand for air-conditioning in the future, thereby
saving electricity consumption; and

o Expanding the proportion of the Group’s
fine-decorated projects to replace roughcast housing
and reduce energy consumption from secondary
renovation.

Water Resources Management

We strictly comply with the relevant laws and regulations
such as the Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law
of the People’s Republic of China, and our environmental
policy requires us to enhance wastewater treatment and
reduce wastewater discharge. During the year, the total
amount of water consumption during our operations was
175,000 tonnes, while water consumption per square
meter was 0.19 tonnes. In the coming year, we will
continue to monitor the water consumption of the Group’s
business operations. In order to conserve water and
enhance the efficiency of water usage, we have adopted
the following production wastewater treatment measures,
such as:
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Setting up wastewater treatment facilities and ensuring
that we apply for wastewater discharge permits from
the relevant departments in advance before discharging
wastewater to prevent direct discharge into nearby land or
rivers to pollute the environment;

Monitoring regularly the wastewater discharge from the
construction sites to ensure that the discharge meets the
standard;

Vehicle washing platform, sedimentation tank and
drainage facilities in front of the site entrances to prevent
mud, waste water and sewage from flowing out or
blocking the sewerage, so as to ensure no accumulation of
water and smooth drainage of the sites; and

Construction waste transfer sites must be hard-surfaced to
avoid leaks.

Waste Management

The waste generated from the Group’s production and
operation mainly includes construction waste, office and
domestic waste, while hazardous waste mainly includes
wastewater treatment sludge and waste motor oil. We
strictly comply with relevant laws and regulations such
as the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid
Waste ( (R ZEARKEMBEE EREYTRREN AL )
and the Administrative Measures for Hazardous Waste
Transfer Manifests ( (fEMREEYE B EETEIE) ),
and have detailed requirements on the management of
hazardous waste in our environmental policy.

At the construction sites, we have a special construction
waste transfer site, which is enclosed by brick walls, so
that construction waste cannot be thrown down from
high places and must be bagged and transported to the
construction waste transfer site first. At the construction
sites, we have a 100% concentration rate of construction
waste. In the process of transporting construction
materials and garbage, the garbage trucks should also
travel according to the designated routes and take
effective measures when loading so as not to drip, leak,
spill or spread any garbage. Vehicle washing platform,
sedimentation tank and drainage facilities are also built in
front of the site entrances to prevent mud, waste water
and sewage from flowing out or blocking the sewerage,
5o as to ensure no accumulation of water and smooth
drainage of the sites. We have also adopted the following
waste management measures, such as:

o Proper collection and management of hazardous
chemical waste produced during construction in
accordance with the Dangerous Goods Management
Practice Guideline;

5.5.

o RAFGKEBERME TR
PRSIk AT R B B BRI TR &
R EKBERAR - BT g
B BRI B B AT 1 4 ORI

SR

o EHIYE TIRIGH EEKEER
TR BRI  (REZERBED

o NI APIATEABHEDR
T A LB R BE KR B
B3 LR - S5 EEK ~ ShREk
BEEETKE BRIME
K PRk R

o BENFHESM VAR
BRIE - RRR -

BRYER
AEBLEELTELENERY
TERERERINR HAKR
EELRE MEEEEVEE
BIEEKEEGE BEHME -
BAEBET(REARKLNEE
BREYSRAREN AR R(ER
FEY SR EE IR A FHEME
RER UMNRBERRPFMAR
ETHEZERYNEEER -

ETRS RAFREELR
RS EAERE R R
BN IARUSRETRE L
ARAREEEEENFHES
Moo M TIRS  RAMEEN
FERHERERZEI00% - H£EEHZ
EMBREFOBIE NP EH
B FREERRITE  KH
) B FE ERER G RUE HE - 1B
AR TRETH R ITHKFT
Al A EWFRLTE TR
K BEKRHE - BT LEJBEE - J5REK -
ShmEk E B E T KE  FER T it
EARK BEKEGE - I IR ERER
AT EEZWMERER  fln:

e HE(EBRmEEMFEEE
ERE ZERERER
ETHHEEENRRICEE

=)=l



ZRER (RE) ARAR]

67

“EBCEFFH

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BE HEREIESE

o Setting up facilities for waste separation and
producing construction raw materials from partially
reusable construction waste;

o Placing covered bins for centralized storage of
domestic waste to prevent wind-blown waste; and

o Implementing fully-sealed construction materials and
waste transportation process to prevent wind-blown
waste.

6. BUILDING A WARM COMMUNITY

6.1.

Contribution to the Pandemic battle

In the face of the outbreak of the novel coronavirus, as
an enterprise with a high sense of social responsibility,
Sansheng remains committed to our mission and actively
fulfills its corporate social responsibility to combat the
pandemic and overcome the difficulties together.

“Immediate Donation to Support the Front-line”

On 28 January 2020, Sansheng Group donated RMB5
million to the Red Cross Society of Fujian Province to
help frontline medical personnel in the fight against
the pandemic. Mr. Lin Rongbin, Chairman of Sansheng
Holdings and President of Fuzhou City Quanzhou Chamber
of Commerce, and Ms. Cheng Xuan (“Ms. Cheng”),
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of Sansheng
Holdings, and President of Fujian Association of Women
Entrepreneurs, jointly called on the Fujian entrepreneurial
community to contribute to the fight against the pandemic
and serve as a strong support for the heroes at the
frontline combating the pandemic.

“Multi-channel liaison to raise funds”

Ms. Cheng took the lead in seeking and donating
pandemic prevention supplies through overseas resources,
the National Health and Family Planning Commission,
provincial and municipal Property Management
Associations, and other channels to tide over the crisis
together with all sectors of the community. Among
them, Ms. Cheng not only donated and assisted Wuhan
frontline hospitals in her personal name, but also tried
her best to contact multiple organizations to fully support
frontline pandemic prevention and provide pandemic
prevention supplies. In order to better promote the
pandemic prevention work, the Company’s executives
even established a Pandemic Prevention and Control
Emergency Group to convey the instructions from the
Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development, Bureau
of Housing Management, and the Property Management
Association to all executives, and requested each manager
to immediately grasp the situation of the projects and
respond to the pandemic prevention measures at all times.

“Overcoming the difficulties together with rent concession”
The pandemic had a direct impact on the normal operation
of the businesses, and Sansheng International Plaza and
Sansheng i33 City Plaza* (Z2%i33% /&%) under the
Sansheng Business reduced the rents of their tenants
during the pandemic period, in order to overcome the
difficulties together.
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Sansheng Group Donation Ceremony
—REEBEES

Meanwhile, to protect the health and safety of
every customer and employee, Sansheng Group has
implemented strict preventive and control measures in the
shopping malls that are gradually resuming operation. Each
of these measures reflects Sansheng’s care and concern,
such as taking body temperature before entering the mall,
conducting comprehensive disinfection in the mall, and
formulating a code of conduct for returning to work.

At the same time, the Party Committee of Sansheng
Group issued an initiative letter titled “Active Response,
Full Prevention and Control, Dedication and Love” to
encourage all party members, employees and their families
and friends to donate to Hubei, the hardest-hit province
by the pandemic. In the name of the Party Committee of
Sansheng Group, we donated more than RMB130,000
to the charity organizations in Wuhan, Hubei Province to
extend a warm hand and to build a warm home together.
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Visiting and expressing gratitude and respect to Xinhong Community Health Service Center
BR 50 A A AL [ 18T A AR A R O I R E R AR

Expression of Gratitude and Respect to the Frontline BRASENEBAERETRHER
Medical Staff wmE
On 20 April 2020, Sansheng Group and the Public RZE_ZFMWOMA=+H"

Volunteer Service Alliance of Honggiao Business District EBNUBEERBRERE % HE
came to the office of the Pandemic Prevention Working 75 Bt BB SR B ML AL [ AT A RIS P
Group at the Xinhong Community Health Service Center DEIEHENERAE MBS
to show their gratitude and respect to the medical staff ENMEAIGSHNEBAR % TR
who are on the front line of the pandemic. The frontline HNREE - A AR5 i% AEBRR
medical staff expressed that they were deeply touched EREEMOBL  BEE E%%ﬁﬂﬁ’ﬂ
by the volunteers’ care and concern, and that they would §é BRE - -—ETERESFE
definitely take care of their health, strengthen their own Mg E FE BT EEBH T?

protection, and do their utmost to combat the pandemic. FHE 8 2 LA
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Free Medical Consultation Service REEDRK

Sansheng Group, together with Chunyu Doctor (& CEREEERSENEL W
9% 4), provided free medical services, focusing on SEBEYCRGE EHMRBZENT
answering the questions related to COVID-19 of patients fil 4 B% 2% AR B A PR R A R o R 2
from respiratory medicine, infectious diseases and other BERHBRZENRPRZX T A
related departments, as well as providing “7x24 hours, ISR ERE RIBM[ 7 X 24/ -

real-time response” online free medical services and online ERHEE | EESDNES LB
psychological counseling services for residents with special AE R -

conditions.

Caring Activity in Cangshan District
BlEAEES
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Caring Activity in Cangshan District

On 25 April 2020, the Party Committee of Sansheng
Group assisted in organizing a caring activity in Cangshan
District, where free donations or joint purchases were
made into caring gift packages and sent to 1,523 cadres in
Cangshan Village to thank them for their perseverance and
dedication since the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic.

Establishing an Pandemic Prevention Working Group
Sansheng Group also attaches great importance to the
health and safety of its employees, and has formulated
the “COVID-19 Prevention and Control Technical Plan”
and the “COVID-19 Employee Prevention and Control
System Compendium”. In addition, a Pandemic Prevention
Working Group was set up in collaboration with local
head offices, and an information sheet and a notification
letter on the purchase of pandemic prevention supplies
were issued. Each company arranged official working
hours according to the local government’s request for
resumption of work. The Pandemic Prevention Working
Group leads all employees to implement the requirements
of comprehensive disinfection of office areas and daily
disinfection of office areas before resumption of work in
accordance with relevant guidelines and policies.

Targeted Poverty Alleviation

Sansheng Group upholds the spirit of “not forget our
roots” and always fulfills its social responsibility by actively
participating in public welfare and charity. In order to help
workers in difficulty to solve the problem of children’s
schooling expenses, and at the same time to reduce the
financial burden of workers who encounter accidents and
cause financial difficulties to their families, the Company’s
labour union launched support activities in autumn. We
help families with per capita monthly income below the
minimum living standard, single parents and children with
schooling difficulties, families with members suffering
from sudden major diseases or long-term chronic diseases,
or families suffering from accidents and sudden major
changes.
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Appendix I: HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Index

Aspect
gk

BiR HEREIHRS

fsk— : ERBSRBARIER

it EREREEES])RS]

A Environmental Aspect R 5 S E

Section
=42

KPI A1.3
B4R B IRAT 3

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility)
FEEEEEEDRE (UBEHE) R (ER)BE (e
ERB( - SERIEHE)

KPI A1.4
BRELIR AN IR IRAT 4

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility)

PEABEEEEYAE (ABAE) R (WER) BE (WAE
EEB - BEREITE)

Aspect A1 Emissions Creating a green ecology
[EEA B AR €0 RE

(a) The policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that

have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges

into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-

hazardous waste

HE

ERBERIRAERBER  MKRLtHHEES  BEELES

BEEYHNEESTH

(@ HE: M

(b) ETFHBETABEAZENEEEZE LRI
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data Emissions Management
BB MIERAT | BER eV IR A KRR BE A B R E R
KPI A1.2 Total greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where | Sustainability Data
RABEAEWIBIZA1.2 | appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, Summary

per facility) Key Performance Table

BERBABNE CAE) R (MER)ZE (MASES | IREEREERE

B  BEFZMEETH) BB E R

KPI A1.5
FAEIR RIS IRALLS

Description of the measures to reduce emissions and the
results obtained

1ot R 1K R DU B B B S P S BCR

Emissions Management

BE e IR

KPI A1.6
FASIE RIS 1RAT.6

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
are handled, and a description of waste reduction measures
and the results obtained
HMEEEERBEBREYN A L BEEEENEER
sk R

Waste Management
BEEYER
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Aspect Section

- B8

Aspect A2 Use of Resources Creating a green

[E A2 BIRE R ecology

SRR

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials
EREAER (BIEER  KREMEME) B BER

KPI'A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. | Sustainability Data

BB 48 IR 1RA2.1

electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in '000s) and intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility)
RERESWER R SEEER(INE - [3oh) BFEE (U
FEFERESAE) REBE (WASESBEMN - BEIBE

KPI A2.2
RS AE B IRA2 2

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility)
BEKEREE (WABEEEN  BERZMTHE

Summary
Key Performance Table
ARBEREEHE
RS AR R

KPI A2.3
BB AE B IRA2 3

Description of energy use efficiency plan and the results
obtained

it B IR A s At 8 PTG AR

Energy Management
BEREE

KPI A2.4
BB A BIERA2.4

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency improvement plans
and the results obtained

it SR EGE KR ERT B ER B RE - A R A AR
8 R PTISRCR

Water Resources
Management
KERE 1B

KPI A2.5
BAELIR NI IRA2.5

Total packaging material used for finished products (in
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced
X MATAREMRMERE (L8 X (WER) 3£ E
BRhE

Not applicable to the
Group's operations

TERNAKEEH

Aspect A3 The Environment and Natural Resources

[EEA3 RERRRER
Policies on minimising the issuer's significant impacts on the
environment and natural resources
BIRBITAHRERRAAERERERZENIBE

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the

BB 4B IR IRA3

environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them

M EBEHEHRBERRAERNERZELREHENER
EETENTE

Creating a green

ecology
SRR
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Aspect
g

BiR HEREIHRS

B Social Aspect #t &

Section
=40

Aspect B1 Employment Establishment of a
[ETEB1 Competent Team

Information on: wEE R B B

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that

have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and

promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,

diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare

(A

ElFMRmE BEREA TIERE KRB FTEH

2 Zufb RERUREMFEREND

(@ HBE: Rk

(b) ETFHBETABEAZENEEEZE LRI

& #
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group | Sustainability Data

A B2 48 I 15811

and geographical region

IR EEELR  FRAMNMEREDNES LR

KPI B1.2
FASAR IR E1RB1.2

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
geographical region

mIER - FRANRBRE DNERRKL X

Summary
Key Performance Table
ARBEREEHE
B4R R

Aspect B2
[EmB2

Health and Safety

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that

have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards

fEERT e
FRARRLZE2TEREMEREELZBELBETMN

(@ BR K
(b) BEBTHETABEAZENRREEZNRAM

&

Staff Health and Safety
BIRELZE
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Aspect Section
I %
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities Sustainability Data
FREMIEEB2.1 | BEIEBEME T NS K b & Summary

Key Performance Table
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury AEERRNERE
RENIEER22 | EIEBEARAIERAE BB E N E
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures | Staff Health and Safety
RABE4E WIETER2.3 | adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored BTIREZE

W FrFRANBEREFEREZ2H R UEEBERTRER
Tk

Aspect B3 Development and Training Employee Training and
[E B3 R EIE Development
BTEIIER
Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities
FRARAEEET TEBE OB R KM BUR « 15
&8
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and | Sustainability Data

7R 4 48 IR 1RB3.1

employee category (e.g. senior management, middle
management)

REFREERRN (WaREEE HREBES) EHH
XIMEEA DL

KPI B3.2
AR AR5 15B3.2

The average training hours completed per employee by
gender and employee category

BRI R EBRERNE D - §5EE TR XN TR

Summary
Key Performance Table
AREEREERE
B B

Aspect B4 Labour Standards
[E B4
Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour
% T8
BB IEETSAEHSTH :
(@ WE: K
(b) ETFHBETABEAZENMEEERE KR
B & #
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to

8§ 45 A5 12B4 1

avoid child and forced labour
il s R E DI E M AR S E T Rk 45 T

KPI B4.2
A AR 8 1EB4 .2

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when
discovered
IR ERIBNE ER A BB R ERR S 28

Employment Practices

ETREER




Sansheng Holdings (Group) Co.Ltd. 7@  ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BiR HEREIHRS

Aspect
g
Aspect B5 Supply Chain Management
[ HEB5 HrEgEE e
Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the
supply chain
EIRHERNRE KL g R R BUR
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region
FREMIEEBS.1 | RMEEI S M HEREE
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,

8 4 4E 813285 .2

number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, and how they are implemented and monitored
MO ERERREERNED mERTAEAENNOHER
2H AREABHNRITRERTE

Section
=40

Win-win Partnership
BERHAR

Aspect B6 Product Responsibility Adherence to Quality
[EEB6 Craftsmanship
Information on: Customer Service
System
(a) the policies; and Safeguarding
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that Information Security
have a significant impact on the issuer BrmBEIE O
BEFRBER
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and | REEEE L2
privacy matters relating to products and services provided
and methods of redress.
EmaE
BHAMRHEEMNRBOEEREZE  BE  RELKLES
BRI ER
(a) BR: K&
(b) BTFTHETABEATENHBIERZ LR
B & #
KPI B6.1 The policies; and compliance with relevant laws and | Production of Exquisite

A & 48 2 45 15B6. 1

regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to products and services provided
and methods of redress
FRAMRHERNRBNEERLZE  BE  SRRELEE
BEARBR A ERBETABEAZENHER U KETHE
BRI

Products

KPI B6.2
A § 4R R 15 15B6.2

Number of products and service related complaints received
and how they are dealt with

BEEBRERNMRBORFEE AREYTTE

Customer Service System

P RIS A

KPI B6.3
AR R 15 15B6.3

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights
fe it BR M R RIE B E B B

Safeguarding Information
Security
REERZE
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Aspect
Eal

KPI B6.4
BASAE B 1RB6.4

BE HEREIHE

Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures

Tt o B R E B AR N G R R

Section
E=4:1]
Adherence to Quality

Craftsmanship
BFmERE DO

KPI B6.5
8§12 45 “WIE 1ZB6.5

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies,
and how they are implemented and monitored

B BEEERRERLEBERE  URBERTRERS
E

Safeguarding
Information Security

REERLZE

Aspect B7
EEB7

Anti-corruption
RES

The policies; and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion fraud and money laundering
R ILHE IR BMFRABEREETAREATE
E@E&%&%?*ﬁ%ﬁii@&%ﬁ%

KPI B7.1
8§ 45 A8 12B 7 1

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the issuer or its employees during the
reporting period and the outcomes of the cases
RERBRNEETASEEEREYEEENE
HEV BB KRR

/’?gﬁﬁ‘ 7%

KPI B7.2
S 4E BIE1RBT.2

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored

WAl SEE R BHERF  URBEERTRERTE

Corruption Prevention

7L E5 R R

Aspect B8 Community Investment

[E B8 MEEE
Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates and to
ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’
interests
ﬁ@ﬁbﬂiﬁ//\ITﬁﬁéﬁAMEFﬁEffiIZ ZMERE
¥BEDeEEARRFENBUR

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental

B 52 48 I 1EBS. 1

concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport)

EIEREE (WHE - RHEEE - SBIHEK
=

25)

femm -~ X1t -

KPI B8.2
B 4E W IE 13B8.2

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area

EEISREMBANER (N EKERE)

Building a Warm
Community

b 1R R AL [
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Appendix Il: SUSTAINABILITY DATA
STATEMENTS

AIRGERRBERE

A Environmental Aspect Unit 2020

A RIRER B 2020F &
GHG emissions

BERBEHE

Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent (CO,e) | 3.32
ERARERBHW(HE1) NN =

Indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) tonnes of CO,e 3,022.62
MR ERBHM($EE2) yN k=N (g Hue

Other indirect GHG emissions (Scope 3) tonnes of CO,e 72.40
HAb A58 = REE Uk (S883) AR EE

Total GHG emissions (Scope 1, 2 & 3) tonnes of CO.e 3,098.33
BEREHMRE (FB1 - 2K3) N B s

GHG Emissions Intensity

BERBHERRE

Per square meter (Scope 1, 2 & 3) tonnes of CO,e/square meter 0.003
FEHK(#BE - 2K3) AW EREE Tk

Consumption by motor vehicles

KEBERRHERE

Gasoline consumption by the motorcade tonnes 0.83
ERFEANTRE NI

Diesel consumption by the motorcade tonnes 0.52
BHEREANEHE NI

Energy consumption

BE IR 3%

Total energy consumption MWh 3,603.62
BEEE JK LB

Total energy consumption intensity (per | MWh/square meter 0.004
square meter) K ELRE K

BREEARE (FFHXK)

Water consumption

IR HE FE

Total water consumption cubic meter 175,000.00
BFEKE AV N

Total water consumption intensity (per square | cubic meter/square meter 0.19
meter) KK

BFRKBE (FF7HXK)

Hazardous waste produced and recycled

EEBEYELEREBKE

Hazardous waste produced kilograms 0

BEEREMELE

T
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A Environmental Aspect Unit 2020

A RIRER B 2020F &

Non-hazardous waste

mEBEY

Non-hazardous waste disposed tonnes 10

BEBERVE NI

Non-hazardous waste intensity kilograms/square meter 0.01
(per square meter) T,/ FrHk

MEBRNBE (5F5K)

B Social Aspect Unit 2020

B 2%k By 2020 &

Total number of staff (by gender)

BIAK(RERES)

Total number of employees No. of people 1,299

T RES A ABK

Male No. of people 752

S AEK

Female No. of people 547

M AEK

Total number of staff (by employment type)

ETHAY(ZERENE D)

Full-time employees No. of people 1,288

EXEE N

Part-time employees No. of people 11

JEEEAXES AR

Total number of staff (by employment level)

ETHAY(RERKANES)

Senior management No. of people 27

BREEE AER

Mid-level employees No. of people 177

hEREER AR

General employees No. of people 1,095

EEER
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B Social Aspect Unit 2020
B EER By 20205 £
Total number of staff (by age group)

ETHAY(ZRFRARNE D)

staff aged below 35 No. of people 1,003
BBEMEATET ABL

staff aged 36-45 No. of people 256
36-455 B T ABL

staff aged 46-55 No. of people 38
46-55 B T AEL

staff aged 56 or above No. of people 2
56ALET

Total number of staff (by geographical region)

ETHAY(RHESD)

Within China No. of people 1,299
hEE A A

Outside China No. of people 0
B35 S

Average number of training hours (by gender)

TR AR (RER & D)

Male Hours 74
Egi /N

Female Hours 56
g /N

Average number of training hours (by employment type)

FHBFINHH (RERERNE D)

Senior management Hours 48
SREEE /N

Mid-level employees Hours 64
TEREER /N

General employees Hours 64
AEEREE /NBF

Occupational health and safety

BEREENZZ

Work-related fatalities No. of people 0
EIT A ABL

Injury No. of people 0
RBHEE ABL
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Corporate Governance Report
BRELIRE

Corporate Governance Report
The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company fully recognizes the importance of corporate
transparency and accountability. The Company is committed to
achieving a high standard of corporate governance and leading the
Group to attain better results and improve its corporate image with
effective corporate governance procedures.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (the “Corporate Governance Code”)
as its own code of corporate governance.

The Directors of the Company, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that to the best of their knowledge, the Company has
complied with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Compliance with the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own internal code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors. After specific enquiries by the
Company, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standards of dealing as set out in the Model Code for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

To comply with the code provision A.6.4 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the Company has also established and adopted a code of
conduct regarding its employees’ securities transactions, on terms
no less exacting than the standards set out in the Model Code, for
compliance by its relevant employees who are likely to be in possession
of inside information in relation to the Company or its securities
because of their offices or employments.

The Company was not aware of any incident of non-compliance
with the Model Code by the Directors and the relevant employees
throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Board of Directors

Corporate strategy

The primary objective of the Company is to enhance long-term total
return for the Shareholders. Please refer to the section of “Chairman’s
Statement” in this annual report for the basis on which the Group
generates or preserves value over the longer term and the strategy for
delivering the objective of the Group.

Board composition

The Board currently comprises two executive Directors, two non-
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. The
composition of the Board is set out as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Lin Rongbin (Chairman)'
Ms. Cheng Xuan (Chief Executive Officer)’

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Xiao Zhong
Mr. Xu Jianwen

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Pan Dexiang

Mr. Yuan Chun

Mr. Zhu Hongchao?

Mr. Zhong Bin?

Note:
1. Ms. Cheng Xuan is the spouse of Mr. Lin Rongbin.

2. On 22 February 2021, Mr. Zhu Hongchao was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director.

3. On 22 February 2021, Mr. Zhong Bin resigned as an independent
non-executive Director.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Profiles of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has any relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship) with any other Directors.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board has at all
times met the requirements of Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors with at least one independent non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise, and
independent non-executive Directors representing at least one-third of
the Board of the Directors.
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Board Meetings, Board Committees Meetings and General
Meetings

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the operation and
financial performance of the Group as well as its overall strategies.
Directors may participate either in person or through electronic means
of communications.

The Board should meet regularly and Board meetings should be held
at least four times a year. At least 14 days’ notice of all regular Board
meetings is given to the Directors who are given the opportunity to
include other matters in the agenda of meetings.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board held 10 meetings.

The attendance records of the individual Directors at the meetings
of the Board, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee and the general meetings for the year ended
31 December 2020 are set out as follows:

EEER EEZEETRURKRERK

R SR ) E N B TS R

[RE:
B ARG EBERE -EErHIRUE
; i

E=ZeATHE ﬁﬂtimﬁﬂFQEmi
TEeeZ -ATEE SHBHeERES
%ﬁ?”+@%Lﬂ %ﬁwﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁm

EEMAGZHE -

HE-_Z-_ZEF+_A=+—BULEFERXN-
EEECRITIONEE

HE-_Z-_TF+_A=+—HLEFER-
Exe HFXRLET REZTEEC FZE
BegakRERENEIEEHELHEH
T

No. of Meetings Attended/Held

HE/ BTEERE
Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
EH H k%
Name of Directors BERE Exges ZESEE LERSE ZESEE RrAE
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Lin Rongbin (Chairman) MERBLE () 1010 - - 11 2
Ms. Cheng Xuan (Chief Executive Officer) Bl T (fTHEH) 1010 - /1 - 2
Non-executive Directors FHTEE
Mr. Xiao Zhong BRLE 10110 - - - 0
Mr. Xu Jianwen Fal ks 10/10 - - - 22
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. Pan Dexiang BEELE 1010 W) 171 111 2
Mr. Yuan Chun RERE 1010 22 - 11 22
Mr. Zhong Bin' E e 10110 2/2 1n - 22
Note: Mz -

1. On 22 February 2021, Mr. Zhong Bin resigned as an independent
non-executive Director and was replaced by Mr. Zhu Hongchao.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for an initial term of two years commencing from
the date of his/her appointment, which is renewable automatically for
successive terms of one year. Each of the service agreements may be
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing served by
either party on the other.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors was appointed to the Board pursuant to the respective letters
of appointment for an initial term of two years commencing from the
date of his/her appointment, which is renewable automatically for
successive terms of one year. Each of the letters of appointment may
be terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing served
by either party on the other.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are governed by the articles of association. The Board, with
the recommendation of the Nomination Committee, is responsible
for reviewing the Board composition, developing and formulating
the relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of
Directors, monitoring the appointment of Directors and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

The articles of association provides that any Director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the first general
meeting of the Company after his/her appointment and be subject
to re-election at such meeting, or as an addition to the existing Board
shall hold office only until the following annual general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at such meeting.

In accordance with the articles of association, at each annual general
meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being
or, if the number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the number nearest
to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting after his/her
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting and any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board
shall hold office only until the next following annual general meeting
of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

The shareholders may, at any general meetings convened and held
in accordance with the articles of association, remove a Director by
ordinary resolution at any time before the expiration of his/her term
of office notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Company’s
articles of association or in any agreement between the Company and
such Director, but without prejudice to any claim for damages under
any such agreement. A vacancy on the Board created by the removal
of a Director may be filled by the election or appointment by ordinary
resolution of the shareholders at the meeting at which such Director is
removed.
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Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial

Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Group in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors
also acknowledge their responsibilities to ensure that the financial
statements of the Group are published in a timely manner.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the
Directors have prepared the financial statements of the Company on a
going concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external auditor on the
financial statements of the Group are set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.

Responsibilities of and Delegation by the Board
The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
overseeing the Group's strategic decisions and monitoring business and
performance.

The management, consisting of executive Directors, along with other
senior executives, is delegated with responsibilities for implementing
the strategies and directions as adopted by the Board from time
to time, and conducting the day-to-day operations of the Group.
Executive Directors and senior executives meet regularly to review the
performance of the businesses of the Group as a whole, coordinate
overall resources and make financial and operational decisions. The
Board also gives clear directions as to their powers of management
including circumstances where management should report back, and
reviews the delegation arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure that
they remain appropriate to the needs of the Group. A memorandum
on respective functions of the Board and management of the Company
has been established in writing.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests of
the Company and its shareholders at all times.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Pan Dexiang, Mr. Yuan Chun, Mr. Zhu Hongchao (appointed on
22 February 2021) and Mr. Zhong Bin (resigned on 22 February 2021),
being independent non-executive Directors, have made confirmations
of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that Mr. Pan Dexiang, Mr. Yuan Chun,
Mr. Zhu Hongchao (appointed on 22 February 2021) and Mr. Zhong
Bin (as at the date of his resignation of 22 February 2021) meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
are independent to the Company in accordance with the terms of such
guidelines.
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Continuous Professional Development

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company has arranged trainings for Directors in the form of provision
of training materials and consultation. All Directors have provided their
training records to the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, all Directors, including Mr. Lin
Rongbin, Ms. Cheng Xuan, Mr. Xiao Zhong, Mr. Xu Jianwen, Mr. Pan
Dexiang, Mr. Yuan Chun and Mr. Zhong Bin (resigned on 22 February
2021 and was replaced by Mr. Zhu Hongchao), had been given
and had read relevant guideline materials regarding the duties and
responsibilities of being a Director, the relevant laws and regulations
applicable to the Directors, duty of disclosure of interest and business
of the Group.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of the chairman (“Chairman”) and the chief executive
officer (“Chief Executive Officer”) of the Company are held separately.
The role of Chairman is held by Mr. Lin Rongbin, and the role of Chief
Executive Officer is held by Ms. Cheng Xuan. The Chairman provides
leadership and governance for the Board so as to create the conditions
for the effective performance of the Board as a whole and effective
contribution by individual Director and to ensure that the Board
performs its responsibilities and all key and appropriate issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely manner. The Chief Executive Officer
has the delegated power to manage the Company and to oversee the
activities of the Company on a day-to-day basis.

The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer is defined and established in writing.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of Directors and their corporate governance
duties include:

(i) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(i) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(v)  to review the Company’s compliance with the code provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report under the Listing Rules.

The Board has reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and this corporate governance report.
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Board Committees EEZET

The Board has established three committees, including the Audit ZZ@2 R v =-HAZE W EESBEE T
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination #ZEZE@ BiEEXZES FTHEES
Committee, and has delegated various responsibilities to the RiELEE€ -FEEEZE S t’jEK B2
committees. All the Board committees perform their distinct roles in %fﬁﬂéﬂ HBENBITAGEE 2B AR
accordance with their respective terms of reference which are available ~ Z< 22 SRR EMEERESE - &
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Board =% E@E%ﬁ}fiﬁ}ﬁ NBEITHES I

committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expense.

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and
paragraph C.3 of the Corporate Governance Code. The primary duties
of the Audit Committee are, but not limited to, to assist the Board in
providing an independent view of the effectiveness of the financial
reporting process, the internal controls and risk management system
of the Group, to oversee the audit process and to perform other duties
and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three members, namely
Mr. Yuan Chun, Mr. Pan Dexiang and Mr. Zhu Hongchao (appointed
on 22 February 2021), independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Yuan
Chun is the chairman of the Audit Committee. Mr. Zhong Bin resigned
as a member of the Audit Committee on 22 February 2021.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee held two
meetings. It had reviewed and discussed the 2020 interim and 2019
annual financial statements, the 2020 interim and 2019 annual results
announcements and reports, the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems and the internal audit function of the
Group and made recommendations to the Board regarding the
re-appointment of auditor.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph B.1
of the Corporate Governance Code. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee are, but not limited to, to evaluate and make
recommendations to the Board regarding the remuneration packages
and compensation of the executive Directors and senior management.
In addition, the Remuneration Committee conducts reviews of the
performance, and determines the remuneration structure of the senior
management of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three members,
namely Mr. Pan Dexiang and Mr. Zhu Hongchao (appointed on 22
February 2021), independent non-executive Directors, and Ms. Cheng
Xuan, executive Director. Mr. Pan Dexiang is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. Mr. Zhong Bin resigned as a member of the
Remuneration Committee on 22 February 2021.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Remuneration Committee
held one meeting. It had reviewed the Company’s remuneration
policies and structure and the remuneration package for Directors and
senior management.
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Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph A.5 of the
Corporate Governance Code. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee are, but not limited to, to formulate nomination policies
for consideration of the Board, implement the nomination policies laid
down by the Board, and make recommendations to the Board to fill
vacancies on the same.

According to the nomination policy of the Company, the Nomination
Committee considers, among others, the following factors when
assessing candidates, and makes recommendations on the appointment
of any proposed candidate to the Board or re-appointment of any
existing member(s) of the Board:

(@  Integrity;

(b)  Achievements and experience in property development, property
investment, real estate business and other related industries;

(0 Commitment in respect of sufficient time, interests and attention
to the business of the Company; and

(d) Diversification of the Board in all aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills and knowledge.

The appointment of any proposed candidate to the Board or
re-appointment of any existing member(s) of the Board shall be made
in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association and other
applicable rules and regulations.

The chairman of the Nomination Committee or the company secretary
shall convene a meeting, and invite nominations of candidates
from Board members (if any), for consideration by the Nomination
Committee. The Nomination Committee may also nominate candidates
for its consideration. For the appointment of any proposed candidate
to the Board, the Nomination Committee shall undertake adequate
due diligence in respect of such candidate and make recommendations
for the Board’s consideration and approval. For the re-appointment
of any existing member(s) of the Board, the Nomination Committee
shall make recommendations to the Board for its consideration and
recommendation, for the proposed candidates to stand for re-election
at a general meeting. The Board shall have the final decision on all
matters relating to its recommendation of candidates to stand for
election at a general meeting.
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The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members,
namely Mr. Lin Rongbin, the Chairman and executive Director, and
Mr. Pan Dexiang and Mr. Yuan Chun, independent non-executive
Directors. Mr. Lin Rongbin is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Nomination Committee
held one meeting. It had reviewed the appointment and re-
appointment of Directors, the structure, size and composition of the
Board, the Board Diversity Policy, and the retirement and rotation plan
of the Directors and assessed the independence of each independent
non-executive Director.

Board Diversity

With a view to enhancing the Board effectiveness and corporate
governance, the Board should include a balanced composition of
executive and non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) so that there is a strong independent element on
the Board, which can effectively exercise independent judgment.

The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy with measurable
objectives. Selection of candidates is based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills and knowledge. The Nomination Committee and the Board
review such measurable objectives from time to time to ensure their
appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards achieving
those objectives.

Having reviewed and considered the above measurable objectives,
the Nomination Committee and the Board consider that the existing
composition of the Board is diversified.

Remuneration of the Members of the Senior Management by
Band

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 7 to
the audited consolidated financial statements. During the year ended
31 December 2020, the Company has one senior management.
Pursuant to paragraph B.1.5 of the Corporate Governance Code, the
remuneration by band for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out
below:

Remuneration band
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External Auditor’'s Remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the remunerations paid or
payable to the external auditor in respect of audit and non-audit
services provided to the Group are set out as below:

ShES 1% SYEMEH &
HE-_Z-_ZF+-_A=+—BLEE #
mAEBERESEARS RIEEFRBE Mk
FEMOMNBR B 2 BN H AT

Fees payable or paid

ERSENHER
2020 2019
—E-EF —E—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREFT
Services rendered for the Group [ 2 5 B 4R i 19 AR A%
Audit services BT RT 2,380 1,020
Non-audit services IEFET RS 2,310 2,030
Total Fees FEE=9z3] 4,690 3,050

The Audit Committee was satisfied that the non-audit services provided
by KPMG in 2020, which include review of interim financial report,
reporting accountants’ service for the major acquisition and other
service, did not affect the independence of the auditor.

Internal Controls and Risk Management

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
Group's strategic objectives, and maintaining sound and effective risk
management and internal controls systems. As such, the Board not only
sets and communicates the Group’s strategies and objectives but also
oversees the Group's risk management and internal controls systems
on an ongoing basis, and to ensure that a review of the effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal controls systems has
been conducted at least annually. Such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. A defined management structure
with specified limits of authority and responsibilities is developed
for safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or disposition,
maintaining proper accounting records for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use or for publications, and complying
with applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Audit Committee plays a vital role in overseeing the risk
management and internal controls systems on behalf of the Board. The
Audit Committee reviews, on at least an annual basis, the Group'’s risk
management and internal controls systems.
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The Audit Committee, together with the Board, have performed an
annual review for the resources, staff qualification and experience,
training program and budget of the Group’s accounting, risk
management, internal audit and financial reporting functions, and
considered them to be adequate.

The Group also regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information to ensure that inside information remains confidential until
the disclosure of such information is approved, and its dissemination
effectively made. The Company understands its duties under the Listing
Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"), and adheres to
the important principle of timely publication of the inside information.

The Company has established an inside information policy to
identify, evaluate and report to the Board about any potential inside
information. The Company is required to disclose inside information
as soon as reasonably practicable in accordance with the SFO and
the Listing Rules. The Company strictly complies with the “Guidelines
on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and
Futures Commission when handling and disseminating of inside
information. The Company also strict prohibits on the unauthorized
use of confidential or inside information. The Board will determine
further escalation and appropriate handling the dissemination of inside
information.

The Group has established an organizational structure with defined
levels of responsibility and reporting procedures. Monthly business
updates are available for review by the senior management and the
Board for monitoring the Company’s financial and operating results.
The management, supported by the operations units and the internal
audit team, are responsible for formulating, implementing and
monitoring sound risk management and internal controls systems,
and reporting to the Board and the Audit Committee on the result of
risk assessment, as well as the assessment of the effectiveness of risk
management and internal controls systems.

The internal audit team has been supporting the Group’s internal
audit function. The internal audit team has conducted a review on
the effectiveness of the major aspects of the Group’s internal control
system for the year ended 31 December 2020. Such review covered
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls and it did not reveal any significant defects. The internal audit
team has reported its major findings and areas for improvement to the
Board. Relevant recommendations made by the internal audit team
have been properly followed up by the Group to further enhance its
internal controls policies, procedures and practices.
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In addition to the assessment and review of risk management and
internal controls undertaken internally, the half-yearly review and
annual audit conducted by our external auditor, aim to provide
assurance that the Group’s financial statements are prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the Group’s
accounting policies and applicable laws, rules and regulations, will also
provide to certain extent independent checks on the Group’s internal
controls system.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board has conducted
a review on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
controls systems of the Group, and considered the design and
operation of the risk management and internal controls system to be
effective and adequate in all material aspects.

Company Secretary

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Cheng Ching Kit
("Mr. Cheng”). Mr. Cheng is a manager of SWCS Corporate Services
Group (Hong Kong) Limited, a professional services provider specialising
in corporate services, and his primary corporate contact person at the
Company is Mr. Xiao Zhong, one of the Directors.

Mr. Cheng had taken no less than 15 hours of the relevant professional
training on review of the Listing Rules and other compliance
requirements during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Shareholders’ Rights

The Company encourages its shareholders to attend the general
meetings of the Company. Directors, chairman of each of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee (or
a delegated member of the Committee), chairman of the independent
board committee (if any) and management will attend annual general
meetings to answer queries about the Group’s business.

The Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting and for Putting

Forward Proposals at General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the articles of association, any one or more
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of
such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
shareholder(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the shareholder(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the shareholder(s) by the
Company.
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The above written requisition shall be addressed to the Company’s
head office at Room 3207, The Gateway Tower 6, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong.

There are no provisions in the articles of association or the Cayman
Islands Companies Law for shareholders to move new resolutions at
general meetings. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may
request the Company to convene a general meeting in accordance with
the above procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting.

The Procedures for a Shareholder to Propose a

Person for Election as a Director

Pursuant to Article 85 of the articles of association, no person other
than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended
by the Board for election, be eligible for election as a Director at any
general meeting unless a notice signed by a member (other than
the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to propose
such person for election and also a notice signed by the person to be
proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at
the head office at Room 3207, The Gateway Tower 6, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong or at the Share Registrar at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong within the seven-day period commencing the day after the
despatch of the notice of the meeting for such election (or such other
period, being a period of not less than seven days, commencing no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of such meeting
and ending no later than seven days prior to the date of such meeting,
as may be determined by the Directors from time to time).

Investors’ Relations and Communication with
Shareholders

The Company holds general meetings which offer a valuable forum
for dialogue and interaction with the management. Shareholders are
encouraged to participate in general meetings or to appoint proxies
to attend and vote at general meetings for and on their behalf if they
are unable to attend the general meetings in person. Shareholders
may also put forward their enquiries at the general meetings of the
Company. The Board members, chairmen or members of respective
Board committees, external auditor of the Company and such other
person as the Board deems appropriate shall attend the general
meetings of the Company to respond to questions addressed to the
Company.
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Shareholders, investors and members of the public may send their
enquiries about their shareholdings to the Hong Kong Share Registrar
and Transfer Office of the Company. The contact details for the Hong
Kong Share Registrar and Transfer Office are as follows:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2862 8555

Fax: (852) 2865 0990

Email: hkinfo@computershare.com.hk
Website: www.computershare.com

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to the Board in
writing. The contact details are as follows:

Sansheng Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd.
Room 3207

The Gateway Tower 6

Tsim Sha Tsui

Kowloon, Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 3580 6003
Email: ir@sansheng.hk

Constitutional Documents
For the year ended 31 December 2020, there has been no change in
the Company’s constitutional documents.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Lin Rongbin (#1&&&) (alias Lin Rongxin) (“Mr. Lin"), aged 52, is
the chairman of the Board, an executive director and the chairman of
the nomination committee of the Company and served as a director
of several subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lin is also the director of
Mega Regal Limited and Modern Times Development Limited.

Mr. Lin currently also holds the following positions in the following
companies which are not subsidiaries of the Company: executive
director and general manager of Sansheng Group Company Limited*
(=B E&EB AR AR, chairman of Sansheng Intellectual Education
Technology CO., LTD. (ZBEZH A RHERMHBR AR, a mainland
A-share listed companies, SZSE stock code: 300282), general manager
of Fuzhou Sanwei Rubber & Plastic Chemical Co., Ltd* (&N =F
1%¥8{t THR A 7)), chairman of Quanzhou Dongbai Real Estate
Development Company Limited* (RINKBEHERRZEGR A ),
chairman and general manager of Fuzhou Oriental Sunrise Golf Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd.* (BMEFEA RSB AFEHERES
fR 2 "]), chairman and general manager of Fujian Wuhe Construction
Development Company Limited* (fBZ A MZERZERGR AR,
chairman of Fujian Bo En Property Group Company Limited* (f&32
MEYMEEE BB A7), chairman and general manager of Fujian
Sansheng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.* ({22 =& EHERH
ZEHPR/AT]) and executive director and general manager of Fuzhou
Sansheng Property Co., Ltd.* (f&/N =8B ZHBR A7), in which he is
responsible for the overall strategic planning and business operations
of these companies, including land acquisition, financial management
and business development.

Mr. Lin has extensive experience in the real estate industry in the PRC.
He completed advanced business administration course in real estate
(BB EHE SR T REEMEAERE) from Tsinghua University in
2005. Mr. Lin was awarded the title of senior economist in 2006.

Mr. Lin is also a member of the 12th Fujian Province Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, the vice president
of China Real Estate Chamber of Commerce* (2HEHERS),
the vice president of Fujian Federation of Industry and Commerce
(General Chamber of Commerce)* (fRE% LEEHASL(HEET)),
the managing director of China Society for Promotion of Guangcai
Program* (Rt B2 (2IES), the honorary vice president of Fourth
Board of Directors of Fujian Society for Promotion of the Guangcai
Program* (lBREAK ZXRESENEEEE), the president
of Third Board of Director of Fuzhou City Quanzhou Chamber of
Commerce* (@M RMNELE ZfEIEES), the chairman of China
Fujian Real Estate Alliance* (7 [BR b &R E), the vice chairman of
Fujianese Entrepreneurs Culture Development Foundation* (f8#£%&
ML ERESE), honorary president of Second Board of Fujian
Province Chamber of Commerce for Privately Owned Enterprise* (55 —
[EfEiEE REMEME), and the chief supervisor of Fujian Chamber of
Commerce in Shanghai* (/EHBEES).

Ms. Cheng Xuan, an executive director and the chief executive officer
of the Company, is the spouse of Mr. Lin.

* The English translation of the Chinese name is for illustration purpose only.
Should there be any inconsistency, the Chinese name prevails.
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Ms. Cheng Xuan (f3f) ("Ms. Cheng"), aged 52, is an executive
director, the chief executive officer, and a member of the remuneration
committee of the Company. She also served as a director of several
subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Cheng currently also holds the following positions in the following
companies which are not subsidiaries of the Company: supervisor of
Sansheng Group Company Limited* (Z 2% EE AR A A]), supervisor
of Shanghai Jisheng Industrial Development Co., Ltd.* (F/&&H R EE
ERAR AR, supervisor of Fujian Sansheng Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd.* (fRE=EFHEMIEFR 2 7)), supervisor of Fuzhou
Sansheng Property Co., Ltd.* (f&8/N =B BB A 7)), director of
Chengdu Jisheng Property Co., Ltd. (5X#EBE X B 2 AR A R)), director
of Chengdu Zhonghai Investment Real Estate Co., Ltd.* (B EBFR/EIRE
EEAMRAR]), a director of Qingdao Offshore Real Estate Co., Ltd.*
(FEBB8 EEXAMRAR), a director of Fujian Province Kowloon Real
Estate Co., Ltd.* ({BEE NEFEHEBRAF]), a director of Fujian
Bo En Property Group Company Limited* ({22 AR YEEEBRE A
A]) and a director of Fuzhou Jiahuang Education Investment Co. Ltd.*
FRMIEHEREBRAT]), in which she is involving in domestic
and foreign real estate development of these companies, and other
aspects which mainly include branding strategic planning, marketing
management and cost management as well as human resources
management.

Ms. Cheng has extensive managements and operation experience
in the real estate industry in the PRC. She obtained certificates
of completion of Executive Management Program in Business
Administration of Real Estate (RihZEEE SR TEHEIE) in August
2006, Doctor of Business Administration program (L& 1218 4%
D RIERHEE) in February 2008 from The University of Hong Kong
School of Professional and Continuing Education and Fudan University,
Shanghai, and has also obtained the certificate of completion of
Advanced Modern Economics Management Course GRACATZE & 12
=RIHEIE) from Tsinghua University in July 2006. Ms. Cheng was
awarded the title of senior economist in 2007.

Ms. Cheng is a representative of All-China Women's Federation (&
Blim 2z AR KE), member of the People’s Congress of the Fujian
Province* (t87%& AAMRK), vice president of China Association of
Women Entrepreneurs* (fRZPERBE), president of Fujian
Provincial Woman Enterprisers Association* (84 L ¥ X E) and
vice president of Fujian Women Volunteers Association* (f&i2& Mg

TREE ).

Ms. Cheng is the spouse of Mr. Lin Rongbin, the Chairman of the
Board and executive director of the Company.

* The English translation of the Chinese name is for illustration purpose only.
Should there be any inconsistency, the Chinese name prevails.
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. Xiao Zhong (B ®) ("Mr. Xiao"), aged 54, is a non-executive
director of the Company.

Mr. Xiao has been appointed as deputy general manager of Fujian
Sansheng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.* ({@E2 =B EHERZES
fR 2 ")) since May 2007 and was a vice president of Sansheng Group
Company Limited* (=B %@ HBR A 7)) until December 2019. Mr. Xiao
has extensive experience in real estate investments and merger and
acquisition projects. Prior to joining the said companies, Mr. Xiao was a
practicing solicitor in the PRC.

Mr. Xiao obtained a Bachelor’'s Degree in Engineering in July
1987 and a Master’s Degree in Engineering in January 1990 from
Donghua University (formerly known as China Textile University). He
also obtained the Postgraduate Diploma in Corporate Finance and
Investment Management from the University of Hong Kong in April
2014.

Mr. Xu Jianwen (FF&I32) (“Mr. Xu"), aged 40, is a non-executive
director of the Company.

Mr. Xu is currently the chief compliance and risk officer of Dongxing
Securities (Hong Kong) Financial Holdings Limited. Mr. Xu obtained
a Bachelor’s Degree in Laws from the Sun Yat-Sen University in June
2005, and a Master's Degree of Common Law from the University of
Hong Kong in November 2007. He has extensive working experience
in the financial industry. He worked in several financial institutions,
including China Merchants Securities (HK) Co., Limited, China Securities
(International) Finance Holding Company Limited and Southwest
Securities (HK) Financial Management Limited, at which he is principally
involved in the management in the aspects of legal, compliance and
risk control.

Mr. Xu was awarded with the Legal Professional Qualification
Certificate in the PRC in February 2009.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Pan Dexiang (GBfE%¥) ("Mr. Pan”), aged 66, is an independent
non-executive director, the chairman of the remuneration committee
and a member of the audit committee and the nomination committee
of the Company.

Mr. Pan obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in economics from Xiamen
University in January 1982. From February 1982 to June 1999, he
worked initially as an officer and served several positions including the
deputy head of the planning department, the deputy president of the
Xiamen City branch, with the last position as the deputy president, at
the Fujian Branch of Agricultural Bank of China. From March 2000 to
May 2010, he acted as the president at the Fuzhou branch of China
Merchants Bank. He then acted as the chairman of the small enterprise
credit center of China Merchants Bank in May 2010.

Mr. Yuan Chun (%) (“Mr. Yuan”), aged 51, is an independent
non-executive director, the chairman of the audit committee and a
member of the nomination committee of the Company.

* The English translation of the Chinese name is for illustration purpose only.
Should there be any inconsistency, the Chinese name prevails.
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Mr. Yuan has extensive experience in equity investment, corporate  EHEANRIRIERE DERERIKERITAE
finance and investment banking. He is currently a Partner of 15 EBLE&E - % B A EESMRERE
Greenwoods Private Equity Funds. He was an executive director and H&E& 7&K A - HEEITHEREIZEER
the chief executive officer of China Development Bank International A 7] (B & Fr IR 9 K55 : 1062) 2 #1TE =
Investment Limited (Stock Exchange stock code: 1062). Mr. Yuan joined R{ITH#AH - REER —_Z—=FMWAMA
China Development Bank International Holdings Limited (“CDBIH") BERIEIR AR A A (B BEIER]) o
in April 2013. Prior to CDBIH, Mr. Yuan held various senior positions — #il A Bl G BIBR % B - RAEE R L& R
in several financial institutions. From August 2004 to July 2008, he ®BHE I ZES R  c  — T HMFENAE
worked as a director of the China marketing, global banking and Z—ZTZN\F+ A » i FHSBC Markets (Asia)
markets department at HSBC Markets (Asia) Limited. From July 2008  Limited™d Bl 4 84 « 2 BRER 1T R 15 S0 4B B o
to August 2011, he worked as the managing director, head of asset —ZTENF+AZE-_E——FN\AEHEDT
sales in China of the financial markets division at ING Bank N.V. From #ET e RmESTRHEEEAKEREE
September 2011 to March 2013, he worked as the managing director $E&FX& - _E——FNAE T —=F =
at Reorient Global Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Reorient A KT mEEKEBR A7 (MEEBEER
Group Limited (now known as Yunfeng Financial Group Limited, Stock AR (REEE s mEE AR A [ - BFR

Exchange stock code: 376). BRI :376) MEEAMBAR) NESR
KRR o
Mr. Yuan obtained a Bachelor's Degree in economics from Peking ®E4R—hh-—F+ AESILR ﬁaﬁﬁw
University in July 1992 and a Master's Degree in international finance 222+ 28 - YR — W W AE - AESHE
from Graduate School of the People’s Bank of China* (FRIARIR ARBITRITERIATNMBERE Mﬁ:tf—ih °
174817 RABTFTAN) in February 1995. He also obtained a Master of f?if‘ﬁiﬂ‘ﬁ(\‘:fg F+=-A JE12INSEAD T
Business Administration from INSEAD in December 2001. EEIRE LB -
Mr. Zhu Hongchao (534£#8) (“Mr. Zhu”), aged 61, was appointed  REBEE ([REA]) 61 R T - —
as an independent non-executive director, a member of the audit £ -A -+ - BREZEEAKRQ GBI IEHIT
committee and the remuneration committee of the Companyon 22 &%  ERXLZEEhFMEESKE -
February 2021.
Mr. Zhu is the founding partner of Shanghai United Law Firm and has k454 & /& $Efﬁ$ﬁ%ﬁﬁgjﬁ/\%/\
been its director and senior partner since 1986. Mr. Zhu has served — 3f [ — ﬂ/\/\iiﬁ T’f”ﬁc FTEMSHE
as the 3rd, 4th, 5th and 6th Vice President of the All China Lawyers B2 A o sk%c 4 L FhE &Eﬂitﬁ;%z
Association, the 6th President of the Shanghai Bar Association, anda P01 AR NXEE €& - J:/Fﬁ@ﬁm HEEN
delegate to the 13th and 14th People’s Congresses of Shanghai. Eek UREEBEMET=ZERTOEEAR
ﬁi‘%?ﬁ’%ﬁi’% °
Mr. Zhu is currently an arbitrator of the China International Economic 2k 58 4 IR BS 42 1( BREEEGHEREE
and Trade Arbitration Commission, the Shanghai International & F/SEBREEZSHHEEZEe ()8
Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission (SIETAC) and the Efh&d ) R EEHMBEE22HhHE -
Shanghai Arbitration Commission. He is also the Deputy Director of  JN¥EF E/BLBH =@/ P LA EF - L8
the Shanghai Economic and Trade Commercial Mediation Center, TAZ@RNEAESISREEFTHEK
Vice President of the Shanghai Law Society’s Litigation Law Research £ 72 Bl £ 5 3 B 209% -
Association* (_E/8T/AZEFFAEMZE) and an adjunct professor at
the law school of the East Chlna University of Political SC|ence and Law.
Mr. Zhu currently holds directorships in the following listed companies: K44 B RITR A T LT A FEFEESB AL
an independent director of Jupai Holdings Limited (NYSE stock B == — f &+t A #£# {TJupai Holdings
code: JP) since July 2015; an independent director of Leju Holdings  Limited (B4 S5 A « IP) ?’ﬁiﬁ%
Limited (NYSE stock code: LEJU) since March 2017; an independent B -—ZT—+F= BHETLEERERA
non-executive director of E-House (China) Enterprise Holdings Limited (44 5 A& 5K : LEWU) B EE E
(Stock Exchange stock code: 2048) since July 2018; an independent —N\FtARETSE (PE) DEER
non-executive director of Haitong Securities Co., Ltd. (Stock Exchange ~aE (R PTRR D RSE : 2048) B IEH,
stock code: 6837, and Shanghai Stock Exchange stock code: 600837) BT NFRNAREBEIERES
since June 2019; and an independent director of Shanghai Hysea <) a (Hﬁ’,ﬁz ﬁHx R 5% - 6837 0 &

: 600837) ﬁ_L;FﬁL 17
tARETLESSESSR
ET (2EHAF Jm%w’
AR5 - 831305) B

Industrial Communications Co., Ltd.* (F/&8F T ¥ BARMER
A 7)) (National Equities Exchange and Quotations (NEEQ) stock code:
831305) since July 2020.
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Mr. Zhu was also an independent director of Shanghai No.1 Pharmacy
Co., Ltd.* (LBE—B R HHFR A F]) (Shanghai Stock Exchange
stock code: 600833) from June 2012 to June 2018, an independent
director of Wonders Information Co., Ltd. (Shenzhen Stock Exchange
stock code: 300168) from December 2013 to October 2019 and an
independent non-executive director of Chiho Environmental Group
Limited (Stock Exchange stock code: 976) from April 2018 to February
2020.

Mr. Zhu received his bachelor’s degree in law from Fudan University
in 1983 and his master’s degree in foreign legal history from Fudan
University in July 1996. In 1993, he was qualified by the China
Securities Regulatory Commission to engage in securities law practice.

Senior Management

Ms. Cheng Xuan (723%) is our executive director and chief executive
officer. For Ms. Cheng’s biography, please see “Executive Directors”
above.

* The English translation of the Chinese name is for illustration purpose only.
Should there be any inconsistency, the Chinese name prevails.
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The Board presents their report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in property development and sales,
property investment, hotel management and construction and design
services. Particulars of the Company’s significant subsidiaries are set out
in note 15 to the audited consolidated financial statements.

Operating Results

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, and consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages
121 to 122 of this annual report.

Financial Summary

The financial summary of the Group from 2016 to 2020 is set out in
the section headed “Five-Year Group Financial Summary” on page 242
of this annual report.

Business Review

A review of the business of the Group for the year and a discussion
on the Group’s future business development, the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group and an analysis of the Group’s
performance during the year using financial key performance indicators
are provided in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages
30 to 45.

No significant event affecting the Group has taken place after 31
December 2020.

Discussions on the Group's environmental policies and performance,
relationships with key stakeholders, and compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations are set out in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” on pages 46 to 80 of this annual report.

Final Dividend

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of RMB0.20
per share for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil). The
final dividend is subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Thursday, 27 May 2021 (the “Annual General Meeting”) and the
final dividend is expected to be payable on Friday, 23 July 2021 to the
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on Wednesday, 7 July 2021.
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Dividend Policy

The Company considers stable and sustainable returns to Shareholders
to be its goal. The Board of the Company will determine the dividends
(if any) for the Company’s shares on a per share basis. The declaration
of dividends is subject to the discretion of the Directors, and the
determination as to the declaration of dividends and the amount of
dividends actually declared and paid will depend on various factors,
subject to the Company’s compliance with Cayman Islands Companies
Law, its articles of association and other relevant laws and regulations,
including:

o the Group’s general business conditions;

the Group's financial results;
o the Group's capital requirements;

o payment by the Group's subsidiaries of cash dividends to the
Company;

J the Group's future prospects;
. interests of the Shareholders; and
o any other factors which the Board may deem relevant.

Going forward, the Company will re-evaluate its dividend policy in
light of its financial position, capital requirement and the prevailing
economic climate. If any dividend is to be declared, it will be made at
the discretion of the Board as mentioned above.

Closure of Register of Members

For the purpose of determining the entitlement to attend and vote
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company to
be held on Thursday, 27 May 2021, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Monday, 24 May 2021 to Thursday, 27
May 2021, both days inclusive. During the above period, no transfer
of Shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the right to attend
and vote at the Annual General Meeting, all transfers accompanied
by the relevant share certificate(s) and transfer form(s) must be lodged
with the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and Transfer
Office, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 21 May 2021.

For the purpose of determining the entitlement to the proposed final
dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 5 July 2021 to Wednesday, 7 July 2021, both days inclusive.
During the above period, no transfer of Shares will be registered. In
order to qualify for the entitlement to the proposed final dividend, all
transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificate(s) and transfer
form(s) must be lodged with Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at the above address no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday,
2 July 2021.

B BB %

ARBARHRBE R AT HELDRTRRIER
B -ARBEZGRANERBO /ELE
BEARBOBEOERMSHORE (E) - &
BERBMEEREENIRIRE - EARAE
THEHEARE HEBEEMAAREME
ROEPDEREATIR T » EIRREEIRE AR
EREREINOBESERIURRZAA
= B

o AEEMEEXBMNRN:

o AREMPBERE:

o AEEMEERFL:

. g%ﬁ?%@ﬁll‘ﬂﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁ’ﬁﬁﬁﬁ

o AKEMARAE:
o EEM#ZE: R
s EFgUARABEBENENEMER-

ARABERGERMBRN BE2FRRE
FHEBEREENTIHRERR BERES
EREXMARNBEIRKS

EEmERMBRER
BREETEREARAENR _ZE-_—FAHA
“t+tH(EHM) BT 2EEREBEFRE
YTie FRENER  ARaBa_f=—
FRA-ZH+WB(EH)EZE-ZTE-_—FHA
“+EtR(EHM) (BiEaR2mMA) EEHE
BHhBFPELFERBRELMER - R L
HE BT eRBETMBRNBRELFE-
BEAERHERRRFASYRN S LIRE -
FrEBRFPXHERMEBERENBFRENLA
RZE-_—FRA-+—H(EHAH) TF
ME=1+2REERNAAETBSNRMDBE
BERODREAPRELFEZTLER AR - M
AEEBETERRNEBRISIHAMAP L1712
171281716 % o

AETEZEERRABREZER  AQFH
- - —F+ARB(EH—)E-_T——
F+tA+R(EHD)(BEaEMA) BTEH
ERHBPERLFE - FABTSHEBELM
BHBFERLFE - BHFASERKEEIRX
e MBERMEEXHERBBEBRER
LR AN E-—F+A-H(E8HH)
THAUR=ZTORRERLERREFLEZLE
(ER/NETR:OM b Ui |




Sansheng Holdings (Group) Co.Ltd. ] ()2 ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Directors’ Report

EFERS

Subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company'’s significant subsidiaries are set out in note
15 to the audited consolidated financial statements.

Major Suppliers and Customers

For the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue attributable to the five
largest customers of the Group accounted for less than 30% of the
Group’s revenue of the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the largest supplier of the
Group accounted for approximately 18.8% of the Group's total
purchase and the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
approximately 31.7% of the Group’s total purchase.

Directors’ and Shareholders’ Interests in

Suppliers and Customers of the Group

The Directors, their close associates and the Shareholders (who to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the issued shares of
the Company) did not have any interests in the five largest customers
and suppliers of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Property and Equipment

Details of the movements in property and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 11 to the
audited consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 29(c) to the audited
consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

Details of the Company’s reserves available for distribution to the
Shareholders, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Cayman Islands Companies Law, as at 31 December 2020, are set out
in note 29(e) to the audited consolidated financial statements.

Borrowings

Details of the borrowings of the Group are set out in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report
and note 22 to the audited consolidated financial statements.

Bonds

Details of the corporate bonds issued by the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 23 to the audited
consolidated financial statements.

Taxation

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares. If the
Shareholders are in any doubt as to the taxation implications of
purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the exercise of any
rights in relation to the Shares, they are advised to consult their tax
adviser.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s

Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any listed securities of the Company during the year ended
31 December 2020.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles of
association, or the law of Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction
in which the Company is incorporated, under which would oblige
the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

Charitable Donations
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has made
charitable and other donations amounted to RMB1.0 million.

Directors
The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the
date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Lin Rongbin (Chairman)
Ms. Cheng Xuan (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Xiao Zhong
Mr. Xu Jianwen

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Pan Dexiang

Mr. Yuan Chun

Mr. Zhu Hongchao'

Mr. Zhong Bin?

Note:

1. On 22 February 2021, Mr. Zhu Hongchao was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director.

2. On 22 February 2021, Mr. Zhong Bin resigned as an independent
non-executive Director due to his other business and personal commitments.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management
are set out in the section headed “Profiles of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

Pursuant to Article 84 of the articles of association, Mr. Lin Rongbin
and Mr. Yuan Chun will retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Pursuant to Article 83 of the articles of association, Mr. Zhu Hongchao,
being appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy on 22 February
2021, will retire and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract or letter
of appointment with the Company for an initial term of two years
commencing from the date of his/her appointment, which is renewable
automatically for successive terms of one year. Each of the service
contracts or letters of appointment may be terminated by not less than
three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Confirmation of Independence of Independent

Non-executive Directors

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
of the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

Transactions, Arrangements and Contracts of
Significance

Fuzhou Sansheng, a company beneficially owned by Mr. Lin Rongbin
and Ms. Cheng Xuan, the Directors, provided the revolving facilities
(the “Revolving Facilities”) in an aggregate principal amount of
RMB4,500,000,000 on 18 August 2017 and 28 September 2017. In
2019, the Revolving Facilities were renewed and extended two more
years to 18 August 2022 and 28 September 2022 respectively from the
original maturity dates of 18 August 2020 and 28 September 2020.

Details of the above Revolving Facilities are set out in note 26 to the
audited consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above and as disclosed under the sections headed
“Permitted Indemnity Provision” and “Connected Transactions and
Continuing Connected Transactions” in this directors’ report, there
were no transaction, arrangement and contract of significance to
which the Company, or any of its holding companies or subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or an entity
connected with a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year ended 31 December 2020
or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2020. In addition,
no contract of significance between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, and a controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries was
made.
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Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

The Group is principally engaged in property development and property
investment. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the interests of
Directors in businesses which competes or are likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the said core business of the Group which
interests would be required to be disclosed under Rule 8.10 of the
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EERBERECED

AEEFZNEMERBRYERE - RE
E_E-_TFA+_A=Z+-—HILFE E=Z
REAREER L ZOER (TmEELBEE)
RGBT RATEBNR T 2 ESTERER
MeziEmBIE LR E810KE TIAEE

Listing Rules were as follows: J( N
Name of Nature of interest Business of
Director Name of company in the company the company
EEfE QAEBR RZARHEDEzHE ZRRZER
1. Mr. Lin Fujian Wuhe Construction being a director and shareholder  Real estate
R & Development Co., Ltd.* development
BELNERERAR LA REFRKRE P 3 7 A 2%
2. Mr. Lin Yunsheng (Fujian) Real Estate being a shareholder Real estate
R & Co., Ltd.* development
ER(BB)WEBRAF IR B b 2 B
3. Mr. Lin Minhou County Headquarters Park  being a shareholder Real estate
e Real Estate Co., Ltd.* development
& ZEBEFEFR AT IR B Hb 2 7 B
4. Mr. Lin Jinan Sansheng Real Estate being a director and shareholder  Real estate
wEHE Development Co., Ltd.* development
BE=REMEREZEFR QR REFERKRE =k
5. Mr. Lin Guan County Sansheng Real Estate  being a director and shareholder  Real estate
Mo E Development Co., Ltd.* development
BZH=—RFEHERERERAQA REFERKRE P b 2 A 3%
6. Mr. Lin Huangshi Jiashunshengshi Property  being a shareholder Real estate
A& Co.,Ltd.* development
EOERRMEEER QA RIER P Hh = R 2
7. Mr. Lin Shandong Mengzhita Property being a director and shareholder  Real estate
oA Co. Ltd.* development
IWREZEEMBR A A REFENKR P b 2 7R 3%
8. Mr. Lin Jinan Jindongfang Property being a director and shareholder  Real estate
A Co.,Ltd.* development
BEERAEERRAA REFNKR 5 b 2 7R 2
9. Mr. Lin Fujian Gusheng Real Estate being a director and shareholder  Real estate
Mo HE Development Co., Ltd.* development
RETREHEREFR QA REFNKR B b EE 7R 2
10.  Mr. Lin Fuding Xinbisheng Real Estate being a shareholder Real estate
A& Development Co., Ltd.* development
BN ERFEHMEREBRAA AR P 3 E A 3%
11.  Mr. Lin Zhangzhou Weijia Real Estate being a shareholder Real estate
MR Development Co., Ltd.* development
BINTHRERMERZE AR AR AR P 3 7 B 3%
* The English translation of the Chinese name is for illustration purpose only. * B X BB R GELS (ERDZE - HEEX A IS -

Should there be any inconsistency, the Chinese name prevails.
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Name of Nature of interest Business of
Director Name of company in the company the company
ExgE QAEBR RERAHEEIME BRAZER
12.  Mr. Lin Kunshan Binsheng Real Estate being a shareholder Real estate
MR Development Co., Ltd.* development
BILWERFEWERZEERAA RRR 5 b 2 7 2
13. Mr. Lin Nanjing Beisheng Property being a shareholder Real estate
A Co.,Ltd.* development
EAREEREXBERAF RIRE P 3 7 A 2%
14.  Mr. Lin Zhangzhou Binbei Property being a shareholder Real estate
A& Co.,Ltd.* development
BMTAEILEERRAA RIRR P 3 7 B 3%
15.  Mr. Lin Zhangzhou City Wankebinjiang being a shareholder Real estate
Mo AE Property Co., Ltd.* development
BINTERBEIBXERAA RIRE P 3 7 B 2%
16.  Mr. Lin Fujian Sansheng Real Estate being a shareholder Real estate
A Development Co., Ltd.* development
BE=REHERZFR QA RIRE P 3 2 A 2%

The above companies and the Group are managed by separate and
independent management respectively. In this respect, coupled with
the diligence of the independent non-executive Directors (whose
views carry significant weight in the Board’s decisions) and the
Audit Committee, the Group is capable of carrying on its business
independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses of the
above companies.

Having considered his/its ownership of property projects in the PRC,
Mr. Lin, Modern Times Development Limited and Mega Regal Limited
(each a "Covenantor” and collectively, the “Covenantors”) entered
into a deed of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) on 1
November 2019 in favour of the Company (for the Company itself and
for the benefit of each of the members of the Group) to safeguard the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

* The English translation of the Chinese name is for illustration purpose only.
Should there be any inconsistency, the Chinese name prevails.

bR AREAEE D R M EE MBS EEE
EIR Bt MEBYIFATES (KHEE
EEgNARTRERIEE) RERZEEN
Bh AEBSAEBIN LA RARNIER
TRFHETER -

KERENTBRYEEBNERE  MEL
Modern Times Development Limited & Mega
Regal Limited (& 7%= [ Al R A [ 25k
ADUAERRR (BARBIARERBEAEERE
BERAMG) AXEAR_E—NEF+—
A—BaI S — W PEFRE ([ THRFRE]) -
NRERRNBIRBER 2 B -

* PXEBIRXFELERBE o I EINFUE
BEAPXETEIFE -
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Pursuant to the Deed of Non-Competition as mentioned above, among
other matters, when the Covenantor or any of his/its close associates
and/or companies controlled by him/it (excluding any member of the
Group) is offered or becomes aware of any auction, bidding, offer for
sale, project or new business opportunity that relates to PRC property
development business (“New Business Opportunity”), he/it shall give
the Company a first right of refusal to participate or engage in such
New Business Opportunity and using his/its best endeavours to procure
that such New Business Opportunity is offered to the Group on terms
no less favourable than the terms on which the same is offered to
him/it and or his/its close associates and/or companies controlled
by him/it. The Covenantors or any of his/its close associates and/or
companies controlled by him/it (excluding any member of the Group)
will be entitled to pursue the New Business Opportunity on terms
no more favourable than the terms offered to the Group if he/it has
received a notice from a board committee declining the New Business
Opportunity. The board committee comprising the independent
non-executive Directors will make the decision after reviewing, among
others, the particulars of the property projects, market researches and
feasibility studies prepared by investment department of the Company.

The Company has received confirmations from the Covenantors
confirming their compliance with the Deed of Non-Competition
during year of 2020. The independent non-executive Directors have
also reviewed the compliance and enforcement status of the Deed
of Non-Competition, and are of the view that the Covenantors have
abided by the undertakings contained in the Deed of Non-Competition
during the above period.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other competing business of
which a Director had an interest which is required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and operation of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered
into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Remuneration of Directors

In compliance with the Corporate Governance Code, the Company
has established the Remuneration Committee to formulate its
remuneration policies. Directors’ remuneration is subject to
Shareholders’ approval at general meetings. Other emoluments are
determined by the Board with reference to the Directors’ duties and
responsibilities, the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee
and the performance and results of the Group. No Director, or any
of their respective associates, was involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in
notes 7 and 8 to the audited consolidated financial statements.

/
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Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, every Director shall
be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against
all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto.
There is appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage
for the Directors and officers of the Group.

Equity-linked Agreement
No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Company, or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Share Options
There is no share option scheme adopted by the Company. No options
of the Company were granted or subsisted at any time during the year.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests

As at 31 December 2020, the Directors’ and the chief executive’s
interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO™)), as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

38 5 B 18 1R 3
BREBEARNBZEBERMA SREEH2
ShEE A - SR A1 T ELB R T AT B B Bak
BAERGABEZ —BRABETRARAE
ETERSHEE ARACRAEEEEZNS
DABMEBBEEENEETRSABMEEERR
ERRRE -

RS A it 29 1 B
RBE-_F-_FTE+-_A=+—BALFE
72N 36 4 7 37 78R A7 7 A 1 IR 4 £ o o

RRRxE
AR TR A RAE BB B - RERE
] b5 9 30 4 (7 A 2 R B AR MR 93 1 T A

EERRSTTRARZESR
RZE-_TF+_A=+—"H JZFEFh&H
ST ABRAR A sk BT 2 MR AR (3%
(BHELHEEN) (TEAREEIEN]) EXV
HMATATEE) Z2BGD  BERO REEFESD
BEREZR SR EEF FE35216 R F &2 8%
RABFZECMASBEREESTRBNS
RABRBRzEEmRRBEHINAT

Long position in shares of the Company KRARB2ZFE

Number of Percentage of
Name of director Nature of interest shares held issued shares

HEBRITRA

EEpR EEME BHERODHE ZADLE
Mr. Lin Rongbin Interest of controlled corporation 367,828,127 74.98%
MEB K& Rt EE R
Ms. Cheng Xuan Interest of spouse 367,828,127 74.98%
B+ flB#ER
Notes: MisE -
1. Mega Regal Limited (“Mega Regal”) is the beneficial owner of these Shares 1. Mega Regal Limited ([Mega Regal]) BiZE

and is wholly-owned by Modern Times Development Limited (“Modern
Times"), which is in turn wholly-owned by Mr. Lin Rongbin (“Mr. Lin”). By
virtue of the SFO, Mr. Lin is deemed to be interested in the same parcel of
Shares in which Mega Regal is interested in.

2. Ms. Cheng Xuan (“Ms. Cheng”) is the spouse of Mr. Lin. By virtue of the SFO,
Ms. Cheng is deemed to be interested in the same parcel of Shares in which
Mr. Lin is interested in.

3. As at 31 December 2020, the total number of Shares in issue was
490,594,000.

MEE A A » I FAModern Times Development
Limited ([ Modern Times]) 2 & # % * fiModern
TimesAIBMEBLE ([MEE]) 2EH
B-REZFHFRBAEGERN  MEEHEE AR
Mega Regal#E B m M AHR R DT AB R -

2. BExt(REZL]) AMEENRRS - - REE
FRPEGRN BRI WESRMELEHERE
S ERBRD P HEERES -

3. R-ZZE-_TF+-_F=+—8B BETRMHL
£1/4490,594,0004% °
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or which are required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Interests of Shareholders Discloseable under the
SFO

As at 31 December 2020, the following persons (other than a Director
or the chief executive of the Company) had an interest or short position
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO or notified to
the Company:

BREXHBEEEN R_E_FTF+_H
=t+—B ARAEEFRESTBRABHRE
FrAREE S RIS 5RO F35216 8 TE o 8%
MREEFZBRMARREFTLETRANE
AR R X P 2 AN B 3 H AT ] AR B B
(BB FRPE RO EXVERPT R EE) Z EM[
Bty - HERDAERENRRIXR -

BEESESRHRGHAAFIRE R
RiER

RZE-_FTF+_A=+—8" > THAL(H
BREARIEFHIEZSITHRAE) RARQF
2RO RBERDFPFEREES KRB EK
BlE336IEMELERBEF 2 B MAK
MeRARZEZIABRHIMT

Long position in shares of the Company KANARGB2HFE
Number of Percentage of
Name Nature of interest shares held issued shares
HEBRITRA
‘B E EEME BEROHE ZADL
Mega Regal BenechiaI owner 367,828,127! 74.98%
EREaA
Modern Times Interest of controlled corporation 367,828,127 74.98%
Rt EEER
DSHK Person having a security interest in Shares 234,231,775? 47.74%
REDBD RipERERTER A
Beneficial owner 17,236,625 3.51%
EREaA
DSCL Interest of controlled corporation 251,468,400° 51.26%
R % Rt EEER
China Orient Interest of controlled corporation 251,468,400° 51.26%
PEIRT Rt EEER
Springboard Beneficial owner 41,784,975% 8.52%
EREaA
Mr. Lau Interest of controlled corporation 41,784,975% 8.52%
25t RiEdEEER
Notes: MisE -
1. Mega Regal is wholly-owned by Modern Times, which is in turn wholly- 1. Mega RegalBEModern TimesZ2 & # A M

owned by Mr. Lin. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Lin and Modern Times are
deemed to be interested in the same parcel of Shares in which Mega Regal is
interested in.

2. Dongxing Securities (Hong Kong) Financial Holdings Limited (“DSHK") is the
chargee of these Shares.

3. DSHK is wholly-owned by Dongxing Securities Co., Ltd (“DSCL"), which is in
turn owned as to 52.74% by China Orient Asset Management Corporation
("China Orient”). By virtue of the SFO, DSCL and China Orient are deemed to
be interested in the same parcel of Shares in which DSHK is interested in.

Modern TimesH ML EEZEHE - RIBEFEFH

K HRE S - Mh5E & FModern Timesii 48 A& 7

Mega Reqal#E B =W MHB R R B -
2. R 5

XA

(BR) emERARARA(RER
B RZERMARLA ©

3. REEPHREZFSBRHERAR ([REFES])
2EMA  MEEFTHFN52.74% VA FEES
BETEQAR(PERES] EE - BREZFHFR
HEEH  REFLHERPERTEEAREE
EEHBRERNERBR DR HESER -
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4. Springboard Holdings Limited (“Springboard”) is wholly-owned by Mr. Lau
Luen Hung, Thomas (“Mr. Lau”). By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Lau is deemed to
be interested in the same parcel of Shares in which Springboard is interested
in.

5. As at 31 December 2020, the total number of Shares in issue was
490,594,000.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified by any
person (other than a Director or the chief executive of the Company)
who had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company as at 31 December 2020 which were recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO or notified to
the Company.

Employee Retirement Benefits
Details of the employee retirement benefits of the Group are set out in
note 5(b) to the audited consolidated financial statements.

Sufficiency of Public Float

The Company has maintained the public float as required by the Listing
Rules during the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of
this annual report.

Connected Transactions and Continuing

Connected Transactions

Connected Transactions

In order to expand the land bank and property portfolio, on 24 August
2020, Total Prestige Holdings Limited (a direct wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company) entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
Mega Regal Limited, the controlling shareholder of the Company, to
conditionally acquire the entire interest in Rosy Path Group Limited
from Mega Regal Limited for the consideration of HK$347.3 million
("the Acquisition”). The consideration was settled by way of the issue
and allotment of 49,480,000 new shares of the Company. Rosy Path
Group Limited is principally engaged in construction and development
of certain residential and commercial projects in the PRC.

On 24 August 2020, Mr. Lin and Fuzhou Sansheng, a company
indirectly owned by Mr. Lin and Ms. Cheng, entered into a loan
agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) with Fuzhou Bosheng Investment
Co., Ltd.* (f&8M1ARIZEE AR A A (“Fuzhou Bosheng”), which
has become a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company upon
completion of the Acquisition, pursuant to which Fuzhou Sansheng
agreed to provide funding to Fuzhou Bosheng and its subsidiaries
("Fuzhou Bosheng Group”) comprising (i) a RMB650 million
non-interest-bearing loan to Fuzhou Bosheng Group in return for
the Pledged Properties (as defined below) and the Share Pledge (as
defined below) provided by Fuzhou Bosheng Group as security for
loans obtained by private entities controlled by Mr. Lin from financial
institutions in the PRC; and (i) an unsecured loan to be provided by
Fuzhou Sansheng to Fuzhou Bosheng Group on normal commercial
terms in such amount necessary for the development of the real estate
properties held under Fuzhou Bosheng Group.

* The English translation of the Chinese name is for illustration purpose only.
Should there be any inconsistency, the Chinese name prevails.

4. Springboard Holdings Limited ([ Springboard])
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“Pledged Properties” refers to certain properties pledged by Fujian
Mingiao Real Estate Development Co., Ltd* ({8 RIBE M E R %
BPBRAA]) (“Fujian Mingiao”) and Yangzhou Sansheng Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd* (HBM =B EMEFZEABE AR, both a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, in relation to the due
performance of repayment obligations of banking facilities obtained by
another private entities controlled by Mr. Lin from financial institutions
in the PRC.

“Share Pledge” refers to the share pledge provided by Fujian Mingiao,
in relation to the due performance of repayment obligations of a
banking facility obtained by another private entity controlled by Mr. Lin
from a financial institution in the PRC.

The Loan Agreement will be effective from the date of completion of
the Acquisition to 31 October 2021, subject to the conditions pursuant
to the Loan Agreement.

Further details of the above transactions were disclosed in the circular
of the Company dated 25 September 2020.

The Acquisition has been completed on 24 November 2020.

Continuing Connected Transactions

On 24 April 2020, Fuzhou Jingya Decoration Engineering Co., Ltd.*
(BMESHEMTREEREMLAE]) (“Fuzhou JY”) (an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into an agreement
(the “Framework Agreement”) with Fuzhou Sansheng, pursuant to
which Fuzhou JY agreed to provide, or procure its fellow subsidiaries
to provide the design and construction services (the “Design and
Construction Services”) for certain property development projects
owned by Fuzhou Sansheng and its subsidiaries (“Fuzhou Sansheng
Group”) for a term from 24 April 2020 to 31 December 2022 (both
days inclusive).

As at 31 December 2020, Fuzhou JY is an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company and Fuzhou Sansheng is indirectly
wholly-owned by Mr. Lin and Ms. Cheng.

Mr. Lin is an executive Director and is interested in total of 367,828,127
shares through companies wholly-owned by him, representing
approximately 74.98% of the issued share capital of the Company.
Mrs. Cheng is an executive Directors and the spouse of Mr. Lin. As
such, Mr. Lin and Ms. Cheng is an associate of connected persons
of the Company and the provision of the Design and Construction
Services, the Framework Agreement between Fuzhou JY and Fuzhou
Sansheng and the transactions contemplated thereunder constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

* The English translation of the Chinese name is for illustration purpose only.
Should there be any inconsistency, the Chinese name prevails.
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The annual Caps for the transactions contemplated under the
Framework Agreement for the period from 24 April 2020 to 31
December 2020, and each of the years ending 31 December 2021 and
2022 are set out below:

For the period from
24 April 2020 to
31 December 2020

—=—
A=+— EIHJ%F'EJ&%%i_;_
—CEY A=t -HERFE $E%T§%‘*
BT #EE

—EFEUA-—tEEEC _$¢+_

Sy
TRXRGMFEELROT :

—Z”Z5F Fortheyearending Forthe year ending
AZ+MAZ 31December2021 31 December 2022
et et 223 BE-Z-—F gE-2—_C
+=BA=+-8  +=A=+t-B  +=A=+-H
A LEE LLEE
(RMB) (RMB) (RMB)
(AR¥) (AR¥) (AR¥)
For design services to be provided to 6 million 6 million 6 million
Fuzhou Sansheng Group 6B 8 6B 8 668
% AN = Bk & IRt Ti2aReT RS
For construction services to be provided to 94 million 94 million 94 million
Fuzhou Sansheng Group UHE UHE UEH

AR M = B &R B T2 5t TARTS

The annual caps for the Design and Construction Services were T 2% Jr&/j@IHEﬁXEGEF'J:BEE}QMTX
determined based on (i) the anticipated demand for the Design and TEE T : ((@IN =B EERE EL I 59 % 3%
Construction Services by Fuzhou Sansheng Group based on the current  EIE B WA & E .;I‘ ZITEE T2 R 5T M
development plan of the existing property development projects TR ENR : (VG IT2RET ki TRBEH

of Fuzhou Sansheng Group; (i) the prevailing market prices for the
relevant Design and Construction Service; and (jii) a buffer taking into
account, among others, (a) the inflation expected during the term of
the Framework Agreement; (b) the potential additional demand for the
Design and Construction Services by Fuzhou Sansheng Group during
the term of the Framework Agreement; and (c) the possibility of early
or delay in revenue recognition due to the progress of the Design and
Construction Services during the term of the Framework Agreement.

BmE s Ki) —
(HRBE) @)EZE R HWEWE’J?EHJ%LHE
(b)IEZE &
K THREHBEBINE K
HAPR N Al TA2 &R AT M b T AR 7% 2 5 i B2 AT 3¢
JEERER UL A B A BEME o

EREEE  EFCEZE

ZHRABM =R EEEH TER
R (HESR TZ%

Further details were disclosed in the announcement of the Company #—#FBENRAAFHEBHA T -_ZTFH
dated 24 April 2020. ZtTHEBENRAERHEE -
On 6 August 2019 and 22 November 2019, the Company has entered HR-_ZT—HAFNARNBER-_ZT—NLF+—A
into an agreement (the “Master Agreement”) and a supplemental :-I— “H O ARRHEZRBEMEEEAR
agreement (the “Supplemental Agreement”) respectively with Fujian A& ([8&2HE]) DRI % ([EE %
Bo En Property Group Company Limited* (BR2AB W2 EmMAERA &) k#xms ((Hawmal) Tg It B
7)) (“Fujian BE") pursuant to which Fujian BE and/or its subsidiaries 15 B,/ H W% AEREB T —hF
agreed to provide the supporting services in showrooms, including /\ANARE—T——F+-F=+—HI
customer services, sales activities assistance, visiting arrangement, (BRERMA)AAE %%E@W%Iﬁﬁ B 12
HEESERE BREEFPEMS HEED

catering services, security and order maintenance, cleaning services and

equipment maintenance, to (the “Services”) property projects owned LE;E
by the Group for a term from 6 August 2019 to 31 December 2021 &

(both days inclusive).

* The English translation of the Chinese name is for illustration purpose only. *
Should there be any inconsistency, the Chinese name prevails.

B 2BLH BRRE  ZREKF#

BERRB KRB EEE(RBD -
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BEAPXETITE -
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Mr. Lin is the controlling shareholder of Fujian BE and thus an associate
of Fujian BE. Mr Lin is an executive Director and is interested in total of
367,828,127 Shares through Mega Regal, representing approximately
74.98% of the issued share capital of the Company. Ms. Cheng is
an executive Directors and a spouse of Mr. Lin. As such, Fujian BE is a
connected person of the Company and the provision of the Services
constitute continuing connected transactions for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The annual caps for the transactions contemplated under the Master
Agreement and Supplemental Agreement for each of the year ended
31 December 2020 and the year ending 31 December 2021 are set out
below:

MAEERBRERENERKRR M REE
BEMNBEBA MELEARRTES LER
Mega Regalf B & $£367,828,127 8% % 15 #y 4
@ (WEARRDEITRAZ74.98%) ° 12X
TARTESAEAMAENE B - Al &
BERAKRRAEZBEANLT RIBHREHEK
ARARRETRAFUATR N ZHEBRER
5 AAFIERE ETRAEUATETRE
HIE °

TXHyBEEBE L EEHEE TERETH
RGPREBE_E_EF+_A=+—HEKZ=
T+ - A=+ —HIFESFNFE
EBR

For the year ended For the year ending
31 December 2020 31 December 2021

BZE BZE

—EBEF —EB=-—F

+t=H=+-—H +t=H=+-—H

tHFE tHFE

(RMB) (RMB)

(AEE) (AEE)

Original Annual Caps 37 million 39 million
REFELR 3788 3988
Revised Annual Caps 51 million 47 million
RETFE LR S51E& 4788
Further Revised Annual Caps 71 million 69 million
RE—TEIIFELR VAR 69E &

The above Original Annual Caps, Revised Annual Caps and Further
Revised Annual Caps were mainly determined based on (i) the total
property projects owned by the Group as at the dates of the Master
Agreement and Supplemental Agreement, respectively; (ii) the
estimated number of showrooms for each project; (iii) the estimated
labor required for each showroom; (iv) the estimated labor costs; (v)
the estimated growth in labor costs; and (vi) the service charge for
labor costs of 20% and the tax rate of 6%. The differences among the
Original Annual Caps, the Revised Annual Caps and the Further Revised
Annual Caps are mainly due to the increased number of property
projects which require the Services.

Further details were disclosed in the announcements of the Company
date 6 August 2019 and 22 November 2019.

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been reviewed
by independent non-executive directors of the Company. The
independent non-executive Directors confirmed that the aforesaid
continuing connected transactions were entered into (a) in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (b) either on
normal commercial terms or better; (c) in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

FRRBEFE LR KEFTFE LR REE
—HSEITFELREIZEROAEED RN
mEmELAE AR NAENYERERR
(NS EBMMGEAEREHE  (NSERE
BT TA (WERFATER  WMALE
R AR R - Rvi)ii A T & RH20%H RS
ERAN6RNHMEETE - REFELR - &E
AIFELERNREE-TETFE LR ZED
ZRNDITZANFERHRENYEERB B
EEIMATEL -

E—FHBERARAEBEA-_ZTE—ALENA
NAERZE—NF+—AZ+ZHHRER
WEE o

ERBERER 5B B AN BT ERTE
SEW B EATESER LS EME
RSB (@R KB 2 — 8% B ¥ X HBIE S
BTSE ¢ (b)1 M8 — AR Ko B (RO -
(ORBEEZZR S 2 8B 38 17 53
PHRAFARREE AR AREZ BRI -
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In addition to the transactions disclosed as above, the related party
transactions in respect of financial assistance received by the Group and
the relevant interest expense set out in notes 5(a), 22 and 26 to the
audited consolidated financial statements also constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
However, those transactions are fully exempt from shareholders’
approval, annual review and all disclosure requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules as they are (i) on normal commercial terms;
and (ii) not secured by the assets of the Group.

The Company has engaged the auditor of the Company to report on
the aforesaid continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified
letter containing the findings and conclusions in respect of the
aforesaid continuing connected transactions in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules and nothing has come to their attention
that causes them to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions: (i) have not been approved by the Board; (ii) were not,
in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Group; (iii) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing the transactions; and (iv)
have exceeded the annual cap in respect of the disclosed continuing
connected transactions.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee had reviewed together with the management
and external auditor the accounting principles and policies adopted by
the Group and the audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

Auditor

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 of
the Group have been audited by KPMG, who shall retire and, being
eligible, has offered itself for re-appointment as the auditor of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Sansheng Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd.
Chairman

Lin Rongbin

Hong Kong, 19 March 2021
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Sansheng Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sansheng
Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
("the Group”) set out on pages 121 to 241, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2020, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”)
together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the consolidated financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

H=RZER(KEH)BRLIT
BAL R R 2 B S A% BRT R
(RASFSZMALBFRLA])
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Key audit matters (continued)

Assessing the net realisable value of inventories

FEWE R FENFE

ME®s =R (|)

Refer to notes 2(b)(ii) and 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 1(n)(i).

E LB BRI F2(0)1) 817 RIE1(0)()AI R AT IR

The Key Audit Matter
HRETEE

At 31 December 2020, the Group’s inventories represented
properties under development for sale and completed
properties held for sale located in Mainland China with an
aggregate carrying amount of RMB38,318,281,000 which
accounted for 68% of the Group’s total assets as at that
date. These properties comprise residential projects located in
certain second and third tier cities in Mainland China.
RZZEZEF+-A=1+—H  EBEEENTFEEURT
BAMNFEERPYERFIELEEEXKYE - REE
#REE A ARY38,318,281,000T * {h ESEERREEN
68% ° AZEMEBIBELNPENMSE T R R=GHTaE
FIEE

These properties are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The determination of the net realisable value
involves the exercise of significant management judgement,
particularly in estimating forecast development costs and
forecast selling prices. Estimation of forecast development
costs and forecast selling prices are inherently uncertain due to
changes in market conditions and government policies.

BESMNERBITEER A - LHEMATRAERKRAR
TERIEE - ARTIRMBRIFBERANES) - FERIERKARTE
AEBAFENEEN -

For certain projects, the forecast selling prices may be adversely
impacted by the volatility of property prices in Mainland China.
METEEMES - HAIEER X EIHR B A Y E BRI )
BT AIRE -

We identified assessing the net realisable value of inventories
as a key audit matter because the inherent uncertainties
involved in assessing the net realisable value of the properties
under development for sale and completed properties held for
sale require a significant degree of management judgement
which could be subject to error or management bias.

B HE SN 2R HER R RBEREAFER - AR
EFEERTMENFHEHEEEKYENATZRFELS R
WAENEEEFEZEREBIELEEENHE - KIEMNEHRNK
EEERF

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BN ET A REZEE

Our audit procedures to assess the net realisable value of
inventories included:

HAFHE YRR SR HENEAIZF 21

evaluating the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal controls over
the preparation and monitoring of management
budgets and forecasts of construction and other
costs for each property development project;

FHER AR ER S EYERBEEENEREER -
SRR KA AR TR TTEY = E BRI - R
it BRAEE ERBRIE

conducting site visits to property development sites,
on a sample basis, discussing with site management
the progress of each project;

OB ER SRR R R - AT IR
A EIEEERE

challenging management’s development budgets for
each project with reference to signed construction
contracts;
KREZBENRESHNEREBHSHENERE
HIRHERE

challenging the forecast property selling prices as
estimated by management with reference to recently
transacted prices for similar properties or the prices
of comparable properties located in the vicinity of
each development site; and

2 Z R YR IT EAR A B S B IR B R A b ffT i
BEMENER  RREBENMGTHEIMEE
BRROER &

evaluating the sensitivity analyses prepared by
management for the key assumptions adopted in the
net realisable value estimations, including forecast
selling prices and forecast construction costs, and
considering the possibility of error or management
bias.

FHEEIR BN AT BB HE G P ERA A RS RR
RENBURRE ST - BRETARNEE RFEAIZEK
A AREREIFERSE IR ERAA AT AL o
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Key audit matters (continued)

Valuation of investment properties

BRENMENMEE

ME®Es =R (|)

Refer to notes 2(b)(i) and 10 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 1()).

B LB S T ERZMIAZ 20D R 10U RITF 1A Bt B °

The Key Audit Matter
FREETEE

As at 31 December 2020, the Group held a portfolio of
investment properties located in Hong Kong and in Mainland
China with an aggregate fair value of RMB2,389,545,000
which accounted for 4% of the Group’s total assets at that
date. The investment properties principally comprise certain
office units/workshops and a car park space in Hong Kong,
certain retail properties, offices and commercial properties in
second tier cities in Mainland China.
RZZEZEF+ZA=1+—HB  EBEEBUREERH
MR EYEEEN R T EEERARK2,389,545,000
TohE EREEREEENI% REVEFEVEES
ETHAREMN THR—EBEM - AR BE A —FHH
WETZEWE MAREERDE -

The fair values of the investment properties as at 31 December
2020 were assessed by the directors based on independent
valuations prepared by a firm of qualified external property
valuers. The determination of these fair values involves
significant judgement and estimation, particularly in relation to
selecting the appropriate valuation methodology, appropriate
market comparables and adjustment factors applied to these
market comparables.
REZEZZTF+-_A=+—ANREVEATFTEHESIR
BABERINDY R ERD TR R AV B L EE TR - B
ZEQNHESRERBONERAE MGG - BrSAMEE
EEMERE - 15 LEE B MERERREHETS -
ALBMENRAEEE -

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a
key audit matter because of the inherent risks involved in
estimating the valuations of investment properties, particularly
in light of the current economic circumstances.
HREHREMRBESRERRR - 552 E L
A - MBI REDEN L EBEGEET SRR -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BPWET AR EZEE

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of investment
properties included the following:

BAFHE R E ME A ENET R 815

obtaining and inspecting the valuation reports
prepared by the external property valuers engaged
by management and on which the directors’
assessment of the fair values of investment
properties was based;

SIS e IR R IE A MR S (B R P e
BHERE - ZMERSEEFITEREYENR
SRR

assessing the external property valuers’ qualifications,
experience and expertise in the properties being
valued and considering their objectivity;

FHESNER DR ERTAR P EE T ENERE - &
BMEEEAE - URZRBRENTEIML |

with the assistance of our internal property valuation
specialists, discussing with the external property
valuers, in a separate private session, their valuation
methodology and the key estimates and assumptions
adopted in their valuations;

B ETHMAGET RMERPIRNBYRGEER
KB T - BN R A EM RESEAESD
ERANMETERFE M RERR

challenging the key estimates and assumptions
(including market comparables and adjustment
factors) adopted in the valuations, on a sample basis,
by comparison with available market data and/or
government produced market statistics; and

AR BRI S TS 8 &SR % Stat 1E
e - SAERRANEE-FNRER (21EhS
FRThEMERFARREE) REER &

comparing tenancy information, including
committed rental and occupancy rates, provided
by the Group to the external property valuer with
underlying contracts and related documentation, on
a sample basis.

DB A LREEER - 238 SEEmINEY
ELERMREENEERS RIGEAE - ARBEE4
NABRE A -
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Information other than the consolidated
financial statements and auditor’s report

thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the

consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the

consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the

consolidated financial statements (continued)

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wong Chun Pong.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

19 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

wﬁé?ﬁﬁi

for the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi) #HE-Z-—TF+ - A=+—RHILFE AAREIIR)
2020 2019
—EEF —ET-NF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
M ARET T ARBEF T
(restated)
(&=51)
(Note 1(b))
(FF=E1(b))
Revenue A 3 8,778,600 2,337,641
Cost of sales $HE B AN (6,280,703) (1,454,241)
Gross profit EF 2,497,897 883,400
Net valuation gain on investment properties ¥ & ) % &Y {5 (B W 2= /5 58 10 48,801 47,602
Other income Hfth Uk #5 4 74,876 50,386
Selling and marketing expenses HERMSHEERX (495,583) (407,334)
Administrative expenses THHX (362,660) (225,381)
Profit from operations WERF 1,763,331 348,673
Finance costs Bl & B AN 5(a) (59,708) (32,436)
Share of profit less losses of joint ventures {5 & & (b 2% ARl & 18 (13,634) (6,428)
Profit before taxation i A g 5 1,689,989 309,809
Income tax FT5 %% 6(a) (839,061) (312,769)
Profit/(loss) for the year FRER(EE) 850,928 (2,960)
Attributable to: BN AT HEL
Equity shareholders of the Company AAERERRR 809,237 39,906
Non-controlling interests FEFE NS S 41,691 (42,866)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEREA(BE) 850,928 (2,960)
Earnings per share BEREF
Basic (RMB) ER(AREE) 9 1.65 0.08

Brat . ARHEEIOMENRRZERRBE M A5E
EEIILLRER -

Note: The Group has restated the comparative information as a result of the business
combination under common control as set out in note 1(b).

The notes on pages 129 to 241 form part of these financial statements.  §129Z2418 Z i B A Bz 2 — 25 °
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
FeRaREMZEREE

for the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi) #HZE-ZT-TF+ - A=+—HILFE CAARKESIR)

2020 2019
t et 223 —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARMET T ARBTT
(restated)
(Fe=51))
(Note 1(b))
(Ft3E1(b))
Profit/(loss) for the year FERBRA(FE) 850,928 (2,960)
Other comprehensive income for the year FRHE 2 HE WS
(after tax and reclassification adjustments): (BiEREEH I EAR) :
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to BETE I[EE R B2
profit or loss: B EHE :
Exchange differences on translation of financial 32 & /G40 % 765 B 16 2R 2% B
statements of foreign operations EEZENET 52,262 3,758
Other comprehensive income for theyear FREMEEWS = [N Rk
Total comprehensive income for the year FRE2HEWZHLEHE 903,190 798
Attributable to: BTN AL :
Equity shareholders of the Company PN/NGIE Endi 861,499 43,664
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR R = 41,691 (42,866)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEKRZHALE 903,190 798

Note: The Group has restated the comparative information as a result of the — ff37 : BRI 1(0)IE A LRIZ KA 6 - AEH
business combination under common control as set out in note 1(b). EEILEER o

The notes on pages 129 to 241 form part of these financial statements.  $129%2418 » i3I B A K ®zk 2 — &5 o
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

at 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi) A==

REMBERAR

“ZE+-A=+—HRARKIIR)

2020 2019
—ECEF —E—-NF
NO’E? RMB’000 RMB'O(J_(J
b5 AR¥T T ARET T
(restated)
(#E&E51)
(Note 1(b))
(KF3E1(0))
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties LAY 10 2,389,545 2,097,762
Other property, plant and equipment EMYE - BE LRE 11 938,787 859,599
Properties under development ERPYE 13 110,312 110,312
Prepaid lease payments ?EHTE’,E FIH 14 434,981 449,480
Interests in joint ventures A0 2 a % 16 536,591 209,442
Deferred tax assets BT IBEE 28(b) 547,132 161,314
4,957,348 3,887,909
Current assets REBEE
Inventories and other contract costs FEREME DA 17 38,318,281 25,361,722
Trade and other receivables P LSt B R e Lt R LK TR 18 5,033,465 1,891,536
Prepaid lease payments B A ERIE 14 14,499 14,499
Prepaid tax TRATHIE 28(a) 662,294 406,271
Financial assets at fair value through BRATFEFABRZ
profit or loss  EmAEE 19 85,420 46,749
Restricted deposits SRR HIfF 20 119,217 424,216
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBESEEY 21 7,385,858 1,689,327
51,619,034 29,834,320
Current liabilities REBEE
Bank loans and other borrowings SBITER R EMER 22 3,255,522 3,716,142
Bonds payable FEMES 23 931,544 676,229
Due to Fuzhou Sansheng FET RN = B 30E 26 650,000 -
Trade and other payables & 1 BR 7k N L At JiE < FRIB 24 7,133,975 6,028,862
Lease liabilities HEAE 27 3,252 6,408
Contract liabilities AaE 25 20,204,783 14,026,502
Current taxation ED HAFHIE 28(a) 1,731,768 963,273
33,910,844 25,417,416
Netcurrentassets ~________ *"&8&E®E | 17,708,190 | 4416904
Total assets less current liabilities RAERRBAR 22,665,538 | 8304813
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank loans and other borrowings RITEF M EAMER 22 13,278,836 5,571,550
Bonds payable EHES 23 459,828 323,945
Due to Fuzhou Sansheng FET RN = B 308 26 2,420,193 -
Derivative financial liabilities PTEEBARE = 14,018
Lease liabilities HEAE 27 10,727 13,743
Deferred tax liabilities REHEEE 28(b) 334,050 187,830
________________________________________________________________________________________ 16,503,634 | 6111086
NET ASSETS BEE 6,161,904 2,193,727
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FEMBRAE

at 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi)) R-ZE-_ZTF+ - A=+—H(AAREIIR)

2020 2019
—E-BE —ZT-hEF
NO’E? RMB’000 RMB'O(J_()
k3 AR¥T T ARBFIT
(restated)
(#&E75)
(Note 1(b))
(B &E1(b))
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR @B

Share capital R& 7N 29(c) 39,354 35,154
Reserves (ki 2,019,736 1,901,927

Total equity attributable to equity ARQE) RS R R A
shareholders of the Company ERBE 2,059,090 1,937,081
Non-controlling interests FEiERR R 4,102,314 256,646
TOTAL EQUITY RS 6,161,904 2,193,727

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 19 W-ZT—-—F=A+ N AREEZ S ERFE

March 2021. Tz -
Lin Rongbin #K&&E Cheng Xuan 723
Director Z % Director &%
Note: The Group has restated the comparative information as a result of the /7 : BRI EE1(0)Pr &k a0 F I 62754 6f - REE
business combination under common control as set out in note 1(b). EEYILEER -

The notes on pages 129 to 241 form part of these financial statements. 2512922418 2 i ST B A ISRz 2 —2B5 o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
SeEaEEnX

for the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi) #HEZZTZTF+-_A=+—RHIFE (UARKEIIR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

O ARERFEG G
Statutory Non-
Share Share  Capital ~ Merger  surplus  Exchange  Retained controlling
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reseve  reserve  profits Total  interests Total
EERR FER

B BREE EAGE GUER  BR EXGR RERN & R £

RVBOOD  RVBO00  RMBOOO  RWBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RVBOOO  RMBOO  RMBOXO  RVBION0
Note B0 900 N 206 290

ARE AR ARR ARR ARR ARE ARE ARE ARN AR

fr ft T+ T T T T Tt Tr
W 90 9O 900 906 2900

Balance at 1 January 2019 R=F-15-A-A
PA i
- As previous reported - BBt ER 3184 911543 18,110 80,000 29065 (51814 242989 1263077 69212 1,332,289
- Adjustments ariing from adoption  — A B3 R
of mergeraccounting (note 106) ~~ E4EHBE:
(3 1(0) - - -0 760 - (1593 TE9 (80935 690744

As restated &E B8 91543 18110 970000 36707 (51814 117026 2034756 (11723 2023033

Changes in equity for 2019 ZE-NERESE

(restated) (&&3))
Proftfoss) for the year Ergil/ (B8) - - = - s - N0 P06 (@286 (2%0)
Other comprehensive incorne el e - - - - - 3758 - 3,758 - 3758
To omprehensieinome | SEUSEE s L O 5 O O s L
lssue of shares ¥k 2 1970 204834 = = = - - 20680 - 2068
Effect on acquisition of subsidiaries W RAEFIHER A

under common control fye 29l - - 10678 (308,821) - - (50,0000 (348,143) 3121 (345,016)
Appropriation to satutory resene  AZEERE - - - - 3915 - (39150 = = =
Capitalinection from FrRERTE

non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - 308108 308108

Balance at 31 December 2019 R=ZF-AE+ZA
(restated) Zt-AzEH
(&) 35154 1116377 2878 661,179 75,857 (48,056) 67780 1937081 25,646 2193727
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
e ERE
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbl) HEZZT=_TF+-A=+—HILFE UARKETIR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KO ARERFEG G
Statutory Non-
Share Share  Capital  Merger  surplus  Exchange  Retained controlling
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reseve  reserve  profits Total  interests Total
EERR FER

BF BRERE EAGE GUER 0 BR EXGR RERN 0 & R&  f8a

RVBOOD  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RWBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RVBOOO  RMBODO  RMBOXO  RVBION0
Note B0 2900 0N 2906 290

ARE AR ARR ARR ARR ARE ARE ARE ARN ARR

fr ft T T T T T Tt T
B 90 90 9d0 906 2900

Balance at 1 January 2020 R-B-BE-8-R2
&5
- As previous reported - HNBEER 35,154 1,116,377 28788 (258821) 65200  (43056) 226017 1164749 341919 1,506,668
- Adjustments arsing from adoption  — AK€t RIE
of mergeraccounting (note 106) ~~ EfEHBE:
(Bs1(0)) - - - 920,000 10,567 - (158235 T332 (85273) 687,059

As restated 85 B4 116377 28788 661179 7587 (430%6) 67782 1937081 256646 2193727

Changes in equity for 2020; “ECRERGEE:

Profit for the year E@ia] - - - - - - 809237 809237 41891 850,928
Other comprehensive income E 2 - - - - - 50 - 50 - 58
Total comprehensive income 2 EREHE = - - - - 560 8937 861499 41691 903,190
Issue of shares IR0 2 4200 290663 = = = = - U883 - 29883
Capitalinection from non-controling EEESH3FE R iER T4

interests in reorganisation - - 6,224 - - - - 6,224 1579 7803
Effect on acquisition of subsidiaries Wi 225

under common control HEAARZE 290l - - - (1,040577) = = - (1,040577) - (1,040577)
Appropriation to statutory reserve  AZE TR - - - - 68906 - (68.906) - - -
Capital injection from non-controlling  3:#2 R R 24

nterests - - - - - - - - 3802898 3802898

Balanceat31December 2020  R-EF-3f
tZR=t-AekR 39354 1,407,040 3012 (379398) 144763 4206 808113 2059090 4102814 6161904

Note: The Group has restated the comparative information as a result of the — f#37 :  BAKE1()ETE K LRIEHIZEA 6F - AEH
business combination under common control as set out in note 1(b). BEH L EER o

The notes on pages 129 to 241 form part of these financial statements.  $#129% 2418 2 i3I B A K wzk 2 — 55 o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

*T = Iﬂﬁlllbs

for the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi) #HEZZTZTF+-_A=+—RHIFE (UARKEIIR)
2020 2019
—ECoEE —T-NF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M 5 ARET T ARBTT
(restated)
(geE75)
(Note 1(b))
(FFEE1(0)
Operating activities RETH
Cash (used in)/generated from BEER(FTA),/ FREEE
operations (5,177,514) 1,481,971
Tax paid B (350,341) (442,159)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BESEE (FTA) B8R $
operating activities R 21(b) (5,527,855) 1,039,812
Investing activities REEE
Expenditure on property, plant and WE - BEMRENHTH
equipment (133,568) (141,634)
Expenditure on investment properties WEYHER S (190,848) -
Disposal of property, plant and equipment  HEWE - KRE L& E 505 2,889
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BEZAFEFABELZ
through profit or loss TRUEE (44,317) (3,464)
Withdrawal of financial assets at fair value REURAFEFAEBZZ
through profit or loss ﬁﬁﬂﬁ? 5,646 60,223
Investments in joint ventures REETENERE (444,746) (73,302)
Settlement of shareholder’s loans to joint /.:l\ EEENRRER
ventures 90,329 133,353
Payment for acquisition of subsidiaries, net of U & Kf B 2~ =11 &
cash acquired (BHBRENER ) 15(b) (586,576) (95,764)
Interest received B R & 9,832 7,036
Dividend received 2R E - 147
Net cash used in investing activities REZTBHMARSER (1,293,743) (110,516)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

wﬁ%iﬁ.ﬁi}ﬁ‘ii

for the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi) #ZE—

“EE+ A=+ HLEFECAARKIIR)

2020 2019
—ECoEE —T-NEF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®T AR®ET T
(restated)
(geE)
(Note 1(b))
(FFEE1(0)
Financing activities il SE B
Capital element of lease rentals paid EHANES 2 EALSD 21(0) (6,172) (5,668)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BENEOEE 2 FEEBD 21(c) (1,416) (1,134)
Proceeds from bank loans and other IRITERREAMER
borrowings Fr5 3k I8 21(0) 15,035,093 10,087,258
Repayment of bank loans and other B RITE R R LA IE R
borrowings 21(c) (7,788,427) (9,587,386)
Proceeds from Fuzhou Sansheng EJH:EWM% IR 21(c) 3,284,508 8,493,035
Repayment to Fuzhou Sansheng EBEEMN=5% 21(0) (1,068,492) (9,208,788)
Proceeds from bonds issue BITEHE A 21(c) 459,828 323,167
Repayment of bonds 1“‘ 2 &5 21(c) = (243,384)
Capital injection from controlling shareholder &A% &R+ & - 30,000
Capital injection from non-controlling interests FE# f #E 75 £ & 3,810,701 308,108
Interest paid ERFE 21(c) (1,206,669) (1,016,330)
Dividend paid to controlling shareholders of B FEFZRE G R A A
Time Fortune Investments Limited = B A% R A AR B - (50,000)
Net cash generated from/(used in) MEZTBHME (A RS
from financing activities B 12,518,954 (871,122)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents BE£RREZEY
EnFEE 5,697,356 58,174
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—HZR&£R
Re%EY 21 1,689,327 1,631,717
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EREE & (825) (564)
Cash and cash equivalents at R+=ZA=+—-H=z
31 December BHERESEEY 21 7,385,858 1,689,327

B (DA B S RIS TR 0 - ARE
EEIIHLBRER -

Note: The Group has restated the comparative information as a result of the 777 -
business combination under common control as set out in note 1(b).

F1292241 B 2B AT ITHRER 2 — 35 °

The notes on pages 129 to 241 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i & M35 83 R0

(BRIEREHRA - BABHAAREFITR)

Significant accounting policies and basis of
presentation

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 1(d) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current
accounting period reflected in these financial statements.

Merger accounting and restatements

On 24 August 2020, Total Prestige Holdings Limited
(“Total Prestige”), a direct wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a sale and purchase agreement
to conditionally acquire the entire issued share capital of
Rosy Path Group Limited (“Rosy Path”) from Mega Regal
Limited (“Mega Regal”), which is controlled by Mr. Lin
Rongbin, for a consideration of HK$347,349,600. Upon
the completion of the transaction on 24 November 2020,
49,480,000 new shares have been allotted and issued as
fully paid to Mega Regal at the issue price of HK$7.02 per
consideration share.

Rosy Path was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(“BVI") on 15 May 2020. Prior to its incorporation, the
business was conducted through certain domestic project
companies established in the PRC which are indirectly
controlled by Mr. Lin Rongbin. To facilitate the proposed
acquisition mentioned as above, Rosy Path and the project
companies underwent a reorganisation. Upon completion
of the reorganisation on 30 September 2020, Rosy Path
became the holding company of the group acquired by the
Group.

1

FEEMHRRERESE

(a)

(b)

BREH

W EMBHREDRIBEAABEREE
FHEREEDN ((FEHBHRE L
ANmE EPEREESHMA
e([BEStM g ) B MAE
R ER EF BB wE R - FE
S ER ((FESFER]) k2
B AEARGHRAUNURBTER
ARG 2 WERTE o WEM B IMK
NNEEBERHARIMBERA
AREF E AR R Z BB R
AEBERAZETBZEFTHERTX
WE -

FEEMASCRNE TEEY
BWEEAEIT A  ZFLERRAE

SRS IR AR A AR
PR - M EE D RZ ST
MR 27 BAEEE A&t
BMAMNBENR  FHERAZSE
HEMEBHSFTHRREAEENE
£t o

eHETTEERERES
R-ZE-_FTFNA-_+WH AR
ANEEZENB AR Z2RIERE
RAal([2BDIVEEHE B
16 5 1) R PR 88 08 ST A 1 Il fIMega
Regal Limited ([Mega Regall) Y&
BREEEFRAR ([EE]) R
BT - R E R347,349,600
BT - RPEBEER - _TF+—
A=+ A TK%E - 49,480,0008%
BEBRFFTROHEREEESRN
BN 1D7.02/8 T id 3 K 21T TMega
Regal °

BEaR _E_TFRAT+HHEAER
BREZES((RBERLHS]) EM
RS o REEMR AL AT @ 3B B F A
MY zHETEANBEERR (ZERQ
A B AR EE B S A ) B R
275 AR L gl EEE
BENERHARDETEHE N
T-TFNA=FTHEREME
BRI ABAEERE ZIERAF -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& M5 R EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FRIERERE - BRIHUAAREFIR)

FESTBRRRERELEE)

(b) EHfEFEEFERES (&)

1 Significant accounting policies and basis of 1

presentation (continued)
(b) Merger accounting and restatements (continued)

Prior to and after the reorganisation and the acquisition,
Rosy Path and its subsidiaries (collectively, “Rosy Path
Group”) and the Company were all under the common
control of Mr. Lin Rongbin. The control is not transitory
and, consequently, there was a continuation of risks
and benefits to Mr. Lin Rongbin. Accordingly, the
reorganisation and acquisition is treated as a combination
of businesses under common control, and Accounting
Guideline 5 (“AG5"), Merger Accounting for Common
Control Combinations, issued by HKICPA has been applied.
The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been therefore prepared using the merger basis of
accounting as if the current group structure had been in
existence throughout the periods presented. The net assets
of the companies comprising the Rosy Path Group have
been consolidated using the existing book values from the
perspective of Mr. Lin Rongbin.

Comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the entities or businesses
had been combined at the beginning of the comparative
period unless the combining entities or businesses first
came under common control at a later date.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income include the results of combining
entities or businesses from the earliest date presented or
since the date when the combining entities or businesses
first came under the common control, where this is a
shorter period, regardless of the date of the common
control combination. The consolidated statement of profit
or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income also take into account the
profit or loss attributable to the non-controlling interest
recorded in the consolidated financial statements of the
controlling party. The effects of all transactions between
the combining entities or businesses, whether occurring
before or after the common combination, are eliminated.

A uniform set of accounting policies is adopted when
preparing the consolidated financial statements.

REMARGBEEANE Bl
MIE AR (Gh [ BEEE]) RAR
A AR ERIE ST A SR 12 o B R
23 IR E By - EMRESE ST A R
ZRBMNEEETRE Bt &
A R =R AR A RIERI T 2
XBav BCERATEGHEIA
2 E M R & 5t 1 5| 59 ([& 5T
3B )) [RAIZEH & HAEHE
FHEEFE| o B - NREBENERE M
BHREACDERGHEHTEERR
BB AR ERERNERZ5H]
BM—EFE RENKBELEEZA
B BEKEETARZEERE
RARBREEETHEAAR -

BRIFR G ERBRELEENRIKA
MR B K EER] - B R4RA B 5
RZUBSHEBHENMEBIELD
REBHAMIE G271

REF2INAHPKBEHERIE
BEEZBARZESE B E (BHE
REERE)  AHBERIEBEN
XEet AR BRRARKEE
mMEMEERER M wmEE
2| A0 A o RA B R IARER
SRz NMEMEmER I KAC
SRIOE B T3 AR A B IS R B0 R IR A
R EHIRE - BRI KR A OF AT
g EEHERBIEBL ZHD
ReHMTEATHE -

NG ANBERBERA—E
i OB ER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fRE M BEIRERMEE
(BRIERBHP - BRIHAAREBIITR)
FESHBRREREE (E)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Significant accounting policies and basis of 1
presentation (continued)

(b) Merger accounting and restatements (continued) (b) EHESTEELERES (F)
The effects of the application of merger accounting on the HEEZ—_T—NF+=-_A=+—H
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended I FENGAERRERAHET
31 December 2019 are as follows: BRIEF AN EMT

For the
year ended Adjustments For the
31 December for the year ended
2019 combination 31 December
as previously using merger 2019
reported accounting as restated
BZE Bz
—E-hEF mER —E-hF
+=ZA=+-—-H aftes% +=HA=+-AH
IEFE BEREEH EFEE
(qn 5% AT 2 3R) fEH AR (EF)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFIT AREFIT AREF T
Revenue WA 2,046,280 291,361 2,337,641
Cost of sales $HE R AR (1,295,570) (158,671) (1,454,241)
Gross profit ER 750,710 132,690 883,400
Net valuation gain on BEVERHERR
investment property JFEE 19,622 27,980 47,602
Other income Hfth a5 45,162 5,224 50,386
Selling and marketing expenses HERTREERY (328,118) (79,216) (407,334)
Administrative expenses B> (158,367) (67,014) (225,381)
Profit from operations T 329,009 19,664 348,673
Finance costs BMEMNA (11,097) (21,339) (32,436)
Share of profit less losses ElEE SRR
of joint ventures EE (6,428) = (6,428)
Profit before taxation BEEA 311,484 (1,675) 309,809
Income tax PASHL (280,759) (32,010) (312,769)
Profit/(loss) for the year FERER(EE) 30,725 (33,685) (2,960)
Attributable to: BT AL :
Equity shareholders of the Company 782 &)1 25 A% 3R 69,253 (29,347) 39,906
Non-controlling interests JEFE R RS (38,528) (4,338) (42,866)
Profit/(loss) for the year FERERN(EE) 30,725 (33,685) (2,960)
Earnings per share BREF
Basic (RMB) ER(ARK) 0.16 0.08
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& M5 R EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEREHRA - BABHAAREFIR)

1 Significant accounting policiesand basisof 1 FESBFERERELE(E)
presentation (continued)

(b) Merger accounting and restatements (continued) (b) EHESTEELERES (F)
The effects of the application of merger accounting on HEE-_ZE-hE+-_A=+—8
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other ItFEENGEEBRmREMEEKE
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December RERAHEARIEHEINTEN
2019 are as follows: T:

For the
year ended Adjustments For the
31 December for the year ended
2019 combination 31 December
as previously using merger 2019
reported accounting as restated
8z BZE
—E-h& MEA —E-hE
+t=A=+-8H &ffg8% +=ZA=+-H
LEE BEFLE B LEE
(tn %71 2 3R) fEHMAZ (& 5l)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBFTT ARBFTT
Other comprehensive income  FREM2EKE
for the year (after tax and (BERBEHFIE
reclassification adjustments): ) .
ltem that may be reclassified BEERAEENIESR
subsequently to profit or loss: BRZIER :
Exchange differences on translation  #& /% )3 7% B 15 Kk s
of financial statements of foreign ~ E4 Z[E X =58
operations 3,758 - 3,758
Other comprehensive income  FREM2EKE
for the year 3,758 - 3,758
Total comprehensive income FRAZEHKREHEE
for the year 34,483 (33,685) 798
Attributable to: BT ALER:
Equity shareholders of the Company 7N B4 25 A% 3 73,011 (29,347) 43,664
Non-controlling interests IR (38,528) (4,338) (42,866)
Total comprehensive income FR2EKBAE
for the year 34,483 (33,685) 798
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presentation (continued)
Merger accounting and restatements (continued) (b)
The effect of the application of merger accounting on the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 1 January

(b)

i & M35 83 R0

(BRIERERA -

TR AREFR)
FEE

AFER R mE B ()

SHEFTRERERES (&)
HR T NFE—A—BNEEY

BRRKRERA G EETRET AN

2019 are as follows: SENT -
As at Adjustments
1 January for the As at
2019 combination 1 January
as previously using merger 2019
reported accounting as restated
e
RZZE-I& aftEst RZZB-I&E
=[F=[8 BEREEH —HA—H
(fn %Al 2 3R) fEH AR (E5)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT ARET T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties RE 716,067 1,305,333 2,021,400
Other property, plant and Hitmz - BEREE
equipment 472,147 280,196 752,343
Properties under development R 110,312 = 110,312
Prepaid lease payments BNEERE 463,979 = 463,979
Interests in joint ventures A= %ﬁ%m&m 275,921 — 275,921
Deferred tax assets ﬁi%ﬁlﬁ BE 60,921 6,040 66,961
2,099,347 1,591,569 3,690,916
Current assets REEE
Inventories and other contract costs & K& H fth & A5 A& 15,199,834 3,785,580 18,985,414
Trade and other receivables JE LS BR % % L A R LK
E | 882,567 1,202,532 2,085,099
Prepaid lease payments BNEERE 14,499 = 14,499
Prepaid tax B R IE 103,889 7,422 111,311
Financial assets at fair value BRAFEFABRZZ
through profit or loss TREE 67,959 26,000 93,959
Restricted deposits ZR TR 202,230 11,730 213,960
Cash and cash equivalents HERREEEY 540,524 1,091,193 1,631,717
17,011,502 6,124,457 23,135,959
Current liabilities REAE
Bank loans and other borrowings fEﬁETA&E‘rHJ%%’K 3,288,141 1,763,890 5,052,031
Trade and other payables JRE {1 BR 3% B L b JE A
A 5,040,329 768,438 5,808,767
Lease liabilities HEGE - 487 487
Contract liabilities ERBE 3,752,863 3,057,422 6,810,285
Current taxation ENERRY IR 525,354 94,973 620,327
12,606,687 5,685,210 18,291,897
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& M5 R EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FRIEB BB * B RIHUAAREZIR)

FESEMHRRRERESEE)

(b) EHEFEEBFERES (&)

1 Significant accounting policies and basis of 1

presentation (continued)
(b) Merger accounting and restatements (continued)

As at Adjustments
1 January for the As at
2019 combination 1 January
as previously using merger 2019
reported accounting as restated
6 A
iy 3 &t R=B-h&
== BEFEEH =f=[E
(05 Al 2 5) EHNAR (=E5)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBFTT ARBF T
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank loans and other borrowings #8717 & 5 & H 2% 2,453,989 1,281,800 3,735,789
Bond payable ENES 894,078 = 894,078
Derivative financial liabilities TEeBERE 18,660 = 18,660
Due to Fuzhou Sansheng PR M = B FE 1,701,092 = 1,701,092
Lease liabilities HEAE = 11,277 11,277
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIEEE 104,054 46,995 151,049
5,171,873 1,340,072 6,511,945
NET ASSETS FEE 1,332,289 690,744 2,023,033
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EX K%
Share capital & < 33,184 - 33,184
Reserves G 1,229,893 771,679 2,001,572
Total equity attributable RAFREERREN
to equity shareholders EEERE
of the Company 1,263,077 771,679 2,034,756
Non-controlling interests RS 69,212 (80,935) (11,723)
TOTAL EQUITY MR 1,332,289 690,744 2,023,033
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i & M35 83 R0

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEREHRA - BABHAAREFITR)

1 Significant accounting policies and basis of 1 FESHBRERERIERELE(\)
presentation (continued)

(b) Merger accounting and restatements (continued) (b) EHESTEELERES (F)
The effect of the application of merger accounting on HR-_ZE—hWhF+_A=+—HH
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 SEEMBAARERAHETERIE
December 2019 are as follows: TERNRENT ¢

As at Adjustments
31 December for the As at
2019 combination 31 December
as previously using merger 2019
reported accounting as restated
e
R-ZE—-REF aftEst R-ZE-NIF
+=A=+-H BREREEH +=A=+-—H
(fn %Al 2 3R) fEH AR (E5)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETTT ARET T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties RE 759,008 1,338,754 2,097,762
Other property, plant and Hitmz - BEREE
equipment 504,910 354,689 859,599
Properties under development R 110,312 = 110,312
Prepaid lease payments BNEERE 449,480 = 449,480
Interests in joint ventures NEEPERNREZ 209,442 — 209,442
Deferred tax assets BT IBE = 153,834 7,480 161,314
2,186,986 1,700,923 3,887,909
Current assets REBEE
Inventories and other contract costs 7 & &k Hth & AR A 18,280,060 7,081,662 25,361,722
Trade and other receivables JFEUTBR TR I H B IR
A 1,373,026 518,510 1,891,536
Prepaid lease payments BRNEENRIE 14,499 = 14,499
Prepaid tax FRBIE 377,233 29,038 406,271
Financial assets at fair value through R A (Bt AB2 2
profit or loss TREE 26,749 20,000 46,749
Restricted deposits X BB 77 409,039 15,177 424216
Cash and cash equivalents HERRESEEY 809,035 880,292 1,689,327
21,289,641 8,544,679 29,834,320
Current liabilities REAE
Bank loans and other borrowings #8717 & & B &% 3,385,442 330,700 3,716,142
Bonds payable R ES 676,229 = 676,229
Trade and other payables FESBR 30 e EL b e £
£ gre) 3,981,825 2,047,037 6,028,862
Lease liabilities HEEE 3,839 2,569 6,408
Contract liabilities EHEE 8,381,797 5,644,705 14,026,502
Current taxation BEATR I8 816,559 146,714 963,273
17,245,691 8,171,725 25,417,416




Sansheng Holdings (Group) Co.Ltd. ] 36 ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& M5 R EE

(BRIESBHE - FAEUARBIIR)
FEEMBRRREREE W)

(b) EHEFEEBFERES (&)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Significant accounting policies and basis of 1

presentation (continued)
(b) Merger accounting and restatements (continued)

As at Adjustments
31 December for the As at
2019 combination 31 December
as previously using merger 2019
reported accounting as restated
mER
R-ZE-h&F aotgt R-ZE-NF
+=-ZA=+-—H BERFLEH +=A=1+-—-H
(N %Al 2 ) fEH AR (RE5)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETFT ARET T
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Bank loans and other borrowings #8717 & 5 & H 2% 4,249,250 1,322,300 5,571,550
Bonds payable ENES 323,945 = 323,945
Derivative financial liabilities TESRARE 14,018 = 14,018
Lease liabilities HEBE 3,851 9,892 13,743
Deferred tax liabilities BEEREEE 133,204 54,626 187,830
4,724,268 1,386,818 6,111,086
NET ASSETS FEE 1,506,668 687,059 2,193,727
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARRHE
Share capital AR 35,154 - 35,154
Reserves e 1,129,595 772,332 1,901,927
Total equity attributable AATERRREN
to equity shareholders REEAE
of the Company 1,164,749 772,332 1,937,081
Non-controlling interests RS 341,919 (85,273) 256,646
TOTAL EQUITY MmpES 1,506,668 687,059 2,193,727
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i & M35 83 R0

(BRIESBHE  FAEUARBIIR)
FEFHRRRIREEE (W)

EHETERAERES ()
HEE_Z—NF+-_A=+—H
tFENGEARERERERE G
SEHEE S ANFERMIT

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Significant accounting policies and basis of 1
presentation (continued)
(b) Merger accounting and restatements (continued) (b)
The effects of the application of merger accounting on the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended
31 December 2019 are summarised below:

For the
year ended Adjustments For the
31 December for the year ended
2019 combination 31 December
as previously using merger 2019
reported accounting as restated
BZE BZE
—E-hEF e —E-hF
+=-B=+-H aftgsr +=A=+-H
ILEE BEFEEH EEE
(IMER2],) fEH AR (&%)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARETTT ARET T
Operating activities REER
Profit before taxation 5 A A 311,484 (1,675) 309,809
Adjustments for: KAEH LA T 3%
Depreciation and amortisation e R#H 42,454 15,804 58,258
Fair value changes on listed equity ~ FHRAZE S 2 AFE
securities o (8,545) - (8,545)
Interest income on bank deposits 81T Z A 2 A (3,977) (3,059) (7,036)
Dividend income from financial BRAFEFABRZZ
assets at fair value through TREEZREKA
profit or loss (147) - (147)
Share of profit less losses of joint ~ FE{H & &1 2 % TR
ventures BB 6,428 = 6,428
Fair value changes on derivative fTTESRMIAZATE
financial instruments o 9 - 9
Net valuation gain on investment & W% 7 fh{EU S
properties HEE (19,622) (27,980) (47,602)
Unrealised exchange loss REHE HEE 6,170 - 6,170
Finance costs BE AR 11,097 21,339 32,436
Changes in working capital: LEEGEH
Increase in restricted bank deposits =R &R 1T 1E L AN (206,808) (3,447) (210,255)
Increase in inventories and other FENEMAEAHKAR
contract costs 30 (2,197,477) (3,215,480) (5,412,957)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and JE UG BR 2 2 H A e U
other receivables IE L)/ m (451,992) 798,719 346,727
Increase in contract liabilities AHBEEM 4,587,378 2,587,283 7,174,661
Decrease in trade JRE 1F BR 70 e L b £
and other payables HIERD (1,040,858) 274,873 (765,985)
Cash generated from operations REXKRERS 1,035,594 446,377 1,481,971
Tax paid B (331,768) (110,391) (442,159)
Net cash generated from RETHMBRETHE
operating activities 703,826 335,986 1,039,812
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& M5 R EE

(BRIEREHRA - BABHAAREFIR)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Significant accounting policiesand basisof 1 FEEHBRREHEEE)
presentation (continued)
(b) Merger accounting and restatements (continued) (b) EHESTEELERES (F)
For the
year ended Adjustments For the
31 December for the year ended
2019 combination 31 December
as previously using merger 2019
repoged accounting as restated
=% ﬁ$ B =% ﬁ¢
+t=ZA= + affgst +T=ZA=1-—
fﬁ BERLEH gtﬁlﬁ
(R 2 ) EHNRZ (RE50)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT AREFT AREEF T
Investing activities RETH
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE  BER&ME
equipment (51,308) (90,326) (141,634)
Disposal of property, plant and HEWE  BEMERE
equipment 2,860 29 2,889
Purchase of financial assets at fair BEL AL EFABRZ
value through profit or loss SREE (3,464) = (3,464)
Withdrawal of financial assets at fair ~ $2EUZ A F(EF ABZZ
value through profit or loss EREE 54,223 6,000 60,223
Investments in joint ventures REEENTE (73,302) (73,302)
Settlement of shareholder's loansto IR &P ELENBRER
joint ventures 133,353 - 133,353
Payment for acquisition of subsidiaries, 4 BT /& A Al 4 7% (230
net of cash acquired BRUEERMIRE) (95,764) = (95,764)
Interest received 2 U H & 3,977 3,059 7,036
Dividend received B E 147 - 147
Net cash used in investing activites ~ REEE AR S FE (29,278) (81,238) (110,516)
Financing activities MEEE
Capital element of lease rentals paid 2 4% 2 EAZHH (4,283) (1,385) (5,668)
Interest element of lease rentals paid EAOES 2 FIBHS (875) (259) (1,134)
Proceeds from bank loans and other  $R77 & 7 2 E b (& 2 15
borrowings ) 9,218,558 868,700 10,087,258
Repayment of bank loans and other 1E;§§E17féf§£&/ﬁﬁﬂ =
borrowings (7,325,996) (2,261,390) (9,587,386)
Proceeds from Fuzhou Sansheng BM= RS FIE 6,002,969 2,490,066 8,493,035
Repayment to Fuzhou Sansheng EEBN :’55Z (7,753,815) (1,454,973) (9,208,788)
Proceeds from bonds issue BITEAFFTSRIE 323,167 - 323,167
Repayment of bonds EEES (243,384) - (243,384)
Capital injections from controlling IR E
shareholders - 30,000 30,000
Capital injection from non-controlling  FEIEAZHE 25+ &
interests 308,108 - 308,108
Interest paid EAFE (879,922) (136,408) (1,016,330)
Dividend paid to controlling ENFEERERRAR
shareholders of Time Fortune IR R AR B
Investments Limited (50,000) - (50,000)
Net cash used in financing MEZETAREFE
activities (405,473) (465,649) (871,122)
Net increase in cash and BeRASEEYEM
cash equivalents = 269,075 (210,901) 58,174
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—BZEER
at 1 January ReLZEY 540,524 1,091,193 1,631,717
Effect of foreign exchange Exgnse
rate changes (564) - (564)
Cash and cash equivalents Rt+-A=+—HZHE
at 31 December RREEEY 809,035 880,292 1,689,327
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i & M35 83 R0

(BRIEREHRA - BABHAAREFITR)

Significant accounting policies and basis of
presentation (continued)

()

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020 comprise the Company, its subsidiaries
and its joint operation (together referred to as the “Group”)
and the Group's interest in joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
the following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair
value as explained in the accounting policies set out below:

- investment properties, including interests in leasehold
land and buildings held as investment property
where the Group is the registered owner of the
property interest (see note 1()));

- financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (see
note 1(h)); and

- derivative financial instruments (see note 1(i)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 2.

1

FESEMBRRRERELEE)

(9]

MEmRENEE
HE-_Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—HL
FEZEEMBREREARAAT -
HMB AR REEERLEER (5
BIANEER]) RAEEREERE
HyfERS ©

REI MR ARG EELERES
A - MR TR XX R R AT At
BATEIIRZEERARBRI

- REVX(BRESLMER
RAKERMFERDELHE
BAREREMENET) (R
BEEETG)) -

- BAFEAABRZSZERE
2= (RN « &

- {THEemIAE(RME0) -

RENABAVBREER 287
BRAKEREEFLTERRER
UREE AR - KRARFXZ2®R
TR HE - R R o fhEt R
MR R RREBEERXNE IS
MIEBEEZLZHEMERE
H HERKREEAKEL SR
CABSNMEERABE REER
1EH H i 2 iR - BERAERA 8
BN ZFGET -

RE B BB PR AT M ARRE AR
TEHER] - Bt fhat 2 BRI R
EEH AEBSEIHERE
HIHERR - M EFHART BRI EE
HIR R R ERRE - RIBRERT N E
KRR ERFR HERR,

EREEEAERATEMBREE
BT EH B MRAEARE
ZHE AR AAREERGEZER
HORT M 25 7 ©
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& M5 R EE

Significant accounting policies and basis of 1

presentation (continued)
(d)

Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied Amendment to HKFRS 16,
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions, issued by the HKICPA
to these financial statements for the current accounting
period and early adopted Amendments to HKFRS 3,
Definition of a Business, issued by the HKICPA to these
financial statements at 1 January 2019.

Other than the amendment to HKFRS 16, the Group has
not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not
yet effective for the current accounting period. Impacts of
the adoption of the amended HKFRSs are discussed below:

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify the definition of a business and
provide further guidance on how to determine whether a
transaction represents a business combination. In addition,

the amendments introduce an optiona

|u

concentration

test” that permits a simplified assessment of whether an
acquired set of activities and assets is an asset rather than
business acquisition, when substantially all of the fair value
of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single
identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable assets.

These amendments are mandatory for transactions
occurring in annual reporting period beginning on or
after 1 January 2020 and earlier application is permitted.
These amendments are expected to primarily impact the
accounting by the Group for acquisitions of property
projects in particular whether they should be treated as
business acquisitions. The Group has early adopted these
amendments, prospectively to transactions for which
the acquisition date is on or after 1 January 2019, and
concluded that the adoption of them does not have a
significant impact on these financial statements.

Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-Related Rent

Concessions

The amendment provides a practical expedient
that allows a lessee to by-pass the need to evaluate
whether certain qualifying rent concessions occurring
as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
("COVID-19-related rent concessions”) are lease
modifications and, instead, account for those rent
concessions as if they were not lease modifications.

The Group has elected to early adopt the amendments
and applies the practical expedient to all qualifying
COVID-19-related rent concessions granted to the Group
during the year. Consequently, rent concessions received
have been accounted for as negative variable lease
payments recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers those payments
occurred. There is no impact on the opening balance of

equity at 1 January 2020.

(d)
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(FRIER B -

Significant accounting policies and basis of
presentation (continued)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to measure
any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests
and the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans from
holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligation towards these holders are presented as financial
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position
in accordance with note 1(qg) or 1(r) depending on the
nature of the liability.
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Significant accounting policies and basis of
presentation (continued)

(e)

(f)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see note 1(h)) or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment
in an associate or a joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(m)), unless the investment is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).

Joint operations

Joint operations are joint arrangements in which the parties
with joint control have rights to the assets and obligations
for the liabilities relating to the arrangement. The activities
of a joint operation are primarily designed for the provision
of output to the parties to the arrangement, indicating
that:

o the parties have the rights to substantially all the
economic benefits of the assets of the arrangement;
and

o all liabilities are satisfied by the joint participants
through their purchase of that output. This indicates
that, in substance, the joint participants have an
obligation for the liabilities of the arrangement.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include
its share of the assets in joint operations, together with
its share of the liabilities, revenues and expenses arising
jointly or otherwise form those operations and its revenue
derived from the sales of its share of output from the joint
operation. All such amounts are measured in accordance
with the terms of each arrangement, which are usually in
proportion to the Group'’s interest in the joint operation.
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Significant accounting policies and basis of
presentation (continued)

(9)

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group
or the Company and other parties contractually agree to
share control of the arrangement, and have rights to the
net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements under the equity
method, unless it is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale). Under
the equity method, the investment is initially recorded at
cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any). The cost of
the investment includes purchase price, other costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of the investment, and any
direct investment into the joint venture that forms part of
the Group's equity investment. Thereafter, the investment
is adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment (see note 1(m)(iii)). Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group's share of
the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and
any impairment losses for the year are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of
the investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the joint venture, the Group’s interest is reduced
to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the investee. For this purpose, the Group's interest is
the carrying amount of the investment under the equity
method together with any other long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the
joint venture (after applying the ECL model to such other
long-term interests where applicable (see note 1(m)(i))).

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to
the extent of the Group's interest in the investee, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Significant accounting policies and basis of
presentation (continued)

(9)

(h)

(i)

Joint ventures (continued)

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have joint
control over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former investee at the date when joint
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (see note 1(h)).

Other investments in equity securities

The Group's policies for investments in equity securities,
other than investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures,
are set out below:

Investments in equity securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/
sell the investment. The investments are initially stated at
fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs, except
for those investments measured at fair value through profit
or loss (FVPL) for which transaction costs are recognised
directly in profit or loss. For an explanation of how the
Group determines fair value of financial instruments (see
note 30(e)). These investments are subsequently accounted
for as follows, depending on their classification.

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment the
Group makes an election to designate the investment at
FVOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but may only be made if the investment meets the
definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where
such an election is made, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) until the investment is disposed of. At the
time of disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to retained earnings. It
is not recycled through profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at
fair value. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to
fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Significant accounting policies and basis of
presentation (continued)

()

(k)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(l)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future use
and property that is being constructed or developed for
future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they
are still in the course of construction or development at the
end of the reporting period and their fair value cannot be
reliably measured at that time. Any gain or loss arising from
a change in fair value or from the retirement or disposal
of an investment property is recognised in profit or loss.
Rental income from investment properties is accounted for
as described in note 1(w)(ii).

Other property, plant and equipment
Other property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note

1(m)).

Depreciation is calculated to write-off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

Properties leased for own use and the interests in leasehold
land are depreciated over the unexpired term of lease.

Hotel building 20 years
Plant and machinery 10 years
Furniture, fixture and equipment 3-5 years
Motor vehicles 3-5 years
Improvements to premises 3 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which
they are located, and an appropriate proportion of
production overheads and borrowing costs.
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Significant accounting policies and basis of
presentation (continued)

(k)

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)
The carrying amounts of other property, plant and
equipment are reviewed for indications of impairment at
the end of each reporting period. An impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss if the carrying amount of an
asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
of an asset, or of the cash generating unit to which it
belongs, is the greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Construction in progress represents buildings and property
and plant under construction, and is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 1(m)). Cost comprises direct
costs of construction. Capitalisation of these costs ceases
and the construction in progress is transferred to property
and plant when substantially all of the activities necessary
to prepare the assets for their intended use are complete.

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress until it is substantially completed and ready for its
intended use.
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1 Significant accounting policiesand basisof 1 FEGHBERERESE (&)
presentation (continued)

() Leased assets () #HEEE

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the REBERNE DVIHRERFTEZ

contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, é\ﬁ%@%fﬂ%ﬂ BEHE - WE

a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use W RBRBA BTG TE—RERR

of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for ?:%'JTE%%E'J%E@E% EVREAR - BllEZ

consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has AHNEHESBEHE -WEFPE

both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and %Iﬁﬂ%&ﬂ” # & E R A R %

to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from {5 A P BB A TP A A 488 M o

that use. BRI B E o

(i) Asalessee (i) MHFEHREHEA
Where the contract contains lease component(s) and HMeEHNESHENRS RIEH
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not Efn AEBEEETE
to separate non-lease components and accounts for BEDIFBEENLD WiFH
each lease component and any associated non-lease MEND RERMBABIERE
components as a single lease component for all HotErfMEMEEZE —MH
leases. EED AR ©
At the lease commencement date, the Group REERB B A&EBE®E
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, REAEEENHESE
except for short-term leases that have a lease term MEFEH A12(8 A Sk E R
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. EHEENEKEEEEMNME
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of ERN - REBFEEEE
a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to EFVHERSREEAE
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The AEERXEEERZEEER
lease payments associated with those leases which {b o B R & A1k 2 10 & 8 7
are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on a ZHENFREHRNIERR
systematic basis over the lease term. L EEERBFRSL -
Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is WEEEAN  HEAEY
initially recognised at the present value of the lease Wig S H A A EE KA
payments payable over the lease term, discounted ZBEEER WEAMEEMR
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that EE M EBRL - WEH
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant FEAAEETE @ AR
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition, TR IR AL 8 SR F 2K o R 25
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and HRE HEAGIRBHEK
interest expense is calculated using the effective AE MERXHEBAER
interest method. Variable lease payments that do FIEREFTHE - WEKBIEH
not depend on an index or rate are not included in HERZASHEENKTT
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are SFAMERBEZEAEF K
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in IR EE Z g5 BENE
which they are incurred. L AIRR o
The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease REEEARRERZE
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which FR#EEEYFIEEKAGTE
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability KABREHEAGE VGBS
plus any lease payments made at or before BN BBk 2 pT{EH
the commencement date, and any initial direct ZEMBEMNR  AKTE
costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the 7RI B o 4
right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs B CREEE KA
to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or PRETREBREEEE 2
to restore the underlying asset or the site on which B ARG 5T - SR B AERE B B
it is located, discounted to their present value, less S EFTE ML B 2 BN Rk
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset B E 2 EAHEE SRR
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated RERBHBE FHEBEEEHR
depreciation and impairment losses (see notes 1(k) ‘ALK AR RET I & MOBAE
and 1(m)(iii)), except for the following types of &5 18 71 BR (R BT 5E1(k) % 1(m)
right-of-use asset: <[5|4f\l)9)| TSI AEEEER
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Significant accounting policies and basis of

presentation (continued)
Leased assets (continued)

U]

(i

As a lessee (continued)

- right-of-use assets that meet the definition of
investment property are carried at fair value in
accordance with note 1(j); and

- right-of-use assets related to interests in
leasehold land where the interest in the land
is held as inventory are carried at the lower
of cost and net realisable value in accordance
with note 1(n).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group's estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in
this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration
for a lease that is not originally provided for in the
lease contract (“lease modification”) that is not
accounted for as a separate lease. In this case the
lease liability is remeasured based on the revised lease
payments and lease term using a revised discount
rate at the effective date of the modification. The
only exceptions are any rent concessions which
arose as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic and which satisfied the conditions set
out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16 Leases. In such
cases, the Group took advantage of the practical
expedient set out in paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16 and
recognised the change in consideration as if it were
not a lease modification.

In the consolidated statement of financial position,
the current portion of long-term lease liabilities
is determined as the present value of contractual
payments that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the reporting period.
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(BRIEREHRA - BABHAAREFITR)

Significant accounting policies and basis of

presentation (continued)
(I) Leased assets (continued)

(ii)

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines
at lease inception whether each lease is a finance
lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified as
a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an
underlying assets to the lessee. If this is not the case,
the lease is classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. The rental income
from operating leases is recognised in accordance
with note 1(w)(ii).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the
sub-leases are classified as a finance lease or as an
operating lease with reference to the right-of-use
asset arising from the head lease. If the head lease
is a short-term lease to which the Group applies the
exemption described in note 1(I)(i), then the Group
classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(0]

Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (ECLs) on the following items:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents, restricted
deposits and trade and other receivables,
including loans to joint ventures, which are
held for the collection of contractual cash
flows which represent solely payments of
principal and interest); and

- lease receivables.
Other financial assets measured at fair value,

including units in trust protection funds, are not
subject to the ECL assessment.
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FEMBEHRRME
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FRIERERE - BRIHUAAREFIR)

1 Significant accounting policiesand basisof 1 FE®HBERERESE(#)
presentation (continued)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued) (m) & Eﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ (%)

(i)  Creditlosses from financial instruments, contract () SWMIA -SHNEAERHEE
assets and lease receivables (continued) FEWRRIE 2 5 B 5518 ()
Measurement of ECLs ARIEEBR &8
ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit B EEBEREEERN
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present Be 2 B EEr - S E A8
value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the RPTE e IR &£ =58 (BRI
difference between the cash flows due to the Group BHENAEBR 2B R=E
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows B fe NS B TR B R 2 3R @
that the Group expects to receive). MELZ M2 ZERR) REFE -
The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using MR 2B K - BIFEHE
the following discount rates where the effect of © 5SS T 51 B 3R A
discounting is material: &

- fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other - BEEMEgsEEE- &
receivables and contract assets: effective Yo BR R e HL 1t 8 UK SR IR
interest rate determined at initial recognition LREHEE BT
or an approximation thereof; RAREEZERH R

E AR =

- variable-rate financial assets: current effective - SFHNEemEE: A
interest rate; and HIEBRA R

—  lease receivables: discount rate used in the HERWHIE: 28
measurement of the lease receivables. %‘:% KFRIEFT A 2 Bh3R

3| R o

The maximum period considered when estimating HEtEEEEERERRER

ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which & AEAKE BT EER

the Group is exposed to credit risk. EERBRHFREAHAE -

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account T ERHEEBER K

reasonable and supportable information that is SEeEREBRENLHBES

available without undue cost or effort. This includes RARE N TENAES &

information about past events, current conditions BrsE &R ESHRBER

and forecasts of future economic conditions. BB = = = AT R MR
RASEA TR 2 B -

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases: BHEEERZ T EAh—
BRS¢

-  12-month ECLs: these are losses that are - NREAZEHEEE
expected to result from possible default events 1B FEE AR E B H1
within the 12 months after the reporting date; 1218 A A ¥ A 2 7] gE &
and NEHBE zZERHE

M

-~ lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are - EEFERCBEHBEE
expected to result from all possible default B EHEEREEIE
events over the expected lives of the items to BABER2EHANEH
which the ECL model applies. FEMAMA I REEL

ZENEMNEBH 2 ZF
B/ o

Loss allowances for trade receivables, lease FEUWBR R - HE W RIE &

receivables and contract assets are always measured EHNEEZEBEEE B

at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these HEREEFER 2 EEE

financial assets are estimated using a provision EBEBE BT -RoE
matrix based on the Group's historical credit loss HH -ZEemEEED
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to EEEBENAEERAEE
the debtors and an assessment of both the current EEBEERERARESERE
and forecast general economic conditions at the TaHE  RBEBAZEE
reporting date. = NI — REER I
AT EEITHEE o
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i & M35 83 R0

(BRIEREHRA - BABHAAREFITR)

Significant accounting policies and basis of
presentation (continued)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i

Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (continued)
Measurement of ECLs (continued)

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk of the financial instrument since initial
recognition, in which case the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when (i)
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is held);
or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a financial instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.

1

FESEMBRRRERELEE)
(m) FEBEREERE (H)

0}

ERMIA SNEERMESR
U REZEEER (&)
BARIEEER 28 (H)
MAEEMERMITARS -
REBZBEN12EA 28
HEEBBRREIBERRE
BRIF & At T A0 H) 20 fE AR A
KZEERBRAREE N £
WERT  BERBERASE
REEFENEHREEEHE
ZERAE -

=B mEEA 15 &
EftemIAGEERRE
Y12 W R VA SR B 5 K 18 18 A0
B NEEAG R RS B HF
Bz TAZEHERS
Y127 W wR B BT (4 2 B B o
TTHE - EEITEREHT
i AERERSERMEE
RTIIBERAEBREL S
(ERAT AT BEFE A SR E &8
REFRDNERER (WEFH)
GEEDANCRN SEGY SEh)
HEERT  d(iieREED
BHEIHEEOR - AEEEZE
BIRAIEZ EERFELER -
BRAERREEHTNL
BERALE TR ES
ZHIEIEEF

LHRE EFHENTHER
ARAEE AR A S KR
R BERBATER :

- REEANIIHBAXM
NP SN

- BRI AZINEEHAER
ERFR (MRS '
R EHEESL

- BEBRAREXEERX
BHBERL &

R AT EX
BBERARAME L
HEKARITEEASE
% 15 2 B A ER B A
TRIEE -




(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1

Sansheng Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd.

152 ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& M5 R EE

TR ARHFR)
FEE

(BRIERERA -

Significant accounting policies and basis of
presentation (continued)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i

Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (continued)
Significant increases in credit risk (continued)
Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant increase
in credit risk is performed on either an individual
basis or a collective basis. When the assessment
is performed on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk
ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss. The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account, except for investments in debt
securities that are measured at FVOCI (recycling),
for which the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the fair
value reserve (recycling).

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have
a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset have occurred.
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 BRIBHUAREFITR)

(BRIERERHRA

Significant accounting policies and basis of

presentation (continued)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i

Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income (continued)
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

- it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset or
lease receivable is written off (either partially or in
full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment
in profit or loss in the period in which the recovery
occurs.
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FEMBEHRRME
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FRIERERE - BRIHUAAREFIR)

1 Significant accounting policiesand basisof 1 FE®HBERERESE(#)
presentation (continued)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued) (m) EEBEREERE (&)

(ii)  Credit losses from financial guarantees issued (i) B Mﬁ%}%ﬁ ZEEEE
Financial guarantees are contracts that require the ISR BREEITA (B[ 4E
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments iR /’\J) fE 5 E R0 AR
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the RZm A (B ERFE AL
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a ﬁi%ﬁ%{\*ﬁﬂﬁﬁfﬁﬁ
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in T A Z RN B B 3R M
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. EEZBRZAH -

Financial guarantees issued are initially recognised EELZUMBRRNTEZR
within “trade and other payables” at fair value, FER AR R A
which is determined by reference to fees charged in IR | AHERR - xS A FE
an arm’s length transaction for similar services, when DELBEHRAER TR
such information is obtainable, or to interest rate B E 55% ) 2= B2 7 40 3 A 4E
differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged RN B J7 FE YR ) {4 5 A
by lenders when the guarantee is made available (fik B & ¥4 7 F i A S8 fi &F)
with the estimated rates that lenders would have ® 2EZRURFNRFR
charged, had the guarantees not been available, :%EPFMKHXE’\JEFH (RAI &R
where reliable estimates of such information can be ;z::‘;éﬂ B) AR ERME
made. Where consideration is received or receivable E o fisd 7O B M a& 1 R B IR
for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration o AT WO AR - S AN (B AR
is recognised in accordance with the Group's policies BARSEE )EH REZBEER
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such BEmT EE ReofmBBRE
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate (R A R 3 P T MR ER - BBy
expense is recognised in profit or loss. Fx R e e R RERR o
Subsequent to initial recognition, the amount initially R W) e R 1R - IR TR R
recognised as deferred income is amortised in profit BT AH % #8 E/\\\%ﬁ\ i W
or loss over the term of the guarantee as income BRERGRIR B FRIER
from financial guarantees issued. B LU BREROBA -

The Group monitors the risk that the specified AREERSTEBARN
debtor will default on the contract and recognises a BB - 30 & B A AR A R
provision when ECLs on the financial guarantees are HEEBERTASNER
determined to be higher than the amount carried ) [ A8 B3 L A A5 SR 7E
in “trade and other payables” in respect of the o )< 58 (B H)4a e 8 2 RAURL
guarantees (i.e. the amount initially recognised, less RETHEGH) B TR R
accumulated amortisation).

To determine ECLs, the Group considers changes RETEREEER ~&
in the risk of default of the specified debtor since GERIETESA % T
the issuance of the guarantee. A 12-month ECL is ERAREZ R E R LB -
measured unless the risk that the specified debtor TEEREANEHREE
will default has increased significantly since the BiE MEREEHBABRE
guarantee is issued, in which case a lifetime ECL is R AR DA SR B9 32 49 & B K 1
measured. The same definition of default and the EINE B R TR SN - IR LS
same assessment of significant increase in credit risk SN Al %’Efé% 17@‘7‘5 HA
as described in note 1(m)(i) apply. RITEER= B &5 48 © T EE1(m)()

PRt HRENEE REE
2 ez A 0 38 b0 & 4R R B 14 4R
EBRARLE -
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i & M35 83 R0

(BRIEREHRA - BABHAAREFITR)

Significant accounting policies and basis of

presentation (continued)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Credit losses from financial guarantees issued
(continued)

As the Group is required to make payments only
in the event of a default by the specified debtor in
accordance with the terms of the instrument that
is guaranteed, an ECL is estimated based on the
expected payments to reimburse the holder for a
credit loss that it incurs less any amount that the
Group expects to receive from the holder of the
guarantee, the specified debtor or any other party.
The amount is then discounted using the current
risk-free rate adjusted for risks specific to the cash
flows.

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment, including
right-of-use assets;

- prepaid lease payments; and

- investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently (i.e.
a cash-generating unit).
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& M5 R EE

(BRIEREHRA - BABHAAREFIR)

Significant accounting policies and basis of

presentation (continued)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Impairment of other non-current assets

(continued)

- Recognition of impairment losses
An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable) or value in use (if determinable).

- Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the
Group is required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months of the
financial year. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the
end of the financial year (see notes 1(m)(i) and (ii)).
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e BEERME
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BRIESEFAT @ BRIHUAA RS R)

1 Significant accounting policiesand basisof 1 FE@HBRRERELE(F)
presentation (continued)

(n) Inventories and other contract costs (n) T_?fé&ﬁﬂﬂ%%"] R A
(i)  Inventories i) #&

Inventories in respect of property development FAMEERED 2GFER

activities are carried at the lower of cost and net RARAI R FERER

realisable value. Cost and net realisable values are )\H'LEY ° 5§$&Ef HHFER

determined as follows: T HERFE

-~ Property held for development and under - HFIFHERRMGER
development for sale ELEYES
The cost of properties under development g§*}§¢@%z;ﬂ$
for sale comprises specifically identified cost, BaCHEHR EX
including the acquisition cost of interests in 215 BREEE i ER :
leasehold land, aggregate cost of development, BB AR - %E k) ﬂ
materials and supplies, wages and other REEmERKS  T&
direct expenses, an appropriate proportion of REMBEZESH - AR
overheads and borrowing costs capitalised (see BELPIzEEERK
note 1(y)). Net realisable value represents the N TAEXZK_(E Fﬁ
estimated selling price less estimated costs of at1(y y)) e \q“ﬁﬁ%@&
completion and costs to be incurred in selling fh et & B G EJF?DI@
the property. AREEWMEMEEK

PN

—~  Completed property held for sale - FHEHEEERYE
The cost of completed properties held for ?31'55%5755)2?*%%2
sale comprises all costs of purchase, costs of DN P Fﬁ BEEK
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing A E@W$&ﬂ%ﬁ{§
the inventories to their present location and BRRRMNERESR
condition. AP EE AE EL A AR AR o
In the case of completed properties developed AARRERRE 2 OEK
by the Group, cost is determined by MR ZRARKREN R
apportionment of the total development costs PEAAR B EIA A B R
for that development project, attributable to A BRI H o A&
the unsold properties. Net realisable value ;%fﬁ%{ﬁﬁr%f‘i,ﬂztﬁﬁ
represents the estimated selling price less costs MEFREERR
to be incurred in selling the property.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of REEGFER  ZSFEH

those inventories is recognised as an expense in the EEEJEE AH A I B SR B HR

period in which the related revenue is recognised. IR BF o

The amount of any write-down of inventories to FEMBEANZFFENS

net realisable value and all losses of inventories 8 L A7 &P A B 1B E MUR

are recognised as an expense in the period i 306548 1) B3 A 52 75 B

the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of X FEWEWWWEX\@ &

any reversal of any write-down of inventories ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁgﬁgﬁﬂ@ﬂ? '

is recognised as a reduction in the amount of A A % [B] 3 A B R RR /S A

inventories recognised as an expense in the period in X e

which the reversal occurs.
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(BRIEREHRA - BABHAAREFIR)

Significant accounting policies and basis of
presentation (continued)
Inventories and other contract costs (continued)

(n)

(ii)

Other contract costs

Other contract costs are either the incremental costs
of obtaining a contract with a customer or the costs
to fulfil a contract with a customer which are not
capitalised as inventory (see note 1(n)(i)) or property,
plant and equipment (see note 1(k)).

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those
costs that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with
a customer that it would not have incurred if the
contract had not been obtained e.g. an incremental
sales commission. Incremental costs of obtaining a
contract are capitalised when incurred if the costs
relate to revenue which will be recognised in a future
reporting period and the costs are expected to be
recovered. Other costs of obtaining a contract are
expensed when incurred.

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised if the
costs relate directly to an existing contract or to a
specifically identifiable anticipated contract; generate
or enhance resources that will be used to provide
goods or services in the future; and are expected
to be recovered. Costs that relate directly to an
existing contract or to a specifically identifiable
anticipated contract may include direct labour, direct
materials, allocations of costs, costs that are explicitly
chargeable to the customer and other costs that are
incurred only because the Group entered into the
contract (for example, payments to sub-contractors).
Other costs of fulfilling a contract, which are not
capitalised as inventory or property, plant and
equipment, are expensed as incurred.

Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Impairment losses are recognised to the extent
that the carrying amount of the contract cost
asset exceeds the net of (i) remaining amount of
consideration that the Group expects to receive in
exchange for the goods or services to which the
asset relates, less (i) any costs that relate directly to
providing those goods or services that have not yet
been recognised as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is charged
to profit or loss when the revenue to which the
asset relates is recognised. The accounting policy for
revenue recognition is set out in note 1(w).
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BRBGAARKEIIR)

(BRIERERA -

Significant accounting policies and basis of
presentation (continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue (see note 1(w)). A contract liability would also
be recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognised (see note 1(p)).

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest accrued
under the effective interest method (see note 1(w)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group
has an unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses (see note

T(m)(i)-

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 1(m)(ii), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.
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Significant accounting policies and basis of
presentation (continued)

(s)

(t)

(u)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
expected credit losses (ECL) in accordance with the policy
set out in note 1(m)(i).

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts
of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.
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FEEMBRRERELE(E|)
(v) FTBH ()

1 Significant accounting policies and basis of 1
presentation (continued)

(u)

Income tax (continued)

All deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will arise from
the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal
of the deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can
be carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
1(j), the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
using the tax rates that would apply on sale of those
assets at their carrying value at the reporting date unless
the property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the property over time,
rather than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of
deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available.
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(BRIEREHRA - BABHAAREFIR)

Significant accounting policies and basis of
presentation (continued)

(u)

(v)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

= the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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1 Significant accounting policiesand basisof 1 FE@HBRRERELE(F)
presentation (continued)
(w) WMARE MR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(w)

Revenue and other income
Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sale of goods, the provision of services or the use
by others of the Group's assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group's business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has
the right to use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the
customer for more than 12 months, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction with the customer, and
interest income is accrued separately under the effective
interest method. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing benefit
to the Group, revenue recognised under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. The Group
takes advantage of the practical expedient in paragraph 63
of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration for any
effects of a significant financing component if the period
of financing is 12 months or less.
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(BRIEREHRA - BABHAAREFIR)

Significant accounting policies and basis of
presentation (continued)

Revenue and other income (continued)
Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(w)

(i)

(ii)

Sale of properties

Revenue arising from the sale of properties
developed for sale in the ordinary course of business
is recognised when the property is delivered to
customer in Mainland China, which is the point in
time when the customer has the ability to direct
the use of the property and obtain substantially all
of the remaining benefits of the property. Deposits
and instalments received on properties sold prior
to the date of revenue recognition are included in
the statement of financial position under contract
liabilities (see note 1(0)).

For contracts where the period between the
payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised property exceeds one year, the transaction
price and the amount of revenue from the sales of
completed properties is adjusted for the effects of
a financing component. If the advance payments
by the customer are regarded as providing a
significant financing benefit to the Group, interest
expense arising from the adjustment of time value
of money will be accrued by the Group during the
period between the payment date and the date
of delivery of property. This accrual increases the
balance of the contract liability during the period of
construction, and therefore increases the amount of
revenue recognised when control of the completed
property is transferred to the customer. The interest
is expensed as accrued unless it is eligible to be
capitalised under HKAS 23, Borrowing costs, in
accordance with the policies set out in note 1(y).

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments receivable. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as income in the accounting period in
which they are earned.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FRIERERH - BRIHUAAREFIR)
FEEMBRRERELE(E|)
(w) WARH bz (&)

1 Significant accounting policies and basis of 1
presentation (continued)

(w) Revenue and other income (continued)

(iii) Hotel revenue (iif) ?EE'&A\ )
Hotel revenue is recognised when the services have B YT Fi2 A AR A5 B R,
been rendered.

(iv) Dividends (iv) BRE
Dividend income from unlisted investments is REFELEMHEE ZRBRLA
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive P RR B UG B S 3R 2 RE ) R AT
payment is established. RFRERR o

(v) Interestincome v) FIEWA
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using FI| B U AR B S R R SR A
the effective interest method. For financial assets BRI o Bt IR BY AR AN
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling) that et ATES AL MR
are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is ENCAGE R A ]
applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset. = &R E’J@Eﬂé%ﬁﬁ ="
For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective il 2 ; = et s -
interest rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. ﬂi%?ﬁfggé;%g
gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the I;‘; o IR lenr
asset (see note 1(m)(i)). & '\ﬂﬁ EmS JE P ) = &

PR & 2 &0 85 A A (BNH0BR
EREEENAREME) (R
FEUm)))

(x) Translation of foreign currencies (x) ;"

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the
Company initially recognises such non-monetary assets or
liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Renminbi at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated into
Renminbi at the closing foreign exchange rates at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that foreign
operation is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when
the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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Significant accounting policies and basis of
presentation (continued)

(y)

(2)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Related parties
(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

0] has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group's parent.
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BRBGAARKEIIR)

(BRIEREHA -

Significant accounting policies and basis of

presentation (continued)

Related parties (continued)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(2)

(b)

i)

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

1
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(2) BEA%ETS (8)

(b)
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SBZKERE (A
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(ii)
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(iv)

(viii)

)= PNCIE LA LR

i
g ) ©

—HEBSAZ—EEZ
BENTHAERE (K
ZHEMERMBEE
D8P NI
BERR) -

30
i 75

By
o |
B )

\

%W%E*% ;
PN
ZERRAKERER

SEREBEBZERE
BERAmE s BERER
et -

%E?QH%ﬁEAi
@) ()T R TE A L+ 5%
BERTENLE
%;% (quA B8 ﬁ‘: .:

QU

g

g%m%
|_|_|,
b
I o
H o
Ly
%
mo ¢

%I%&%I! ﬁ%
HEZEEEKEIR -

—%AiZﬁﬁ%E&%%
TEHEHER IR SR A&
E&Ai&xﬁAi?ﬁz
REERK B °




(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

Sansheng Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. ] 68 ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& M5 R EE

1 Significant accounting policies and basis of
presentation (continued)
(aa) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

2 Accounting judgement and estimates

(a)

Critical accounting judgements in applying the
Group's accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the accounting judgement of
classification between investment properties and properties
held for sale.

(BRIEREHRA - BABHAAREFIR)

1 FEEHBERREHEE (])

(aa) D EBI®E

AEBROEERTARE SRR
N & EH R A K 5 h B IHE &
EEE 2 X8 SEMRAAEE
REHSRTREREREMBEE
£ o 052 F B KL Al BRI B 75 R
RENZBENBRENFH A
B e

EREXREE D BTSN 5 H
RSIER  FRIFRZEDHEBREZ
BT BEERNMRFEE
EEREME  FEPELNER
FA A2y $H 2 fm sk B AH AR A% 2 T3 0A A
REBREZEEGEE - MHiES5
TEAREDHEBEANBLY ZER
B RIRTBERER

2 WEIER

(a)

FEAAEESTTBEREREER
A& a3
ERERBASESHBRY  BEE
BIELREMERFHEHEMED
B ETHE -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 Accounting judgement and estimates 2  ErtHIER R & e ()

(continued)

(@) Critical accounting judgements in applying the (a) ERAEESHBEEFRESE
Group's accounting policies (continued) ReEatF B (&)
The Group develops properties held for sale and properties AEEREBIELEMERFTED
held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. EUBBRAS R SRFEAREE -
Judgement is made by management on determining EIEEREEYEETEARENE
whether a property is designated as an investment property Sk RHE T E YR I -
or a property held for sale.
For purchased properties, the Group considers its intention HREBYE  AEBZEEERH
for holding the properties at an early stage when initially ESYELSIEREEEEYEN
obtaining control of the related properties. The related EB - MAEBYEREE  AIBE
properties are accounted for as inventories included in ARIRRBEEFRNTFE - it
current assets if the properties are intended for sale, BEAZYENRIAS KL SF
whereas, the properties are accounted for as investment BAREE - BigE AR (EREY
properties if the properties are intended to be held to earn o
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (b) MHETFEHBIEZEZRIR

Notes 10 and 30 contain information about the
assumptions and their risk factors relating to valuation of
investment property and financial instruments. Other key
sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(i) Investment properties

As described in note 10, the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties situated in Hong Kong and
Mainland China at 31 December 2020 had been
arrived at based on a valuation carried out at that
date by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and
Advisory Limited, an independent professional valuer.
The fair value of the Group’s investment properties
at 31 December 2020 was arrived at based on direct
comparison method or term and reversion method.

At 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of the
Group's investment properties are RMB2,389,545,000
(2019 (restated): RMB2,097,762,000). By relying on
the valuation reports of the independent professional
valuers, the management has exercised its judgment
and is satisfied that the method of valuation is
reflective of the market conditions prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Any changes in the
market conditions will affect the fair value of the
investment properties of the Group.

BREEEHERERTAZRE
XRERBEZZERERHEE0
N30 HErTRHABAREAEZ EMMEE
ORI

(i) rEYX

AN 0PI - X =T =
THEF+-A=+—8 &X&
BUuREENRTBEAN R
BYMERAFEAERHBE L
BEXGEMPERTEEN
ERERERRAETHE
MEH AEER_-_T_F
F+-_A=+—BZ&REY
ERNFERBERLBOESR
FHREREEE

RZE_EF+_A=+—
B AEBEREWEZER
B A AR #2,389,545,0007C
(Z=2—N&F (BEH) AR
#2,097,762,0007T) ° & 12 B
ARBLEEGEMZGE
WMETHEHE  ERHES
FERBEREPRRZTM -
MREREMEHETER
EEREMEZRATFE-
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2 Accounting judgement and estimates 2 ErtRERR&E (88|
(continued)
(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (continued) (b) HEFTHBAERZZRIRE(E)
(i) Inventories (i) =&

As explained in note 1(n), the Group’s land held for
future development, properties under development

HANE 1A AR - N
B ER R B R &y L 4t - 3%

and completed properties held for sale are stated ERYERFELESEX
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Based V)AL A K A] IR R E R

on the Group's recent experience and the nature
of the subject property, the Group makes estimates
of the selling price, the costs of completion in case

BEEINR ERAEEW
AT R MARROIR B BV IEE
AEBRBAERE TITKRA

for properties under development, and the costs to (MEERFYE) LEED
be incurred in selling the properties. If there is an EHEEMKAR - METL

increase in costs to completion or a decrease in net
sales value, impairment provision for inventories
may be resulted. Such provision requires the use of
judgment and estimates. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, the carrying

PRI DN Bk 85 B R E R
AR e B BB F HETTRIE
B B RERER A
K Atat - AR ARRR
et AR ZER[AE2BHH

value and provision for properties in the periods in HEAYEREE R EEE
which such estimate is changed will be adjusted MEEME A -
accordingly.

Given the volatility of Mainland China’s property B8 50 FR B (A 1 W 3 T A A R

market and the distinctive nature of individual
properties, the actual outcomes in terms of costs
and revenue may be higher or lower than estimated
at the end of the reporting period. Any increase or
decrease in the provision would affect profit or loss
in future years.

B % fE Bl B 2 Y B IE - 4%
AT EOERERFKRA
B ANES= N )
T o R IR G 2 5 A (e 18

ISR & R B iRk
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3 Revenue and segment reporting 3 IWARSEESE

(a)

Revenue (a)
The principal activities of the Group are property
development and sale, property investment, hotel
management and construction and design services.

Revenue are net of sales related taxes and discounts
allowed. All the revenue are generated in Mainland China.

L/ ON

AEBEIEXH DY ERENIE
S VERE BEEEALTE

he T K2 at BRTS o

WA FOER 35 E AR BRI LTI
o A WAIRI A B A o

2020 2019
—EoEE —T—hE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AR®ET T
(restated)
(geE7)
Revenue from contracts with customers & 7 B 3§ 3R & % B 551555
within the scope of HKFRS 15 HEAZEFESHWA
Sale of properties MEHE 8,646,232 2,237,353
Hotel revenue B TE A 22,899 8,717
Construction and design services income T NME&E
BRESUA 20,091 -
Revenue from other sources H Al A SRR
Gross rentals from investment properties WEMFE 2 BB 89,378 91,571
8,778,600 2,337,641

The Group's customer base is diversified. None of the
Group’s client with whom transactions have exceeded
10% of the Group’s revenue.

AEENEFERD A BEEX
SERZHEFPEAEEELAI10%

AL
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3 Revenue and segment reporting (continued) 3 WARS KRS (&)
(a) Revenue (continued) (@) WA (&)
As far as the Group’s businesses are concerned, the MAEBWELT S - COVID-19%
construction periods of properties under development 155 158 3% 3B B ) B R ) 32 A0 s T HARE
were delayed by about one to two months due to BH—ZMEA - A ERFREH
the suspension during the outbreak of the COVID-19 A E B B BRI - H R
pandemic. However, the above impacts have been limited FMTREZFRD BEXRKEE
in view of the fact that the epidemic in Mainland China KRB EEREE Wil 252
has been basically controlled, the disruption to business EAER -
activities is fading out, and the contingency measures
carried out by the Group are effective.
(i)  Revenue expected to be recognised in the future () TEHRKRERAHRE HHHH
arising from contracts with customers in existence at REBEPEILEH Fﬁéi 9
the reporting date. A o
The following table includes revenue expected to THREHEJIR B _ZTF+Z
be recognised in the future related to performance A=+—BR=ZZE—hn#F
obligations that are unsatisfied (or partially +-_A=1+—HEBEHRKR
unsatisfied) at 31 December 2020 and 31 December TARBEIT (HEH KRBT B
2019. B ZIGHER RN ©
2020 2019
—EEH —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREBFTT
(restated)
€ s=71))
Remaining performance FEETEITHERT
obligations expected BHR
to be satisfied:
Within 1 year —FE R 14,541,623 7,740,200
1 year to 2 years —ZEMF 4,619,882 6,052,814
2 years to 3 years ME=4F 4,966,450 3,202,497
24,127,955 16,995,511

These amounts represent revenue expected to
be recognised in the future from pre-completion
sales contracts for properties under development
entered into by the customers with the Group.
These amounts include the significant financing
components of the pre-completion properties sales
contracts under which the Group obtains significant
financing benefits from the customers (see note 1(w)

(i)

ZECBRERARLT S ER
L] Jiﬁ’]%ﬂ?&ﬁiﬂfmﬁﬁﬁm
IHIJ% BRERZBA -
EZ%%E@%nIHIJ%%%
EANMEARERD 1R
BZE D ARERESE
BEREEZEmE ke (RWE
Tw)(i))
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 BRIBHUAREFITR)

(BRIERERHRA

3 Revenue and segment reporting (continued)

(b)

Segment reporting

Operating segment

The Group's operating activities are attributable to a single
operating segment focusing on property development and
property investment. This operating segment has been
identified on the basis of internal management reports
prepared in accordance with accounting policies conform
with HKFRS 8, that are regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM") (i.e. the executive
directors of the Company). The CODM regularly reviews
property portfolio by locations and considers them as one
single operating segment since most of the properties are
developed by the Group for sales. No revenue analysis,
operating results or other discrete financial information
is available for the assessment of performance of the
respective locations.

Geographical information

Information about the Group’s non-current assets
(other than deferred tax assets) is presented base on the
geographical location of the assets as follows:

3

BARSEBER S ()
(b) 7 &R =
REDE

AEENEEXTHRIINFER
RYERRENE —KLEDAHETT -
SRBEDBIHENRBEREM R
EEAFSFEMN ST B RMRER
MNEER|E TARR - AETEL
BRRE ((TERLERRE] A
ARAMTES) EREH -T2
RERREEDRIEAERERAYE
e HRABOYMEBHANEEFH
HELERE  BWER/E—KED
BB e MU AT KLEFENEAM
ERMBER A SRR RIS -

AEBREENMR D M B 58I
MEEE CEEHIREERIN) BF
LI

2020 2019

—Z-%F —T-NEF

RMB’'000 RMB’'000

ARET T AREET T

(restated)

(FeE )

Mainland China =aiEilNpeid 4,372,003 3,685,536
Hong Kong BB 38,213 41,059
4,410,216 3,726,595
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4 Otherincome 4 HMES
2020 2019
—EB-FF —T-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T AREF T
(restated)
(72E5)

Net exchange gain/(loss) bE 5 Uz (B518) F 58 44,300 (6,170)
Interest income on bank deposits RITIFRZFEHA 9,832 7,036
Forfeited deposits from customers BWRFiEe 11,907 36,386
Compensation to customers MEFEEE (1,878) (267)
Dividend income from financial assets BRAFEFAERZ

at fair value through profit or loss SEEEZRERA = 147
Donation B (1,000) (6,350)
Fair value changes on listed equity securities TR AN 5 2 A T (E & &) - 8,545
Fair value changes on derivative financial MESBMTECATEEZS

instruments 2,368 )
Project management fee IEHEEE 7,540 6,579
Sales commission fee received B B WAL $HE

from a related party HeBH = 1,999
Others Hih 1,807 2,490

74,876 50,386




=EER(EE)ERAR 175 —B-BFEFH

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i & M35 83 R0

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FRIERERH - BRIHUAAREFIR)

5 Profit before taxation 5 WAELEF
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): A S A &Nk (G A) L& IE%
EW
(@) Finance costs (@) BMERA
2020 2019
—BRF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBTIT
(restated)
(g =E5))
Interest on bank loans and other borrowings #2717 & 3t K& £ fti {& 3051l & 1,117,707 804,439
Interest on bonds BEHEFE 152,165 144,918
Interest payable to Fuzhou Sansheng FEfHE M = B FRIAF B
(note 26) (Pt 5%26) 45,997 93,328
Interest on lease liabilities (note 21(c)) HEAENB (FHiF21(0) 1,416 1,134
Interest accrued on significant financing EHEBEERMELS
component of contract liabilities FEETFIE 996,390 509,288
2,313,675 1,553,107
Less: interest expense capitalised B BRNMEARTFESRE
into inventories, construction in EETERKE
progress and investment properties* L E SN (2,253,967) (1,520,671)
59,708 32,436
@ The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a weighted e B R AR B R ANHE T 1 5 7 £8.69% (=

average rate of 8.69% per annum (2019 (restated): 9.18%).

ZNEF(EEF)) : 9.18%) BRI -

(b) Staff costs (b) ETRA
2020 2019
—g-2& | -—T-hF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T AREET T
(restated)
(7e&E5)
Salaries, wages and other benefits e IERHEAMET 205,776 157,755
Retirement benefits scheme contributions R {Ki@FIEHEl 2 (= 3,086 10,016
208,862 167,771
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(BRIEREHRA - BABHAAREFIR)

Profit before taxation (continued) 5 MaF ()
(b) Staff costs (continued) (b) BEIRA(E)
Hong Kong BB
The Group participates in a defined contribution scheme REE2ERGMRE TS ([94
under Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme ("MPF Scheme"). ezt )BTz EEH®TEE -
For members of the MPF Scheme, both the Group and EEBRELTEIKE BIERES
the employee contribute 5% of the employee’s relevant &6 REB REENIZEE A
income to the Scheme according to the MPF ordinance. R#E5%MZaT 0 -
Mainland China m 5] A i
The employees of the Group in the Mainland China are AREBEZzHRAMES BB A
members of state-managed retirement benefit schemes RS HABRFEEZBERERR
operated by the respective local governments in relevant KR8l 2 B B - REBREH
jurisdictions. The Group is required to contribute and © AN 2 18 TE B 9 b MR R AR AT
recognise a specified percentage of payroll costs to the EED R R ER - MR RIK
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligations of B o AN B % &R IKE Fl 5t
the Group with respect to these schemes are to make EleE —BER/IELIEE 2 HFRIL
the specified contributions and recognise the respective RILRBETEIEH IR AT
retirement pay in accordance with terms set out in the FEERMNER CHEBERKTIE -
schemes and relevant jurisdiction requirements.
The Group has enjoyed social security exemptions from R COVID-19% 1518 % + AEEIR
two to twelve months according to specific policies issued Bt BRAEENEEBRENES
by local governments due to the outbreak of the COVID-19 22128 AL REA R -
pandemic.
(c) Otheritems () HfbEHR
2020 2019
—EEH —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREBFTT
(restated)
€ s=x71))
Depreciation and amortisation e R EE
— owned property, plant and equipment —HER I
= Ko 5 42,811 39,878
— right-of-use assets —([FRHEEE 25,673 18,380
Cost of inventories FEKA 6,249,525 1,454,241
Auditors’ remuneration ZE AT &
— Audit service — 5 AR 2,380 1,020
— Non-audit services —IEE RS 2,310 2,030
Rentals income from investment properties & & #2718 & W A B 5
less direct outgoings of RMB9,453,000 ¥ it AR #9,453,0007T
(2019 (restated): RMB10,110,000) (ZE-NF (&S :
AEK#10,110,0007T) (79,925) (81,461)
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FERERATZMER

6 Income taxinthe consolidated statementof 6

profit or loss
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or (a)

REBRBRAIRZBESR

loss represents:

2020 2019
—E-EHE —ET-NF
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR T ARBFT
(restated)
(&E5)
Current tax BNEABE 1R
PRC Corporate Income Tax (“CIT") LB SR e
(TEmEH D 562,468 143,151

Withholding tax TaHH 205 207

Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT") T IBET ([ LI ER ) 515,986 226,983

Deferred tax EEBE

Origination and reversal of temporary differences i {4 = & » & 4 K &[0

(note 28(b)(i) (BT &E28(0))) (239,598) (57,572)
839,061 312,769

() Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman i)y BEHRSHESKEBRHE
Islands and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the SE(EBELZES]) 2HRA
Group is not subject to any income tax in the ARG - 25 B R B AR 7
Cayman Islands and the BVI. EHEREBEZESZE

RIFFA5 5 ©

(i) The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2020 is (i) —Z_ZEFEFBNEHEE
calculated at 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) of the estimated BE NG G G2
assessable profits for the year. No provision for Hong 16.5% (ZZE— L% : 16.5%)
Kong Profits Tax has been made in the consolidated FE - BARAEEREFEE
financial statements as the Group has no assessable REBHEERM ST - W
profit in Hong Kong for both years. UL B B L AR B B R R R A

BEMNEBELBE -

(i)  The provision for CIT is calculated based on the (i) CEMESHRBEIREBERA
estimated taxable income at the rates applicable to EEMRERANMKE AR @A
subsidiaries of the Group in Mainland China. The ZIEGH 2t BRI
income tax rates applicable are 25% (2019: 25%). AFTE - BB HHREL

25% (ZF—15F - 25%) °
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6 Income taxin the consolidated statement of

profit or loss (continued)
(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss represents: (continued)

(iv)

Withholding tax includes tax on interest income
received from a subsidiary in Mainland China
at 7% (2019: 7%) of the amount received and
withholding tax on profits retained by Mainland
China subsidiaries.

From 1 January 2008, a non-resident enterprise
without an establishment or a place of business in
the PRC or which has an establishment or a place
of business in the PRC but whose relevant income
is not effectively connected with the establishment
or place of business in the PRC, will be subject to a
withholding tax at the rate of 10% (unless reduced
by treaty) on various types of passive income
such as dividends derived from sources within the
PRC. Pursuant to the Sino-Hong Kong Double
Tax Arrangement and the related regulations, a
qualified Hong Kong tax resident may be liable for
a reduced withholding tax rate of 5% on dividends
from a PRC enterprise if the Hong Kong tax resident
is the “beneficial owner” and holds 25% or more
of the equity interest of the PRC enterprise.

Deferred tax liabilities have been provided for
based on the expected dividends to be distributed
from these subsidiaries in the foreseeable future
in respect of the profits generated since 1 January
2008.

LAT is levied on properties developed by the Group
for sale, at progressive rates ranging from 30% to
60% on the appreciation of land value, which under
the applicable regulations is calculated based on
the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including lease charges of land use
rights, borrowing costs and relevant property
development expenditures.

(BRIEREHRA - BABHAAREFIR)

6 RERZIRFATZMAFERGE)
() ZEBBARRZBIES : (H)

(iv)

BHREEARSE A —
KM B 2 A AT W B Z B
AT EEEREMR
W SR Z7% (ZE— N5 :
7%) LA KA B A B A
AIEY PR B i A FRHAAL ©

—EENFE-A—HEE-
ERBEYER T EEREE
SN EREREE  HETF
BERERENLEXSMER
B B U A B A o B R T O
BREXSMMEEREE
MEEREE  BARER
WEBNUA (IR E R BEHEAR
B B) 1210% (B R 4R 2 &
BRON) BV R A TEEL © 1R
BRARREBHB LR
HEIEG  H—REERE
ARBERATEEENE
BEBA] - WEFAH25%3K A
EBE 2B ERBER
BFBEECEELEMKREAIZA
5% R G mIEH -

BRERARBEREZSTM
BRARAKBE=-ZTN\F—A
—HEELZEMNA R
RIBHDIR 2 B B At R R -

AEBHEEMBER 2 WER
B4 B EEIE30%E260%
2 ZAER R BN T IR (ER
BIEEBRN > LB ER
Thi% & ) 2 BT 18 FROE R AT
HFAL (BE L EREY
A B RAEY
ERERAYFE -
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RERSFMATZHAER(E)
(b) BEMIXEZEABEGHZ

6 Income taxinthe consolidated statementof 6

profit or loss (continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and

accounting profit at applicable tax rates: BIOENYEENT :
2020 2019
ZECEE —E-NE
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBFT
(restated)
(&E5)
Profit before taxation T A A 1,689,989 309,809
Less: LAT B B ER 515,986 226,983
Profit before CIT 1R E 5 AR 1,174,003 82,826
Notional tax calculated at applicable income tax  1ZfARIEE A rl@ B TS X
rate of the relevant group entities concerned HENEERE 220,526 23,977
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AAENRAZ 2 RBTE 40,843 37,664
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARHBAZRBETE (659) (780)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised AERRBDATIEEEZ
mBTE 50,724 25,079
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses  E)F@E R IER 2
HIEEE (367) (377)
Withholding tax (note 6(a)(iv)) B (BT E6(a)iv)) 12,008 207
Others Hith = 16
CIT expense PEMBHRAX 323,075 85,786
Add: LAT e g ER 515,986 226,983
Income tax expense S BiF 2 839,061 312,769
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7 Directors’ emoluments 7 EEM&
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) BIEFB L aEHI5383(1)E & A 7l (3
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the BESENREN BOIE _BPRBEZ2ES
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) BewmT

Regulation are as follows:

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme 2020
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
&2y BikstE —Z-%EF
EEZHe REVAR [} g2 H®3 @zt

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETR ARBTR AR®TR ARET:R

Executive directors HTES
Mr. Lin Rongbin WEBEE - 1,067 - 16 1,083
Ms. Cheng Xuan Bzt - 1,333 - 16 1,349
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Xiao Zhong HREE 160 - - - 160
Mr. Xu Jianwen PRI G 160 - - - 160
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTES

directors
Mr. Pan Dexiang BERLE 160 = = = 160
Mr. Zhong Bin & 160 - - - 160
Mr. Yuan Chun RELLE 160 - - - 160

800 2,400 = 32 3,232
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FRIERERH - BRIHUAAREFIR)

7 Directors’ emoluments (continued) 7 EEi& (])
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary scheme 2019
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e 2R RikstEl —Z—NF

£30E REWNE  BRRA # )
RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTE ARBTT ARETT ARBTLT ARBTE

Executive directors HTES

Mr. Lin Rongbin MEBEE - 1,066 - 16 1,082

Ms. Cheng Xuan Rt = 1,332 = 16 1,348

Non-executive directors FHTES

Mr. Xiao Zhong HREE 160 = = = 160

Mr. Xu Jianwen FEl ks 160 - - = 160

Independent non-executive BYKHTES

directors

Mr. Pan Dexiang BEREEE 160 = = = 160

Mr. Zhong Bin e e 160 = = = 160

Mr. Yuan Chun RELE 160 - - - 160
800 2,398 - 32 3,230

During the year, no amount was paid or payable by the Group to RERN REBHBEE N ENEZEE

the directors or any of the five highest paid individuals set out in T XM S E < F ARG &= AL

note 8 as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as RIE - EAREESKEENANE B

compensation for loss of office. There was no arrangement under ZHEENNIEABRAHE RNERNEEL

which a director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration ERZH  EEEREXRERET

during the year. A& o
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FRIEB BB * B RIHUAAREZIR)

8 Individuals with highest emoluments 8 mEHFMAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, 1 (2019: 2) hamaTMALTEFR —Z(ZZT—N
are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7. FMB)ATRES  ERERNME7
#5E o
The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the remaining 4 BB THZ (ZE—N\F:=5R) AL
(2019: 3) individuals is as follows: NS BT
2020 2019
—E-SE —ZE—NF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARBTTT
(restated)
(FeE3))
Salaries and other emoluments % To H At 357 B 4,876 3,296
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET IR 249 195
Performance related incentive payments B R IR HM A 2 4B 774 448
5,899 3,939
The emoluments of the 4 (2019: 3) individuals with the highest BHNMEZ (ZZE—NE: =8) 555
emoluments are within the following bands: AT 2 #FH M F LA T EE :
2020 2019
—EC-BF —E-NEF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A A
(restated)
(FgE5))
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 T =
1,500,000/ 7T 1 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 T &
2,000,000/% 75 2 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ L&
2,500,000 7T 1 -
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i e IR T
(R IEBEHA

Earnings per share 9
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company is based on the following
data:

BRBGAARKEIIR)

BERET
AR R 5 0R R (G 00 B R E AR T
RIBA T B

2020 2019
g g 353 Z—NF
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARMET T ARBTIT
(restated)
(K& E3))
Earnings for the purpose of basic ERERBEF T FH
earnings per share B 7| 809,237 39,906
2020 2019
et g 553 —E-NF
‘000 ‘000
TR T
(restated)
¢ =)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares of 7N /2 &) & 58 A% 0 #E
the Company 58 490,594 490,594
The weighted average number of ordinary shares of the purpose HmEREKRAER M

of basic earnings per share has been determined based on the
sum of average ordinary shares of the Company in issue during
2020 of 441,114,000 (2019: 441,114,000) ordinary shares and
49,480,000 (2019: 49,480,000) ordinary shares of the Company
issued on 24 November 2020 as consideration for the transaction
as set out in note 1(b).

No dilutive earnings per share is presented as there were no
dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue during both years.

FHEDEARARAR S
%ﬁm44L114000%(::§
44L114000H§> H&Ziﬁé

FA%W%HW@Q%%MW—T
F 1 49,480,0000%) & @ % A A A ﬂ?ﬂ
LTRIRBETE -

HRNEZMEADBRCHTAEEGE
hZ&EE At EZEREER
Fl

o
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10 Investment properties 10 ¥EMX
(@) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) REE¥ER
Properties
Completed under
properties development Total
B TYE BRPME HET
Note RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000

B i ARETT ARETT ARETT

Fair Value AEE
At 1 January 2019 (as RZZT—NF—A—H

previously reported) (BadE2R) 716,067 - 716,067
Adjustments arising from KRG testREs

adoption of merger EEFAE

accounting (note 1(d)) (BH3E1(d)) 1,305,333 - 1,305,333

At 1 January 2019 (restated) M-—ZT—HE—F—H

(&&E7) 2,021,400 = 2,021,400
Additions NG 5,441 - 5,441
Increase in fair value NFEELE N 47,602 - 47,602
Transfer from inventories FEEA 22,578 = 22,578
Exchange adjustments PE H FA % 741 — 741

At 31 December 2019 and R-E—HNE+=-H
1 January 2020 (as restated) =+—HAR_-_ZE_Z4F

—H—B(&E7) 2,097,762 - 2,097,762
Additions NE = 190,848 190,848
Increase in fair value UNSZ=R i 21,326 27,475 48,801
Transfer from inventories FEEA 9,620 45,077 54,697
Exchange adjustments ME 5, e B (2,563) - (2,563)
At 31 December 2020 RZEZFF+=H

=a=[F 12 2,126,145 263,400 2,389,545
As at 31 December 2020, the Group's investment properties R-ZEBE-_TEF+-_F=+—HH K&£EH
with the carrying amount of RMB702,148,000 (2019 (restated): SR A K #702,148,0007T (=& — A1
RMB702,900,000) were pledged for bank loans and other F(&E5) - AR¥702,900,0007T) K%
borrowings borrowed by related parties. EYEELEBHTEANERITERRE

il & SR EY R o
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10 Investment properties (continued)

(b)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
properties measured at the end of the reporting period on
a recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique
as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available.

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

The following tables gives information about how the fair
values of these investment properties are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used), as
well as the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised.

 BRIBHUAREFITR)

10 EYR (&

(b)

DNFEER
TREVNREEUHREREZIINEE
PRABZAKEME 2 R FE
DR AVHRELAF13R 2
FlEGEIDBR=AFHR 2 RF
BER RV EFESHANBTIZ
ZATNAETEMABABEZ A
BEREUENERMET

- E-BEE ERE-38
B AKIE - BN E B A A4
F&ERS ERERTEY
RIGBERBE B DT -

- B-_MHEERF-FR
WARE  ARENTEE—
ERABREABIE A
R EREATABRGA
BB ERTE  TAIBR
W A BB R R A RTS8
BB AR -

- F=BFEE:EREARA
BERBABBAEAFE-

TREIIMABEELZZREMEN
NFELEREETT A RFAER
BAHBE) ARREG A FEFE
BABED B2 R FESFR -
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10 Investment properties (continued)

(b) Fair value hierarchy (continued) (b) 2AFEEH(E)
Relationship of
Carrying value of investment Fair value  Valuation technique(s) Significant unobservable  unobservable inputs
properties held by the Group hierarchy  and key input(s) input(s) to fair value
FUBEERAHE
AEEREREVECREE - AVESR AEFERIERANE EATTEERBABE  EATENBE
At 31 December 2020
R-B-Bf+=-A=1+-H
Offices and commercial properties  Level 3 Term and reversion method ~ Reversion rate based The higher the reversion

in Mainland China other than E=% FHRERE on market research on rent, the higher the fair
properties in Yantai comparable rentals and value.
hERBRAS REEYE making adjustments on ERfers ATE
(EEHMERIN factors such as location, floor #i3 ©
size and facilities.
EHEERHTEESH
mSRREREUE
BERBRRmEREE
R o
The key inputs are: Reversionary yield whichis ~ The higher the
FEHAEER: 5% for offices, 4.5%~6% for reversionary yield, the
(1)reversion rent; and commercial propertiesand ~ lower the fair value.
EEHe R 3% for car parking spaces at  EEMEEHE - AT
(2)reversionary yield each valuation date. EHIE -
ERRRE REMERS  BAEK
EEREE A%  BEY
£BAS%Z6%REESR
3% °
Commercial properties under Level 2 Direct comparison method ~ N/A N/A
development in Yantai, E-m assuming sale in its existing ~ ~NE A N
Mainland China state and by making
hERMIESHSEDEEDE reference to comparable
sales evidences of similar
nature properties as available
in the relevant market.
BEARREERSER
5. R EmM AL
HEFBNERLEE -
Commercial properties in Level 2 Direct comparison method ~ N/A N/A
Hong Kong B8 assuming sale in its existing  ~NE A T
BEBENE state and by making
reference to comparable

sales evidences of similar
nature properties as available
in the relevant market.
BEUABRMRLERSZE
HmscRBMENTLL
HERBNERLEE -
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10 Investment properties (continued)

(BRIERERHRA

 BABAARESIR)
10 REME (&

(b) Fair value hierarchy (continued) (b) DAFESEH(E)
Relationship of
Carrying value of investment Fair value  Valuation technique(s) Significant unobservable  unobservable inputs
properties held by the Group hierarchy  and key input(s) input(s) to fair value
TABRBAYE
AEERERENEZREE AVLESSE HEAZRIZERAME EATTREBABE  HEATENRE
At 31 December 2019
R=B-Af+=ZA=t-H
Offices and commercial property in -~ Level 3 Term and reversion method ~ Reversion rate based The higher the reversion
Mainland China F=/ FHRERE on market research on rent, the higher the fair
FEIRAR AR R E comparable rentals and value.
making adjustments on EEHsHR
factors such as location, floor A {E#E o
size and facilities.
EHEEAREHEESH
mGRRTEREUE
BEEERSRESERE
HERE o
The key inputs are: Reversionary yield which is  The higher the
FTEHABES: 5% for offices, 4.25%~6% reversionary yield, the
(1)reversion rent; and for commercial properties lower the fair value.
EEHe R and 3% for car parking EBlEENS -
(2)reversionary yield spaces at each valuation AFEBIE o
ERRRE date.
REBERS  HOER
BHEKRREARS%  BEY
£RA%ECNRESS
B3% °
Commercial properties in Level 2 Direct comparison method ~ N/A N/A
Hong Kong F-M| assuming sale in its existing 7N A TER
EAEEME state and by making
reference to comparable

sales evidences of similar
nature properties as available
in the relevant market.
BEUBRMRLERS2ZE
Hmis RBEMENT L
HEXHNEZLEE
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10 Investment properties (continued)

(b)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

All of the Group’s investment properties were revalued as
at 31 December 2020. The valuations of all the properties
were carried out by an independent firm of surveyors,
Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory
Limited as at 31 December 2020 and the valuations of
properties were carried out by Cushman & Wakefield
Limited and Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and
Advisory Limited as at 31 December 2019. Both of the
surveyors have among their staff Fellows of the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in
the location and category of property being valued. The
Group’s management have discussed with the surveyors
on the valuation assumptions and valuation results when
the valuation is performed for financial reporting.

In estimating the fair value of the Group's investment
properties, the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent it is available and considers the highest and best use
of the properties is their current use. Where Level 1 inputs
are not available, the Group engages third party qualified
valuers to perform the valuation of the Group’s investment
properties. At the end of each reporting period, the
management of the Group works closely with the qualified
external valuers to establish and determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for Level 2 and Level 3
fair value measurements. The Group will first consider and
adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs can be transaction prices
or derived observable quoted prices in the active market.
When Level 2 inputs are not available, the Group will adopt
valuation techniques that include Level 3 inputs. Where
there is a material change in the fair value of the assets,
the causes of the fluctuations will be reported to the board
of directors of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or
out of Level 3 (2019: none).

(BRIEREHRA - BABHAAREFIR)

10 &BEWXE (&)

(b)

DNPEEFR(E)

AEBERMAREMENR_FT_ZTF
T_A=+—B&EHHE -
YRGB R B S A B AR T 1 & B
TEEFEMRERHERABNR-ZF
“EE+_A=+—B#ET MR
—E-NAF+ZA=+—RH - B%
REDHABERTERATDRTE
BITEXFBREANARABE
17 - MABEARNBE REER
BEIEGERGE  WAHMMEE
MR MR A GBS EER -
RIEETL AP BREMET AR
BEEERAERSR RGERERE
RIEEMETT R ©

EfAASEREMEZAFE
B NEEEAS 2 BERERT
BHBEIE  TEREBAAEH
RERREVERS - WL EE—
RBABE  AEEEREE=)
AERGEMBAKREZRENE
ETEE REREHR - AEH
BEERSERIIPEEMERS
AR REEAE 2 EERD
RBABE  ETF _ARE=R
RFEFE - WBABBRX5E
R Al BE B 5 2 Al B R{EEL
5 BIREES S ETE R MERN
F_MBABIE - SXEE R
ABER AKEBSRAEESR
=RBABBZAEERT - WEE
ZRFEHREAED  AEEHR
ARRESGERKE <A -

HE_Z2_TF+_H=+—H
EFE F—HREF_HHIE
EE B ARENE =R (=%
—NEF  E) o
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10 Investment properties (continued)

(c)

Total future minimum lease payments receivable
by the Group

The Group leases out investment properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 1 to 3 years, with an option to renew the lease
after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated.
Lease payments are usually increased each year to reflect
market rentals. None of the leases include variable lease
payment terms.

Undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in place at the reporting date will be
receivable by the Group in future periods as follows:

(9]

10 &®W¥xR (&)

g%@ﬂﬂﬂiﬁiﬁ*ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁt

AEFBNGE2HELTALEERE
WE - HOWN L FHAE H1E3
FUAEZARRERER &E
5 FT A IR BT RE RS - SR
BEGFEN ARBKRTSEE
BECAEEREAZBEEMRIE

o
N

RS B BE T LA A B &
MENARBRBEN TG HAEE
RARFEAFUER - 15T -

2020 2019

—E-EF —E-hF

RMB’'000 RMB’'000

ARET T AREFTT

(restated)

(&=5)

Within 1 year —F R 95,462 83,179
After 1 year but within 5 years —FBERFRAN 266,867 398,276
After 5 years AELAE 160,538 125,832
522,867 607,287
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11 Property, plant and equipment 11 YO%E - BERERR
Properties
leased for own
use carried at Furniture, Interests in
depreciated Plantand fixture and Motor Improvements leasehold land  Construction Hotel
cost  machinery  equipment vehicles  topremises  forownuse in progress building Total
EREENE Fe EREE

REERANE  REREE EREERZE fE V2L 1R kIR BERE Eh)

RB'000 RMB000 RB'000 RMB000 RB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RB'000 RMB000

ARBTT  ARBIn  ARETr  ARETR  ARET  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
(Note 12) (Note 12)
(1) (W)

Cost BA

At 1 January 2019 AZR-nE-A-A
As previously reported RT3 11973 b1 18113 3,809 4393 392,789 51,864 - 522,541
Adjstments arising from - FAA ST REA %

adoption of merger - EEHER (3100

accounting (note 1(b)) 5131 - 7442 9,812 0,64 21,748 132,498 - 298,255
As restated mEj 17,104 b1 25,555 13,621 65,556 414,537 284362 = 820,7%
Additions e 4616 - 4758 3007 4203 - 87,309 - 141913
Transfers g2 - - - - - (9,192) (274.854) 284,046 -
Disposals it (3.210) - (14) (1,884) - - - - (5,168)
Bichange adjustments R 2 - - 7 - - - - - 7

At31 December 2019 and H=F-AE+-F=1-8
1 January 2020 (retated) &‘E ZF-f-A

(@27 18450 61 30,326 14764 107,759 405,345 9,817 284,046 957,568
Additions HE 4490 - 1902 1598 9,598 - 115,980 - 133,568
Transfers £ - - - - - (8,544) 8544 - -
Acquistion of a subsidiary  JE-FHEA - - 291 - - = - = 21
Disposals fe - - (1,528) (1.941) - - - - (3469)
Bchange adustments B - - i - - - - - 3

At31December 200 R-E-EE+-A=1-A 20,940 b1 31,019 14421 17,357 39,801 21,34 284,046 1,087,986
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11 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 11 P ¥ - EERERE (&)

Properties
leased for own
use carried at Fumiture, Interests in
depreciated Plant and fixture Motor  Improvements leasehold land ~ Construction in Hotel
cost machingry  and equipment vehicles ~~topremises for own use progress building Total
BREENR g BREE

BREAATE  BERER BEEERGE hiE ESL b 41 ERIE il a3

RMB000 RVB'000 RMB000 RVB'000 RMB000 RVB'000 RVB'000 RIB000 RVB'000

ARETL  ARETT  ARETr  ARBTr  ARETr  ABETn  AE%Tn  ABETn  ARETR
(Note 12) (Note 12)
(Bi3E12) (Bizt12)

Accumulated depreciation 25t #&

At 1 January 2019 AZE-nE-A-A

fspeiousyreported AR - 5 11,515 1761 B! - - - 341
Adjstments arising from ~ FAA G &3 RE

adoption of merger FEELNER

acounting (note 10~ (B43E1(@) 1,548 - 5367 831 2771 - - - 18,059
As restated g5 1,548 5 16,882 10,134 27,862 - - - 56,480
Charge for the year ERH 3,881 - 3,065 1710 30017 - - 5,086 13759
Written back on disposals ~ HE&R (839 - B) (1439) - - - - )
Buchange adjustments 3 % - - ] = - - - - 7

At31 December 2019and R=E-AETZR=1-R
Z5E-R-A

1 January 2020 (restated)  R=F-F%-A—

(&E7)) 4,59 5 19,951 10405 51819 - = 5,086 97,969
Chargefortheyear A4 10526 - 383 1,758 12600 648 - 2610 53,985
Acquisiton of a subsidary & ~FHEAT - - 199 - - - - - 199
Written back on disposals  [HE&R - - (1,328) (1,636) - - - - (2,964)
Bchangeadjustments X 3% - - 10 - - - - - 10
At31December 200 RZE-EE+-A=1-R 15,120 5 22,655 10527 70,499 648 - 29,69 149,199

Net book values BEFE

At 31 December 2019 W-E-NET-F=1-A

(restated) (&m=5)) 13,856 1 10375 4359 49,830 405,345 9,817 278,960 859,599
At 31 December 2020 o 2 g e it 1820 I 8,364 3894 46,858 39,153 1,34 254,350 938,787
Notes: M5
As at 31 December 2020, the Group's properties and respective interests R-ZBE-_ZEF+_A=+—H B@BHFERHN
in leasehold land for own use with carrying amount of RMB274,803,000 BITERMEMERTIAAREEERTEAAR
(2019 (restated): RMB300,060,000) were pledged for bank loans and other #274,803,0007C (ZZE—NF (KEF) : AR
borrowings borrowed by related parties. 300,060,0007T) &) B FA¥ % & % B e & L i

s EHEI -
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12 Right-of-use assets 12 ERAEEE
The analysis of the net book value of the Group’s right-of-use REBFERABREENREEHARIRIEEAE
assets by class of underlying asset at the end of the reporting EERESHEESEESTIT
period is as follows:
2020 2019
et g 353 —E-NF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
[ihg=a AR¥T AREFTT
Included in “Property, plant and FATHE - BRERRZE]: 11
equipment”:
Ownership interests in leasehold land,  FA& +#th 7 A HERE RS (i)
carried at depreciated cost, with BT E K AT B
remaining lease term of between R T AT F102=505F
10 and 50 years 396,153 405,345
Other properties leased for own use,  HibEBEEME - KITE (i)
carried at depreciated cost X A1 BR 7,820 13,856
Included in “Investment properties”: & A[IREWE] : 10
Ownership interests in leasehold HEREMEZERRE
investment properties, at fair value, o EATEYE
with remaining lease term of between £ T FHHAN F10Z2504F
10 and 50 years 2,389,545 2,097,762
Included in “Prepaid lease FFATEMAEERE]: 14
payments”:
Ownership interests in leasehold land, — F & +th 7 ¥ B RS
at amortised cost, with remaining R SE K AR B BR
lease term of between 10 and 50 #2 THEIN T 1052505
years 449,480 463,979
Included in “Inventories and other £t A[FEREMEHNRA] -
contract costs”, with remaining R TN F10E504F :
lease term of between 10 and
50 years:
Properties under development for sale & &2 & ¥ 23,907,431 14,300,036
Completed properties for sale FEHE DB ME 1,011,229 444,428
28,161,658 17,725,406
Notes: (T
(i) The Group holds two parcels of leasehold lands for the construction (i) AEEFEWMBHE L BRERERE
of commercial properties comprising hotels. As at 31 December 2020, BENEEDE R-_ZT-_TF+_-H4
one of them was in progress. The Group is the registered owner of =+—H - ER B iEEITiERIAR ©
these leasehold lands. Lump sum payments were made upfront to NEBAZERET N ERHEGA R
acquire the leasehold lands and there are no ongoing payments to be BB ERR RKBEHEEL RIS
made under the terms of land lease. H— XM R WEIEEEITARR -
(i)  The Group has obtained the right to use other properties as its offices (if) AEEEEBHEHGZRESEREMYME
through tenancy agreements. The leases typically run for an initial EABERAEZMERN - ZSHHO—RINF
period of 2-5 years and do not include an option to renew the lease BH—EZ2RF  TRsREGNHTEER

for an additional period after the end of the contract term. EEME—BRHMZEE -
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 BRIBHUAREFITR)

(BRIERERHRA

Properties under development

The amount comprised project design and pre-development
costs, professional fees, amortisation of prepaid lease payments
capitalised and other related fees and taxes that are directly
attributable to the development of the Group’s prepaid lease
payments.

At 31 December 2020, the Group has not yet obtained the
approval on the planning design scheme from the relevant
government authorities as a result of certain additional
requirements imposed by the local government. The Group
is continuously negotiating with the relevant government
authorities and have obtained an initial compensation plan
proposed by the relevant local government authorities. The
director was of the opinion that no impairment provision would
be provided with reference to the compensation plan.

13

RRPYXR

IRE R IEIR A R KA AR R
BB EACAMGHERARERA
AEEBEAEARARREEAB L
fts A 2 P R A -

R-ZZE-_ZEE+-_A=+—B HRE
TR A TEINESR - AL
AEVEHBBFEBPEE RS RA TR
HEfE o NS [E IF B2 AR B AT SR P45 B
7o I BB E i BUF EEPI IR B e W
HERR - BEZLEZMETERER
e EHRERE -

Prepaid lease payments 14 FAFHERE
2020 2019
—EB-BF —T-NF
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
M AR¥ T ARBFIT
At 1 January w—A—H 463,979 478,478
Amortisation for the year F R 5 (14,499) (14,499)
At 31 December WN+=-—A=+—H 449,480 463,979
Analysed for reporting purpose as: TERENDTAE
Current assets MENEE 14,499 14,499
Non-current assets ERBEE 434,981 449,480
12 449,480 463,979
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15 Interests in other entities 15 REMERZER
The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries THRENLHAEB 2 XE BEELE
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the BEEATEZHNBRAREE -BEAE
Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise FIBRSN - P M FE RIS A mA% -
stated.
(@) Investment in subsidiaries () RMBRATRIZ®RE
Proportion of ownership interest
RERERTD
Place of Group's
incorporation Particulars of effective ~ Held by the Held by a
Name of company and business issued capital interest Company subsidiary Principal activity
A LR 58
PEES B BEGITS ¢ ERER AmA0ERE BWELARE IERR
Harbin Lifestyle Commercial Harbin USD18,000,000 100% - 100%  Property investment
Buiding Co., Ltd.* REE 18,000,000% 7T NERE
LB RN EEEERAT
Shenyang Yifu Property Company* Shenyang 15D89,990,000 100% - 100%  Property investment
REREEFARAT i) 89,990,000 ¢ VIEZE
Lifestyle Plaza (Qingdao) Co,, Limited* Qingdao RMB225,000,000 100% - 100%  Property investment
RREE (BR)ARLA E8 225,000,000 K nERE
Zhanggiu Zhengda Tianyuan Zhangqiu RMB18,000,000 80% - 80%  Real estate development
Development Limited* il 18,000,000A R % BEHELR
SREARRERERAR
Pingtan Yangguang Guohang Pingtan RMB300,210,000 90% - 100%  Realestate development
Land Limiteq TE 300210000A K EHELR
TERAEMENERAA
Rudong Sansheng Real Estate Nantong RMB350,000,000 92% - 92%  Real estate development
Development Limited* g 350,000000A K% EHELR
MR=ABHEREARAT
Fuzhou Shenghai Real Estate Fuzhou RMB200,000,000 30% - 30%  Real estate development
Development Lirited* (note) B 200,000,000\ &% FHELE

ENEERHEREARAR (W)
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15 Interests in other entities (continued) 15 REMERZER (])
(a) Investment in subsidiaries (continued) () RMBATZERE (&)
Proportion of ownership interest
REEERTD
Place of Group's
incorporation Particulars of effective ~ Held by the Held by a
Name of company and business issued capital interest Company subsidiary Principal activity
ERRLR 15H
rAER ERY ERfTRAER ERER HADREE BMBLAARE IEXH
Fuzhou Shengxin Real Estate Fuzhou RMB200,000,000 100% - 100%  Real estate development
Development Limited B 200,000000A K% EHELR
BNRREHERERRAA
Fuzhou Zhisheng Real Estate Fuzhou RMB50,000,000 30% - 30%  Real estate development
Development Lirited* (note) & 50,000,000A &% EHELE
BNBEEHERERRAA (W)
Fuzhou Shengquan Real Estate Fuzhou RMB19,608,000 28% - 51%  Real estate development
Development Limited* (note) B 19,608,000 A B FHELE
BAREEREREERAD ()
Fujian Pusheng Real Estate Xiapu RMB50,000,000 55% = 100%  Real estate development
Development Limited* % 50,000,000A &% EHELE
BRAEEHEREERART
Longhai Sansheng Real Estate Limited* Zhangzhou RMB50,000,000 95% = 100%  Real estate development
EE-REXARAT B 50,000,000 A K% BHEER
Wuxi Xidong Automobile Square Wuxi RMB107,766,746 100% - 100%  Real estate development
Development Company Limited* & 107,766,146 A K B FHEER
BERREEAREERAT
Fujian Shengchuang Real Estate Fuzhou RMB10,526,300 95% - 95%  Real estate development
Development Co, Lt * il 10526 J0AR % BHESR
BREAEHEREARAT
Fuzhou Hongsheng Real Estate Fuzhou RMB50,000,000 95% - 100%  Real estate development
Development Co,, Ltd.* B 50,000,000A &% FHELR

BMEEEHERERRAR
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(BRIERBHP - BRIHUAAREIITR)
15 REMERZER (]|)

15 Interests in other entities (continued)
Investment in subsidiaries (continued)

(a)

(@) RIBRRZRE (F)

Proportion of ownership interest

REEERTD
Place of Group's
incorporation Particulars of effectie ~ Held by the Held by a
Name of company and business issued capital interest Company subsidiary Principal activity
ERRLR 5R
PEES £330 BEIREER EREE mARERE AWELARE IEXE
Fujian Tianren Real Estate Fuzhou RMB20,000,000 86% - 90%  Real estate development
Development Co, Ltd.* & 20,000,000A K& EHELR
BRATRHERLARAR
Changzhou Runsheng Real Estate Changzhou RMB200,000,000 9% - 100%  Real estate development
Development Co, Ltd.* BN 200,000000A K% BEHELR
BN BREHEREARAR
Putian Tangshun Real Estate Putian RMB400,000,000 35% - 35%  Real estate development
Development Co,, Ltd.* &M 400,000,000A K FHELR
("Putian Tangshun”) (note)
AEEREEREARAA
DGR
Zhangzhou Zhuosheng Real Zhangzhou RMB60,000,000 1% = 75%  Real estate development
Estate Limited* 2N 60,000,000A K% EHELR
EMEREFERAR
Haimen Sansheng Real Estate Limited* Nantong RMB20,000,000 80% - 100%  Real estate development
B BEHEREARAT ] 20,000000A K% FHELR
Yantai Shengyiang Real Estate Limited* Yantai RMBI,140,000,000 97% - 100%  Real estate development
BREEEZERAT Ba 1,140,000,000A R FHELR
Changzhou Nuotingshan Changzhou RMB12,000,000 51% - 100%  Real estate development
Real Etate Limited* B 12000,000AR % BHELR
ENRRAE LR EREARAA
Putianshi Shenghe Real Estate Limited* Putian RMB39,215,600 51% - 51%  Real estate development
ERMENEHERSERAT ] 39215, 60ARH FHERR
Taicangshi Wanxin Real Estate Limited*(note) Taicang RMB460,000,000 34% - 100%  Real estate development
RETEERHEREERAR (W) A8 460,000000A R BHELR
Fuzhou Shengain Real Estate Limited* Fuzhou RMB25,000,000 20% - 40%  Real estate development
("Fuzhou Shenggin) (note) 2 25,000,000A K FHERR

EMESESEREARAR
(FRMES)) ()
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15 Interests in other entities (continued) 15 REMERZER (I8
(a) Investment in subsidiaries (continued) () RMBATZERE (&)
Proportion of ownership interest
REEERTD
Place of Group's
incorporation Particulars of effective ~ Held by the Held by a
Name of company and business issued capital interest Company subsidiary Principal activity
ALK 558
AEH £330} BEGITS ¢ EREE hZ0ARE mMELARE IERR
Danyangshi Hongtai Real Estate Limited* ~ Danyang RMB10,000,000 51% - 100%  Real estate development
e EREHESRARAT A5 10,000,000A R % FHELR
Wenzhou Rongzhen Real Estate Limited* Wenzhou RMB20,000,000 95% - 100%  Real estate development
ANREEHEREARAA bl 20,000,000\ K% BHERR
Hangzhou Xiaolin Real Estate Limited* (note) - Hangzhou RMB1,000,000,000 28% - 100%  Real estate development
MBEEZERAA (W) fiM 1,000,000000A K % BHEER
Shaoxing Ronghang Real Estate Limited* ~ Shaoxing RMB10,000,000 95% - 100%  Real estate development
AR EHERERRAA g 10,000,000A R % BEHELR
Shantou Shengchuang Real Estate Limited*  Shantou RMB20,000,000 95% - 100%  Real estate development
IERAERARAR il 20,000000A K% FHELR
Chengdu Shengzhen Real Estate Limited* ~ Chengdu RMB353,205,900 100% = 100%  Real estate development
RBEEREHERERRAT n# 353,205, 900A R ¥ BHERR
Chengdu Jisheng Real Estate Co,, Ltd.* Chengdu RMB290,000,000 95% - 100%  Real estate development
RBTEEFERAA w# 290,000,000A R ¥ FHEXR
Yangzhou Sansheng Real Estate Development - Yangzhou RMB420,000,000 95% - 100%  Real estate development
Co,, Ltd.* ("Yangzhou Sansheng ") bl 420,000,000A K% FHELR
PN=BEHERERRAR (AN=R)
Fujian Mingiao Real Estate Development Fuzhou RMB50,000,000 95% - 100%  Real estate development
Co, Ltd.* ("Fujian Mingao”) EH 50,000000A K% FHELR
ERERRHERLARAA (REHE)
Qingdao Haishang Real Estate Co., Ltd.* Qingdao RMB103,896,000 70% - 100%  Real estate development
("Qingdao Haishang”) BB 103,896,000A K EHELR

FRBLEFARAR(EREL)
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15 Interests in other entities (continued) 15 REMERZER (]|)
(@) Investment in subsidiaries (continued) () RMBARZIRE ()
Proportion of ownership interest
REEERTD
Place of Group's
incorporation Particulars of effective ~ Held by the Held by a
Name of company and business issued capital interest Company subsidiary Principal activity
ALK 558
AER B BEGITS ¢ EREE mA0ARE BWELARE IERR
Wenling Rongfa Real Estate Wenling RMB11,111,100 76% - 80%  Real estate development
Development Co, Ltd.* ot 1,111,10A K% EHELE
RERERHERLARAR
Jiangsu Zheguang Real Estate Co., Ltd.* (note) Xuzhou RMB30,000,000 48% - 100%  Real estate development
TEREFARAA (i) M 30,000000A R FHERR
Fuzhou Shenglong Real Estate Fuzhou RMB50,000,000 95% = 100%  Real estate development
Development Co,, Ltd.* = 50,000,000A R % FHELE
BNRERDEREARLA
Putian Shengxiang Real Estate Putian RMB20,000,000 70% - 100%  Real estate development
Development Co,, Ltd.* #H 20000000\ K% FHELE
BETREEHEREERAR
Quanzhou Shengchuang Quanzhou RMB30,000,000 95% - 100%  Real estate development
Real Estate Co,, Lid * M 30,000,000A K% BHESR
SNEAEXARAR
Hanzhong Tianyu Xinye Real Estate Hanzhong RMB128,600,000 95% - 100%  Real estate development
Development Co, Lic* 24 128,600,000A K% BHESR
("Hanzhong Tianyu")
AR AR ERYARREAT
( Lia:A)
Xuzhou Rongzhi Real Estate Xuzhou RMB20,000,000 48% - 100%  Real estate development
Development Co,, Ltd.*(note) M 20,000000AE % EHELRE
RHREFHERERRAA (W)
Hebei Shengjun Real Estate Shijiazhuang RMB10,000,000 76% - 80%  Real estate development
Development Co,, Ltd.* e 10,000,000\ K% FHELE
LB R EREARAR
Tangshan Shengchuang Real Estate Shijiazhuang RMB10,000,000 64% - 67%  Real estate development
Development Co,, Ltd.* AR 10,000000A K% FHEER
ELEHEEREARAR
Ruian Ronghong Real Estate Limited* (note) ~ Wenzhou RMB500,000,000 2% - 100%  Real estate development

ERENEFEREMNR (W) B 500,000,000 A &1 FHELR
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15 Interests in other entities (continued)
(@) Investment in subsidiaries (continued)

15

BRBGAARKEIIR)

REMERZER (&)
(@) RBLRRZRE (H)

Proportion of ownership interest

REEERTD
Place of Group's
incorporation Particulars of effective ~ Held by the Held by a
Name of company and business issued capital interest Company subsidiary Principal activity
eI R 558

ARER £330} BEGITS ¢ EREE hZ0ARE mMELARE IERR

Shanghai Aipu Enterprise Management Shanghai RMB5,000,000 51% - 51%  Business services
Co, Ltd.*("Shanghai Aipu’) L 5,000000A R % BERHE

LEFRORERARAR ([ LEER))

Shanghai Shengjun Industrial Development  Shanghai RMB1,000,000,000 51% 51%  Business services
Co,, Ltd.* ("Shanghai Shengjun”) LE 1,000,000000A £ EELY

LRBEERRERARAA(LARE))

Hangzhou Zhonghuan Enterprise Hangzhou RMB1,000,000,000 28% 51%  Business services
Management Co, Ltd* il 1,000,000,000A K% EELS
("Hangzhou Zhonghuan”) (note)

ANRREZERARAR
(MM (W)

Shanghai Shengcha Industrial Development  Shangha RMB600,000,000 34% 34%  Business services
Co, Ltd)* (“Shanghai Shengcha”) (note) ~ £/& 600,000,000 A E 1 BERE

LERREXRRERAA
(T LBBR) (i)

Wenzhou Kangsheng Properties Co., Ltd*  Wenzhou RMB500,000,000 2% = 25%  Real estate development
("Wenzhou Kangsheng") (note) Pt 500,000000A K% EHELR

ARREFERAT
(NEMER) (W)

Rudong Yinsheng Real Estate Nantong RMB20,000,000 50% - 50%  Real estate development
Development Co, Ltd.* (note) ] 20,000000A K% BHEER

MRBEEERLARAA ()

@ These entities are limited liability companies incorporated in * ZEERATBEAM MK 2 BR
Mainland China. The English translation of the names are for BEERA - BAER 2 R EEEE
reference only. The official names of the companies are in BH2E - ZERFRXEHTBH
Chinese. BH &M .

Note: In accordance with the shareholders’ agreements, the Group
controls these entities as the Group has rights to take unilateral
decisions on relevant developing, operating and financing
activities which significantly affect the returns, and the Group
is exposed to variable returns from its involvement with the
entities.

ffeE - REBACR IR - ARAEEAELZ
SERNERRE KLMREEE
EHETEAEMEATEMIR @ )
AEEZHIELER  WESETE
BT ERSFH @R -
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15 Interests in other entities (continued) 15 HNEMERZEE (|)
(@) Investment in subsidiaries (continued) (@) RHBATZERE (&)
The following table lists out the information relating TRINHEBAEEFESE AFEE
to subsidiaries of the Group which have material R ZIB AT 2&F - TR
non-controlling interests (NCI). The summarised financial HUBERBE D ARETR RIS
information presented below represents the amounts P EFE o

before any inter-company elimination.

Fuzhou ~ Shanghai  Hangzhou  Wenzhou Shanghai
Shenggin*  Shengcha*  Zhonghuan* ~ Kangsheng* Jiangsu Zheguang Qingdao Haishang Shengjun*
EhEgr  LEER  GiNRE  EAER THIR EEEL LEgE

000 00 2000 2000 000 019 000 2019 000
CECRF CRCRR CRCRE CRCRF CRIRE MR CRCRE CE0F DRSS
RMBO0O  RVBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBO0  RMB000  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMB'OOO  RMBO0O
ARMTT  ARMTT  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARRTR  ARMTn  ARMTR  ARMTR

NCl percentage FEREREAN 60% 66% 49% 75% 19% 49% 2% 2% 19%
Curtent assels i9LE 632768 1070264 10 468797 20100 313286 4650480 AGRIT 999999
Non-current asses FRBEE § - 1,000,000 6,644 1279 - 81,501 9,644 =
Curent iabltes hiEIEL 16409 470259 1 4288408 1098349 - 3018990 4288408 2
Net asses BERE 56368 600005 1000006 28073 116442 31326 7931 203 999997

Camying amount of NCI FoRER BRE 351,821 396,003 490,003 210,550 510517 153510 189,621 %9 489,999

(lossproft and totel EnEEk
compreensive ncoe (B#)/5HR
dtrbutabletosharcholder  2EAEEE

forthe year (1.453) 2 3 @) (18,135) = 331,948 (10,845) ]
(los)profitand ot AMTHERER,

comprehensie income (BR)/ R

alocated o NCI YRR (2179 3 3 6 (1743 - 116630 (3810) 1)
Cash flows (usedinjfgenerated 581 (1) /578

from Reig
- operating activtes - {8y (8323)  (164403) (35,680) (64,960) (374,270 - (1,156,888) 655,690 (13,560)
~investing acitie - R - - - - = = (268) (1,252 -
- financing actives - BBy 8,636 164,403 35,690 64,965 113,186 = 870,397 (343028) 13,569

& These companies were set up in 2020. * ZERAR_TE_TFRL °



SmER(EE)ERAT (] —F-SFEH

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i & M35 83 R0

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FrIEB BT * & RIHUAAREIR)

15 Interests in other entities (continued) 15 REMERZER (])
(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries (b) WEBKIE A =]
To further expand the land banks, the Group entered into B — SR TR AN R
following agreements with independent third parties to BUE=FHFFTATHE - AUKEE
acquire certain companies. E = /NI

Percentage of
Acquisition Consideration equity interest

date transferred acquired
Bl R
Wi B EA BEEENE AL
RMB’000
ARETF T
Shanghai Aipu 5 January 2020
R —E-TF
—HAR 173,400 51%
Wenzhou Kangsheng 19 August 2020
N BE = —E-TF
NA+HE 297,137 25%
Hanzhong Tianyu 20 August 2020
E R —E-TF

NAZ+H 165,117 100%
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15 REMBERZER ()
(b) WEEHE 2R ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BRIESE =B

15 Interests in other entities (continued)
(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued)

2020

—EB-EF

RMB’000

ARBT T

Cash and cash equivalents ReRBESEEY 425
Trade and other receivables JFEE LT B SRR e L b JE W R T8 281,623
Inventories and other contract costs FE REAME KRR 1,735,912
Property, plant and equipment I E &L 148
Trade and other payables JET‘JLEETA&E%L‘EH%’UE (290,843)
Non-controlling interests FEVE AR 2 (1,091,610)
Net assets acquired attributable to the Group REERAAMBIEEEFE 635,655
Consideration of acquisition of equity interests W BB RS R (B 635,655
Less: Consideration payable (note 24) B EARE (T sE24) 48,654

Total cash and cash equivalents acquired PR iE IR & MR &

ZEMIRE 425

Net cash outflow RERH FH 586,576

The acquired subsidiaries contributed revenue of RMB
Nil and net loss of RMB6,649,000 attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2020. Should the acquisitions have
occurred on 1 January 2020, the consolidated revenue
and the consolidated profit attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2020 would have been RMB8,778,600,000 and
RMB809,060,000 respectively. The acquired subsidiaries’
major assets are properties under development. The
directors consider that the purpose of acquiring those
subsidiaries is solely to acquire the underlying properties.

HEz—_Z-_ZTF+_A=+—8H
mﬁf Fri &M B AR AKAE R
BEBRREERBKAARBEZT TR
15 % 65 18 A R #6,649,0007T °
h%%%ﬁﬁ_?_qi A—
A4 AlEE—= §$+ A
== E¢$F$ A = R
FEAEER & WA KR & 7 #5 5 Bl
B AR #8,778,600,0007T & A R #
809,060,0007T ° FT Y EERTE R A AY
FEEELABERYE -BEERE
WEZENB AR ZBENELSKE
e -
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15 Interests in other entities (continued)

(c)

Joint operation

Zhangzhou Deyousheng Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd. (“Zhangzhou Deyousheng”) is engaged in two real
estate development projects on separate land use rights
it holds. They are Gulf Taiwu City* (“/&&e KEI ", the
“first project”) and International Harbour* (“BIF&=",
the “second project”). In 2013, Mr. Lin Rongbin became
the controlling party of Zhangzhou Deyousheng and by
December 2015, the first project had been substantially
completed and delivered, with certain residual assets and
liabilities subject to further disposition and settlement.

Xiamen Sansheng Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Xiamen
Sansheng”), a subsidiary of the Group, acquired 83.15%
of the registered capital of Zhangzhou Deyousheng from
Mr. Lin Rongbin and others in September 2015. Xiamen
Sansheng further acquired the additional 16.85% of the
registered capital of Zhangzhou Deyousheng in December
2017. For the purposes of defining and securing their
respective interests in the first and the second projects,
Xiamen Sansheng in conjunction with the acquisition of
the second project in Zhangzhou Deyousheng entered into
a contractual arrangement with Mr. Lin Rongbin in 2015.
Under the arrangement, the parties undertook to jointly
sustain the ongoing segregation of the business operations
while maintaining their unilateral rights to manage the
ongoing development and being fully exposed to the
risks and rewards of their respective projects. As such, the
parties’ respective rights and obligations in Zhangzhou
Deyousheng differ from the percentage of shareholdings
in Zhangzhou Deyousheng. The contractual arrangement
took effect from September 2015 and will remain effective
until the remaining business dealings of the first project are
fully completed.

* The English translation of the project names and the company
name is for reference only. The official name is in Chinese.

(BRIEREHRA - BABHAAREFITR)

15 REMBERZ#ER (K)

(0

HERE
ENEREFMERZEAR AR
(DEMERE]) RERFENS L
MWiEAENEMEMEREIAR -
HGEE e Ky (156 —EEA )
LEERERE(TFE_EEA]) - R®
T -=F MERBEREKREM
RRENERS  RR-FT—HF
T-A F—EARECEARTY
RN ETHTEERAGEAEE—
FTREREE -

EM=ZREXERAA(EM=
B (REBMHEAR) R_F
—RAFNAEMEEBEEREM
AT WEEMNEREFEMEARD
83.15% c BEFI =N T — 4
+ = BE— S WEEMNE R M
B AR16.85% - AR T MERKESE
RE—EIEEB RFE_EEEB R H#E
H R-E—RHF EFZKER
SENER A —E1E B g =
MEEBREFT LA HLHE - BIER
B AT A R B EITRE
BEBEDE  FRRSFEEEERLE
EETHEEENETEER - I
FHAEFESEEENRR&E
wWoEW  FTHAFSEREMNER
BRHEN REFEENEMNERE
R ER DL TR - BT HEBE =
T—RAFNAER UHEERW
EE—AEEMNBRTEERSZE

+
=

i

* HEAER ARG EXEHEE
REEHZEZ -FAXEWIBEES
#TE o




Sansheng Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. 2()4 ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBEHRERME

(BRIEREHRA - BABHAAREFIR)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

16 Interestsin joint ventures

16 REELRMER

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Share of net liabilities iR FaE (20,062) (6,428)
Shareholder’s loans to joint ventures (note) A& &R EER
(B &E) 550,225 215,870
530,163 209,442
2020 2019
—B-2HF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARBFIT
Aggregate carrying amount of individually — 4R 4 Bk BB i T
immaterial joint ventures in the EEMNEELEMNKRRE
consolidated financial statements 4azE 536,591 209,442
Aggregate amount of the Group’s share of FERRNEBELHZELE
those joint ventures’ profits 1B R H M B FRE 1B &
less losses and total comprehensive 2ENE B
income for the year (13,634) (6,428)

Management considers that none of the joint ventures of the
Group will have significant impact to the financial position and

BEEERN  ARBESEDLEKER T
SUHAKENM BN R EEEREXN

performance of the Group individually. TE o

Mzt - MREECEBENGER & CEER
B IR RR 1 55 69 #5 AR 2 Lb A1) S AR #8416k 3R
MZAECERRERER - ZEERB
IR R R RIBRZA ECEEREN
HipmE - EREMZEERERNSE
TEZMECENE BASZAED
ERETRINREE R B AR EER A
BEZSAER - - Bk REEFERAR
SEREERERERE 2 EKIBM I
RULTER ©

Note: In accordance with the terms of the joint venture agreement, both
parties to the joint venture have provided loan capital to the joint
venture in proportion to their shareholdings and under equal terms.
The loans are unsecured, interest free and subordinated to the other
financing obtained by the joint venture. Repayment of any amount
of the loan capital requires both venturers’ approval and is subject
to the joint venture having sufficient assets after taking into account
the external financing and accumulated profits. Accordingly, the
shareholder’s loan forms an integral part of the Group’s equity
investment in the joint venture and is recognised as such.



(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

17 Inventories and other contract costs

=Rk (RE)BRAR

205 -—s-s=F4

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i & M35 83 R0

(BRIERERHRA

 BABAARESIR)
17 #FRERAEMSHHSE

2020 2019
—EEE —ZT—hE
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T AREET T
(restated)
(r&&E51))
Properties under development for sale FEERRYE 35,481,758 23,947,212
Completed properties for sale FHELE BB 2,601,788 1,214,623
38,083,546 25,161,835
Other contract costs Hith & £ A 234,735 199,887
38,318,281 25,361,722
(a) Inventories (a) =1

The amount of inventories recognised as an expense and
included in profit or loss is as follows:

%
R BEX R ABRNTE S E
W :

2020 2019

—ECERHE —F-NEF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®ET T ARBEF T

(restated)

(FeE )

Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFEMNEREEE 6,227,633 1,413,223
Write-down of inventories WoRFEE 37,751 41,018
Reversal of write-down of inventories BEMRTE (15,859) =
6,249,525 1,454,241

The amount of properties under development for
sale expected to be recovered after more than
one year is RMB23,141,786,000 (2019: (restated)
RMB17,863,151,000). All of the other inventories are
expected to be recovered within one year.

As at 31 December 2020, certain properties under
development for sale and completed properties for sale
were pledged for certain bank loans and other borrowings
(see note 22).

EFHREBEA—FrKEZ2FHS
BERIAWMWEZEEAARE
23,141,786,0007C (=& — L F (&
&%) : AR¥17,863,151,0007T) °
TEETFTE M FESE—FAURE -

RZE-_ZFF+_A=+—H =&
EERERETHRITERREME
RN BETHERRTPYWERE
EHEE SR MEEER (R
22) °
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17 Inventories and other contract costs
(continued)

(b)

()

The analysis of carrying value of leasehold land

BRIGUAARKEIIR)

17 FRERMSHEE (&)
(b) FFAGEBRTUWENFFAR

held included in properties under development for S+ HEREmMESATMT :
sale is as follows:
2020 2019
—E-EH —ZE—NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREEFTT
(restated)
(&&E51)
In Mainland China, with remaining FERH - s TNHEEA
lease term of:
— 50 years or more - 50 A 24,838,113 11,519,525
— between 10 and 50 years - 102504 4,487,198 3,198,000
29,325,311 14,717,525
Contract costs (00 EBHEAK
Contract costs capitalised as at 31 December 2020 relate to RZZE-ZEF+-_A=+—HER

the incremental sales commissions paid to property agents
whose selling activities resulted in customers entering into
sale and purchase agreements for the Group’s properties
which are still under construction at the reporting date.
Contract costs are recognised as part of “selling and
marketing expenses” in the statement of profit or loss in
the period in which revenue from the related property sales
is recognised. The amount of capitalised costs recognised
in profit or loss during the year was RMB107,250,000 (2019
(restated): RMB67,609,000). There was no impairment in
relation to the opening balance of capitalised costs or the
costs capitalised during the year (2019 (restated): Nil).

The Group applies the practical expedient in paragraph
94 of HKFRS 15 and recognises the incremental costs
of obtaining contracts relating to the sale of completed
properties and services as an expense when incurred if the
amortisation period of the assets that the Group otherwise
would have recognised is within the same reporting period
as the date of entering into the contract.

The amount of capitalised contract costs that is expected to
be recovered after more than one year is RMB97,870,000
(2019 (restated): RMB86,011,000).

IEMEHRARFRBENELEED
BYRERAEENRE B HNE
ERPNYEITILEETEHZEANY
ERENEEHEERS - NAEEY
%féEFEEﬁH&AﬁE R HARE A

AR AREL i‘%qﬂﬁﬁaﬁﬁrﬁéﬁ
&m%%&ﬁ&ﬁsﬂ FRREBZF
ﬁﬁmﬁ’]émzﬁk$igﬁﬁ)\ﬁﬁ%
107,250,000t (ZZE — N F (K&
5) : AR #67,609,0007T) - B
BEARE AR F VR R FERNE AR
e AL ERE (T —NF (KE
H) ;) o

AEBERANRBEVHERELEDNE
1558 AR M AT ITHEE J70% » i AR
SERAAEMTAER L ZEFER
EN#EPEERRIILAaNBEE
MAERIRERA  MEABIHEE
B3 R BRTS 2 & #0388 B AR R
E/_:EETEEH 7%5‘%35

TEHA R — E&utﬁﬂ%@a@
EBARECEOKRAEEEARE
97,870,000 (:%Q ﬂ¢ (r &=

5l) + AER#86,011,0007T) ©
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18 Trade and other receivables 18 FEUGAR =X K H fth FE U SR IB

2020 2019
—g=%& | —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
(restated)
(F&E3))
Trade receivables, net of loss allowance FEUREBR TN - OBR ES 1B R
((note (a)) (B E(a)) 34,905 14,507
Other receivables ((note (b)) H i W kIR (Bt 5 (b)) 694,075 118,557
Advances to Fuzhou Sansheng ((note (c)) &N = B B B R (KT 5E(0)) = 235,443
Amounts due from joint ventures FEU A & > FRIE 22,606 =
Amounts due from non-controlling interests i Uz 3F4% A% 4 25 7B
(note (d)) (B () 2,172,412 121,989
Financial assets measured at amortised cost IR EESHR AT EM S REE 2,923,998 490,496
Prepaid VAT and surcharges TR IS AR KT anEL 1,416,474 1,087,135
Deposits and prepayments (note (e)) & R FIA (KiEe) 692,993 313,905
5,033,465 1,891,536
Note: Mt 5E
(@  As at 31 December 2020, trade receivables are mainly rental @ R=F_FF+_A=+—H  EUREX
receivables with ageing of within one year based on the invoice date. Ey e 75— F NI E R E B HA fEE
(b)  Other receivables as at 31 December 2020 include an amount of b R_F_FFF_A=+—H HEK
RMB410,415,000 (2019: Nil) representing advances from pre-sale HIE B AR %410,415,0007T (ZZE—N,
of certain property projects in Changzhou and Xuzhou deposited in F ) - RIRIR P HOR 1 UNE
certain institutions designated by Housing Security and Real Estate FERENEMEEIERHIETMNE THREN
Administration under the local regulatory policy. The amount will be BN RN BE T Y RIE E MR E K o
released in installments according to the progress of the construction R EFIE IR IR K 3 RIE B W EOE
of property development projects. Since certain institutions are 2 HIB M > INE TR SRR B 5 BUS
ultimately held by the local government with good credibility, the BAE FEERN BWAKRERAEERR
Group considers that the credit risk is low. BIE -
Other receivables as at 31 December 2020 also include an amount R-Z_ZF+_A=+—H HMEK
of RMB140,000,000 (2019: Nil) representing cooperation intention FENBEMNEESEIXNANEESR
funds paid to the intended partners. Under terms of the contracts A & A K #140,000,0007T (= F — N4 ¢
signed, the intention funds would be treated as security deposit. &) - RIBE R NG ZEMEH
When the development site was confirmed, the intention funds would ERIESRE - ERERAMEER  BM
be paid as part of land cost. If the intended partners and the Group SRER AR — O  HAE
failed to obtain the land, the funds will be returned once the contract é{”ﬁﬁéﬁiﬂiﬁﬁiééﬁé?? +i - BIZEE
terminated. Most of the contracts last less than one year and the SREGRNRIEERE - KEHA K AH
Group considers the credit risk is low. PR—F  HAEERAEERRBRRK -
(0  Advances to Fuzhou Sansheng are mainly under Time Fortune (@ BN =ENRARERE T NFRER
Investments Limited and its subsidiaries acquired in year of 2019. The HEREBRAARAMBEARIET - 3%
amounts were fully settled in early January 2020. EHRBEERZZ_ZTF— AYIBEES -
(d)  Amounts due from non-controlling interests are unsecured, interest d) FUCHEBRESFAREER 28 NA
free and repayable on demand. As the amounts could be recovered IR ESREIE - R RIA A 5 58 1K S5 TR i A
by offsetting with the expected distributable profits to the respective Dk T & IR MBI R - R
non-controlling interests, management considered that the risk of EBRAZEEBEERNRBREM

default in repayment from these entities is remote.

(e) Other deposits and prepayment mainly represent deposits and (e)
prepayment on land use rights, construction cost and deposits of water
and electricity, gas and public maintenance funds paid on behalf of the
customers.

H iz e RIE IR L BRIBRE S B
B i BRI S R IR PUR - TIREE
IARKE - R RHBEERSNES -
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19 Financial assets at fair value through profit

20

21

19 BAFEHARZZEMNEE

or loss
2020 2019
—EIEF —E-NF
RMB'OOO RMB’000
AR®ET T ARETIT
Units in trust protection fund ErREESEN 85,420 46,749
Restricted deposits 20 ZRBER
2020 2019
—ECEH — &
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T ARBTIT
(restated)
(K& E3))
Pledged for mortgage arrangement of the Y EN =Wk e 2
property buyers (note (a)) (FF (@) 104,451 313,587
Pledged for construction of pre-sold TRE M EEREM (b))
properties (note (b)) 10,184 110,629
Others EAh 4,582 =
119,217 424,216
Note: FtE

(a)

In accordance with relevant contracts, certain property development
companies of the Group are required to place in designated bank
accounts certain cash deposits as collateral for mortgage loans
advanced to property buyers. Such guarantee deposits will be released
after the property ownership certificates of the relevant properties are
passed to the banks.

In accordance with the relevant documents issued by the local
state-owned land and resource bureau, certain property development
companies of the Group are required to place at designated bank
accounts the pre-sale proceeds of properties received as the guarantee
deposits for constructions of related properties. The deposits can only
be used for purchases of construction materials and payments of
construction fees of related property projects upon the approval of the
local state-owned land and resource bureau. Such guarantee deposits
will be released according to the completion stage of the related
pre-sold properties.

Cash and cash equivalents and other cash
flow information

(a)

The cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement
of financial position and the consolidated statement of
cash flows as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 are all cash
at bank and on hand.

As at 31 December 2020, RMB7,093,274,000 (2019
(restated): RMB1,675,459,000) is placed at the banks in
Mainland China. Remittance of funds out of the Mainland
China is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC
government.

21

(b)

RBIEEAY  AEEETHERERRF
BIEEFRITESPHENE THREFHR © 1F
RENTYEBE T RBEROERR - &R
Z‘égﬁ%ﬁé‘*ﬁEﬁ#@%ﬁ’ﬂ%iﬂ%%’é%ﬁ?&%i&?ﬂé
BR o

*E}J%ﬂ’gﬁﬁiiﬂzéﬁ?ﬁﬁi@%ﬁ%Zﬁ%ﬁY
- AEEETYRERARFEEETR
ﬁﬂﬁfﬁT‘HMZHXEﬁ?ﬁ’%%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬁ)\{’ﬁﬁ
HEMETRENRES - ERFITEEL
WEREEBIET - ZiRES RATAR
ﬂ% S EEME R X ARSI B #EEE
% - ZRES R e REEZAREE RN
TEAKBE BIERRRR o

HekieFRULREME
®RERH

(a)

RZBZEFR=_T—NF+=A
== EIEI’J?V?./:.\HM‘%W:/R?E&?EQ
Ei/}m%%{lﬂ\]mfﬁi&ﬁdf—rﬁw
BEMBRITRERFHEES

RZZF-_FEF+=-_A=+—H" A
EM7,093,274,00075 (ZE—NF (&
F751)) : AR®1,675,459,0007T) 77 A
AR b Y SR 1T o 4 F B IR 3 B R
ZIBINET BT INEI R § o
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21 HeaRBeFRULIREME
®REEHE (])
(b) BAGNRELEZHHAERSE

21 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash

flow information (continued)
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash

generated from operations: ¥ iR
2020 2019
—E-EHE —E-NE
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
iz AR¥T T AREFT
(restated)
(/&%)
(Note 1(b))
(Bt 2E1(b))
Operating activities REEE
Profit before taxation AT F 1,689,989 309,809
Adjustments for: BATSBEELFE
Depreciation and amortisation ENE#E 5(c) 68,484 58,258
Fair value changes on listed equity FARAZER D TEEE
securities - (8,545)
Interest income on bank deposits RITHERZFBUWA (9,832) (7,036)
Dividend income from financial assets & A F{EzF ABHZ
at fair value through profit or loss ERMEEZREKA - (147)
Share of profit less losses of joint [EIGE & ERTRNEE
ventures 16 13,634 6,428
Fair value changes on derivative TEEMIAEZATEE
financial instruments (2,368) 9
Net valuation gain on investment BEME 2 HEREFE
properties (48,801) (47,602)
Unrealised exchange (gain)/loss AEREN () EiE (44,300) 6,170
Finance costs BhE A A 59,708 32,436
Changes in working capital: 2EESEE
Decease/(increase) in restricted bank R RHER1TER
deposits L,/ (3Em) 304,999 (210,255)
Increase in inventories and other FEREME LI AREL N
contract costs (9,262,400) (5,412,957)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other [ U BR % 12 HL it g Ui 008
receivables (), (4,614,051) 346,727
Increase in contract liabilities AR EFELM 6,205,971 7,174,661
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other  JE{S BR 2k K - fth 218
payables #m/ Ol 461,453 (765,985)
Cash (used in)/generated from &2 (AR /B EE
operations (5,177,514) 1,481,971
Tax paid BEEmE (350,341) (442,159)
Net cash (used in)/generated from &2 E & (FfiA)
operating activities FREFE (5,527,855) 1,039,812
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21 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash
flow information (continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (0 BETBAMEENAEEYHER
activities
Bank loans Due to/(from)
and other Interest Fuzhou Bonds Lease
borrowings payable Sansheng payable liabilities Total
RITEFR B/ () .
iR ERRE BN=ERE EftES fHE8E st
AVBODD  RMBOOO  RMBOD  RVBOD  RMBODD  RMBOOD
ARETT  ARETR  ARETRT ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
(Note 22) (Note 24)  (Note 24 and 26) (Note 23) (Note 27)
(Rtk22) (Mfska4)  (Wrk2dfoe) (A3523) (Azx27)
At 1 January 2020 (restated) R=F-FE-A-A
(&E5) 9,287,692 54,047 808,180 1,000,174 20151 11,170,244
Changes from financing cash flows:  BEFBELHELE
Proceeds from new bank loans MBTETFEZE 15,035,093 = - - - 15035093
Repayment of bank loans [BERTER (7.788,427) - - - - (7,788420)
Proceeds from related partes B RAEIE = = 3,284,508 - = 3,284,508
Repayment to related parties BEBY A = - (106849 - - (106849
Proceeds from bonds ssue BOBHHETA = = - 459828 = 459828
Interest paid EATIE - (1,206,669) - - - (1,206,669
Capital dlement of lease rentalspaid ~—~ EFEAHE 2 ERE S - = = - (6,172) (6,172)
Interest element of lease rentals paid B RTRKES 2FIEHH - - = = (1416) (1416)
Total changes from financing HERSREREER
s s (NSEY_2605_ e 0 ames
Bctangeadjusments EBREE SR = S . B S
Other changes; A28
o) BERAGES) L I B .
At31 December 2020 WoR-RETSAZT-R 6SU3B AW 30018 10132 B9 2109288
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21 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash
flow information (continued)

()

21 HeaRBeFRULIREME

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities (continued)

(BRIESEHA @ TAIHUAARET|R)
enREEHE ()
(9]

BMETBREENEEYHR(E)

Bank loans Due to/(from)
and other Interest Fuzhou Bonds Lease
borrowings payable Sansheng payable liabilities Total
ROTERR BEN/ () .
O EfRE BN=EHE % HERR h
RVBOOD  RVBOO  RMBODO  RMBOD  RVBOD  RVBOOD
ARETT  ARETR ARETR  ARETT  ARETRT  ARETH
(Note 22) (Note 24)  (Note 24 and 26) (Note 23) (Note 27)
(zF22) (Reta)  (RtaaRae) (Htz23) (KzF27)
At1January 2019 R=F-1E-A-A
- As previously reported ~IEAZR 5742130 131,033 1,701,092 894,078 11973 8,480,306
-Adwmensasngfomadopion - RIAAGEHERFE
of merger accounting (note 1(c) EEHHE(H10) 3,045,690 8819 (226913) - 11764 2,839,360
horstted i Ay BRE W e B TS
Changes from financing cash flows: ~ BERBREFELD
Proceeds from bark loans and other RIERREABERAETE
borowings 10,087,258 - - - - 10,087,258
Repayment of bank loans and other EERTEFRA AR
borrowings (9,587,386) - - - - (9,587,386)
Proceeds rom relted parties Fliliis - - 84930 - - 849303
Repayment to reated partes REBES = - (9208789) - - (9208788)
Proceeds from honds issue EERHEIE - = - 323,167 - 303,167
Repayrentof bonds [BEfEx - - - (243,384) = (243,384)
Inerest paid BfFIE - (1016330 - - - (1,016330)
Capital element oflease entals pid BifNHEE BT S - - - - (5,668) (5,668)
Interestelement o kaserentalspad B RARE2FIESH - - - - (1,134 (1,134)
Total changes from financing HERSRERELR
cash flows 499,872 (1,016,330) (715,753) 79,783 (6,802) (1,159,230)
bdengeadistrents | BamE L o SR
Other changes: EOLd)
Finance cost note 52) BARA (H&5a) - 949,357 93328 - 1134 1043819
Addiion of ight-of-use assets NERPEEE - - = - 2,082 2,08
Non-cash transacionwith TmeFortne ~ EEFT R MY =B
Group acquied #RER5 - - (43,574) - - (43,574)
Totlofherchanges ...} AtgERs . . S A8 A
At 31December 2019 (restated) RZE-nE+ZR=tH
(&25)) 9,287,692 54,047 808,180 1,000,174 2,151 11,170,244
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21 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash 21 BERBEEFEVLURAMER

flow information (continued) ERETH(E)
(d) Total cash outflow for leases (d HEELBLSRH
Amounts included in the cash flow statement for leases HEFABRERERNESEREN
comprise the following: T:

2020 2019
—EB-BF —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBEFIT
(restated)
€=l
Within operating cash flows KERESREN 13,293,168 2,839,222
Within financing cash flows MEREREN 6,883 5,672
13,300,051 2,844,894

These amounts relate to the following: ZESREENYEE
2020 2019
—EEF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARETFIT
(restated)
(#zE5)
Lease rentals paid ENEERES 9,265 8,638
Purchase of leasehold land use right BERS T MERRE 13,290,786 2,836,256
13,300,051 2,844,894
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A AARESIR)

22 Bank loans and other borrowings 22 BITERREMER
2020 2019
—EEE —ET—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREET T
(restated)
(r&&E51))
Current BN HA
Secured B
— Bank loans —RITEX 539,660 1,337,717
— Other borrowings —E &K 2,715,862 2,378,425
____________________________________________________________________________________ 3255522 | 3716142
Non-current FEBNHA
Secured Vogdig
— Bank loans —RITEX 7,551,200 3,072,400
— Other borrowings —E AR 5,727,636 2,499,150
13,278,836 5,571,550
16,534,358 9,287,692
At 31 December 2020, all non-current interest-bearing bank R_E_TF+_A=+—H FMAH*

loans and other borrowings were repayable as follows:

BIHIGT B RTTER R E M EKABED

T
2020 2019

—E-EE —T—NEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBTTT

(restated)

(& &E51))

After 1 year but within 2 years MEBRER2FR 7,816,136 2,686,350
After 2 years but within 5 years MR2EBEBERSFR 5,462,700 2,885,200
13,278,836 5,571,550

Bank loans and other borrowings are interest-bearing at a
weighted average rate of 8.98% per annum (2019 (restated):
9.15% per annum).

HRIT B SR EL A 8 % 0 R P 15 A A K
8.98% (ZF—NF (KES) : FH X

9.15%) 5T 8 °
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22 Bankloans and other borrowings (continued) 22 $R{TE R Hfh &% (&)
All of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the $Elﬁﬁ*ﬁ_§ﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬂéﬁi‘7€uﬁ)@ﬁﬁﬁ
fulfilment of covenants which are commonly found in lending B ZERHENBE—REeBMEERE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BRIESE =B

arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group were
to breach the covenants the drawn down facilities would
become payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors its
compliance with these covenants. Further details of the Group's
management of liquidity risk are set out in note 30(b). As at 31
December 2020, none of the covenants relating to drawn down
facilities had been breached (2019: Nil).

The secured bank loans and other borrowings are guaranteed
over share of interest in certain subsidiaries of the Group and
other assets as below:

&R & B o M$E@L&$§¥% =
kﬂﬂ§9aﬁgx1ﬁ A& E E
ERHETRERE BN - AKEE
Em@ééﬂ % L E— T HBENME
00) - RZB_FF+_A= + B
HMEEREACREIBESHENRFE(ZF

—NhEF ) o

BEARTERREMERALEEE
FHEBARZRERATEbEEER
PElR

2020 2019

—E-EF —ZE—NF

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARET AREEFTT

(restated)

(7eE5)

Inventories (note 17) FE (H5E17) 16,933,081 12,409,157
Investment properties (note 10) A WE (K5E10) 719,341 650,204

At 31 December 2020, certain bank loans and other borrowings
are also secured by related parties, by properties and
shareholdings of the companies owned by Mr. Lin Rongbin (see
note 32(c)).

At 31 December 2020, the Group’s unutilised banking and other
financial institutions facilities amounted to RMB2,258,373,000
(2019 (restated): RMB821,800,000).

ﬁ’\\_?_giﬂ— A=1t—8B &T&
TER R HEAMERINH BT - MRE
G‘EEFE%EE’J Al 3R R R 12 (R
R (RFEE32(0))

RZE_ZTEF+_A=+—H ' ~%£H
ABAMBEITREMSBEERE A A
R #52,258,373,0000T (ZZE— & (K&
#) AR ¥821,800,0007T) °
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23 Bonds payable 23 BEfRF
2020 2019
—E-EF —ZT-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
Current BN &R
USD100 million private corporate bonds due RZZE=—F+—HAZH
November 2021 (note (a)) #7100,000,0003< T FL A
REER (@) 629,237 676,229
HKD17.8 million private corporate bonds (note (b)) 17,800,0007% JTFAA A &
&% (Fi (b)) 14,933 -
USD44.2 million private corporate bonds (note (c)) 44,200,000 st FA A A A
&% (Fi3E(c) 287,374 -
______________________________________________________________________________________ R, 676229
Non-current FE BN HA
HKD17.8 million private corporate bonds (note (b)) 17,800,000 JTFA A A A
&% (H b)) - 15,776
USD44 .2 million private corporate bonds (note (c)) 44,200,0003 jtFA A A &
&% (H3(0) - 308,169
RMB dim sum bond due January 2023 (note(d)) HR=ZE==F— AEHK
AR BB O ES () 459,828 -
459,828 323,945
1,391,372 1,000,174

Notes :

The bond is secured over share of interest in certain subsidiaries of the
Group.

(a (a

(b) On 12 July 2019, the Company issued 1.5-year private corporate
bonds with principal amount of HKD17,800,000 issued at par. The

bonds were fully settled in January 2021.

(b)

On 19 July 2019, the Company issued 2-year private bonds with
principal amount of USD44,200,000 issued at par. Bonds with
amount of USD20,000,000 were guaranteed by Mr. Lin Rongbin and
Ms. Cheng Xuan. Part of the bonds with amount of USD23,700,000
were fully settled in January 2021.

(d) On 15 January 2020, the Company issued a 3-year private bond
with principal amount of RMB214,688,000. On 14 October 2020
and 8 December 2020, the Company issued additional bonds
RMB153,040,000 and RMB92,100,000 respectively under the same

program.

(d)

These bonds are interest-bearing at a weighted average rate
of 9.79% per annum (2019: 13.12% per annum). As at 31
December 2020 and 2019, the Company had not breached any
covenants of the bonds.

G

25

B AREE S T B A B2 AR (E A -

A—E-NELA+-B  ARFIEEE
E%1T AN 4 %8 /517,800,0005 7T 2 1.54F HA L
ARFIES - BER-ZT=-—F— AEHK

BB

AT AFELtA+HB ARREEA
B 3 17 AN & %8 /544,200,000 T 2 24 Hf
FLEE % o © % 420,000,000 7T HY & 5
HMMEEEERBIIZTER -28 A
23,700,000 T B BEHFR T = —F
—ABEEE -

R—_TE-_ZTF—A+HB AQA
TZFHALBEES AEBAARE
214,688,0007T c R—ZE-ZEF+ A +mMH
=TT+ =-AN\B  AREHER—

7 5 Rl & A A R #153,040,0007T &
AR #92,100,0007T °

& %szJDTE$i’]¢ﬂ$979%(_?

— N EFIRI312%) 58 c RZB=

fi& FNAFL_A=+—H &
AR R RS 25 -
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24 Trade and other payables 24 EFIERRHEMEMRIE
2020 2019
—2-%HF —NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T ARBTIT
(restated)
(FeE5))
Trade creditors and accrued charges (note (a) & BR 7% & JE =1 & FH
(Pt EE(a)) 1,959,522 1,650,239
Amounts due to Fuzhou Sansheng (note (b)) FEH @ N = BR 30 IE ( Fi7E(b)) - 808,811
Amounts due to related parties (note (b)) FE A5 BB 77 7B (B 5E(b) ) 140,522 -
Amounts due to non-controlling interests i3 ﬁé‘HﬁfobL*’"

(note (0) (B 5E(c)) 1,633,782 1,803,916
Contributions from employees (note (d)) & 8 3% (I sE(d)) 85,885 79,968
Consideration payables for acquisition of a U B — BT B R R R B

subsidiary 75,654 27,000
Other payables (note (e)) H At BT 3RIE (B 3E(e)) 329,236 286,514
Interest payable FERTFR 82,981 54,047
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 1% # f#pK AN 5T 8 2

TRAR 4,307,582 4,710,495
Derivative financial liability ESmBaE 18,317 6,667
Value added tax and surcharges payables KRB M FE AT B A 2,165,448 1,241,428
Deposits received (note () B Uiz & (M EE) 633,638 59,183
Receipts in advance TR BR 5K 8,990 11,089
7,133,975 6,028,862
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled FT A FETER 0 NG H b JE N X IBFE EA G R
or recognised as income within one year or are repayable on —FRNETRERBRA K BIRESKE
demand. & e
Notes: B -
(@  Asat 31 December 2020, all trade creditors are with ageing of within (@) N—ZE-_TE+—A=+—H ' fTAEMNEK

(b)

(©

()

(e)

®

1 year based on the invoice date.

Fuzhou Sansheng and these related parties are private companies
owned by Mr. Lin Rongbin. The amounts are interest-free, unsecured
and repayable on demand.

The amount represents advance from non-controlling interests of
certain subsidiaries for the respective property development projects.
The amount is interest-free and repayable on demand.

The amount represents contributions from employees and accrued
benefits in certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Other payables mainly represent sales commission payables and salaries
and bonus payables.

Deposits received include an amount of RMB260,000,000 (2019:
Nil) representing cooperation intention deposits received from the
intended. Under terms of the contracts signed, the intention funds
would be treated as security deposit and paid as part of land cost or
returned to the intended partners within one year.

Deposits also include an amount of RMB330,000,000 (2019:
RMB50,000,000) representing retention deposits and bidding deposits
received from constructors.

(@]

R R BB R B R —F R

BN=m Rz EAM L AR BE LS
MILARTE] - ZEFRARE - BEMLA
REREE -

ZHEEE T B AR IHERERRE S
BV RIA B FH B - ZFRDIRE
NIRIRER(EE -

ZARTAIE AR B S T B A R B (E B A
KR FEETRF] ©

HiENFUAE ERERNHEREARE
& RAEAT °

Euﬁz%;z%@%h*ﬁﬁ%uﬁzﬂmAfﬁﬁhﬁ
/\Emeooooooom T—NF: E|E) o
BEEBETA DK  ZEASBEAR
RIZGEIE  WiEALHAARN—EHZ
NRE—FREETESAIES -

B NMEEEEETRRNEE S RIRIE
%4 A R #330,000,0007T (ZZ— L4 -
AR #50,000,0007T) °
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25 Contract liabilities 25 S¥&AE

2020 2019
—EIEF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%¥TR AREET T
(restated)
(5= &%)
Receipts in advance from property sales HE Y EE IR
A RIE 20,204,783 14,026,502

Typical payment terms of property development which impact
the amount of contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

Depending on market conditions, the Group may require
customers to pay off the full consideration within an agreed time
frame while developments are still ongoing, rather than on the
completion of the relevant properties . Such advance payment
schemes result in contract liabilities being recognised throughout
the remaining property development period for the full amount
of the contract price. In addition, the contract liabilities will be
increased by the amount of interest expense being accrued by
the Group to reflect the effect of any significant financing benefit
obtained from the customers during the period between the
payment date and the date of delivery of property to customers.
As this accrual increases the amount of the contract liabilities
during the period of development, it therefore increases the
amount of revenue recognised when control of the completed
property is transferred to the customer.

FECHRAANBESHEIMEERERA
BN ARSI

BFMR AEREAEEREFEER
T8 B A 17 9 I 7E 15 X B ] PR 1 FE AR RE ¥
EEREXNE2ERE - RZFEMNKA
AESRANARER TYEERIA
BAEMNERTEER - WIN HAE
RIRAEE RN SR S RIE M-
URBRAREREREP RS YER
HYHEEPESNEAENRENE
VEE - AN MABRT BEAEM T HR
HENENABSRE W EUDED
THEEEERPFRBANKASESR
FT3gn o

Movement in contract liabilities EHEBEES
2020 2019
—EEF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET AREEF T
(restated)
(#=E5)
Balance at 1 January, as restated R—A—HBH®EH (EES) 14,026,502 6,810,285
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of FARERTAFVNEHEE
recognising revenue during the year that MBRAMEENEHNAE
was included in the contract liabilities at Do
the beginning of the year (7,611,511) (2,120,286)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of FRHEEDARERAYE
receipts in advance from property sales MTEWFIEMEENE L
during the year in respect of properties still B &N
under development 12,793,402 8,827,215
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of 2 BRNMERAT mES
accruing interest expense on advances K& # B &N 996,390 509,288
Balance at 31 December Rt+t-_A=1+—BW&E% 20,204,783 14,026,502
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26 Due to Fuzhou Sansheng

Due to Fuzhou Sansheng represent:

& M5 R EE

26

(BRIEREHRA - BABHAAREFIR)

PE 1 ia M = B R IR

FERTRRM =B FRIAH

(i) amount of RMB2,420,193,000 (2019: Nil) drawn by the (i) REBARBMN=ZESFR -
Group from the revolving facilities of RMB4,500,000,000 —+FNAT+NBE=ZZ—+
granted by Fuzhou Sansheng on 18 August 2017 and 28 FAAZTNAAEEMNARR
September 2017 respectively. In 2019, the above facilities 4,500,000,000 CEERBE & I8 | FTiE

ranted are renewed and extended for two more years ey A R#2,420,193,0007T (=&
rom the original maturity dates of 18 August 2020 and —NFE) R_ZT—NF: L
28 September 2020 respectively. The amounts from the MEFEMERKDEE WA D
revolving facilities are unsecured, interest-bearing at 7.00% BE_E_TFNA+N\BN T —
per annum and repayable by 2022 in accordance with the ZTENA-+N\BHEEEHEEI
renewal facilities agreement; and EERME - RIBESERE RS B
BERBERMA DR HEIEM - &
FHMZE7.00%5 8 EXREHB

TF R

(i) an amount of RMB650,000,000 due to Fuzhou Sansheng (i) BN =2H AR %650,000,000
which is non-interest bearing and included in current I 2B AR B R AKREHK
liabilities of the Group. Fujian Mingiao and Yangzhou TEAaE -  REEGEEIN=K(H
Sansheng, the companies merged to the Group as a result T 1b)FTE 2 EAE MG ARE
of the reorganisation as set out in note 1(b), had provided BAa])) BN EHEIEBEYE (R
guarantees for bank loan facilities obtained by Mr. Lin PIEE10/&11) KA G 2 2P pkaeE
Rongbin and Fuzhou Sansheng by pledging their properties YEBIRER B £ g = BREE R
(see notes 10 and 11) and entire equity interests of Fujian TERBRENER  MZEmES
Mingiao before the reorganisation and the facilities will R-E——F+H=+—H%H -
be expired on 31 October 2021. In return, the proceeds Bt ZEREIEERM RS RIE
drawn from these facilities were used in financing the DHARARERRB RGN =ENE
projects developed by Fujian Mingiao and Yangzhou HAETHHAZRIERRERE - &
Sansheng before the reorganisation. To rationalise the BE e HE - AR A REMN = 8
above arrangement, Mr. Lin and Fuzhou Sansheng entered HAAEE VIR BWESET
into an agreement with the Group that from the date KZBEE-_E-_—Ft+H=+—
of completion of the acquisition to 31 October 2021, HiE - @M =R B R AN E R4
Fuzhou Sansheng agreed to provide an interest free facility A K #650,000,0007T B9 & B gl &
of RMB650,000,000 to the Group up to 31 October 2T —F+AHA=1+—HIE - m
2021 and the Group agreed to continue the securities AREFRBSEE S E g B2 HIE
provided for the above mentioned facilities until their ROBEEHIEAIE - LR
expiry. The above arrangement has been approved in the R-ZE_EF+A+NAHETHR
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 19 NAIRERERIAE FERE -
October 2020.

27 Lease liabilities 27 HE&SE

At 31 December 2020, the lease liabilities were repayable as R-_E-—=ZEF+—-_F=+—H HEA

follows: BEZBEANAT :

2020 2019
—ECERHE —F-NEF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMET T ARBTIT

Wi Qyeer RNl . 5408

After 1 year but within 2 years —FIALERFA 2,694 5318

After 2 years but within 5 years MEA FERFR 4,632 3,577

After 5 years FEE 3,401 4,851

10,727 13,743
13,979 20,151
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28 Income tax in the consolidated statementof 28 FSMEBRRAFAMFRERN

financial position . ‘
(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) *OE\ 8 B B AR 2k R R B B B 1E
financial position represents: -

2020 2019
—E-%F —FNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREET T
(restated)
(72E5)

Prepaid tax: SEENEIAEE
cIT ESH 26,029 2,232
LAT TR AR 636,265 404,039
662,294 406,271
2020 2019
—EB-BF —TNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETIT
(restated)
€<=l

Current taxation: BIEARSLIE -
cIT EFTEH 923,222 511,297
LAT TR ER 808,546 451,976
1,731,768 963,273
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28 Income taxin the consolidated statementof 28 FAMBEKAXNBRER

financial position (continued) (#8)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) BEMELHBEEERERE
()  Movement of each component of deferred tax (i) EEHEEEREESHEI
assets and liabilities DRZEE
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities RERE B ISR R AR
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial RIETRIE (BE) /ABZH
position and the movements during the year are as 2 BE UERFARAZE
follows: E NN
Fair value
change of  Amortisation Provision ~ Dividends Other
investment  of capitalised Tax for  withholding  Capitalised temporary
property  contract costs losses LAT tax Interest  differences Total
Deferred tax arising from:  EEHERE - RENE  ERLH 14 A

APERS cHAMEE  REER HERRR RERAR  ARMAR  ERER it
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RVBOO0  RVBOOD  RMBOOO
ARETTL ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETRI ARMTR

(Note)
(G
At 1 January 2019 RZE-hE
-F-H
~ As previously reported -NEHZR 9,890 7,164 (19,363) (34,034) - = (7.524) 8313
- Adjustmentsarising from ~~ ~SRMA BrEE
adoption of merger RERLES
accounting (note 1(d) B (W
1(d) 105,777 4,484 (85,225) - - 17,657 (1.738) 40,955
Ao esated E4] mET e (0458 (4034 - O%) s
Charged(credited) to RERNIER/
profitorloss (&tA) 29,841 3965 (101,510) (35,779) - 7829 239 (57572)
At31December 2019and  R=F—NE
1January 2020 (estated) ~ +=A=1—H
R-Z-%%
-R-A
(@E3)) 232,508 51,305 (206,098) (69,813) - 25,486 (6872) 26,516
Charged(credited) toprofit ~ FBRHIE/
or loss (FrA) 29,152 6,539 (180,713) (132,323) 10,902 26,684 161 (239,59)
At 31 December 2020 RZEZZE
+-f=1-H 261,660 57,844 (386,811) (202,136) 10,902 52,170 (6,711) (213,082)
Note: PIEE -
The balance represents deferred LAT and CIT arising from fair R BE AR EMENTEES
value change of investment properties in Mainland China, and EAERRE IR ET R EMS
depreciation allowance recognised in the respective subsidiaries. o ARESHE AR ZITERE

B
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(BRIEREHA -

28 Income tax in the consolidated statement of
financial position (continued)

(b)

()

(d)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

(continued)

(ii)  Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of
financial position

BRBGAARKEIIR)

28 FEMBRARAPMFR

(¥%)

(b)

R EEHAHER A
) EEAHBRREZHE

2020 2019
—EBEF — &
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AR®ETF T
(restated)
(L& E3))
Net deferred tax asset recognised in Ta BB RPERZ
the consolidated statement of EL%RIE\ EEFE
financial position 547,132 161,314
Net deferred tax liability recognised ~ RERE F AR K FERZ
in the consolidated statement of L%RIEE\ &5
financial position (334,050) (187,830)
213,082 (26,516)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

At 31 December 2020, the Group has unused tax losses
of RMB578,042,000 (2019 (restated): RMB352,924,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of such losses
due to unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax
losses in Hong Kong may carry forward indefinitely. The
unrecognised tax losses in Mainland China will expire from
2021 to 2025.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

No deferred tax has been recognised on changes in
fair value of the investment properties situated in Hong
Kong as it is not expected to have tax consequence upon
disposal of these properties.

As at 31 December 2020, temporary differences relating to
the undistributed profits of the Group’s certain subsidiaries
in mainland China amounted to RMB1,380,311,000 (2019:
434,200,000). Deferred tax liabilities of RMB138,031,000
(2019:RMB43,420,000) have not been recognised in
respect of the withholding tax that would be payable on
the distribution of these retained profits as the Company
controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries in
mainland China and the directors have determined
that these profits are not likely to be distributed in the
foreseeable future.

(9]

(d)

AERZEERBEEE
R—E-_ZTF+-_A=+—8H"
AEEBSABAHBEEARE
578,042,000 (T — NLF (K &E
5l) : AR #352,924,0007%) A AR
R s F o R R & TR T
ATFECR - MUt R T A B B RERIE
EFHIBEE - BB 2HEEEkE
ERAAAEEE - RIER 2P ER
HREEBEEEN T - —F5_F
“RFRE -

AERZEEHRESE

HREHRERTERENETSE
ERMEER  MAEETERZSE
Y AT EEBERELETRIE -

RZE-_ZTF+_-_A=+—H H&
REBETRAMNE THE R
ARDEKMNEENEREZRS
A R #1,380,311,0007T (ZZE— A
£ 1 434,200,0007T) ° A AR 7]
PRI 5% 25 R B B B A B A AR
EHWX BHEEEETEANELN
R KATRED IR 5% Fom A - BUR
MO IKZERE &R ESH
EMHEREEHBEEREARK
138,031,000t (ZZE—HLFE: AR
#43,420,0007T) °
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29 Capital, reserves and dividends 29 B - ERREKRR
(@) Movementsin components of equity () ERIPHR2EH
The reconciliation between the opening and closing REEGERRSHBINEYREF
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated R Y WER NG A 28
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes Ko ARAIERERNTIRENE
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company's FRZEZBHBIRHIAOT -
individual components of equity between the beginning
and the end of the year are set out below:
Share Share  Accumulated
capital premium losses Total
R R EE RitEE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTT ARETR  ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2019 R=B-NE-A-Rz&H 33,184 911,543 (161,514) 783,213
Changes in equity for 2019: “E-NEZERED:
Issue of shares B 1,970 204,834 - 206,804
Loss and total comprehensive income 4 A& 18 & 2 M 45 48
for the year - - (160,817) (160,817)

Balance at 31 December 2019 RZE-hE+=A

and 1 January 2020 St-BR=E-EE
—R—Bz&t 35,154 1,116,377 (322,331) 829,200
Changes in equity for 2020: TECEEIRERED:
Issue of shares IR 4,200 290,663 = 294,863
Loss and total comprehensive income 4 /18 & 2 H R 25 4058
for the year - - (138,006) (138,0006)
Balance at 31 December 2020 R-2_2£+-A=1-A
A3 39,354 1,407,040 (460,337) 986,057
(b) Dividends (b) KRE
Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company NEE ENANA T RESIRE AR E
attributable to the year
2020 2019
i —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARBT T

Final dividend proposed after the end of ¥ & #i K 14 %k < HiA% 2

the reporting period of RMBO0.20 BIRE @R A KR0.207T

per ordinary share (2019: Nil) (ZE2E—NF : &\) 98,119 =
The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting WEBRBEIRA KRB ERTRE
period has not been recognised as a liability at the end of R AR B EE o

the reporting period.
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29 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 29 BFX - EHRER (&)
(c) Share capital (o)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

Details of the Company’s share capital during both years
are as follows:

LN
ARRNRIEFE ZBRAFFIT :

Number of
shares Amount
&R S8
HK$'000
:F/%E
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each BREEC. 1B EBR
Authorised: VERE
As at 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 EQ:EE—HE—H—EI .
and 31 December 2020 —hE+=A
= Jr AR=—ZE=-F
+=—A=+—-H 2,000,000,000 200,000
Numbers of
shares Amount Amount
f&in & B oo |
HK$'000 RMB’000
FHE T AR®ETT
(equivalent)
(fB%E)
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each SREE B Tz EBIK
Issued and fully paid: BEITMER
As at 1 January 2019 RZE—NF—H—H 419,114,000 41,911 33,184
Share issued B EITIRG 22,000,000 2,200 1,970
As 31 December 2019 and 1 January W —ZE—NF+ A
2020 =t+t—HBEk=Z-F
—H—H 441,114,000 44,111 35,154
Shares issued BTG 49,480,000 4,948 4,200
As at 31 December 2020 RZZ-ZTFE+-A
=+—H 490,594,000 49,059 39,354
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive TERBEABREKBRARSIRZ
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled RE - WEEREAR QZ%J:}Z%
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All R—FE/RERR- Fﬁﬁ ARG A

ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

On 24 November 2020, 49,480,000 new shares were
allotted and issued at a consideration of HK$7.02 per
share. A par value of HK$4,948,000(equivalent to
approximately RMB4,200,000) was credited to share capital
and the premium of HK$6.92 per share was credited to
share premium account in accordance to Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands.

REARBEEZERFEN -

RZE-_ZFTF+—A=-+WmA "B
fic 2% K7 %% 1749,480,0000% 1 A 17 -
REETRTOZE T - 1RIEF 2 8
B A F3% 0 184,948,000 7T (48
£ A 49 A E#4,200,0007T) &5 A
AR - % B T A%6.928 T B 5T A
B 175 (B BR o
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29 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 29 ¥F&H  EiRRIEE (1)

(d) Reserves d) =B

(i)  Share premium (i) KROEE
Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, BERSHEQFZE XA
the share premium account of the Company may be AR = E R AR MR R
applied for payment of distributions or dividends to X IRERE - EEER
shareholders provided that immediately following BEREEEXNOIRIKER
the date on which the distribution or dividend is Hig KARBENXME
proposed to be paid, the Company is able to pay BEBAEP R EER -
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

(i) Capital reserve (i) EXRGEE
The capital reserve mainly represents premium BABEEEENTRBENE
received from capital injection to the PRC subsidiaries NEDEBEAMRWE Y RE - R
which are required to be included in their reserves by BHREDER  BEEIEAG
the PRC regulations. ANE o

(iii) Merger reserve (i) EOtEE
Since AG5 is adopted, the net assets of the acquired HRIRANE 55 5% - #
company group are consolidated using their existing WHEARIEERNFEENR
book values from the perspective of ultimate KRENAETRBREER
shareholder. Merger reserve represents the difference BEe AR a0 REEED
between the consideration paid and the book values NRERFEWETHEREEBE
of the acquirees. H)Z=%E o

(iv) Statutory surplus reserves (iv) EERtAFHE
Pursuant to applicable PRC regulations, the PRC REERFBER  NEEH
subsidiaries of the Group are required to appropriate B A R A A B 10%M
10% of their profit-after-tax (after offsetting prior Besd (CREBTFER
year losses) to the statutory reserve until such B)OBELEHE BEEH
reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital of HESEEETRMMNE QA
each relevant PRC subsidiaries. The transfer to the A% AN 250% © 3k T 7 B
statutory reserve must be made before distribution BB A PO A AR R 3 Ik AR B AT
of dividends to shareholders. The statutory reserve {EH - AR 2 Bt R - E
fund can be utilised, upon approval by the relevant EREEBELJARIKERET
authorities, to offset accumulated losses or to &5 18 ok 38 hn BT /BB & & 2 sl
increase registered capital of the subsidiaries. B e

(v) Exchange reserve (v) ELfE
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign M FEREREGINED
exchange differences arising from the translation MHRREEZMAERZE
of the financial statements of foreign operations. o BARBRENEINZ
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the BETIREIE -

accounting policies set out in note 1(x).

(e) Distributability of reserves (e) WD IRFERE

As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s reserves A—E-_FEF+-_A=+—H
available for distribution, calculated in accordance with BERSHBE AR EZTENR
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, amounted to ARAAHLSRFEHENBARKE
approximately RMB946,703,000 (2019: RMB794,046,000), 946,703,0007T (ZZE—NF : AR
which may be distributed provided that immediately #794,046,0007T) * 7% % # 0] 1E
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be Dk MEEERERE RS RERE
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its HHEIZ - RXARBRENERHTE
debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary course of B RER A B HIE TS o

business.
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29 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 29 &%  EiERIER (1)
(f) Capital management ) BEXER

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholders returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
debt-to-assets ratio and adjusted debt-to-assets ratio which
deducted contract liabilities and receipts in advance from
total liabilities. The ratios as at 31 December 2020 and
2019 is calculated as follows:

AEEEBHERNUBRAEEE
BEAKAELE  REEELE
BREREREAEERABNEZ
B3R - AN 2 BEEREGEEFR

T oo

AEBEHEH RS REEEER
Rig BREBRREEKFAER
ZERRRER - EREE AR

] 75 SR EY 4F BR MR BB 2 R EAS 1
1%] I AEEERAEBFHEE AN
15 -

AEBRBEGEELRRER
BEGEELE R@AETIR

AMBERFERER EREAX
9&%03@*:- =

T

2020 2019
—Z-%F —FNEF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET AREF T
(restated)
(&&=5)
(i) Debt-to-assets ratio (i) BEBEELR

Total liabilities FEN=Ri 50,414,478 31,528,502
Total assets BB E 56,576,382 33,722,229
Debt-to-assets ratio B EELL X 89.11% 93.49%

(i) Adjusted debt-to-assets ratio (i) LARBKEE

[

Total liabilities FEN=Ri 50,414,478 31,528,502

Less: Contract liabilities and W EHNARER
receipts in advance FEUR BR X 20,213,773 14,037,591
Adjusted total liabilities KR RB(E 30,200,705 17,490,911
Total assets EEE 56,576,382 33,722,229
Adjusted debt-to-assets ratio KRAERBEBAELLX 53.38% 51.87%
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30 Financial risk management and fair values 30 MBRAMREEREMIAZA
of financial instruments E{H
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arise AEERBEERBEREEAEE
in the normal course of the Group’s business. mEEDR  MERFERRE -
The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk 7R 6 B P $ 2 5% 5 AL B Ko AR £5 [ A A
management policies and practices used by the Group to B 22 B\ B 2 B 7S R B B B BRI 1B
manage these risks are described below. FlE a0 o
(@) Creditrisk () FEERM
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and ANEE £ Bt E WOR R X E At Uk
other receivables. The carrying amounts of trade and other TRIA T E EE 5 EbE o BUIRR K
receivables represent the Group’s maximum exposure to B EWRIE 2 EEE - HAEE
credit risk in relation to financial assets. Management has a i B A E T E A & K15 5 &
credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit risks - ERERAEEBR U
are monitored on an ongoing basis. BEEZSEERR -
(i)  Trade receivables (i) FEUEREX )
In respect of trade receivables, the Group's HEWERM S - NEE AT
exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the EIHNEERR FEXS
individual characteristics of each customer rather BEEMNEREIEE M
than the industry in which the customers operate WIER A B EMITE
and therefore significant concentrations of credit b E AR B A ERNR P
risk primarily arise when the Group has significant MEARRK BEESE
exposure to individual customers. SHHEERR -
The Group'’s trade receivables mainly arise from AEENEWEREZREH
lease of properties. The Group has policies in place Y E o A& E G E KR
to ensure that rental contracts are entered into only BREEEF S BEEERLE
with lessees with an appropriate credit history, and WAM AR EESX B
the Group monitors the credit quality of receivables IS B R AR BE R e UK IR
on an ongoing basis. Deposits may be withheld B = 58 = o i & A P &K
by the Group in part or in whole if receivables due BAEEMNSMERE L
from the tenant are not settled or in case of other AEBAEeRNT ke
breaches of contract. The Group also regularly 2ike o KREBE N2 FH=E
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual B 25 18 {8 5l & W A= 3K &Y A] I
trade receivable to ensure that adequate impairment Ol & %8 - LA 0K 34 A B] 4g [E]
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. SRR E SR EE S o
(i)  Other receivables (i) HtEWRE
At each reporting date, the Group measures RERER  RXEEKR T
the expected credit losses of other receivables in 7R E = H AL E W GRIE R TR
following ways: HiEEES :
If, at the reporting date, the credit risk on other REE B - AR H h fE YK
receivable has not increased significantly since initial EHREERR B 7 FERE
recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance R KR EH - ANEBIZR
for other receivable at an amount equal to 12-month 1B 7 H e YR IE R 212
expected credit loss. The Group measures the loss BB ANESEEBIEN g
allowance for other receivables at an amount equal AAEHEERE MREM
to the lifetime expected credit loss if the credit risk ERZIENEERRBE YT
on other receivable has increased significantly since WHRIED ANB LT AE
initial recognition. 12 PRAR 2 0 E b B YR IR B
EFERNEREEEERN
THIEHBERE -
In respect of amounts due from non-controlling HEBEZERERRG S0
interests and joint ventures, the Group closely XERBEME  AEBZYE
monitored their financial conditions and profitability. ?%?)ﬁ %2 IR R & & g
In respect of other receivables due from third parties, FLEWE =7 2 B b UK
the Group reviews the exposures and manages them EmE  AEEEREZE
based on the need of operation. %E%ﬁ@ﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬁ?&ﬁ =)
The Group has assessed that the credit risk of other 2N £ B 5F 1 H ) JE R TE &Y
receivables has not increased significantly since EEERE TP ERARILE
initial recognition. The expected loss rate of these mEEEN e ERIKFE
receivables is assessed to be immaterial. g EHEEXENEAITE
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(BRIERERHRA

30 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (continued)

(a)
(ii)

(iii)

Credit risk (continued)

Other receivables (continued)
The following table provides information about the
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade

 BRIBHUAREFITR)

30 MEARTEEREMIAZL

FE(#|)
(@) EEEE (&)
(i) H AP 308 ()

TREHREBASEAXH
15 & =B UA K FE UK BR Sk B TR

receivables: H=EEENER
2020

—EBEF

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
EHEEE HREE BEAERE
% RMB'000 RMB'000
% ARBTT AR®TTT
Current (not past due) BNER (M 81 HR) 0.09% 26,065 23
Less than 1 year past due BER LN —F 2.68% 6,235 167
More than 1 year past due BH—F A E 22.14% 3,590 795
35,890 985

2019 (restated)
—E-NF(KET)

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount  allowance
TEHIBEEX BEEE BEE
% RMB'000 RMB'000
% ARBTIT ARKETT
Current (not past due) BNER (N 8 HR) 1.05% 12,882 135
Less than 1 year past due BEA DR —F 2.35% 1,321 31
More than 1 year past due BHI—F L 27.69% 650 180
14,853 346

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past years. These rates are
adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historic
data has been collected, current conditions and
the Group’s view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables.

Financial guarantees

Except for the financial guarantees given by the
Group as set out in note 33, the Group does not
provide any other guarantees which would expose
the Group to credit risk. The maximum exposure to
credit risk in respect of these financial guarantees at
the end of the reporting period is disclosed in note
33.

EHEBRRRBEBEFERN
ERERER - ZFHBEXE
ARETEE - ARBRINS BT BUR
HAR] RO EIRR & AR L 8L
AN E2 ] 5 W SR R B B A B Y
BB < HEE -

/A

PBER

BRE 33 E AR B IR 2
MERIN AR E W EIE
HEMEAMER  MELE
BHEEERR RHEH
R BAZEVWBERNK
REERBIRMEISRKE -

(iii)
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30 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

The Group are responsible for all individual operating
subsidiaries’ cash management, including the short-term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans
to cover expected cash demands. The Group regularly
monitors its liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and readily realisable marketable securities
and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group's
non-derivative financial liabilities and derivative financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on current rates at
the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date the
Group can be required to pay:

(BRIEREHRA - BABHAAREFIR)

30 WERKEEERSMTIAZL

FE (i#)
(b) FEE @B

AEBEEEPTA B 52 EKHE QA
ZBReERE  BREABSBHETT
AR E M AR TR IR 2 F 5K
EREE - AEETEHRERER

MERARE LEER A HERED
EHFHERARBEHNEETESA
MEZHNAGERE  UENRE

TRAFAKE ZFNTESHMAE
MITET BB ERNREHRAEGLH
AMBRRERE (BREEAONE -
HNEF B - AR E R E A
e E 2 M BT R) MALE B R &
ERNRZ&F AHASENRSRE
MEHIBER -

2020
ZBIEE
More than 1 More than 2
Within year years Total contractual
Tyearoron  butlessthan  but less than Morethan5  undiscounted Carrying
demand 2 years 5 years years cash flow amount
BR-FR BE-F BEmF GLERE
HEEREE BYRWE BOREE IENE  BeRE4AE REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBT ARBT R ARBT T ARBT T ARBT R
Non-derivative financial  JEATASREE
liabilities
-Bankloans andother  —$F{TE R
borrowings EffAF 4,582,401 8,016,600 6,680,637 - 19,279,638 16,534,358
~ Bonds payable ~EfES 1,036,341 13,795 460,402 - 1,510,538 1,391,372
~Trade and other ~EREHAR
payables HfENTUR 4,307,582 - - - 4,307,582 4,307,582
- Lease labilfties -HERE 325 2,962 4,632 3401 14,247 13,979
Derivative finandial TEepak
liability
~Interestrateswap ~ —HRES
(net settled) (NFERE) 18317 - - - 18,317 18317
9,947,893 8,033,357 7,145,671 3401 25,130,322 22,265,608
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30 Financial risk management and fair values 30 MERKREEREMIAZN

of financial instruments (continued) E{E (#8)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) RBHESEMR (&)
2019
“E-NE
Within More than More than Total contractual
Tyearoron  1yearbutless 2 years butless More than undiscounted Carnying
. demand than 2 years than 5 years 5 years cash flow amount
RN —F A BR—F BBME GLIGSIED
BELER BHRmE BYREE LENE  ReRSEE RHEME
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETTL ARETTL ARETT ARETT ARETTL ARETTL

Non-derivative financial  FEATA S RE B

liabilities
~Bankloans and other  — 4T E SR E A
borrowings B3 4,451,340 3,160,912 2,927,909 - 10,540,161 9,287,692
~ Bonds payable —ENES 131,666 1,086,153 - - 1,217,819 1,000,174
~Trade and other BRI REM
payables JEf3UR 4,710,495 - - - 4,710,495 4,710,495
- Lease liablities -HERR 7,526 6,274 4,844 6,768 25412 20,151
Derivative finanial TESRaRE
liability
-Interestrateswap  —FIREH (FE
(net settled) #E) 6,667 14,018 = - 20,685 20,685
9,307,694 4,267 357 2,932,753 6,768 16,514,572 15,039,197
Adjustments to present 1R EFABEEX
cashflowsonbonds ~ EFEFIEHER
payable based on HERERENI
lender's right to ¥
demand repayment 676,229 (750,073) - = (73,844)

9,983,923 3,517,284 2,932,753 6,768 16,440,728
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30 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (continued)

()

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cashflows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Group's interest
rate risk arises primarily from long-term borrowings.

Borrowings issued at variable rates and at fixed rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair
value interest rate risk respectively. The Group has a policy
ensuring that most of its borrowings are effectively on a
fixed basis, either through the contractual terms of the
interest-bearing financial liabilities or through the use
of interest rate swaps. The interest rate and terms of
repayment of the Group’s interest-bearing borrowings
are disclosed in notes 22, 23 and 26 to the consolidated
financial statements.

(i) Interest rate risk profile
The following table, as reported to the management
of the Group, details the interest rate risk profile of
the Group’s borrowings at the end of the reporting

(BRIEREHRA - BABHAAREFIR)

30 WERKEEERSMTIAZL

FE (i#)
© FERB

) 2R [ i 5 R 10 T 45 ) R B B B
ERMIAAFEIARRESRER
BER - AKENNERERER
KERBER -

DA B | 2= K% [B] 78 B R 31T 2 fE 3R
20 Bl 58 7N % [ T 3R < 07 8 6 R R
@M FERNXRER AKERA
—IHRE BB EERAENS
AVERRI A A R m 5 - R A K
BB B R EBR £ Y% B E M X5
B AKEHEBEZNERRER
RN R E M R M 7522 ~ 23 %
26455 o

(i) F=ERARR
TREAXNEEEEEZ R
ZAREEBERRHEE IR
MR @A -

period:

2020 2019
—ECEH —T—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTIT

Fixed rate borrowings: EEFEBE K
Lease liabilities HERE 13,979 20,151
Bank loans and other borrowings RITER R HEMER 16,510,998 9,262,764
Bonds payable EES 762,135 323,945
17,287,112 9,606,860

Variable rate borrowings: R ENF R AETK
Bank loans and other borrowings BRITERREMER 23,360 24,928
Bonds payable eI ESH 629,237 676,229
652,597 701,157
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30 Financial risk management and fair values 30 MERBEEREREMIAZL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

of financial instruments (continued) FEE)
() Interest rate risk (continued) () FI=mE B (E)
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) BBREDIW
At 31 December 2020, it is estimated that a general R-E-_TF+_HA=+—
increase of 50 basis points in interest rates of bank H EMEEMEETEHN
loans and other borrowings of the Group, with all BAT  BREAEERRITER
other variables held constant, would have decreased/ Ko H b £ 51 P 2 B 88 k£ F50

increased the Group's profit/loss and total equity by
approximately RMB3,263,000 and RMB3,506,000
(restated) respectively for the year ended 31
December 2020 and 2019.

The sensitivity analysis above assumes that the
change in interest rates had occurred at the end
of the reporting period and had been applied to
all floating rate bank loans and other borrowings,
without taking into account the impact of interest
capitalisation. In respect of the exposure to cash
flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate
non-derivative instruments held by the Group at
the end of the reporting period, the impact on the
Group's profit and total equity is estimated as an
annualised impact on interest expense or income
of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis as 2019.

EEZ - GG E R EEE

EE_TER-_T—NEF
+=—RA=+— Eutir“éman
A,/ BEEEDSEED IR
A5 #) A R #3,263,000
7T & A R #3,506,0007T (& &
A) o

b B R E o3 AT R AR A R &
HERBEMRELE A
E%x%ﬁ&ﬁ@ﬂiﬁg
ZRITERREAMEBR - HE
Iﬁ%fﬂ§§$MZ%%°
RAKRERNREMRRTFTELZ
FERNEIENTETEMES
ZHRERENERBRME -

HAREE BN RBRAEZ
TENEARRENREY
PREEMHN B R HBAZ
FRIEFE - DN DimE—
T NFHRERMNEELETT -
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30 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (continued)

(d)

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily
on bank balances and cash and bonds payable that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which they relate. The
currency giving rise to this risk is primarily United State
Dollars and Hong Kong Dollars.

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the
end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the entity to which
they relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of the
exposure are shown in Renminbi, translated using the spot
rate at the year end date. Differences resulting from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign operations
into the Group’s presentation currency are excluded.

BRIGUAARKEIIR)

30 WERKEEERSMTIAZL

FE (i#7)
(d) E%ER

REBETZEASEEBE 2SR
BELAGN 2 BHEFHE 2 RITE SRR IR
il//{&ﬁg'{—ﬂfﬁﬁﬁﬁuug%ﬂ R
ETNABTAEEZENEERR 2

R AP A S B R RS B R E LA E
BEERIAEEEUIINEEESD
MREERBBEMEL 2 EEBE
Bomt23ME ZERKR &5
UARERR - WIAFELEE B 2Bl
RIE R - 45BN KR IRE
BMEANEHISREBLEL R
IT“%EW

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in Renminbi)

S EE 2L B
(AARM5IR)
2020 2019
—EZEE E— N
United States Hong Kong United States Hong Kong
Dollars Dollars Dollars Dollars
EY BT T BT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T AR T AR®EFT ARETTT
Bank balances and cash ~ $R7T45 88 MIR & 333,606 1,056 13,921 9,815
Bonds payable e ES (916,611) (14,933) (984,398) (15,776)
Sensitivity analysis BRED N
Based on the assumption that Hong Kong Dollars continue ERB TR R ITTEN 2 R -
to be pegged to United States Dollars, the Group considers REBER /%TEIZ+ B 52 T b R
the risk of movements in exchange rates between Hong g2 [B B WTE

Kong Dollars and United States Dollars to be insignificant.

EEERAAREAETLRET

Management estimated that a 3% appreciation/

depreciation of Renminbi against Hong Kong Dollars and F+ 1E/Ei B3% r AE B 2T
United States Dollars, the Group’s profit and equity would REZ=HEM BN ARE
be increased/decreased by approximately RMB20,353,000 20,353, OOOTE (ZE—NF: ARK

(2019: RMB29,189,000). 29,189,0007T) °

ERER SN BE [ = 2 @J%EE&%E}%X
MAAEMEERRETE - QDT

The analysis has been determined assuming that the
change in foreign exchange rates had occurred at the end

of the reporting period and that all other variables remain EREKETE - 2o MU BIEH
constant. The analysis excludes differences that would BINEBTBRREEAAEBZE
result from the translation of the financial statements of WMEMFmEEZEZR -

foreign operations into the Group'’s presentation currency.



=Rk (RE)BRAR

233 —s-s=FH

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i & M35 83 R0

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIERERHRA

30 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (continued)

(e)
(i)

(ii)

Fair value measurement

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried
at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost were
not materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2020 and 2019.

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's financial instruments measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as
defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date.

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available.

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

 BRIBHUAREFITR)

30 MEARTEEREMIAZL
FH(#])

(e)
(i)

(ii)

AT BB

BAFEUNET Rz S
EEREBEZAFRE

7R £ [B] LA K 7K 35 85 AR AR
RZe@MmTARERE BH
RZE_TEFR_FT—NEF
+—A=+—HZzAF¥EL
mBEAER -

BAVEFEZERMEER
af&

REBEBR B GRS ERE13
WIAFEFEIREZ=
BEAFEFL RREHK
BERUHEEFEBEZAEH
TMTAZAFEZIRT
R-DNFEAEMERZE
BIB2RATEET AR
BWABBZABEREERE
EREMETE :

- B RMEE ERE
SR AR DR
EEMIRAERAM
NERED 2 RS
R AT -

- BoRGEE:ERF=
ERm ABUE  BIREE
NEFE—FRZABER
BARE AR ES
ERTAIEBRE AR
AEQFE TABE
W ABIRIERE AT
BB BARE -

- ESGGE EREX
TABEEH AR E
AFE -
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30 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (continued)

(e)

(ii)

(BRIEREHRA - BABHAAREFIR)

30 WERKEEERSMTIAZL
FE (&)

Fair value measurement (continued) (e) DFEFE (&)
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair (i) RAFEFEZERMEER
value (continued) &E (E)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) RFEER (E)
Fair value at Fair value at
31 December Fair value measurements as at 31 December Fair value measurements as at
2020 31 December 2020 categorised into 2019 31 December 2019 categorised into
RZB-%E RZE-NE
t=B=t+-8 +ZA=1-R
ZATE  R-B-BET-R=t-RZATERESEA JAME  WSE-hEt-RST-RZAVENENEA
Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Level1 Level2 Level 3
£-8 28 224 £ 228 520
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR AREBTT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR
Recurring fair value SR ATHEIE
Measurements
Asset: BE:
Financial assets at fairvalue ~ RAFER ABEZ
through profitor loss: ERAE
-Unitintrust protection fund ~~ ~EREREEEEN 85,420 - 85,420 - 46,749 = 146,749 =
Liabity: fff:
Derivative financialinstruments: ~ §4£BTA :
- Interest rate swap ik 18317 - 18317 - 20,685 = 20685 -

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019, there were no transfers between Level 1
and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The
Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair
value measurements

The fair value of interest rate swaps is the present
value of estimated amount that the Group would
receive or pay to terminate the swap at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account current
interest rates and the current creditworthiness of the
swap counterparties.

The fair value of unit in trust protection fund is
determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at prevailing market interest rates as at the
end of the reporting period. The discount rate used
is derived from the bank deposit rate as at the end
of the reporting period plus an adequate constant
credit spread.

BE_Z_ZER-_T-NEF+_
A=1T—HALFE FREAF—
R EEEER  TEEALEH
F=R o AREIHRENHRE
B BEPRERAFEFRZHE
L -

ARE—RLFEGSEZIGET A
RBAZE

MEEH 2 NP EE R MR A=
REBEAHFEEFE  SAK
B 74 o 5 HA R 4R 1 4 AR & W B B
XA 2 fhEH B EERE -

EREREE S BN R FETRRY
WEPRZBITHIHH R A5
ARBEREMETE ° FAERAZR
BEARRE R 2 RITERM X
MERAZBEEEESEMEH -
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31 Commitments 31 &iE
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2020 ANEBR-—E-_FEF+=-BA=+—
not provided for in the financial statements were as BARMBHRRABEZARABITE
follows: RAEWNT :
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARE T ARETF T
(restated)
(#=E5)
Contracted but not provided for in the SR ESERIE A=
consolidated financial statements SRR B
— Land use rights — b {E R 281,717 =
— Construction and development contracts —EERREEHN 6,858,287 5,260,635
7,140,004 5,260,635
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32 Material related party transactions

During the year, other than those disclosed elsewhere, the
Group had entered into the following significant transactions.
Transactions with the following parties are considered to be

related party transactions:

Name of related parties

BEBLME B8

Mr. Lin Rongbin
MEB R E

Ms. Cheng Xuan
R+

Fuzhou Sansheng Property Co., Ltd.*
(“Fuzhou Sansheng”™) and its subsidiaries

BMN=REXBERAR ((RBMN=08]) REKBAF

Fujian Wuhe Investment & Development Co., Ltd.*
(“Fujian Wuhe")
BROMERBERARAR ([RERM])

Fujian Bo En Property Group Company Limited*
(“Fujian BE") and its subsidiaries
BRERBEVMESEERAR ([BERER]
R EH B AR

Zhejiang Ao Sheng Property Development Co., Ltd.*
(“Zhejiang Aosheng”)
WMIERFEHWERBERRAR (DNIEE])

Ping Yang Shi Ying Property Development Co., Ltd.*
(“Ping Yang Shi Ying”)

32 EEMBAXS
ER-BRIERBEN  FEEETY
MTEARS - BUT&THRBHER
REBHRS

Relationship
B

Ultimate shareholder

The spouse of Mr. Lin Ronghbin
MREB I AV BC A

Companies controlled by Mr. Lin Rongbin and Ms. Cheng
M)';g%ﬁ%i&%%ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ’ﬂﬁﬂ

Joint venture of companies controlled by Mr. Lin Rongbin
MEB A EZRIN R BN EERE

Companies controlled by Mr. Lin Rongbin and Ms. Cheng
Mﬁ%f‘ﬁi&%ﬁﬁﬁi%%m/&ﬂ

Joint venture

ABOE

Joint venture

FHttREMERERARAR (FHER]) BEMRE

* The English translation of the name is for reference only. The official * RNEBREHRSE - BENPXXEH
name of the entity is in Chinese. WEBEEHAE -

(@) Key management personnel remuneration (@) EEEEAEHM

The remuneration of executive directors and key
management personnel is determined by the remuneration
committee of the Company having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends. Details of
which together with the other 4 (2019: 3) highest paid
management personnel are disclosed in notes 7 and 8
above.

WITESREEEEABZFHMA
ARAFHME B @R KRR R
BBEEE HERZINEOS (=
E-NF ZR)ESFHEEA
B 2 H TR £ X 7 K8

= o
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32 Material related party transactions 32 FEMBAXS (])
(continued)
(b) Transactions with other related parties (b) HEMBEBIZRS
Name of related parties Nature of transactions 2020 2019
BT 2R RAMHE “ECEF —E-NF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARETT
(restated)
(/= E7)
Fuzhou Sansheng Interest expense 45,997 93,328
M=% FEHX
Rental income from lease of properties 255 909
MERSHE WA
Consultation service received - 1,657
B AR
Construction service provided 5,670 -
BRETREBTRE
Design service provided 24 -
B Rt TI2RRaRTE
Other service provided - 1,321
B E MR
Fujian BE Property management service received 81,525* 46,842
BEMAR B EE RSB
Zhejiang Aosheng Project management consultancy service 731 2,265
provided
k-1 EREMEEEZARSE
Ping Yang Shi Ying Project management consultancy service 1,993 2,993
provided
THtR BN EEEEARS
Fujian Wuhe Sales commission services provided - 1,999
BER EREHERTRE
* The amount includes transactions with total amount of @ 2 BB IE AN & B 72 M R 1(b)FT i
RMB14,129,000 which were incurred by the entities E 48 5T A AT AR BB B AR S8 VE o A TR
controlled by Mr. Lin Rongbin acquired by the Group before FIEBEBELENRS  HBeBEAAR
the completion of the reorganisation as mentioned in note #14,129,0007C ° Z & BT & %
1(b). The amount is not considered as part of the continuing EAFEREISN D -

connected transactions.
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32 Material related party transactions 32 XERBAXH (]|
(continued)
() Bankloans and other borrowings guaranteed by (0 HEBIERNEBRTERRER
related parties o
2020 2019
—Z-FF —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTTT
(restated)
(&E5)
Guaranteed by related parties FR AR 7 IR
—Fuzhou Sansheng, Mr. Lin Rongbin and ~ —1&M = 8% » MEELE K
Ms. Cheng Xuan ES e g 7,648,005 4,385,864
— Fuzhou Sansheng —f@M =% 3,825,930 797,400
— Fuzhou Sansheng and Mr. Lin Rongbin —BIN=BR KRB E 2,099,000 1,794,000
— Mr. Lin Rongbin and Ms. Cheng Xuan —MREB £ RIBHEZ + 1,274,000 500,000
— Mr. Lin Rongbin —RERB & 5,000 -
14,851,935 7,477,264
(d) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to d) HBEEXZEBRzZLHHRAZ

connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect of Fujian BE,
the construction and design services provided to Fuzhou
Sansheng and guarantee provided to related parties as
set out in note 26(ii) constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The disclosures required
by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are provided in
the paragraphs headed “Connected transactions and
Continuing Connected Transactions— Continuing
Connected Transaction” of the Directors’ Report.

In addition, the related party transactions in respect of
financial assistance received by the Group and the relevant
interest expense set out in notes 5(a), 22 and 26 to the
financial statements also constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. However, those transactions are fully exempt from
shareholders’ approval, annual review and all disclosure
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as they
are (i) on normal commercial terms; and (i) not secured by
the assets of the Group.

EHAM
EHEEEAENEE ARS M8
N =B R MR TAE e T M 3R 5T IR 7S
LA K2 0] BE Bt 5 BR L O B AR (B RA B
5E26(i) A E MR BIE14AZEFT R
EZBER G FEBERS ° £
MRAFESAZFIRENEENSE
FeREFERIRIFEBER
S—HERER S BERE -

97

SN - AN SR P AR 75 B 2
Bt 73 32 5 I B 7 R 3k Y RES(a) ~ 22
K 26Fr e HERAN B R S IEAK T
HRABUAS IR E < FBEAER
5o R ZEXZEEEHRE
S ET AR BIE14AT 2 BROER#EAE
FEEHALMERESRTE - I H
RBRR B )R —MRBEF RN L
R (i) FELARER BB EE AR o
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BRBGAARKEIIR)

(BRIEREHA -

Contingent liabilities

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group has issued
guarantees to banks to secure the mortgage arrangement
of property buyers. The outstanding guarantees to the
banks amounted to RMB6,582,855,000 (2019 (restated):
RMB3,641,612,000), which will be terminated upon the
completion of the transfer procedures with the buyers in respect
of the legal title of the properties.

The directors do not consider it probable that the Group will
sustain a loss under these guarantees as the bank has the rights
to sell the property and recovers the outstanding loan balance
from the sale proceeds if the property buyers default payment.
The Group has not recognised any deferred income in respect of
these guarantees as its fair value is considered to be minimal by
the directors.

As at 31 December 2020, certain properties and share of a
subsidiary of the Group are pledged as security for related parties
to obtain loan facilities from banks and financial institutions (note
26).

Immediate and ultimate controlling party

At 31 December 2020, the directors consider the immediate
parent and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Mega
Regal Limited, which is incorporated in BVI. This entity does not
produce financial statements available for public use.

33

34

BRER

RMEBR AEEE M IE 173 H &
RUNEAMEERZIRIBLHEEERR -

MIBITIEHZAREEEREBAARE
6,582,855,0007T (ZZE— N (KEF) :
AR #3,641,612,0007T) @ B BEFEER
ERXME S EEERYELTEEZRE
Frig &k o

%%.m?% HRNEZFWEEZENN

ZEAT ROTBERIEZMEILH
fﬁ’iﬁﬁ@fklﬁqﬂH&Z@ﬂﬂaﬁﬁ?‘xﬁﬁ—%ﬁ :
BAREE AN KA BEEZFRERNRE B

K o NGB 5% F R MER TR
RPN AEZRAREQFEBMTE
;EO

R=Z=_ZFFET_A=1—H AKE
=T E R — B R RN B KIE

B EREBRITARTREBEERE

EREEMER (fE26) °

EERREBERS
RZTE_TF+-_A=+—H EER
BROAEBZEEE QAR RKEE Hx
7 AR %Eﬁﬁﬁ%?ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁZMega
Regal Limited ° % & B I R 4R LB Fs ¥ 3k
AEARER -
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35 Company-level statement of financial

& M5 R EE

(BIESHHA  FAIUARKETIT)
35 ARBEHMMBERAE

position
2020 2019
—EEF —E-NEF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
M= AR% T AREF T
Non-current asset FRBEE
Interest in a subsidiary ] RO HWEAFR s | 2063653 | 1872332
Current assets REEE
Prepayments TR FRIE 663 729
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 8,379 4,301
______________________________________________________________________________________ 2042 | 5030
Current liabilities REEE
Accrued charges JEETE A 260 1,252
Interest payable FEAHFI) &, 19,936 26,051
Amount due to related parties JE 1T A B 07 30 IB 116,581 =
Derivative financial liabilities TEEmBaE 18,317 6,667
Bonds payable JERE S 931,544 676,229
__________________________________________________________________________________ 1086638 | 710199
Netcurrentliabilites =~ ##*®&& | (1,077.5%)| ... (705.169)
Total assets less current liabilities #EERAEEE 986,057 1,167,163
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Bonds payable JEfIEH - 323,945
Derivative financial liabilities = #THE®®@a®&E | ol 14018
T SO ER 337,963
Net assets REE 986,057 829,200
Capital and reserves BEXK @
Share capital fi&% A 29 39,354 35,154
Reserves f 946,703 794,046
Total equity RS 986,057 829,200
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36 Comparative figures 36 LLEEF
Application of merger accounting EREHETRESE
As further explained in note 1(b) to the financial statements, A SRR 1 (o) — SR AR
due to the application of AG 5 in the current year, retrospective EARFERAEIESIE5%  RERAK
adjustments have been made and certain comparative FEMNZEY SEHBYPRERETE
amounts have been restated to conform with the current year’s FHEREEE -
presentation.

37 Possible impact of amendments, new 37 8§FE_=_=EF+_A=+—
standards and interpretations issued but BILEFEEEHAGERRENZ
not yet effective for the year ended 31 E5] - METERIRBREZRE
December 2020 4
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA HELEFUHEmRETEBS B85
has issued a number of amendments, new standards and MAgEBMEIAEE] T ERIRZE
interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended 2o EBE] T ERRERER
31 December 2020 and which have not been adopted in these T _TFE+_A=t+—HIEFEHK
financial statements. These include the following which may be AR BREEMBHRERLARERA - A
relevant to the Group. TARAEERNEB AR AR -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUT AR 2%
Bi#6 2 E 5t R RT3
Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022
BRI EERNEIR 2 ER] [# 2 1E4a9184t | —E-__F—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment: 1 January 2022
Proceeds before Intended Use
BERGTERF6R 2B [ W%  BERRE - T _F—H—H
HEE A AT AT 135025 )
Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a 1 January 2022
Contract
BB G EREIR 2B [BELSA—BTTEAIBIH A —E__F—H—H
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle 1 January 2022
ERBHREEN T \FE_T_TFRBIFEIE T _¥—H—H
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what AEFRFFEZEEEN B AERE
the impact of these developments is expected to be in the period MRMELZXE - 25 R ARG
of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of RNZEXB N KA ge 458 gk
them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated ERRE AT E o

financial statements.
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AFEKEMBIHE

Results

For the year ended 31 December

Ri®
BE+=A=t—BLEE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
“ECEE | ZT-NF —E-\f ET—+tf ET—R%F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB‘000 RMB'000
ARETRE | ARETE ARETRT ARETRT ARETR
(restated)
(B E5)
Turnover ] 8,778,600 2,337,641 2,111,930 = =
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity AP AR R RF
shareholder of the Company (E18) 809,237 39,906 (145,930) (16) (26,645)
Earnings/(loss) per share (RMB) BRERN/ (BE) ARK)
— Basic -EK 1.65 0.08 (0.33) (0.00) (0.06)
Assets and liabilities SERAE
At 31 December nNE=H=5r—H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
ZE-%F | ZE-NFE —E-\f& T+t Z—T—RF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB‘000 RMB'000
ARETRE | ARETE ARETRT ARETT ARETR
(restated) (restated)
(&) (i &E5)
Non-current assets ERBEE 4,957,348 3,887,909 3,690,916 1,749,506 1,171,339
Current assets MEEE 51,619,034 | 29,834,320  23,135959 12,911,636 475,417
Current liabilities MEBE (33,910,844) | (25417.416) (18,291,897)  (8,809,894) (181,107)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (16,503,634) | (6,111,086) (6,511,945  (4,367,811) (132,609)
Net assets BRE 6,161,904 2,193,727 2,023,033 1,483,437 1,333,040
Note: Mtz -

As set out in Note 1(b) to the financial statements, the Group has applied AG5
to account for business combination under common control in current year and
retrospective adjustments have been made. The financial information for the
assets and liabilities of 2019 and 2018 and the results of 2019 have been restated
accordingly to conform with the current year’s presentation. For the interests of
shareholders, financial information for assets and liabilities for 2016 and 2017 and
the results for 2016, 2017 and 2018 are not restated.

BATEERRMTE1(0)#F - AEE ARG FHES £55
AEFHAREREBAHAR  XCHEHERHE - —
E-NEFR-_F-)N\FHNEERBEVBERAR_T
—NENRECHEERY  UERAFEZ 2588

RIS EH g -

TE-REFERZEEFNEERE

BB ARUR B —~F B LER-B-NF

MEEWEET -
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Particulars of Major Properties

FRMERER

Investment Properties BEME
Attributable Gross floor
interest to area  Primary
Properties the Group (sqm.) intended use Term of land use rights
i1 | BEER
ES RS (Fr%) FEREURE  IHERESR
Sansheng International Plaza, No. 358 Hanjiang Middle Road, 95.00% 120,579 Commercial Due to expire on 11 May 2052
Hanjiang District, Yangzhou City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC
RETEE BN T HIRR PSR = RN ES A% BR-ER-FRAT—HIH
The southern side of Xingfu North Road and the eastern side of 96.80% 110,108 Commercial/office  Due to expire on 28 July 2060
Chuangye Road, Zhifu District, Yantai City, Shandong Province,
the PRC
PEILREEAT S RRERIAKEARAZERA BE/BD BRZERZFLAZT/\REIE
Sansheng International Center, No. 118 Wusi Road, Gulou District, 95.00% 32452 Commercialioffice  Due to expire on 9 July 2035 for
Fuzhou City, Fujian Province, the PRC commercial use and
9 July 2045 for office use
FEERE BN THER AMNE 18R ZRER L BE/ B0 BEARBR-Z=AELANA
B8 - A REAIBR
“EMRELANRIE
No. 152-158 Jiaozhou Road, Shibei District, Qingdao City, 100.00% 26,507 Commercial Due to expire on 31 March 2036
Shandong Province, the PRC
REILREF ST L REMH152-158% EE BRZZ=RE=A=+—R5H
No. 86 Zhongyang Sreet, Daoli District, Harbin City, 100.00% 10,090  Commercial Due to expire on 25 March 2036
Heilongjiang Province, the PRC
P ERETERAETEEEDRALBOT [GE BR-E="F=A-TRAZH
Binjiang International, 96 Nanjiangbinxi Road, Cangshan District, 95.00% 7,578 Commercial Due to expire on 13 April 2054
Fuzhou City, Fujian Province, the PRC
FEERARMTAILERTARRYHRELER [EE BRZZRNENAT=A5H
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FRMREFR

Development Properties S E
Attributable Gross floor
Expected interest to area
Project Location Project status Completion the Grmg (sqﬁmé Primary intended use
‘ : 1§ 22 ‘
2R % EAMR BithI EiiRs (Trk) TERERE
1 Sansheng International Pingtan, Fujian Under development Year of 2022 90.00% 443498 Residential/Commercial
Coast (Phase 1) »
“EERER(-H) RETE R it Skt EE/h%
2 Sansherg Metropolis Longguanyi, Chengol, Sichuan ~ Completed - 95.00% 442,827 Residential/Commercia
= IR %I - FE/H%
3 International Coast Longha\ , Zhangzhou, Fujian Completed - 95.00% 409363 ResidentialCommercial
.E%\r(/@}_ 2 ‘ng/ RI - E%/?ﬂﬁ%
4 Binjiang International Cangshan, Fuzhou, Fujian Under development Year of 2021 95.00% 320,777 ResidentialCommercial/
Office
BIER BEENEL R it S EE/BE/HAZ
5 Sanshen}g'Ru Ue Mansion Zhifu, Yantai, Shandong Under development Year of 2023 96.80% 303,365 Residential
BNl WREAZR GG It it iz
6 The Rgue Bay Minhou, Fuzhou, Fujian Under development Year of 2021 95.00% 25792 Residential/Commercia
G BRENEE 7 3% EE/h%
7 Puyue Mountains And Rivers  Xiapu, Ningde, Fujian Under development Year of 2022 85.50% 219947 Residential/Commercil
Bl BRERER GG ik Sk 2 FE/H%
8 Sansheng Puyue Mansion Haimen, Jiangsu Under development Year of 2022 80.00% 202123 Residential
SBERR L& 7 k- Skt frz
9 The”PE?yue Bay Zhangqm Jinan, Shandong Under development Year of 2022 80.00% 201,054 Residential
e REHER G it S i
10 SanshengInternational Pingtan, Fujian Under development Year of 2023 90.00% 196,900 Residential/Commercil
Coast (Phase 2) o ) \
ZRERER(ZH) FRTE GG It it EE/H%
11 Puyue Mansion Rudong, Nantong, Jiangsu Under development Year of 2021 92.00% 187,980 Residential/Commercil
B LEEENR 7 i EE/h%
12 Yiful Pro‘Ect Shenhe, Shen%ang, Liaoning To be constructed = 100.00% 186,065 Residential/Commercial
RER RERRE fT = FE/H%
13 Future City Mawei, Fuzhou, Fujian Under development Year of 2021 100.00% 173,077 Residential/Commercial
AR RERIER 7 i EE/h%
14 Sansheng Puyue Binjiang Change Fuzhou Fujian Completed = 95.00% 164908 Residential/Commercial
SHEEREL REENRY %I = FE/H%
15 Sansheng Tianyue Hantai Hanzhong Shaanxi Under development Year of 2022 95.00% 160,698  Residential/Commercial
ZBAR REZDES " i z/m2
16 Puyue Mansion Chenghai, Shantou, Guangdong  Under development Year of 2022 95.00% 128815 Residential/Commercial
B ERIEESE 7 kS fx/m%
17 SanshenEg OGa\axyC\ty X\shan Wi, Jiangsu Under development Year of 2022 100.00% 127698 Commercial/Office
B £ £551 7 S BE/HAE
18 Sansheng ® Xinzhu Mansion Wuun Changzhou, Jiangsu Under development Yearof2021 95.92% 104098 Residential/Commercial
SHeDERE NE T 7 ZRo-f fx/m%
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